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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 02 MARCH 2021  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morn ing  Mr  Se leka;  good  morn ing  

everybody.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Morn ing  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A re  you ready?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Cha i rperson we are  ready.   As  –  as  

ment ioned yeste rday Cha i rpe rson our  w i tness today is  Mr  

Br ian  Mole fe .   He is  appear ing  fo r  the  second t ime;  we 

were  in te r rup ted  las t  t ime by  an  unfor tunate  exposure  to  

Cov id  bu t  he  is  here  –  Mr  Mole fe  w i l l  be  ready to  take  the  10 

oath  or  a f f i rmat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes jus t  –  e i ther  p lace  on reco rd  or  Mr  

Masuku jus t… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   P lace on record  tha t  he  and h is  team are  

rep resent ing  Mr  Mole fe .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Aga in .   You can  do i t  f rom there  i f  you  

are  comfo r tab le  you can do i t  f rom there .  

ADV MASUKU:   Deputy  Ch ie f  Jus t ice .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MASUKU:  Together  w i th  Mr  Tshepe and S ikhakhane  

we appear  fo r  Mr  Mole fe  on  the  ins t ruc t ions o f  Mo laba  

A t to rneys.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   Okay  Mr  Se leka.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes the  a f f i rma t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes p lease admin is te r  the  oa th .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Or  oa th  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Welcome back Mr  Mole fe .   Jus t  sw i tch  on  

your  m ic rophone before  you take  the  oa th .   Thank you.  

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

MR MOLEFE:    B r ian  Mole fe .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed a f f i rmat ion?  

MR MOLEFE:   I  have no ob jec t ions .  10 

REGISTRAR:   Do  you a f f i rm tha t  the  ev idence you w i l l  g ive  

w i l l  be  the  t ru th ;  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  bu t  the  t ru th ;  

i f  so  p lease ra i se  your  r igh t  hand and say,  I  t ru ly  a f f i rm.  

MR MOLEFE:   I  t ru ly  a f f i rm.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you,  you may be seated.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i rperson.   Cha i rperson 

Mr  Mole fe ’s  a f f idav i t s  i s  found in  Eskom Bund le  17  –  

Eskom Bund le  17  and i t  has  been marked as  Exh ib i t  U38.1  

on  page 5 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  have got  i t .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr  Mole fe  you w i l l  have the  same 

bund le  in  f ron t  o f  you wh ich  conta ins  your  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And you can keep your  m ic rophone on a t  

a l l  t imes Mr  Mo le fe .   For  the  benef i t  o f  the  pub l i c  Mr  

Se leka you migh t  w ish  to  jus t  re -or ien ta te  the  pub l i c  in  
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te rms o f  … 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Where  we were  w i th  Mr  Mole fe ’s  

ev idence when we had to  ad journ  las t  t ime and what  you  

have dea l t  w i th  o r  a re  s t i l l  busy  dea l ing  w i th  and what  

top ics  he  w i l l  cover  fo r  today.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes thank you Cha i rperson.   Now on  

the  prev ious occas ion  when Mr  Mole fe  appeared we dea l t  

w i th  mat te rs  re la t ing  to  h is  background,  employment  a t  

Eskom,  re la t ionsh ips  w i th  the  Gupta ’s  and whethe r  o r  no t  10 

there  was a l so  a  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Mr  Sa l im Essa and Mr  

Mole fe  e labora ted  on ques. . .  – on  –  in  h is  answers  to  those  

quest ions and h is  secondment  was a l so  touched upon to  

some exten t  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  he  had knowledge o f  i t .   

What  we w i l l  ma in ly  be  focuss ing  on  th is  t ime  around  

Cha i rperson is  on  the  –  what  we re fer  to  as  the  

t ransact ions.    

Mr  Mole fe  dea ls  w i th  tha t  in  h is  a f f idav i t .   A pre-

payment  o f  R1.6  b i l l i on  wh ich  is  conver ted  in to  a  guarantee  

in  December  2015.   The p re-payment  o f  R659 mi l l ion  in  20 

Apr i l  2016 to  Tegeta  and we w i l l  touch a  l i t t le  b i t  be fore  the  

McK insey mat te r  the  pena l ty  as  we l l .    

So  the  R2.17 b i l l i on  pena l ty  tha t  Eskom sought  to  

impose aga ins t  OCM.   We wi l l  re fe r  to  the  coopera t ion  

agreement  Mr  Mole fe  tha t  Eskom and OCM had and the  



02 MARCH 2021 – DAY 353 
 

Page 6 of 299 
 

te rm inat ion  thereof  tha t  led  to  the  arb i t ra t ion .   So those 

are  the  aspects  tha t  we in tend touch ing  on.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay tha t  i s  f ine .   Another  i ssue wh ich  

you shou ld  look a t  o r  maybe your  jun io r  wou ld  be  look ing  

in to  i s  tha t  I  remember  tha t  when Mr  Mole fe  was here  l as t  

t ime in  the  s ta tement  tha t  he  made before  he  s ta r ted  h is  

ev idence he had compla ined about  the  commiss ion  in  

respect  o f  cer ta in  th ings.    

I  do  no t  remember  a l l  o f  them but  I  do  remember 

tha t  one o f  the  th ings he  had sa id  was tha t  he  had wr i t ten  10 

to  the  commiss ion  I  do  no t  know whethe r  in  December  and 

–  or  ear l i e r  where  he  had made i t  c lear  tha t  he  was ve ry  

keen to  come and  g ive  ev idence.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Be fore  the  commiss ion  and he was 

wonder ing  why he had –  why the  commiss ion  had to  i ssue 

summons aga ins t  h im.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  my reco l lec t ion  is  tha t  ne i ther  you nor  

I  dea l t  w i th  some o f  those issues and I  th ink  i t  i s  impor tan t  20 

tha t  … 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A t  leas t  some o f  them shou ld  be  dea l t  

w i th .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   To  the  ex ten t  tha t  you r  team m ight  no t  

have looked in to  them.    They need to  be  looked  in to  so  

tha t  a t  some s tage they can be dea l t  w i th .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes the  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  so  i t  does not  have to  –  they do  not  

have to  be  dea l t  w i th  now.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  maybe your  jun io r  can go back to  the 

s ta tements  and then look a t  the  issues tha t  were  no t  

responded.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The –  the  summons one Cha i r  I  th ink  

we d id  exp la in  i t  in  e i ther  in  a  le t te r  o r  in  an  emai l  –  I  th ink  

i t  i s  a  le t te r  tha t  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  i t  i s  impor tan t  tha t  –  because he 

made h is  compla in ts  pub l i c .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  the  exp lanat ion  shou ld  be  pub l i c  as  

we l l .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Yes.   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:   As  I  say  i t  does not  have to  be  done now.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ye.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  i t  has  go t  to  be  done I  th ink  a t  some 

s tage today.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes no  tha t  i s  a l r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Can I  exp la in  the  one o f  the  summons  

though Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  you  –   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Th i s  i s  a  s imp le  one.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  you  are  ab le  to  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .   I t  i s  a  s imp le  one.   We d id  exp la in  10 

to  Mr  Mole fe  tha t  a  summons is  a  fo rmal  no t i f i ca t ion  tha t  i s  

g iven to  eve ry  w i tness who comes  to  appear.   I t  i s  no t  tha t  

i t  i s  i ssued because the  w i tness i s  res is t ing  to  come and  

appear  i t  i s  jus t  tha t  we ensure  fo rmal ly  tha t  the  da te  and 

t ime fo r  w i tness has been communica ted  and the  w i tness  

w i l l  do  an  appearance on tha t  day.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  i t  i s  no t  because you are  res i s t ing  to  

appear  I  know he  sa id  he  wou ld  have come wi l l i ng l y  even a  

le t te r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   O r  a  te lephone.   So I  th ink  we d id  

exp la in  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  we l l  maybe I  can add th is .   When the  

commiss ion  s ta r ted  in  2018 and in  2019 our  a t t i tude was 
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tha t  somebody who is  coopera t ing  w i th  the  commiss ion  who  

is  w i l l i ng  to  appear  shou ld  no t  have a  summons  issued 

aga ins t  them.    

We shou ld  on ly  reserve  tha t  fo r  somebody who was  

not  coopera t ing  or  –  and so  on .   And many peop le  who  

came to  g ive  ev idence in  2018/2019 d id  so  w i thout  ac tua l l y  

be ing  issued w i th  summonses but  there  came a  t ime 

because o f  the  un-const ra in ts  le f t  and the  t ime le f t  fo r  the  

commiss ion  to  f in ish  i t s  work  when the  a t t i tude was 

somet imes somebody might  no t  be  somebody who is  no t  10 

coopera t ing  bu t  m ight  be  pu t t ing  cer ta in  p r i o r i t ies  ahead o f  

the  commiss ion  in  te rms o f  da tes  to  say we l l  no ,  no  I  am 

not  ava i lab le  on  tha t  da te  I  am ava i lab le  on  another  da te  

and negot ia t ing  tha t  i s  jus t  no t  the  k ind  o f  th ing  tha t  we  

wou ld  do  because then i f  we do tha t  i t  becomes  

prob lemat ic .    

So we then sa id  we l l  i f  we want  you to  come to  the  

commiss ion  on  shor t  no t ice  we w i l l  negot ia te  da tes .   But  i f  

we a re  go ing  to  g ive  you what  we regard  as  reasonab le  

no t ice  we w i l l  no t  negot ia te  we w i l l  say  tha t  i s  the  da te .   20 

So –  bu t  par t  o f  the  reason o f  the  change o f  a t t i tude 

was to  t ry  and make sure  tha t  we can – we are  guaranteed 

tha t  the  person w i l l  appear  i f  they  were  issued a  summons 

because i f  we have not  i ssued a  summons i f  someth ing  

comes up the  person phones and says,  can we change the  
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da tes  and so  on  and we –  the re  are  prob lems wi th  tha t .   So 

Mr  Se leka i s  no t  –  i s  r igh t  to  say jus t  because a  summons 

is  i ssued aga ins t  you i t  does not  necessar i l y  mean you are  

no t  t rus ted  to  coopera te .    

So –  so  we have issued more  summonses as  we  

approach the  end o f  the  work  o f  the  commiss ion  than we 

d id  when we s t i l l  had qu i te  a  lo t  o f  t ime.   Okay a l r igh t .   

Other  i ssues you w i l l  dea l  w i th  la te r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Se leka.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   Mr  Mole fe  ja  las t  t ime you  

jus t  remember  w i l l  be  lead ing  your  ev idence and I  am not  

your  opponent .    

CHAIRPERSON:   You are  no t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  am not  h i s  opponent .   So las t  t ime you  

even as  I  pu t  peop le ’s  vers ions to  you i t  i s  mere l y  to  ge t  

your  response l i ke  we d id  Mr  He in  Bester  who tes t i f ied  

here  prev ious ly.    20 

So we w i l l  car ry  on  a long the  same l ines .   Jus t  to  

recap you tes t i f ied  about  your  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  the  Gupta  

bro thers ;  I  th ink  i t  i s  –  i s  i t  a l l  o f  them;  your  v i s i t s  to  the i r  

p lace  and the  in ten t ion  w i th  them –  is  i t  w i th  them to  fo rm 

a  bank –  to  es tab l i sh  a  bank?  And tha t  i s  way be fore  you  
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came to  Eskom f rom your  exp lanat ion .   

So –  and then  we a lso  ment ioned to  you the  

ev idence o f  Mr  He in  Bester  p r io r  to  your  secondment  to  

Transnet  –  to  Eskom how Mr  Sa l im Essa sa id  to  h im tha t  

we w i l l  show you how power fu l  we are  tha t  we have a l ready 

dec ided who is  go ing  to  be  the  boss a t  Eskom.   And tha t  

we were  in  tha t  regard  t r y ing  to  show you tha t  your  

secondment  to  Eskom seemed to  have been pre-p lanned.   

P re-p lanned not  jus t  by  –  oh  le t  me jus t  say  pre-p lanned by  

th i rd  par t ies  ou ts ide  o f  government .    10 

You have made your  comments  on  tha t .   And then i t  

was the  announcement  about  the  Min i s te r,  Min is te r  Lynn 

Brown a t  the  t ime on  the  17 t h  o f  Apr i l  2015 jus t  over  a  

month  a f te r  Mr  Matona was suspended tha t  you  w i l l  be  

seconded to  Eskom.   That  i s  on  the  17 t h  o f  Apr i l  2016/15 –  

I  beg your  pardon .    

 There  was a  meet ing  on  the  23 r d  o f  Apr i l  2015 wh ich  

took p lace in  Cape Town –  the  meet ing  o f  the  board .   I  

be l ieve  you a t tended tha t  meet ing .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes tha t  i s  cor rec t  bu t  be fore  we proceed  20 

Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   Jus t  as  we are  recapp ing  I  jus t  want  to  

remind the  commiss ion  tha t  I  d id  make a  s ta tement  wh ich  I  

made a  substant i ve  a l legat ions to  the  ex ten t  tha t  I  fe l t  that  
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the  –  G lencore  had been t ry ing  to  expor t  8  b i l l i on  orders  

and tha t  the  Pres ident  had been made a  –  we l l  the  cur ren t  

Pres ident  had been made a  shareho ld ing  in  one  o f  –  in  

Opt imum actua l l y  –  company tha t  i s  the  cent re  o f  

every th ing  tha t  has happened here .   I  am say ing  th is  now 

because the  fac t  tha t  wh i le  we were  recapp ing  tha t  was not  

ment ioned.   I  hope tha t  i t  i s  no t  be ing  swept  under  the  

carpet  and be ing  fo rgo t ten  conven ien t ly.   Jus t  to  make sure  

Cha i rperson tha t  i t  d id  reg is te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  10 

MR MOLEFE:   And tha t  i t  has  –  tha t  there  is  a  cer ta in  

amount  o f  we igh t  tha t  w i l l  be  a t tached.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   To  what  I  sa id .   Because i t  i s  a t  the  same 

t ime Glencore  and Opt imum are  a t  the  cent re  o f  a l l  these 

f i les  tha t  a re  beh ind  me now.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  Mr  Mole fe  I  am surp r ised tha t  you 

wou ld  th ink  tha t  i t  i s  be ing  swept  under  the  carpet  –  o r  the  

carpet  because you sa id  i t  pub l i c ly  and you –  you know 

f rom your  own  exper ience tha t  when a  w i tness says  20 

someth ing  tha t  imp l ica tes  somebody i t  te rms o f  the  Ru les  

o f  the  Commiss ion  tha t  person is  g iven a  copy o f  tha t  

s ta tement  so  tha t  they have a  chance to  respond.   So I  d id  

no t  expect  you to  th ink  tha t  i t  wou ld  be  swept  under  the  

carpet .  
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MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  know some media  sa id  you –  your  

ev idence was s topped because  you made a l legat ions  

aga ins t  the  Pres ident  so  the  commiss ion .  

MR MOLEFE:   No I  was jus t  concerned tha t  i t  i s  no t  be ing  

ment ioned as  a  00 :16:36.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no  we d id  no t  ment ion  every th ing .   I  

am sure  –  cer ta in ly  I  do  no t  th ink  we ment ioned every th ing .   

The on ly  th ing  I  wanted to  ment ion  was someth ing  tha t  was 

not  responded to  wh ich  you sa id .   That  i s  what  I  wanted to  10 

ra ise .  

MR MOLEFE:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  I  do  know –  I  have been to ld  tha t  

your  s ta tement  tha t  you made on tha t  day wh ich  you  

handed up was sent  to  peop le  who were  imp l ica ted  in  i t .   

So  there  is  no th ing  tha t  i s  be ing  swept  under  the  carpet .  

MR MOLEFE:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes I  was a t  the  meet ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   We d id  exchange tha t  20 

Cha i rperson.   Yes in  tha t  meet ing  Mr  Mole fe  the re  was the  

issue o f  the  coopera t ion  ag reement  be tween Eskom and  

OCM.   That  coopera t ion  agreement  da ted  back to  March o r  

May 2014 in  te rms o f  wh ich  –  and i t  was the  cu lm inat ion  o f  

negot ia t ions  be tween the  par t ies  about  coa l  qua l i t ies ,  
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amount  o f  coa l  to  be  supp l ied  and i t  cu lm inated i n to  tha t  

agreement  wh ich  was in tended to  u l t imate ly  amend the  

ex i s t ing  coa l  supp ly  ag reement  be tween Eskom and  OCM.  

 The i tem was on the  agenda a t  the  board  meet ing  o f  

the  23 r d  hav ing  i t  been re fer red  to  the  board  by  the  BTC 

tha t  sa t  on  the  15 t h  o f  Apr i l  2015.    

 When you look a t  the  m inutes  o f  the  meet ing  i t  says  

tha t  the  i tem had  to  be  removed –  shou ld  be  removed f rom 

the  agenda and the  board  members  have come here  and 

sa id  tha t  i tem was re fe r red  to  you w i th  cer ta in  ins t ruc t ions.   10 

Can you g ive  the  Cha i rpe rson your  reco l lec t ion  o f  what  

t ransp i red  in  tha t  meet ing  in  respect  o f  tha t  i tem o f  the  

coopera t ion  agreement  and the  i n tended four th  addendum 

to  the  agreement  be tween OCM and Eskom? 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes Cha i rperson the  –  tha t  agreement  was  

re fer red  to  me (no t  aud ib le ) .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Sor ry.  

MR MOLEFE:   I t  was re fer red  to  me as you cor rec t l y  po in t  

ou t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh okay.    20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  th ink  you  may have to  be  spec i f i c  

Mr  Se leka i f  you  want  cer ta in  spec i f i c  in fo rmat ion .   Do you  

want  to  f ind  ou t  why i t  was re fer red  to  h im? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Or  … 
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes then I  w i l l  fo l low up Cha i r.   I f  he  

says yes i t  was in  fac t  then I  can fo l low up Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .   Yes Mr  Mole fe  do  –  can you reca l l  

why i t  was re fer red  to  you?  

MR MOLEFE:   I  wou ld  imag ine  because I  was the  ac t ing  

Group Ch ie f  Execut ive  and the  board  fe l t  i t  appropr ia te 

tha t  I  shou ld  dea l  w i th  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Hm.  

ADV MASUKU:   Sor ry  Cha i r  I  –  I  am sor ry  to  in te r jec t .   I  10 

am not  sure  whether  i t  i s  –  the  acoust ic  a re  a  b i t  bad.   We 

–  I  am s t rugg l ing  to  hear.   I  am s t rugg l ing  to  hear  ac tua l l y  

a l l  o f  you.    

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry  I  th ink… 

ADV MASUKU:   I  am s t rugg l ing  to  hear  a l l  o f  you – I  am 

not  su re  whether  i t  i s  –  there  i s  a  vo lume somewhere .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh you cannot  hear  us .  

ADV MASUKU:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh even w i th  me  wi th  my vo i ce?  

ADV MASUKU:   No –  we l l  I  do  no t  have a  prob lem wi th  20 

your  vo ice  I  ac tua l l y  l i ke  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.   But  I  m igh t  have to  ra ise  i t  

because the re  have been t imes  when peop le  say they  

cannot  hear  me so  I  a lways assumed I  have got  a  loud 

vo i ce  so  –  bu t  Mr  Se leka I  have to  remind h im now and  
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aga in .  

ADV MASUKU:   But  i t  i s  espec ia l l y  Mr  Se leka yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV MASUKU:   He spoke ve ry  so f t l y.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  have to  remind h im to  speak up  

because he has a  very  so f t  vo ice .   So le t  us  t ry  and i f  the  

prob lem pers i s ts  jus t  a le r t  me aga in .   So le t  –  i f  there  i s  

anyth ing  tha t  the  techn ic ians can do to  ass i s t  they must  do  

tha t  as  we l l .   Okay and you w i l l  t ry  and speak  up Mr  

Se leka.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .   Cha i r  I  th ink  i t  was the  sound  

sys tem th is  t ime around.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   I  must  say  a lso  I  th ink  you  shou ld  

t ry  the  same Mr  Mole fe .   You a lso  –  shou ld  a l so  t ry  and 

speak up a  b i t .  

MR MOLEFE:   I  w i l l  do  so  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Ja .   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr  Mole fe  I  w i l l  re fe r  to  documents  

inso fa r  as  you need me to  or  where  i t  i s  necessary.   So 

tha t  meet ing  wha t  the  board  members  have sa id  the  mat te r  20 

was re fer red  to  you w i th  the  ins t ruc t ion  tha t  you w i l l  ge t  

in fo rmat ion  and come back to  –  to  repor t  back.   They say 

and f rom the  ev idence tha t  we see is  tha t  in  June 2015 you 

te rm inated the  coopera t ion  agreement  and the  negot ia t ion  

process and they  were  no t  aware  tha t  the  te rm inat ion  had  
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taken p lace.   You d id  no t  come back to  them pr io r  to  you 

do ing  the  te rm inat ion .   And tha t  i s  why I  was ask ing  you 

can you te l l  the  Cha i rperson your  reco l lec t ion  o f  why the  

mat te r  came to  you and now can you comment  on  what  the  

board  members  have sa id  here  about  … 

MR MOLEFE:   Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You had –  you hav ing  been g i ven 

exp l i c i t  ins t ruc t ions to  come back,  ge t  in fo rmat ion  come 

back bu t  they say you went  ahead and te rm inated  w i thout  

them knowing.  10 

MR MOLEFE:   Cha i r  you know a  lo t  has been sa id  about  

the  fac t  tha t  I  re fused to  negot ia te .   That  i s  no t  t rue .   We 

negot ia ted .   We spoke.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry  jus t  repeat  tha t .  

MR MOLEFE:   A lo t  has been sa id  about  the  fac t  tha t  we  

re fused to  negot ia te .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   We d id  no t  re fuse to  negot ia te ;  we  

negot ia ted .   There  is  ev idence o f  the  negot ia t ion .   I  th ink  

even in  Mr  Bester ’s  a f f idav i t  he  says tha t… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am so r ry  Mr  Mole fe   Maybe jus t  so  tha t  

we fo l low the  sequence le t  us  s ta r t  w i th  i s  i t  t rue  tha t  when  

the  board  re fer red  tha t  mat te r  o r  t ha t  p roposed agreement  

o r  –  to  you they asked you to  come back to  them and got  

back –  le t  us  s ta r t  w i th  tha t .    
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MR MOLEFE:   My  –  my  

CHAIRPERSON:   Then la te r  on .  

MR MOLEFE:   My unders tand ing  a t  the  t ime Cha i r  was tha t  

I  shou ld  dea l  w i th  the  mat te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   As  you saw f i t .  

MR MOLEFE:   As  I  saw f i t  and then repor t  to  the  board  

about  how i t  was dea l t  w i th .  

CHAIRPERSON:   About  the  p rog ress o r  whatever.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes about  whatever  i s  happen ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay a l r igh t .  

MR MOLEFE:   That  was my unders tand ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MOLEFE:   I t  was not  jus t  a  mat te r  o f  go ing  to  f ind  ou t  

what  was happen ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   Because tha t  wou ld  have taken a  day  or  two 

to  f ind  ou t  what  was happen ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  20 

MR MOLEFE:   So  i t  was not  jus t  an  ins t ruc t ion  o f  go  and 

fami l ia r i se  yourse l f .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  okay.  

MR MOLEFE:   I t  was dea l  w i th  the  mat te r  and repor t  back  

to  us  about  how you have dea l t  w i th  i t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay then I  th ink  you can dea l  

w i th  the  quest ion  o f  negot ia t ions  because I  th ink  you were  

in t roduc ing  tha t  in  the  contex t  o f  what  Mr  Se leka says has  

been sa id  by  board  members  namely  tha t  you te rm inated  

the  agreement .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wi thout  coming back to  them and  I  th ink  

you want  to  you before  you  te rm inated the re  were  10 

negot ia t ions  or  whatever.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   To  dea l  w i th  –  dea l  w i th  tha t .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   I  am go ing  to  read f rom the  

minutes  in  the  l igh t  o f  tha t  exp lanat ion  Mr  Mole fe  wh ich  is  

–  the  m inute  i s  in  –  you get  EB –  Eskom Bund le  18 .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  i s  Eskom Bund le  18(A)  page 416.29.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay I  th ink  go  ahead and read because 20 

we might  be  –  we  might  be  ab le  to  manage.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wi thout  check ing  bu t  Mr  Mole fe  must  fee l  

f ree  to  –  to  check .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .   Th is  –  the  –  in  regard  to  th is  i tem 
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they  say i t  was requested tha t  the  submiss ion  shou ld  be  

taken o f f  the  agenda and submi t ted  to  the  ac t ing  CE before  

be ing  tab led  fo r  approva l .   And then the  reso lu t ion  says:    

“Reso lved tha t  the  re fer ra l  f rom the  BTC for  

approva l  to  me o f  the  mandate  to  conc lude  

negot ia t ions  w i th  Opt imum Coa l  Mine fo r  

coa l  supp ly  to  Hendr ina  Power  S ta t ion  is  

no t  approved and   

2 .  The mandate  shou ld  be  re fe r red  to  the  

ac t ing  Ch ie f  Execut ive  be fore  be ing  tab led  10 

a t  board  fo r  approva l . ”    

So the  mandate  spec i f i ca l l y  re la ted  to  the  negot ia t ions  w i th  

OCM,  you reca l l  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:   The mandate  was to  dea l  w i th  the  fac t  tha t  

OCM wanted an inc rease f rom R150 to  R530 as  I  

( inaud ib le ) .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes so  the  team – the  mandate  to  the 

team was to  nego t ia te  w i th  OCM and then come back.  

MR MOLEFE:   D id  i t  say  negot ia t ing  tha t  in  the  m inute .   I  

was not  ab le  to  ge t  to  the  page.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   In  –  Oh ja  i t  i s… 

MR MOLEFE:   But  –  bu t  I  mean you have a lso  re fer red  to  

an  agreement  tha t  was there .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes the  coopera t ion  ag reement .  

MR MOLEFE:   So  I  do  no t  know what  the  unders tand ing  i s  
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in  te rms was i t  negot ia te  the  ag reement  o r  what  was i t  

about?   I  mean in  your  unders tand ing  because my  

unders tand ing  was tha t  I  shou ld  go  and dea l  w i th  the  

mat te r  –  a  substant ive  mat te r  o f  what  was be ing  sought  by  

OCM.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja  what  had happened here  is  tha t  the 

BTC had taken a  dec is ion  fo r  Eskom team to  negot ia te  w i th  

OCM the poss ib le  te rms fo r  the  amendment  o f  the  then  

ex i s t ing  coa l  supp ly  ag reement .   So pursuant  to  those  

negot ia t ions  there  was a  coopera t i on  agreement  and th is  i s  10 

jus t  fo r  the  par t ies  to  coopera te  w i th  each o ther,  negot ia te  

in  pursuance to  the  amendment  o f  the  CSA – the  Coa l  

Supp ly  Agreement .   That  mandate  produced a  repor t  to  the  

BTC tha t  –  wh ich  is  what  we are  ta lk ing  about  these are  

the  proposed te rms to  inc rease the  pr ice  f rom 150 to  442 –  

R442.00.    

 BTC d id  no t  approve the  mandate  i t  re fe r red  i t  o r  

the  submiss ion  –  i t  re fe r red  i t  the  board .   The board  then 

here  on  the  23 r d  o f  Apr i l  2015 says:  

“The mandate  is  re fe r red  to  you  before  i t  20 

be ing  tab led  a t  board  fo r  approva l . ”  

So when you read the  m inute  the  board  env i sages tha t  tha t  

mandate  w i l l  come back to  i t  fo r  approva l  and I  want  you to  

exp la in  what  the  –  the  apparent  –  you can see the  

apparent  incons is tency or  d iscrepancy between the  m inute  



02 MARCH 2021 – DAY 353 
 

Page 22 of 299 
 

and your  exp lana t ion  about  your  unders tand ing  o f  how the  

mat te r  was g i ven.  

MR MOLEFE:    He was say ing  tha t  the  board  was re fer r ing  

the  mat te r  to  me.   You jus t  rubbers tamp i t .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  do  no t  know.   The board  sa id  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    And endorse  wha t  in  you r  op in ion  was an 

outcome tha t  had  a l ready been p redetermined but  the  pr ice  

wou ld  be  increase.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

MR MOLEFE:    I t  was not  my unders tand ing .   My 

unders tand ing  was not  –  was tha t  I  was not  –  I  was not  

be ing  ins t ruc ted  to  rubbers tamp anyth ing .   In  fac t ,  because  

I  was the  new CEO . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Can I  say  someth ing?  

MR MOLEFE:    . . . I  cas t  a  new eye to  the  who le  mat te r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    May I  someth ing  be fore  you proceed? 

MR MOLEFE:    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    May I  say  someth ing  be fo re  you  

proceed?  20 

MR MOLEFE:    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  am not  say ing  anyth ing .   I  have no  

op in ion  on  i t .   A l l  I  am convey ing  to  you is  the  ev idence o f  

the  board  members .   Mr  Pamensky  came here  and sa id  so .   

Ms Vi rosh in i  Na idoo came here  and sa id  so .   Mr  Venete  
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K le in  sa id  so .   That  th is  mat te r  was g iven to  you to  ge t  

in fo rmat ion  because they cou ld  no t  ge t  answers  f rom the  

team tha t  was hand l ing  the  mat te r.   And they gave i t  to  

you,  ge t  feedback  and come back to  them.   I t  i s  no t  me.    

MR MOLEFE:    No,  and I  am say ing  to  you Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    That  the  mandate  was not  to  ge t  i t  back.   

The mandate  was  to  dea l  w i th  the  mat te r.   I  mean,  ge t t ing  

feedback,  as  an  i ns t ruc t ion  f rom the  board ,  the  CEO:   Jus t  

go  and get  feedback.   I  mean,  tha t  i s  an  admin i s t ra t i ve  10 

funct ion  to  ge t  feedback.   I  was Group Ch ie f  Execu t ive .   I  

had to  l ook  a t  the  mat te r  and dea l  w i th  i t  dec i s ive ,  wh ich  i s  

what  I  d id .   But  to  add Mr  Se leka.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Te l l  the  Cha i r.  

MR MOLEFE:    The agreement ,  Cha i rperson.   The  

agreement  tha t  you re fer  to ,  I  subsequent ly  d iscovered.   

Hav ing  f ind  by  an  o f f i c ia l  who d id  no t  have author i t y  to  do  

so ,  in  the  f i rs t  p lace .   We do not  know i f  who tha t  o f f i c ia l  

was work ing  fo r  bu t  had agreed  to  th is  p roposa l  be ing  

brought  to  where  i t  was.   We d id  no t  have –  we d id  no t  20 

know who the  o f f i c ia l  had been work ing  fo r.   The  

agreement  had never  been to  the  board  be fore  i t  was  

s igned.   The imp l ica t ion ,  the  f inanc ia l  imp l ica t ions were  

such tha t  the  s ize  o f  the  t ransact ion  tha t  was be ing  

proposed to  be  done was so  b ig  tha t  tha t  o f f i c ia l  d id  no t  
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have author i t y.   I f  you  quest ion  Mr  Koko,  the  o f f i c ia l  tha t  

s igned the  agreement  repor ted  to  Mr  Koko.   Mr  Koko was 

not  even aware  a t  the  t ime tha t  the  agreement  was been  

s igned.   So I  even suspected tha t  I  may have been. . .   That  

i t  i s  an  agreement  tha t  was not  supposed to  have gone to 

the  board  in  the  f i rs t  p lace .   So the  way tha t  I  dea l t  w i th  i t .   

I  looked a t  i t  ob jec t i ve ly  and I  found i t  to  be  preposterous 

and unacceptab le .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  i f  we take  i t  s tep-by-s tep .   What  d id  

you say about  the  m inute ,  as  we ca l l  i t  here ,  tha t  the  10 

mandate  i s  re fe r red  to  you before  be ing  tab led  a t  board  fo r  

approva l?   Because pure l y  then the  m inute  contempla ted  

tha t  the  mat te r  wou ld  come back to  the  board  fo r  i t s  

approva l .    

MR MOLEFE:    Cha i rperson what  I  am t ry ing  to  say is .   My  

unders tand ing ,  as  the  Group Ch ie f  Execut ive ,  was the  

board  was u l t ra  v i res .   I  do  no t  know how – we l l ,  the  

m inute  maybe have been w i thered away. . .   But  my  

unders tand ing  was tha t  i t  was a  substant ive  ins t ruc t ion  to  

dea l  w i th  the  mat te r,  i r respect ive  o f  how the  m inute  i s  20 

m inuted.   My unders tand ing  was the  board  wou ld  no t  come 

to  me and say:   Go and f ind  ou t  what  happened here  and 

come back and repor t  back.   The  mandate  was –  so  the  

dynamic  in te rpre ta t ion ,  no t  the  l i te ra l  in te rpre ta t ion  o f  

those words tha t  a re  i n  the  m inute ,  the  dynamic  
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in te rpre ta t ion  tha t  I  gave to  the  m inute  was dea l  w i th  the  

mat te r  as  the  Ch ie f  Execut ive  O ff i cer  in  the  in teres t  o f  

Eskom which  is  what  I  d id .   Which  is  what  was the  sub jec t ,  

ac tua l l y,  o f  my ent i re  s ta tement  when I  came here  fo r  the  

f i rs t  t ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   So we are  to  unders tand you to 

be  say ing ,  the  m inute  i s  what  i t  i s  bu t  your  unders tand ing  

was d i f fe ren t?  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  my unders tand ing  is ,  dynamic ,  i t  i s  no t  

l i te ra l .   And there  is  a  b ig  d i f fe rence between  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no .   Mr  Mo le fe ,  you and Mr  Se leka 

agree.   

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You are  no t  say ing  you are  d i sput ing  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . .what  i s  wr i t ten  in  the  m inutes .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You jus t  say  you have your  own 20 

in te rpre ta t ion  o f  what  the  m inutes  mean.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   So tha t  –  you are  a l l  –  there  is  no  

d ispute  about  tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    There  is  a  d i spute  –  the re  may be a 

d ispute  in  te rms o f  the  board  –  the  board  members ’ 

unders tand ing  o f  what  was dec ided.   The i r  unders tand ing  

and  h is  unders tand ing .   But  as  I  unders tand i t  he  cer ta in l y  

i s  no t  d isput ing  tha t  tha t  i s  what  the  m inutes  a re  say ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  he  says,  h is  unders tand ing  was tha t  

he  was to  dea l  w i th  the  mat te r  as  he  so  see f i t  as  Group  

CEO.   That  i s . . .   And to  repor t  s imp ly  what  he  had done to  

dea l  w i th  i t .   Mr  Mole fe ,  i s  tha t  co r rec t?  10 

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  tha t  i s  what  he  is  say ing .   I t  may be  

tha t  the  board  or  the  re levant  members  o f  the  board ’s  

vers ion  m ight  be  d i f fe ren t  f rom h is  unders tand ing  but  tha t  

i s  what  he  says h is  unders tand ing  was.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.   Yes.   So  w i th  tha t  unders tand ing ,  

be fore  you made  any f ina l  dec i s ion ,  you d id  no t  take  the  

mat te r  back to  the  board  fo r  i t s  approva l .  

MR MOLEFE:    Cha i r,  I  d id  no t  make any f ina l  dec i s ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I s  the  te rm inat ion  o f  the  Corpora t ion  20 

Agreement  a  negot ia t ion  process?  

MR MOLEFE:    As  I  sa id ,  I  even suspected tha t  the  

Corpora t ion  Agreement  was u l t ra  v i res .   Second ly,  there  

was noth ing  to  negot ia te .   What  Opt imum was pu t t ing  on  

the  tab le  was p reposterous and i l l ega l .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Because we had an ex is t ing  agreement  tha t  

they wou ld  pay us  R 150.00 per  coa l  un t i l  2018.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    To  very  tha t  to  the  d isadvantage o f  Eskom 

wou ld  have requ i red  me to  break the  prov i s ions  o f  the  

PMFA.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  bu t  I  am ask ing  a  s imp le  quest ion  

wh ich  is ,  even as  you perce i ved o f  those fac tors  and you  

dec ided tha t  I  am not  p roceed ing  on the  bas i s  o f  these 10 

proposed te rms,  these a re  preposterous and you br ing  tha t  

to  an  end.   When  you make tha t  dec i s ion  –  pr i o r  to  mak ing  

tha t  dec i s ion ,  d id  you take  the  mat te r  back to  the  board  fo r  

approva l?   You d id  no t  take  the  mat te r  back to  the  board 

fo r  approva l .   Tha t  i s  a l l  I  want  to  know.  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  Cha i r  there  i s  no  recorded dec is ion  tha t  

I  made,  te rm ina te  d iscuss ions o r  to  s top  negot ia t ions .   

There  is  no  recorded dec is ion  l i ke  tha t  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  there  an  un recorded dec i s ion?  

MR MOLEFE:    There  is  a lso  no  unrecorded dec i s ion .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    [ laughs]   Okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    [ laughs]   What  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    So  the  negot ia t ions  ended by  

themse lves?  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  they d id  no t  end.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    [ laughs]   They went  on?  [ laughs]    

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   The process  o f  negot ia t ion ,  Cha i r,  i s  

ongo ing  and peop le  employ  d i f fe ren t  negot ia t ing  tac t i cs .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you cannot  negot ia te  fo reve r.  

MR MOLEFE:    You cannot  negot ia te  fo reve r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  somewhere  -  you can use d i f fe ren t  

s t ra teg ies  to  b r i ng  f ina l i t y  bu t  in  the  end,  there  must  be  

some f ina l i t y.  

MR MOLEFE:    There  must  be  some f ina l i t y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  10 

MR MOLEFE:    In  th is  ins tance,  the  f ina l i t y  o f  the 

negot ia t ions  were  cont inu ing  fo rever  to  the  d isadvantage o f  

Opt imum,  they had the  op t ion  o f  tak ing  i t  to  a rb i t ra t ion .   

That  i s  what  they  were  supposed to  do .   So . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    O f  course ,  when you take . .   When,  

be tween the  two par t ies ,  one o f  the  par t ies  took an  issue  

tha t  was the  sub jec t  o f  negot ia t ions  fo r  some t ime,  took i t  

to  a rb i t ra t ion ,  tha t  wou ld  mean the  negot ia t ions  end.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because now you go to  a  compulsory  20 

rou te .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    To  f igh t  i t  ou t .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  yes .  
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MR MOLEFE:    So  i t  was not  fo r  me to take  an issue on  

arb i t ra t ion  because I  had a  cont rac t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    . . . fo r  R 150.00  unt i l  2018.   I  had no  

d isputes .   So Opt imum wou ld  have  gone to  a rb i t ra t ion .    

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    By  the  way Cha i rperson.   A da te  fo r  

a rb i t ra t ion  had been se t .   They ac tua l l y  -  i  do  no t  know 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    They d id  no t  pursue i t?  10 

MR MOLEFE:    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    They d id  no t  pursue arb i t ra t ion?  

MR MOLEFE:    They d id  no t  pursue i t .   Be fore  the  da te  

ar r i ved,  they then  went  fo r  bus iness rescue.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.    

MR MOLEFE:    So  the  da te  in  Mr  Ephron ’s . . .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    A f f idav i t .  

MR MOLEFE:    . . .a f f idav i t ,  he  re fers  to  the  fac t  that  there  

was a  –  tha t  had been sent  fo r  a rb i t ra t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You sa id  ear l ie r  on  to  change the  20 

agreement  wou ld  have been i l lega l  and you re fer red  to  the 

PFMA.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Why wou ld  i t  have been i l lega l  fo r  two  

par t ies  to  an  agreement  i f  they  were  sa t is f ied  tha t  they 
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shou ld  amend or  more  o f  the  c lauses in  the  agreement  fo r  

them to  agree,  we ag ree to  amend th is?   Why wou ld  tha t  

have been i l lega l?  

MR MOLEFE:    I f  bo th  par t ies  were  sa t is f ied .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  obv ious ly,  you can on ly  amend an  

agreement  i f  bo th  par t ies  agree.  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You canno t  amend i t  un i la te ra l l y.   

Nobody can do tha t .  

MR MOLEFE:    Wel l ,  on ly  one par t y  was sa t is f ied ,  yes .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no .   What  I  am say ing  is .   You had 

OCM . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . tha t  wanted the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    Increase.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  increase.   And you had Eskom who 

were  happy w i th  the  s ta tus  quo . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . in  te rms o f  the  pr ice ,  the  agreement .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   And OCM in i t ia ted ,  as  I  unders tand  

i t ,  d iscuss ions and negot ia t ions  to  say:   Cou ld  we re look a t  

the  pr i ce  and make whatever  demands i t  made?  So the  

po in t  I  am making  is .   They were  seek ing  an amendment  o f  

the  agreement .  
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MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And amendment  can on ly  happen  i f  bo th  

par t ies  ag ree.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  I  was jus t  say ing .   Why wou ld  i t  be 

i l l ega l  i f  bo th  par t ies  agree?  Or  tha t  i s  no t  what  you  

meant?  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja ,  the  same,  tha t  I  d id  no t  agree.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    Bo th  par t ies  were  no t  in  agreement .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  bu t  i f  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    The  o ther  i ssue Cha i rpe rson  is  the  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  ho ld  on  a  second.   Jus t  so  tha t  we 

f ina l i se  th is .   I f  Eskom was pe rsuaded to  increase the  pr i ce  

by  whatever  i t  was in  the  ag reement ,  there  wou ld  be  

noth ing  i l l ega l ,  as  fa r  as  you know? 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   I f  bo th  par t ies  had  agreed 20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    . . . to  amend tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    . . . I  wou ld  have been.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    However,  Cha i rperson,  here  mot ive  and  

bona f ides .   The  Opt imum were  in  the  pos i t ion  tha t  they 

were  in  because  in  2012 when they bought  the  company,  

they d id  no t  do  due d i l igence.   My  fee l ing  was,  here  we are  

v ia  Eskom.   We are  in  f inanc ia l  d i f f i cu l t ies .   We are  load-

shedd ing .   The company is  l i te ra l l y  co l laps ing  because  

when I  a r r i ved a t  Eskom,  there  was ta lk  tha t  we w i l l  no t  be  

ab le  to  pay sa la r ies  in  th ree  months .   We are  l i te ra l l y  

co l laps ing .   H is  peop le  made the  m is take or  f i ve  years  ago.   10 

Perhaps i t  was not  a  m is take and tha t  was the  who le  po in t  

o f  my s ta tement .   Perhaps i t  was  not  a  m is take.   Perhaps 

they had banked  on someth ing  tha t  i s  cont ra ry  t o  good  

mora ls  to  ge t  them th is  agreement .   The fac t  tha t  there  are  

peop le  ins ide  Eskom tha t  had f ind  tha t  ag reement  

os tens ib le  w i thou t  au thor i t y,  a lso  made me susp ic ious tha t  

there  are  peop le  Eskom tha t  a re  pursu ing  a  par t i cu la r  

agenda to  sa t is fy  these peop le .   I  was jus t  uncomfor tab le  

w i th  i t .   Cha i rperson,  I  have a  fee l ing  tha t  i f  I  had s igned  

an agreement  o r  agreed to  OCM’s  request ,  we wou ld  be  20 

s i t t ing  in  th is  Commiss ion  or  a  s im i la r  Commiss ion  where  

you wou ld  be  ask ing  me:   But  Mr  Mole fe ,  i f  you  had an 

agreement  fo r  R  150.00,  what  was i t  tha t  d rove  you to  

increase ag reed w i th  th is  par t i cu la r  increase tha t  has now 

co l lapsed Eskom?  So I  had to  do  Cha i rperson  what  I  
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be l ieve  was co r rec t .   And the  background in fo rmat ion  tha t  I  

knew,  i t  a lso  d id  no t  smel l  good  wh ich  is  why I  was a t  

pa ins  to  make the  s ta tement  tha t  I  d id  when I  came here .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  you  were  speak ing  ear l ie r  o f  th ings 

be ing  covered(?)  and I  sa id  to  you tha t  peop le  imp l ica ted  

in  your  s ta tement ,  as  fa r  as  I  know,  have been g i ven your  

s ta tement  so  tha t  they respond.   One o f  them is  Mr  Ephron,  

I  th ink ,  and he,  as  fa r  as  I  know,  he  has f i led  an  a f f idav i t  in  

response to  your  s ta tement .   So the  Commiss ion  has been 

look ing  a t  tha t  and I  th ink  probab ly  Mr  Ephron might  come 10 

back and dea l  w i t h  ce r ta in  mat te rs .   So jus t  remember  tha t  

Mr  Ephron has ac tua l l y  f i l ed  an  a f f idav i t  in  response to 

your  s ta tement .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.    

MR MOLEFE:    Bu t  Cha i rpe rson,  th is  s t ra tegy had gone 

beyond Mr  Ephron.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    Mr  Ivan G lasenberg  came to  see  me fo r  

th is .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 20 

MR MOLEFE:    And i t  was Mr  Ivan Glasenberg  tha t  had  

very  good re la t ionsh ip  w i th  the  cha i rperson o f  Opt imum 

before  he  came the . . .   So Mr  Ephron w i l l  come and g ive  

you techn ica l  answer  bu t  my fee l i ng  was tha t ,  a t  the  very  

h igh  leve l ,  the  leve l  o f  a  cha i rperson o f  the 
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cha i rpersonsh ip .   Mr  Ephron was a  CEO of  Opt imum.   He 

was in  the  greates t  to  most  th ings in  what  I  suspect  was  

happen ing  a  l i t t le  less  s ign i f i can t  than the  peop le  a t  the  

top .   Perhaps what  you need to  do  Cha i rperson is  to  ask  

Mr  Ivan Glasenberg  is  he  has any comment .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  the  Lega l  Team may look a t  tha t  

bu t  I  am aware  tha t  the  Commiss ion  had been in  touch w i th  

Mr  G lasenberg ’s  a t to rneys a t  some s tage fo r  h im to  prov ide  

a  cer ta in  a f f idav i t  wh ich  he  prov ided but  because he l i ves  

abroad,  there  may have been cha l lenges a t  the  t ime about  10 

h im coming he re .   But  the  Lega l  Team wi l l  look  a t  those 

mat te rs  and take  i t  f rom there .   But  Mr  Ephron cer ta in l y  

f i l ed  an  a f f idav i t  in  response to  yours .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    To  your  s ta tement .   And he might  we l l  be  

reca l led .   We do have some const ra in ts .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  he  may be ca l led .   And i f  you have 

not  been g iven tha t  a f f idav i t ,  i t  shou ld  be  send to  you fo r  

you to  see what  he  says.  20 

MR MOLEFE:    Cha i rperson,  can I  add someth ing?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    I f  I  may?  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

MR MOLEFE:    I t  may be a  longwinded s tory  I  g ive?  
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CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

MR MOLEFE:    I t  may be a  longwinded s tory  aga in .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  us  hope not .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    [ Ind is t inc t ]  [Speaker ’s  m ic rophone not  

sw i tched on. ]  

MR MOLEFE:    When I  was a t  Transnet  Cha i rpe rson when 

we bought  the  100 locomot ives  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    When you. . .?  

MR MOLEFE:    We bought  the  100 locomot ives  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

MR MOLEFE:    I t  was because Transnet  have not  been 

g iven a  good  serv ice  to  the  coa l  i ndust ry  to  t ranspor t  the i r  

coa l  to  R ichardsbay.   So we went  and we dec ided tha t  we 

are  go ing  to  end the i r  pay(? )  bu t  buy ing  locomot ives  

because the  locomot ives  on  tha t  l ine  very  o ld ,  40-year -o ld  

locomot ives  and they were  break ing  and unre l iab le .   So by  

then,  we then sa id  to  the  coa l  i ndust ry  we w i l l  buy  the  

locomot ives  a t  the  expense to  Transnet  bu t  you guys must  20 

agree tha t  you w i l l  s ign  Take or  Pay Agreement .   When the  

Take or  Pay Agreement  i s  s igned ,  i t  means tha t  when the 

locomot ive  ar r i ves  a t  your  m ine,  you cannot  te l l  us  tha t  you  

do not  have coa l  tha t  needs to  go  to  R ichardsbay.   I f  you  

do not  have the  coa l  go  to  R ichardsbay,  you w i l l  pay  fo r  
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tha t  locomot ive  because we need to  pay back the  money 

tha t  we are  go ing  to  buy the  l ocomot ives .   The ent i re  

indust ry  agreed except  one company,  Opt imum,  in  2014.   

They re fused to  s ign  the  Take or  Pay Agreement  un t i l  one 

day when I  go t  a  repor t  f rom Mr  Gama tha t  Opt imum is  the 

on ly  one is  re fus ing  to  s ign  the  Take o r  Pay Agreement .   I  

sa id  to  Mr  Gama:   P lease ca l l  Mr  Ephron and te l l  h im tha t  

we are  coming to  h is  o f f i ce  now.   He sa id  i t  i s  no t  

conven ien t .   I  sa id  i t  i s  f ine .   We are  okay w i th  i t .   And we  

went  to  h is  o f f i ce  there  and there .   And I  a r r i ved there  and  10 

I  to ld  h im:   Mr  Ephron,  bu t  Mr  Ephron i f  you  do not  s ign  

th is  Take or  Pay Agreement  where  the  en t i re  indust ry  has  

s igned the  Take or  Pay Agreement ,  we w i l l  no t  g ive  you 

t ra ins .   As  s imp le  as  tha t .   Mr  Ephron ’s  response was:   No,  

Mr  Mole fe ,  we are  wa i t ing  on  Eskom to  s ign  cer ta in  

agreements  w i th  us .   When those  agreements  are  s igned,  

we w i l l  be  happy to  s ign  your  Take or  Pay Agreement .   

Cha i rperson,  I  sa id  to  h im I  am no t  in te res ted  in  Eskom – I  

am not  in te res ted  in  –  the  fac t  o f  the  mat te r  i s  tha t ,  i f  you 

do not  s igh  in  t he  next  24-hours ,  you w i l l  no t  ge t  t ra ins  20 

f rom us because the  who le  indust ry  has s igned.   Mr  Ephron 

re luc tan t ly  s igned w i th in  24-months(s ic ) .   That  was 

March 2015  

CHAIRPERSON:    You mean wi th in  24-hours .  

MR MOLEFE:    O f  our  meet ing .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  I  thought  you sa id  w i th in  24-months  

bu t  maybe . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    24-hours .   Ja .   To  s ign  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  h ’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    To  s ign  the  agreement .   That  was  

March 2015.   Guess what  Cha i rpe rson?  Unbeknown to  h im 

and to  myse l f ,  I  am the  seconded  to  go  and become Group  

Ch ie f  Execut i ve  to  Eskom a mon th  la te r,  l i t e ra l l y.   And 

when I  a r r i ved there ,  here  i s  Mr  Ephron w i th  the  ag reement  

tha t  he  is  wa i t ing  fo r.   And tha t  agreement  i s  bas i ca l l y  10 

expor t ing .   And I  fe l t  tha t :   You know,  Opt imum sa id  to  us  

they w i l l  no t  s ign  the  Take o r  Pay Agreement  because they 

are  wa i t ing  fo r  an  agreement .   In  the  meant ime,  th is  i s  the 

agreement  tha t  they are  wa i t ing  fo r.   So tha t  i s  a  b i t  o f  

background Cha i rperson to  exp la in  my f rame o f  m ind when  

I  dea l t  w i th  the  Opt imum mat te r.   I t  i s  because pe rhaps I  

knew too  much.   I  knew on the  o ther  s ide  they were  t ry ing  

to  p lay  us ,  us ing  Eskom’s  name.   Perhaps a t  Eskom they  

were  a lso  p lay ing  Eskom us ing  Transnet ’s  name but  

un for tunate l y  I  c rossed the  l ine  and I  saw both  s ides o f  the  20 

co in  and I  d id  no t  l i ke  i t  Cha i rperson.   And I  fe l t  tha t  

Opt imum cou ld  no t  be  a l lowed to  behave l i ke  tha t  

espec ia l l y  because they probab ly  fee l  tha t  they have a  very  

good re la t ionsh ip  w i th  the  then Deputy  Pres ident .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wi th  the . . .?  
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MR MOLEFE:    W i th  the  then Depu ty  Pres ident .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  the  background Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . I  guess a t  the  t ime you asked . . .   Oh,  

he  was Deputy  Pres ident  a t  the  t ime.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    I t  was 2018.    10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .   Yes.   Mr  Se leka.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i r,  I . . .   I  am contempla t ing  

Mr  Mole fe ,  approach ing  the  mat te r  d i f fe ren t ly.   I  w i l l  need 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  wou ld  l i ke  us  to  move us  w i th  some 

speed.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because so  fa r,  we have on ly  dea l t  w i th  

what  the  ins t ruc t ion  o f  the  board  was to  Mr  Mole fe  on  the  

23 r d  o f  Apr i l  2015 .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    So  I  th ink  we have got  to  t ry  and move 

w i th  some speed.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  know tha t  the re  is  p robab ly  no  s ing le  

person who is  ho ld ing  us  back.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    [ laughs]    

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  can I  ask  you to  move w i th  some 

speed?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Mr  Mole fe ,  le t  me do th is .   Le t  me 

pa in t  the  p ic tu re  here  f rom what  sees f rom the  ev idence.   

P lease have Eskom Bund le  18  in  f ron t  o f  you.   I t  i s  18(A ) .  

MR MOLEFE:    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    18(A) .   P lease tu rn  to  page 383 and I  10 

am re fer r ing  to  the  b lack  pag ina t i on  f rom the  top  l e f t -hand 

corne r.   Page 383 ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  what  we see f rom the  ev idence.   

F i r s t l y,  th is  i s  a  submiss ion  document  to  the  Board  Tender  

Commi t tee .   I t  i s  f i rs t l y  to  Eskom Procurement  Sub-

Commi t tee ,  25  March 2015 and  then the  Board  Tender  

Commi t tee ,  15  Apr i l  2015.   And the  t i t le  o f  th is  submiss ion  

is :    

“Mandate  to  conc lude negot ia t ions  w i th  20 

Opt imum Coa l  Mine fo r  Coa l  Supp ly  to  

Hendr ina  Power  S ta t ion .   The reso lu t ion  

requ i red  the  Board  o f  D i rec to rs  S tandard  

Commi t tee  Resource  tha t  Pr imary  Energy 

D iv i s ion  is  mandated to  conc lude  negot ia t ions  
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w i th  Opt imum Coa l  to  ensure  secur i t y  o f  

supp ly  fo r  Hendr ina  Power  S ta t ion  a t  

R 442.00.   February  2015 money vents (?)  fo r  a  

CV. . . ”  

 And i t  goes on.   2 .2  says:    

“PED,  wh ich  is  Pr imary  Energy,  i s  mandated to  

negot ia te  and conc lude the  te rm inat ion  o f  the  

Opt imum hardsh ip  c la im in  the  overwr i t ing  o f  

pena l t ies  tha t  have been suspended aga ins t  

Opt imum. . . ”  10 

MR MOLEFE:    So  tha t  was a  request?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  th is  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    . . . f rom the  BTC to  the  board?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  r igh t ,  yes .   Then you go to  

page 390.    

MR MOLEFE:    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  a  document  en t i t led :   Approva l  o f  

a  Negot ia ted  Outcome compi led  by  Mr  Johan Beste r,  

P r imary  Energy.   And then aga in :   Serv ing  be fore  the  

Eskom Procurement  Sub-Commi t tee ,  25  March 2015.   The 20 

BTC,  15  Apr i l  2015.   And the  descr ip t ion  is :   Mandate  to  

conc lude negot ia t ions  w i th  Opt imum Coa l  Mine fo r  Coa l  

Supp ly  to  Hendr ina  Power  S ta t ion .    

 Then you see paragraph –  under  in t roduct ion ,  

parag raph –  the  f i rs t  paragraph under  in t roduct ion  says:  
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“Opt imum Coa l  M ine is  cur ren t ly  los ing  money  

on every  ton  o f  coa l  i t  se l l s  to  Eskom as we l l  

as  to  expor t  marke t .  

Opt imum have,  there fo re ,  a l ready in i t ia ted  

Sect ion  189 process to  re t rench 1  300 miners  

and to  c lose  the  expor t  bus iness by  

31  March 2015.  

Opt imum have agreed to  cont inue to  supp ly  

Eskom on the  cond i t ion  tha t  Eskom agrees to  

pay a  h igher  p r ice  f rom 1  Apr i l  2015,  wh ich  as  10 

a  m in imum wi l l  cover  the  cur ren t  cos t  to  

p roduce coa l  fo r  Eskom.  

A l te rna t ive ly,  Opt imum wants  to  p lay  

bankruptcy,  s top  supp ly  to  Eskom and w i l l  

c lose  the  m ine in  a  mat te r  o f  months . . . ”  

The next  pa ragraph,  and I  w i l l  read tha t  on ly :  

“ In  accordance w i th  the  mandate  approved by  the  

Board  o f  D i rec tors ,  S tandard  Commi t tee ,  BTC 

meet ing ,  12  August  2014 negot ia te  bu t  no t  conc lude  

coa l  supp ly  agreements  fo r  up  to  24  years  to  ensure  20 

the  secur i t y  o f  coa l  supp ly  to  Hendr ina  power 

s ta t ion .   Th i s  repor t  re f lec ts  the  progress to  da te  

thereof  and requests  no t ing  o f  the  feedback and a  

mandate  to  conc lude negot ia t ions  w i th  op t imum to  

ensure  secur i t y  o f  supp ly  fo r  Hendr ina  is  
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requested. ”  

So tha t  g ives  you  the  background to  what  was happen ing  in  

regard  to  the  coopera t ion  agreement .   The coopera t ion  

agreement  i t se l f ,  wh ich  I  th ink  you need to  c la r i f y  to  the  

Cha i rperson because when he was ask ing  about  wh ich  

agreement  i s  –  you sa id  i s  u l t ra  v i res  wh ich  is  s igned by  a  

person who does  not  have the  au thor i t y  to  do  so ,  I  th ink  

you were  re fer r ing  to  the  coopera t ion  agreement  as  

opposed to  the  coa l  supp ly  ag reement ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t  bu t  be fore  you 10 

proceed,  who s igned th i s  document?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Who s igned?  

MR MOLEFE:    Who compi led  th is  document?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The compi le r  –  le t  us  see the  f i rs t  one I  

re fe r red  to .   The submiss ion  document  i t se l f ,  I  do  no t  know 

whethe r  you can  recogn ise  the  s ignatu res  there  on  page  

387,  tha t  i s  Group Execut ive  Act ing  Group Techno logy and 

Commerc ia l  –  I  th ink  tha t  i s  Mr  Edwin  Mabe lane.  

MR MOLEFE:    I t  was compi led  by  Mr  Beste r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  20 

MR MOLEFE:    A t  the  top  the  s ignature  looks  l i ke  Mr  

Bester ’s .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Cer ta in ly  the  approva l  o f  a  

negot ia ted  ou tcome the  compi le r  i s  ident i f ied  as  Mr  Johan  

Beste r  and i t  was  s igned on page 401 by  Mr  Johan Beste r,  



02 MARCH 2021 – DAY 353 
 

Page 43 of 299 
 

Mr  Vus i  Mboweni  and Mr  Edwin  Mabe lane,  the  Group 

Execut ive  Act ing  Group Techno logy and Commerc ia l .    

The coopera t ion  agreement  i s  on  page 377 o f  the  

same bund le  and  i t  runs up  to  page 382.   I t  was s igned on  

the  23  May 2014  and on beha l f  o f  Eskom the  name there  

appears  to  be  –  i s  K i ren  Mahara j .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   D iv is iona l  execut ive .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja ,  23  May 2014.  10 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And the  in ten t ion  was a  new agreement  

wou ld  then be negot ia ted  and conc luded by  the  beg inn ing  

o f  2015.  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .   Now tha t  i s  the  background ,  th is  i s  

the  Hendr ina  power  s ta t ion .   What  tha t  document  w i l l  show 

in  approva l  o f  a  negot ia ted  ou tcome is  tha t  Eskom had  

engaged the  serv ices  o f  exper t s ,  they engaged Nedbank  

and Bas is  Po in t s  to  do  an  assessment  o f  OCM’s  f inanc ia l  20 

pos i t ion  and the  proposed amount  o f  R442 came about  as  a  

resu l t  o f  tha t  exper t  assessment  and tha t  was conta ined in  

th is  repor t  o f  Apr i l  2015.    

I  shou ld  a lso  add th is ,  by  the  way,  tha t  when you 

read the  a f f idav i t  o f  CDH,  the  a t to rneys fo r  Eskom at  the  
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t ime,  CDH says i t  was br ie fed  by  Eskom to  ass is t  in  the  

conc lus ion  o f  the  coopera t ion  agreement .   So Eskom had  

lawyers  ass is t ing  i t  to  conc lude tha t  coopera t ion  

agreement  o f  the  23  May 2015.   The par t ies  a re  negot ia t ing  

as  a  resu l t  o f  i t ,  the  proposed increases are  made based  

on exper t  assessment  by  Nedbank  and Bas is  Po in ts .  

You come in  -  and negot ia t ions  are  no t  comple ted .   

You come in  in  Apr i l  2015.   You cont inue w i th  the  

negot ia t ions ,  they are  t ry ing  to  meet  w i th  you,  you know Mr  

Marsden and Mr  Ephron had sa id  i t  was d i f f i cu l t  a t  f i rs t  and 10 

they u l t imate ly  ge t  –  they meet  w i th  you and tha t  you  

p layed –  you took  a  hard  s tance in  regard  to  negot ia t ions .    

U l t imate ly  you dec ide  to  s ign  a  le t te r  wh ich  is  da ted  

the  10  June 2015 te rm inat ing  the  negot ia t ion  p rocess.   

That  le t te r  was apparent ly  on ly  t ransmi t ted  to  OCM on the  

20  June 2015.   So the  process is  te rm inated to  negot ia te .   

You have th i s  repor t  f rom exper ts  who a re  suppor t ing  the  

increase o f  R442 because Opt imum is  runn ing  a t  a  loss .  

In  August  2015 you get  a  le t te r  –  now OCM is  under  

bus iness rescue.   You get  a  le t te r  f rom bus iness  rescue  20 

prac t i t ioners  20  August .   They say we are  s topp ing  the  

ob l iga t ion  to  supp ly  Eskom wi th  coa l  bu t  they a lso  make an  

o f fe r  fo r  an  in te r im ar rangement  to  supp ly  coa l  to  Eskom.   

The response to  tha t  o f fe r  was a  meet ing ,  amongs t  o ther  

th ings,  was a  meet ing  on  tha t  3  September  2015 between  
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you  and Mr  Ephron.   You and Mr  Koko on the  one and Mr  

Ephron on the  o the r.    

In  tha t  meet ing  the  in te r im a r rangement  i s  ag reed 

upon,  3  September  2015,  tha t  OCM wi l l  con t inue to  supp ly  

coa l  to  Eskom.   That  in te r im ar rangement  subs is ted  un t i l  

29  Ju ly  2016.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  you  are  go ing  to  ask  h im to  comment  

on  a l l  o f  these th ings tha t  you have been ment ion ing ,  I  10 

suspect  he  m ight  have fo rgo t ten  some o f  them by the  t ime 

you g ive  h im the  oppor tun i ty  to .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  I  th ink  you  might  have to  ask  h im  

some quest ions.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Or  i f  he  wants  to  d ispute  some o f  the 

th ings you have sa id ,  by  the  t ime you g ive  h im a  change he  

might  no t  reca l l  what  you sa id  seven minutes  ago.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    So  I  th ink  i f  you  want  h im to  conf i rm 

anyth ing  you need to  say what  you  unders tand i t  to  be ,  ask  

h im to  conf i rm and move on to  the  next  one.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  he has a  chance to  d ispute  i t  wh i le  
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he  remembers  i f  he  d isputes  i t  o r  i f  he  conf i rms he 

conf i rms.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  you may ask h im –  Mr  Mole fe ,  you  

have l i s tened to  Mr  Se leka up to  now,  i s  there  anyth ing  you 

d ispute  in  te rms o f  what  he  has sa id?  

MR MOLEFE:    I  must  thank Mr  Se leka fo r  h i s  lec tu re .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   For?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sor ry?  

MR MOLEFE:    For  h is  lec ture .   On what  t ransp i red  here .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes bu t  I  jus t  want  to  know whethe r  

there  is  –  i f  you  say look,  there  i s  anyth ing  o f  impor tance 

tha t  I  d ispute ,  then we w i l l  know.  

MR MOLEFE:    Mr  Se leka ’s  rea l i t y  i s  very  d i f fe ren t  to  m ine 

and a l though we are  ta lk ing  about  the  same fac t  

…[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    The same? 

MR MOLEFE:    The in te rp re ta t ion  o f  what  was happen ing  is  

very  d i f fe ren t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  i t  i s  f ine  because and I  am go ing  20 

to  g ive  you a  chance.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes because you a re  tak ing  these fac ts  and  

dr iv ing  a  pa r t i cu la r  nar ra t i ve  i gnor ing  what  I  have a l ready 

put  fo rward  in  the  Commiss ion  tha t  what  was in  fac t  

happen ing  was someth ing  e l se .   For  example ,  you go on 
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about  the  fac t  tha t  Opt imum was in  f inanc ia l  d i f f i cu l t y.   The  

b iggest  p rob lem tha t  I  had w i th  Mr  Beste r  and h is  memos is  

tha t  they went  on  about  Opt imum and not  Eskom.   My  

f iduc ia ry  du ty  was not  to  Opt imum.    

I  had no respons ib i l i t y  to  keep  Opt imum out  o f  

bankruptcy  and in  the  process ge t  Eskom in to  bankruptcy,  

a  company tha t  I  had pr imary  respons ib i l i t y  fo r.   I  th ink  

your  ana lys is  ignores tha t .   Had  you been in  my pos i t ion ,  

Mr  Se leka,  you m ight  have apprec ia ted  the  fac t  tha t  i f  you 

do what  these memos f rom Mr  Beste r  and company as  10 

say ing  we shou ld  do ,  we wou ld  have bankrupted Eskom,  i t  

i s  as  s imp le  as  tha t .   We might  have saved Opt imum but  

we wou ld  have bankrupted Eskom.    

 The reason peop le  fe l t  tha t  i t  was okay to  bankrupt  

Eskom was because they thought  tha t  Eskom wi l l  ge t  

money f rom the  f i scus.   The deba te  on  these mat te rs  was 

bankrupt  Eskom or  Opt imum …[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes bu t  when …[ in tervenes]  

MR MOLEFE:    And they were  say ing  tha t  we l l ,  we,  as  the  

parent  company  o f  Opt imum,  cannot  a f fo rd  to  keep  20 

subs id is ing  imp ly ing  tha t  our  parent  company,  wh ich  

Repub l ic  o f  South  A f r i ca ,  cou ld  a f fo rd  cont inu ing  subs id ise  

Eskom.   Which  I  d isagreed w i th .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    I  have been a  t reasury  o f f i c ia l  and  I  know 
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tha t  the  f i scus cou ld  no t  a f fo rd  con t inu ing  subs id ise  Eskom 

because o f  m is takes,  because o f  peop le  who d id  no t  do  

due d i l igence when they bought  a  company.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    So  Mr  Beste r  goes on and on and on and 

on about  Opt imum’s  d i f f i cu l t y,  i t  does not  ta lk  about  our  

own d i f f i cu l t y,  i t  does not  ta lk  about  the  d i f f i cu l t ies  o f  the  

company tha t  worked and tha t  we cou ld  no t  a f fo rd  a l l  o f  

th is .   Bas is  Po in ts  on  tha t  po in t  sa id  tha t  they d id  an  

a f fo rdab i l i t y  tes t .   D id  they do  an a f fo rdab i l i t y  tes t  fo r  10 

Eskom?  No.   Why?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  can I  say  someth ing .  

MR MOLEFE:    Who were  they work ing  fo r?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Le t  me jus t  say  someth ing  because 

what  I  am t ry ing  to  do  is  no t  express my v iew o r  t ry  to  

postu la te  a  par t i cu la r  nar ra t i ve ,  what  I  am t ry ing  to  do  fo r  

the  purposes o f  the  ev idence and  fo r  the  purposes o f  the 

Cha i rperson is  to  look  a t  the  sequence o f  events  pr io r  to  

g iv ing  you the  oppor tun i ty  to  then express your  comment  

on  the  under l y ing  issues.   So i t  i s  rea l l y  jus t  to  ge t  a  20 

sequence o f  events  so  tha t  we can see what  happened  

f rom th is  da te  to  the  next  da te  and the  las t  da te ,  then you 

can say exact ly  what  you are  say ing  or  th is  was my a t t i tude 

in  regard  to  these  fac ts .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes bu t  I  have sa id  …[ in tervenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON :    One second,  tha t  i s  where  I  was  say ing  

take  them in  smal l  b i t s  and p ieces.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You agree tha t  on  such and such  a  da te  

there  was a  meet ing  be tween so  and so  and so  where  the  

fo l low ing was dec ided,  you agree  tha t  the  next  th ing  tha t  

happened,  tha t  was the  fo l low ing,  then le t  h im go w i th  you  

where  he  does no t  have to  [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  you are  en t i t led  the  va l id i t y  o f  h is  10 

propos i t ions .    You are  en t i t led  to  tes t  the  soundness o f  h i s  

approach so  i t  must  no t  be  l i ke  you a re  no t  go ing  to  tes t  

tha t ,  jus t  l i ke  you  shou ld  t es t  the  p ropos i t ions  o f  G lencore ,  

Ephron i f  and when he comes he re .   So tha t  shou ld  remain .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Where  you fee l  th is  needs to  be  tes ted  

you must  tes t  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And Mr  Mole fe ,  i t  i s  no t  as  i f  he  ignores 

what  you have sa id ,  you were  say ing  tha t  he  is  fo l l ow ing a  20 

cer ta in  approach  ignor ing  what  you have a l ready sa id ,  he  

is  no t  necessar i l y  ignor ing  tha t  because h i s  job  en ta i l s  

look ing  a t  exact ly  what  happened  and why d i f f i cu l t y  ro le -

p layers  ac ted  in  a  cer ta in  way and a t  the  end o f  the  day  

then we look a t  every th ing  and make a  f ind ing .   So he i s  
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no t  ignor ing  i t ,  jus t  tha t  fo r  now,  he  may be look ing  a t  a  

cer ta in  i ssue.   Okay,  a l r igh t ,  le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    Can we …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  see  have gone past  the  tea  

break.   You wanted to  say someth ing ,  Mr  Mole fe?  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  I  was say ing  tha t  fo r  example  th is  

agreement  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The coopera t ion?  

MR MOLEFE:    The coopera t ion  agreement .   I f  we look a t  i t  10 

ob jec t i ve ly,  Cha i rpe rson,  as  a  person who was  in  my 

pos i t ion  a t  the  t ime,  f i rs t  quest ion  is ,  i s  i t  to  Eskom’s  

advantage?  Second quest ion  is ,  who s igned th is  

agreement?   D id  they have autho r i t y  to  s ign  i t?   Why d id  

they s ign?  Why d id  they s ign?  The answers  to  those four  

quest ions were  no t  sa t is fac to ry  to  me as a  Ch ie f  Execut ive .   

The answer  to  those quest ions d id  no t  conv ince me tha t  we  

are  ac t ing  in  Eskom’s  in te res t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   You have  to  put  

your  ve rs ion  and your  perspect ive  on  the  issues as  you see  20 

them and do not  necessar i l y  expect  tha t  you w i l l  leave the  

room knowing whether  we agree w i th  you or  no t ,  you jus t  

pu t  your  vers ion ,  your  perspect ives  and the  ques t ion  o f  

u l t imate ly  what  i s  t rue  and what  i s  we l l -g rounded w i l l  come 

la te r  bu t  f rom your  s ide  jus t  make sure  tha t  you put  your  
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vers ion  to  share  w i th  me how you  saw th ings and why you  

d id  what  you d id  and i f  you th ink  when you look a t  my 

faces,  l i ke  I  do  no t  accept  what  you are  say ing ,  do  no t  be  

concerned about  i t .   Or  i f  you  th ink  I  am accept ing  i t ,  as  

long as  you put  your  s ide  o f  the  s to ry  because u l t imate ly  I  

w i l l  l ook  a t  every th ing  when everybody has tes t i f ied  so  bu t  

I  th ink  we must  take  the  tea  break  and when we come back 

we w i l l  resume and le t  us  t ry  and  move w i th  speed.   Ja .   

Okay,  we w i l l  ad journ .   I t  i s  twenty  f i ve  to  twe lve ,  we w i l l  

resume a t  ten  to  twe lve .  (s i c )   We ad journ .  10 

INQUIRY ADJOURNS  

INQUIRY RESUMES :  

CHAIRPERSON:     Okay,  le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Thank you Cha i rperson.  

MR MOLEFE:    Try  and a l loca te  some t ime to  each top ic  so  

tha t  we t r y  and f in ish  each top ic  w i th in  the  t ime a l loca ted ,  

obv ious ly  as  you do so  we must  make sure  tha t  we  

never the less  do  jus t i ce  to  the  issues.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  thank you Cha i r,  I  was speak ing  

to  Mr  Mole fe  and  h is  lega l  representa t i ves ,  we were  t ry ing  20 

to  see how we can exped i te  th is .   Mr  Mole fe  and I  know the  

fac ts  more  or  less  bu t  beyond us  nobody might  know the 

fac ts ,  so  one  is  caught  be tween but  le t  us  

see. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    You can conf i rm the  fac ts  by  pu t t ing  to  
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h im what  the  fac ts  a re  and he w i l l  say  i f  he  agrees or  does  

not  agree,  bu t  you wou ld  know f rom h is  a f f idav i t  a lso  what  

he  has no  issues w i th .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Thank you Cha i r.   Mr  Mole fe  jus t  the  

sequence o f  events  aga in .   I  mean,  I  have gone th rough,  

you ’ re  coming a t  Eskom,  the  te rm inat ion  tha t  takes p lace  

on the  20 ,  o r  the  le t te r  i s  communica ted  on the  20 t h  o f  

June 2015.   Jus t  on  the  sequence,  no t  your  perspec t ive  on  10 

th ings,  because I  want  us  to  dea l  w i th  the  sequence agree 

on i t  and then we can dea l  w i th  your  perspect i ve ,  your  

reasons why you  d id  what  you d id .   Does tha t  b r i ng  back 

memor ies  to  you  o f  how th ings happened ch rono log ica l l y.   

So the  20 t h  i s  the  te rm inat ion  20 t h  o f  June 2015 is  the  

te rm inat ion  o f  the  negot ia t ion  process by  le t te r  f rom CDH.  

Do you agree w i th  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:    Cha i rperson,  do  you have a  copy  o f  the 

le t te r?  

ADV SELEKA SC:     I  have,  you w i l l  f ind  i t  in…[ in tervene]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:     Whi le  you may want  to  look  a t  the  le t te r  

fo r  maybe pu rposes o f  the  content .   Does the  da te  more  or  

less  appear  to  be  the  da te  fo r  the  te rm inat ion  to  you? 

MR MOLEFE:    My reco l lec t ion  Cha i rperson is  tha t  what  

was happen ing  is  tha t  Opt imum was employ ing  negot ia t ion  
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tac t i cs ,  they were  very  tac t i ca l .   They were  dr i v ing  the  fear  

o f  God in to  us  and soon we went  to  load shed you are  

go ing  to  have a  d isas te r.   There  was a  negot ia t ion  tac t i c ,  

we in  tu rn  then employed negot ia t ion  tac t i cs .   

CHAIRPERSON:     Yes.   

MR MOLEFE:    I  mean,  what  do  you see as  someth ing  

happen ing ,  i t  does not  necessar i l y  mean tha t  -  what  you 

see is  no t  what  you ac tua l l y  see,  there  was a  lo t  o f  

mean ing  beh ind  every th ing  tha t  was happen ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:     Whi le  you look  fo r  the  le t te r,  Mr  Se leka  10 

but  I  th ink  you may have to  fac tor  i f  tha t  i s  what  you want  

to  do  Mr  Mole fe ’s  ev idence about  the  approach is  because  

he sa id  a l so  ear l ie r  on  tha t ,  in  te rms o f  fac ts  the re  m ight  

no t  be  much in  d ispute  in  te rms o f  what  you sa id  bu t  i t  i s  

the  perspect ives  or  the  in te rpre ta t ion  o f  those fac ts  to  say,  

what  do  they mean.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Okay.   

CHAIRPERSON:     He has a  cer ta in  in te rpre ta t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:     So  you might  have to  jus t  tack le  them 20 

head on.   You know,  tha t  I  sa id ,  I  had found i t  s t range tha t  

G lencore  had s igned or  taken over  an  agreement  w i th  a 

pr ice  tha t  was no t  go ing  to  change fo r  so  long,  you know,  

tha t  i s  a  due d i l igence issue.   

And I  know tha t  Mr  Mole fe  does dea l  w i th  i t  in  h is  
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a f f idav i t  bu t  he  is  say ing  I  was g iven the  ins t ruc t ions to  

dea l  w i th  th is ,  I  looked a t  th is  agreement ,  I  took  the  v iew 

tha t  i t  was in  the  best  in te res t  o f  Eskom tha t  there  shou ld  

be  no amendment  o f  the  agreement  in  te rms o f  increas ing  

the  pr ice .   

He gave the  reasons las t  t ime he repeated some o f  

the  reasons why  he took tha t  v iew and we know tha t  

G lencore  o r  OCM had taken the  v iew tha t  there  was a  

hardsh ip  c lause,  and tha t  they  shou ld  invoke  tha t  i f  

negot ia t ions  d id  no t  succeed.   And h is  r igh t  in  say ing  in  10 

te rms o f  tha t  rou te  they were  f ree  to  go  to  a rb i t ra t ion  and 

there  was a  re fe rence o f  the  mat te r  to  a rb i t ra t ion  and a  

da te  was se t  tha t  i s  what  he  sa id ,  bu t  G lencore /OCM 

dec ided not  to  pu rsue tha t ,  why d id  they no t  pursue tha t  i f  

they  thought  tha t  they had a  case?  He d id  no t  say  so  bu t  

he  imp l ies  tha t ,  why d id  they no t  pursue i t  because tha t  

was a  compulsory  process.  

Eskom wou ld  have been fo rced to  take  par t  whether  

they l i ked  i t  o r  no t ,  in  tha t  p rocess,  and i f  OCM won they  

wou ld  be  bound by  tha t  ou tcome.   But  I  know tha t  las t  t ime 20 

he to ld  me abou t  what  he  has l i t t le  o f  h is  case,  ag  h is  

s leep.   I  th ink  i t  was Mr  Mole fe ,  I  hope I  am not  wrong.  

MR MOLEFE:     No i t  was not  me I  heard  tha t .   

CHAIRPERSON:     Oh you d id  hear  i t ;  i t  was somebody 

e lse .  
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MR MOLEFE:    Somebody sa id  t ha t  we wou ld  no t  have 

honoured i t  o r  someth ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:     Oh,  ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    I t  was not  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:     Okay,  i t  was somebody e lse .  

MR MOLEFE:    I  th ink  i t  was Dr  Na idoo or  somebody e lse .  

CHAIRPERSON:     Okay,  I  am sor ry  to  a t t r ibu te  tha t  to  you.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     No i t  was h im .  [ laugh ing ]  

CHAIRPERSON:     Bu t  bas ica l l y  those…[ in tervene]  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  we have never  d iscussed th is  be fore .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:     He d id  say.  [ laugh ing ]  Wel l  Mr  Mole fe  

you are  under  oa th .   So I  th ink  you might  need to  take  h im  

on,  on  whether  h is  approach was the  co r rec t  approach or  

was sound or  what .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes.   So Mr  Mole fe  then we l l ,  le t  us  

go  to  th is  fac t ,  because u l t imate ly,  a l l  sa id  and done the  

proposa l  was tha t  we move the  pr ice  f rom R150,00 to  

R242,00 per  ton  and Eskom re jec ted .   I s  i t  Eskom or  you 

who re jec ted  tha t  p roposa l?  

MR MOLEFE:    I t  was Eskom Cha i rperson;  I  was jus t  a  20 

funct ionary.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     You were  jus t  a  funct ionary  bu t  Eskom 

had engaged the  exper t s  as  I  sa id ,  they  d id  the  

assessment  in  Apr i l ,  Nedbank and Bas is  Po in ts .   CDH i t se l f  

was a l so  ins t ruc ted  to  engage exper t s  in  September  2015  
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to  aga in  do  another  assessment  o f  OCM’s  f inanc ia l  

pos i t ion ,  when they engage CDH i tse l f  was invo lved .    

Mer id ian  Economics  was invo lved and SRK 

Consu l t ing  were  invo lved they  gave you a  repor t  in  

November.   They  a lso  sa id  you need to  f inanc ia l l y  ass i s t  

OCM.  

MR MOLEFE:     Yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:     And what  was  your  v iew on tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:    I  had no ob l iga t ion  to  agree w i th  them you  

see tha t  op in ions  where  pro fess iona l  op in ions,  they lacked  10 

one s imp le  th ing  wh ich  dr i ves  any CEO,  the  in te res t  o f  

Eskom they were  absent  in  a l l  o f  those th ings.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Then you have Eskom hav ing  

re jec ted…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:     Wel l ,  maybe Mr  Se leka Let  us  come to  

what  was the  bas is  o f  bases or  bas is  upon wh ich  those  

exper t s  sa id  Eskom shou ld  he lp  OCM because Mr  Mole fe  

says I  have a  bas is  o r  the  a t t i tude I  took ,  my bas i s  was the  

in te res ts  o f  Eskom.   

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:     So ,  in  what  way d id  those exper ts  say i t  

wou ld  be  in  the  i n te res t  o f  Eskom for  Eskom to  he lp  OCM,  

then le t  us  take  i t  f rom there .   Le t  us  hear  what  Mr  Mole fe  

has to  say about  those reasons tha t  they may be g iven,  i f  

they  gave any.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  Mr  Mole fe  you w i l l  reca l l  tha t  the  

exper t  op in ions l ook a t  bo th  par t i es ,  the  pos i t ion  o f  bo th  

par t ies .   One,  was whether  OCM was runn ing  the  m ine a t  a  

loss .   The f l ip  s ide  o f  tha t  was tha t  i f  indeed i t  was runn ing  

the  m ine a t  a  loss ,  i t  was then impact ing  on  the  ab i l i t y  to  

supp ly  coa l  to  Eskom.   

So,  coa l  supp ly  to  Eskom was  a  cons idera t ion  

re la t i ve  to  Eskom.   But  they had tha t  in  m ind as  we l l ,  wh ich  

was re f lec ted  in  the  op in ion  or  the  memo tha t  was g iven to  

Eskom.    10 

So,  on  the  face  o f  i t ,  i t  seems tha t  Eskom pos i t ion  

was a lso  taken  in to  account  to  requ i re  what  they 

cons idered to  be  a  reasonab le  amount  in  the  inc rease o f  

the  purchase pr i ce ,  wh ich  was,  as  I  learned f rom you even  

less  than the  market  re la ted  amount  the  R442,00.   So,  

Eskom’s  pos i t ion  was a lso  looked a t ,  your  comment  on  tha t  

one?  

MR MOLEFE:    Cha i rperson,  you must  unders tand th is  

OCM,  Opt imum,  was a t…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:     Was a t?  20 

MR MOLEFE:    A cost  p lus  m ine.  

CHAIRPERSON:     Yes,  do  no t  be  too  fa r  f rom the  mic  so  

tha t  I  can hear  you.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  so  i t  had been bu i l t  w i th  Eskom’s  

cap i ta l .  I t  had  been bu i l t  w i th  Eskom’s  cap i ta l  to  
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supp ly…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:     Jus t  go  back in  one  or  two sentences to  

remind us  the  impor tance o f  a  cost  p lus  m ine.   I  know,  i t  

has  been exp la ined to  me,  I  jus t  wanted to  re f resh my  

memory  because you have jus t  made ment ion  the re .  

MR MOLEFE:    I  th ink  Cha i rperson cost  p lus  m ines were  

the  b iggest ,  was  the  b iggest  robbery  tha t  has happened 

here .   Those cost  p lus  m ines  opera ted  l i ke  med ieva l  

robbers .  

CHAIRPERSON:     L ike?  10 

MR MOLEFE:    Med ieva l  robbers  because what  happened  

is ,  you as  Mr  Zondo,  Eskom the  coa l  i s  d i scovered in  

Hendr ina ,  Eskom g ives you the  money the  shaf t ,  to  m ine  

the  coa l  and then you get  g iven a  40-year  con t rac t  to  

supp ly  Eskom wi th  coa l  in  the  power  s ta t ion  tha t  i s  bu i l t  

nex t  door   

You do not  pu t  in  cap i ta l ,  you jus t  ge t  the  cont rac t  

and to  opera te  the  m ine and g ive  Eskom the  coa l  fo r  40  

years .   So the  prov i so  in  the  or ig ina l  agreement  was tha t  

the  coa l  w i l l  be  Eskom’s  coa l  and  nobody e l se ’s  and then,  20 

somet ime in  the  m idd le  o f  the  ag reement ,  in  the  case o f  

Opt imum,  they tu rned a round and sa id  may we  p lease  

expor t  some o f  the  coa l ,  the  be t te r  qua l i t y  coa l  may we  

p lease expor t  i t ,  Eskom agreed.  

And they expor ted  the  coa l  and they made a  lo t  o f  
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money f rom expor t ing  the  coa l .   The prob lem arose when  

the  in te rnat iona l  p r ice  o f  coa l  fe l l ,  they  then sa id  t hey are  

no  longer  p ro f i tab le .   But  the  expor t ing  o f  coa l  was 

someth ing  tha t  was add i t iona l  to  the  or ig ina l  agreement  in  

the  f i rs t  p lace ,  tha t  had noth ing  to  do  w i th  the  or ig ina l  

in ten t ion  o f  the  cost  p lus  m ines supp l ie rs  o f  coa l  and not  

the  in te rnat iona l  market .   

Those cost  p lus  m ines were  no t  bu i l t  fo r  the  

in te rnat iona l  market .  They were  bu i l t  fo r  Eskom tha t  was 

the  or ig ina l  in ten t ion .   So now Mr  Se leka,  Cha i rpe rson 10 

what  you are  say ing  is ,  o r  what  I  am put t ing  to  you is  the  

hardsh ip  tha t  Op t imum was exper ienc ing  was because o f  

the  fa l l  in  the  in te rnat iona l  market  o f  the  pr i ce  o f  coa l  and 

what  they were  ask ing  was fo r  us  to  take  the  knock  on  the  

in te rnat iona l  p r i ce  o f  coa l .   

Someth ing  tha t  they had not  hedged,  they shou ld  

have hedged i t ,  number  one,  number  two,  they shou ld  have 

done due d i l igence and a f te r  due d i l igence they wou ld  have 

d iscovered tha t  there  i s  an  exposure  to  the  in te rnat iona l  

p r ice  o f  coa l .   They d id  no t  take  these two dec i s ions and  20 

were  now demanding tha t ,  because they are  su f fe r i ng  

hardsh ip ,  because o f  these fac tors ,  we must  pay fo r  i t .   I t  

was unfa i r  Cha i rperson,  i t  was unfa i r.   

Th is  hardsh ip  was se l f - imposed.  What  I  asked  

myse l f ,  how cou ld  these peop le  tha t  a re  so  knowledgeab le ,  
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whose parent  company is  l i s ted  in  Swi tzer land.   Who are  

opera t ing  a  g loba l  leader  i n  the  coa l  indust ry.   How cou ld  

they take such a  s imp l is t i c  dec i s ion ,  I  pu t  myse l f  in  your  

shoes and sa id ,  a t  the  t ime when  I  bought  the  m ine,  we  

wou ld  have done due d i l igence and  the  due d i l igence wou ld 

have to ld  us  tha t  we have an  open pos i t ion  and an  

exposure  to  the  coa l  p r i ce .   

They cont inued w i th  tha t  s i tua t ion ,  desp i te  the  fac t  

tha t  they shou ld  have known a  reasonab le  person in  the i r  

pos i t ion  wou ld  have known tha t  you cannot  cont inue be ing  10 

exposed to  the  pr ice  o f  coa l  because your  p ro f i t s  no  longer  

come f rom your  opera t ion .   They come f rom specu la t ing  on  

the  pr ice  o f  coa l .   So they had specu la ted  on the  pr ice  o f  

coa l ,  and they now expect ing  us  to  pay fo r  i t .   

A l te rna t ive ly,  Cha i rperson,  they  knew tha t  they 

cou ld  specu la te  and make money and i f  they  lose ,  they w i l l  

be  ab le  to  negot ia te .   But  to  nego t ia te ,  what  was the i r  key  

negot ia t ing  po in t ,  how wou ld  they  negot ia te  a  th is .   They  

knew and in  my s ta tement ,  I  say  tha t  i s  why th is  a l l  a f fec ts  

Mr.  Ramaphosa,  in  case they need to  do  th is  negot ia t ing .   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  par t  o f  the  po in t  o f  Mr  Se leka ’s  

quest ion ,  I  th ink  was a imed a t  tha t  I  want  you to  jus t  

comple te  tha t ,  was to  say tha t  the  exper t s  tha t  he  re fer red  

to .  

And may be fo r  OCM were  say ing  i t  i s  no t  in  
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Eskom’s  in te res t s  fo r  Eskom not  to  g ive  us  an  increase on 

the  pr i ce ,  maybe not  as  h igh  as  we are  demand ing but  i t  i s  

no t  in  Eskom’s  in te res t  to  have us  opera t ing  under  th is  

t ype o f  hardsh ip  because i t  may lead to  us  e i the r  -  i t  may  

have a  resu l t  where  the  secur i t y  o f  coa l  w i l l  be  th rea tened  

or  where  we cannot  supp ly  coa l ,  o r  whatever.   

I  th ink  tha t  i s  par t  o f  what  was be ing  sa id  and I  

th ink  th is ,  th is  i s  the  chance fo r  you to  say yes,  I  

unders tand tha t ,  o r  no ,  I  do  no t  unders tand tha t  o r  tha t  has 

no  va l id i t y  because o f  A ,  B ,  C,  D dea l  w i th  tha t  up f ron t .  10 

MR MOLEFE:    No,  I  th ink  the  reason ing  was f lawed .   

CHAIRPERSON:     Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    Because i t  looked a t  the  prob lem a t  tha t  

po in t .   I t  looked a t  the  prob lem a t  tha t  po in t  and not  the  

genes is  o f  the  prob lem.   So,  I  had  by  tha t  t ime,  I  had a  fu l l  

p ic tu re  o f  what  was happen ing .   As  I  sa id  ear l ie r,  I  had  

even been to  the  o ther  s ide  in  Transnet  and I  have seen 

what ,  how Opt imum opera ted  and  they have a  f law in  the ,  

they have a  f law in  the i r  conc lus ion  was genes is ,  bu t  i t  was 

not ,  i t  wou ld  no t  have been –  you see Cha i rperson i f  we  20 

wou ld  have done tha t  we wou ld  be  encourag ing  ve ry  bad ly.   

I f  we had le t  Opt imum get  away w i th  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON:     Yes,  no ,  bu t  I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  you r  

response in  say ing  f law a t  the  po in t  o r  tha t  p ropos i t ion  was  

w i th  the  genes is  o f  the  prob lem because you cou ld  have a  
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genes is  o f  the  prob lem where  you  cou ld  pu t  them a t  fau l t ,  

to  say  they d id  no t  do  due d i l igence,  o r  they m isca lcu la ted  

by  do ing  A ,  B ,  C or  no t  do ing  A ,  B ,  C,  D.   

But  you might  be  faced w i th  a  cer ta in  rea l i t y  a t  a  

cer ta in  s tage,  and I  th ink  the  quest ion  is ,  what  do  you say 

about  whethe r,  i r respect ive  o f  the  genes is ,  whethe r  

cont inu ing  to  ins is t  on  the  p r ice  tha t  was in  the  agreement ,  

wou ld  lead to  a  s i tua t ion  where  the  secur i t y  o f  coa l  was  

th rea tened because I  wou ld  imag ine  tha t  i f  you  were  

persuaded tha t  Eskom’s  in te res t  wou ld  be  jeopard ised by  10 

ins is t ing  on  the  p r ice  tha t  was in  the  agreement .   

Even i f  you sa id  they were  a t  fau l t  fo r  no t  do ing  due  

d i l igence in  the  f i rs t  p lace ,  you wou ld  say,  look ,  le t  us  look 

a t  the  rea l i t y  as  i t  i s  now.   How do we pro tec t  Eskom’s  

in te res ts  and maybe you wou ld  conc lude,  we pro tec t  

Eskom’s  in te res t  by  no t  agree ing  to  400 or  whatever,  bu t  

maybe to  a  l i t t le  more .   So tha t  i s  what  I  want  you to  

address to  say,  was i t  t rue  tha t  ins i s t ing  on  th is  p r ice  tha t  

was on the  on  the  ag reement  cou ld  pose a  th rea t  to  coa l  

secur i t y  fo r  Eskom? 20 

MR MOLEFE:    Cha i rperson,  Sou th  A f r i ca  has 400 years  

coa l  in  the  count ry.   There  is  no  shor tage o f  coa l  what  they 

may be a  shor tage o f ,  i s  human be ing  ex t rac ted  coa l  and 

feed as  o f  supp l ie r ’s  coa l .   There  is  ac tua l l y  no t  even a  

reason why coa l  shou ld  be  expens ive  fo r  Eskom.   We jus t  
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have a  lo t  o f  coa l  tha t  God has g i ven us,  God g i ven coa l  

“maha la ”  tha t  i s  underg round.   

Now what  i s  happen ing  is  tha t  peop le  ins t i l  fear  in to  

Eskom espec ia l l y  w i th  load shedd ing ,  and so  on  and say,  

we do not  have enough coa l ,  there  i s  go ing  to  be  a  coa l  

l i f t ,  the  shor tage  o f  coa l .   I f  you  do not  do  th is ,  you are  

go ing  to  have d i re  consequences.   

What  was happen ing  a t  the  t ime,  a t  the  same t ime 

as  th is  was happen ing ,  and Mr  Beste r  ment ions  i t  bu t  

ment ions i t  in  a  very  wrong way and  misquotes i t .   A t  the 10 

same t ime,  as  we were  hav ing  th is  p rob lem in  Medup i ,  

Eskom at  the  beg inn ing  o f  the  bu i l d ing  Medup i  t ype  o f  pay 

agreements  and  those type o f  pay agreements  were  

supposed to  commence,  I  cannot  remember  i f  i t  was 2014 

or  2015 and Medup i  was de layed.   

There  were  pena l t ies  in  the  b i l l i ons  tha t  were  

supposed to  be  pa id .   Now,  in  tha t  ins tance,  Eskom cou ld  

no t  a f fo rd  those  pena l t ies .   Nobody was coming,  was  

say ing  those peop le  were  no t  p repared to  negot ia te  and 

say,  guys,  we have a  de lay  in  the  de l i very  o f  Medup i ,  20 

p lease re lax  the  pena l t ies .   They were  no t  even prepared  

to  negot ia te .   

They were  p lay ing  hardba l l  in  Medup i ,  what  I  then  

sa id  a t  the  t ime was can we invest iga te .   I f  i t  i s  poss ib le  

fo r  us  to  pay the  pena l t ies ,  o r  to  pay fo r  the  coa l  a t  Medup i  
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and get  i t  de l i vered because I  th ink  Exxaro ,  I  may have the  

par t ies  wrong bu t  the  par t ies  tha t  were  invo l ved in  th is  

were  bank ing  on  the  fac t  tha t  they were  go ing  to  ge t  the  

pena l t ies  fo r  f ree  because they do  not  have too  m ine,  they  

do  not  have to  they j us t  ge t  pa id  because they have a  

cont rac t  there .  

Le t  them de l i ver  the  coa l ,  le t  us  invest iga te  i f  i t  w i l l  

be  poss ib le  fo r  the  coa l  to  be  ra i led  on  there ,  somewhere  

near  Hendr ina  and be dumped there  and then we can car ry  

i t  in to  Hendr ina  by  a  t ruck  o r  whatever,  bu t  le t  i t  be  ra i led  10 

f rom there  and be taken to  Hendr ina  i f  these peop le  are  

th rea ten ing  to  c lose  down Opt imum mine.  

What  Mr  Beste r  says I  sa id  they must  bu i ld  a  

ra i lway l ine ,  I  d id  no t  I  sa id ,  le t  us  invest iga te  t he  poss ib le ,  

t ranspor t  tha t  coa l  tha t  we are  go ing  to  pay fo r  w i thout  

us ing .   So the  invest iga t ion  tha t  invo lves tak ing  the  qua l i t y  

o f  the  coa l  to  see  i f  i t  was poss ib le  to  use i t  bu t  I  was qu i te  

p repared Cha i rperson,  to  look  a t  op t ions,  a l te rna t ive  

op t ions to  jus t  s imp ly  increas ing  the  p r ice  fo r  peop le  tha t  

had not  done due d i l igence tha t  had re l ied  on  po l i t i ca l  20 

in f luence to  make  sure  tha t  tha t  ag reement  eventua l l y  goes 

f ine .   I t  was pr inc ip le ,  Cha i rperson i t  was a  mat te r  o f  

p r inc ip le .  

CHAIRPERSON:     I  do  no t  -  what  comes across f rom what  

you are  say ing  may not  be  what  you in tend to  come across,  
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tha t  because o f  the  genes is  o f  the  prob lem you might  have 

even tha t  may be  more  we igh t  than the  quest ion  o f  okay,  i s  

there  a  th rea t  to  coa l  supp ly  secur i t y  fo r  Eskom i f  we 

cont inue to  ins is t  on  the  pr ice  tha t  i s  in  agreement .   

Because as  I  sa id ,  my own unders tand ing ,  and you 

must  te l l  me i f  yours  i s  d i f fe ren t  i s  tha t  i f  what  was dr iv ing ,  

and i f  what  was  paramount  to  you was the  in te res ts  o f  

Eskom.   Then even i f  they  were  100% to  b lame fo r  the  

genes is  o f  the  prob lem,  i f  ins is t ing  on  the  pr ice  tha t  was in  

the  ag reement  wou ld  pose a  ser ious th rea t  to  coa l  secur i t y  10 

fo r  Eskom.  

What  wou ld  be  ca l led  fo r,  wou ld  be  fo r  you to  adop t  

an  approach to  th is  i ssue tha t  cou ld  see some increase,  

maybe not  necessar i l y  the  one they wanted,  bu t  some 

increase in  o rde r  to  m i t iga te  the  th rea t  to  coa l  secur i t y  

because in  the  end,  your  p r imary  concern  is  the  in te res ts  

o f  Eskom.   What  do  you say to  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:     A th rea t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  in  o ther  words,  I  want  to  es tab l i sh  

whethe r  ins i s t ing  on  th is  p r ice  tha t  was in  the  ag reement  20 

cou ld  lead to  a  s i tua t ion  where  there  was a  th rea t  to  coa l  

secur i t y  fo r  Eskom,  or  what  was in  p lace  to  dea l  w i th  such  

a  th rea t  i f  i t  a rose?  

MR MOLEFE:    The th rea t  o f  coa l  supp ly  secur i t y  

Cha i rperson was the  Boogey Man.  
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CHAIRPERSON:     Was the?  

MR MOLEFE:    The Boogey Man  i t  was someth ing  tha t  I  

used to  pu t  fea r  in to  us .   I t  was a  cheap negot ia t ing  

s t ra tegy tha t  you w i l l  no t  ge t  coa l .   As  I  sa id ,  when I  

opened,  when I  s ta r ted  ta lk ing  now,  I  sa id ,  we have 400 

years  o f  coa l  in  the  ground.   We do not  have a  coa l  supp ly  

secur i t y  p rob lem.  

In  fac t ,  the  prob lem has been tha t  we have a l lowed,  the  

leg is la t i ve  f ramework  has a l lowed a  few wh i te  compan ies  

to  exp lo i t  our  coa l  and have exc luded the  majo r i t y  o f  South  10 

A f r i cans in  tha t  invest .   That  i s  coa l  tha t  i s  under  the  

ground tha t  was put  by  God,  so  we have coa l  so  tha t  was  

a lways my po in t  o f  depar tu re .   Anybody who says coa l  

supp ly  secur i t y,  I  say  we have 400 years  o f  coa l .   The 

quest ion  is  how do we get  to  Hendr ina?  So i t  i s  no t  l i ke  

there  is  a  shor tage o f  coa l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MOLEFE:   No Chai rperson i f  you said to me that  i f  these 

guys do not  give us coal  there would be no coal  then I  would 

be af raid.   But  i f  Hendrina closes down the whole of  South 20 

Afr ica has coal .   We would make a plan.   We would have to 

make a plan and i f  we cannot make plan we are stupid.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no you see I  th ink you start ing to  

address for me what is qui te an important  issue.   You have 

400 years of  coal  underground but  how quickly could coal 
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start  to be del ivered i f  OCM stopped?  I  th ink that  – how 

much t ime would – would lapse wi thout  you get t ing coal  to  

replace what OCM was giving Eskom i f  the si tuat ion ended 

up in them not  being able to del iver coal? 

MR MOLEFE:   Chairperson as the CEO of  Eskom al lowing 

yoursel f  to be manipulated by the threat  of  supply of  coal  is 

the same that  dr ives an energy cost  up in Eskom and leads 

to h igh electr ic i ty pr ices.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   You must  never al low that  threat  or you must  10 

never adhere to be phased by that  threat .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   Mr – Mr Ephron Glasenberg.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Ephron 

MR MOLEFE:   No his boss.   Mr… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Glasenberg.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Glasenberg.  

MR MOLEFE:   Glasenberg came to Eskom and said to me Mr 

Molefe we do not  agree to th is agreement.   There wi l l  be no 

supply of  coal  and you wi l l  have more load shedding.   I  said 20 

to him, Mr Glasenberg i f  you are put t ing a gun to my head I  

am going to ask you to shoot  me.   And that  meet ing ended 

on that  note.    

 And a few weeks later I  do not  know i f  i t  was 

coincidence or what i t  was Mr Ramat lhodi  suspended thei r  
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l icence.   He suspended their  l icence meaning they wi l l  not  

supply us wi th coal .    

 When I  put  one p lus one together I  thought how can 

Mr Ramat lhodi  suspend thei r  l icence af ter they have just  

threatened me that  they wi l l  stop the supply of  coal .  

 Anyway we went to ta lk to him, he put  i t  back and 

they cont inued operat ing.   And then they put  the company in 

business rescue.    

 Now the thing about business rescue is that  a l l  

agreements can be suspended.  That  is the f i rst  th ing that  10 

the business rescue pract i t ioners that  they appointed did 

wi thin 24 hours they told us that  i f  we do not  agree to the 

agreement because thei r  business rescue plan is increasing 

the pr ice.   I f  we do not  agree to the agreement that  the – the 

pr ice wi l l  increase they wi l l  have to stop supply to Hendrina.   

And they did.   And we did not  back off .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  d id stop.  

MR MOLEFE:   We did not  back off… - sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The – are you saying they d id stop 

supplying? 20 

MR MOLEFE:   The did stop supply of  coal .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   They did stop the supply of  coal  for a month.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   We scavenged for coal .   We found coal .   
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Hendrina Power Stat ion did not  c lose down.  I t  happened just  

af ter we had stopped load shedding on the 8t h  of  August  

2015 just  af ter – we – here we are celebrat ing that  we now 

have the operat ions r ight  and then they stopped the supply 

of  coal  to Hendrina – the business rescue pract i t ioners.  

 What were we supposed to do panic – what we 

supposed to do have more load shedding as Glasenberg had 

threatened me.  But  we did not .   We made a p lan.  

 For a month we suppl ied Hendrina wi th coal  f rom 

other smal l  main ly BEE miners around the area unt i l  in  10 

September Mr Ephron cal led and said Mr Molefe can we talk 

again? 

 I  said yes we can talk.   He said I  have just  spoken to 

my superiors we are prepared to resume supplying you at  

R150.00.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   At  150.  

CHAIRPERSON:  What was the contractual  pr ice again –

R100 or R150? 

MR MOLEFE:   150.  

CHAIRPERSON:   150 so –  20 

MR MOLEFE:   About 150.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   154.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh ja.  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja 153/154.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   So he was saying they were prepared 

to resume supplying coal  at  the contractual  pr ice? 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  

MR MOLEFE:   At  the cont ractual  pr ice – they did.   They were 

prepared to supply us at  the contractual  pr ice except  

Chairperson now they threw a curve bal l .   They say they are 

sel l ing the mine to the Gupta ’s.  

CHAIRPERSON:    They? 

MR MOLEFE:   We are sel l ing the mine to the Gupta’s.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   They tel l  you that? 

MR MOLEFE:   Wel l  they announced that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   They were … 

MR MOLEFE:   Ja they… 

CHAIRPERSON:   They announced publ ic ly? 

MR MOLEFE:   They were engaged in negot iat ions they 

talked to the Gupta’s and they sold the mine to them. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MOLEFE:   And this I  said in November 2015 that  – that 

was a master st roke.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  was? 

MR MOLEFE:   A master st roke because they were so angry 

wi th us they were now going to have a campaign to  ta int  us 

as Gupta people – to ta int  us as Gupta people.   00:06:11 the 

Publ ic Protector  came up wi th the report .  She did not  
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interview us.   She interviewed Mr Ephron.   Even Mr Ephron 

went to him – to her to complain about us and she inst i tuted 

that  report .  

 There was a media campaign.  Chai rperson you wi l l  

surpr ised what a R1 bi l l ion can do.   A media campaign of  

note to rubbish us as people who are cont rol led by the 

Gupta ’s.  

 Any scrap of  evidence that  you were next  to the 

Gupta ’s at  any point  because I  see in th is  –  in th is  

commission as wel l  there is an al legat ion that  I  was in an 10 

aeroplane that  had the Gupta’s in there that  was f ly ing to – I  

was on my way to the BICS meet ings and they happened to 

be in the same aeroplane.  

 Now th ings l ike that  emerged ja plus now you are in  

the aeroplane wi th them and so on.   Now you are forced us 

to send the mine to the Gupta ’s.   That  is what happened 

Chai r.   That  is why you and I  are here today because I  

refused to sign that  4 – R150 agreement.   I  refused to be – 

to be bul l ied into act ing against  the interests of  Eskom.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So – so… 20 

MR MOLEFE:   So they sold – they so ld the mine to the 

Gupta ’s.   We did not  – I  d id not  make them sel l  the mine – 

they sold the mine to the Gupta’s of  thei r  own accord.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So are you saying you saw thei r  

statements that  they would stop supplying coal  to Eskom i f  
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you did not  increase the pr ice and that  therefore Eskom 

would suffer because there would be no coal .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You saw i t  as a negot iat ing tact ic to t ry  

and put  pressure.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   On Eskom. 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You were prepared to  see whether  they 

would carry out  thei r  p lans.  10 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And to the extent  that  they carr ied out  for 

a month or so.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You made al ternat ive plans.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   To get  coal .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Unt i l  they came back to you.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   And said they were prepared to  resume 

supplying coal .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   On the contractual  pr ice.  

MR MOLEFE:   Unt i l  they came back wi th their  ta i l  between 
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their  legs.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   Because Chai rperson that  month and I  knew 

that  was a cr i t ical  – cr i t ical  month in the negot iat ions.   

Whoever – whoever bat tered an eyel id f i rst  – i t  was l ike 

poker – whoever bat tered the eyel id f i rst  loses.   So i f  I  had 

gone back to them and said sorry guys we real ly need the 

coal  we would have paid even more.   Out of  interest  

Chairperson Eskom is paying about R900.00 f rom that  

R150.00.   How did that  happen? 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  In respect  of  which mine? 

MR MOLEFE:   I t  is paying Glencore R900.00 for coal  on 

average.  

CHAIRPERSON:   On other mines? 

MR MOLEFE:   Ja other mines – I  am not  sure i f  – I  am not  

sure what is happening to Hendrina I  have not  fo l lowed i t  up.  

But  I  was reading somewhere that  the – the – things we lef t  

at  the cost  of  pr imary energy has gone through the roof .   

They have gone through the roof  Chai rperson – they are 

unsustainable.   Costs of  pr imary energy before I  arr ived at  20 

Eskom were about 17% per annum increase on average for  

about  ten years.   Dur ing the two years that  I  was there the 

increase in the pr imary energy costs was 3%. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Was? 

MR MOLEFE:   3% below inf lat ion.   I t  is because we d id not  
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agree to agreements l ike this one.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So you are saying they threatened us wi th 

stopping the supply of  coal .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   In order to t ry and push us to agree to th is 

high increase.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We were not  prepared – we refused and we 

were prepared – we had a plan what we would do i f  they 

carr ied out  their  threats.  10 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And they did carry i t  out  and we 

implemented our plan for that  month.  

MR MOLEFE:   And we did not  have load shedding.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And we are not  the ones who went to them 

to say please can you stop your st r ike as i t  were.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   They are the ones who came back to us 

and said we are prepared to resume on the old terms of  the 

agreement.  20 

MR MOLEFE:   The phone cal l  came to me as I  was boarding 

an aeroplane to Cape Town at  about  5 or 6 in the evening.  

The phone rang and i t  was Mr Ephron and he said he would 

l ike to ta lk about  the – the pr ice and the resumpt ion of  the 

coal  supply.   And I  said to him Mr Ephron I  am get t ing into a 
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p lane in fact  the hostess was tel l ing me to stop 00:12:14.   

But  there is nothing to ta lk to unt i l  we start  resuming 

operat ions tomorrow morning – by tomorrow morning e ight  

o’c lock.   I f  you resume operat ions tomorrow morning by eight  

o’c lock at  R150.00 maybe we can talk.  

 And then when I  got  to  the other s ide or maybe the 

fol lowing morning he cal led and he said Mr Molefe I  am sorry 

to d isappoint  you we wi l l  not  resume operat ions by e ight  

o’c lock but  give us another 24 hours and we wi l l  have 

resumed operat ions.   I  said that  is f ine at  R150.00 – at  10 

R150.00 f ine then we can talk there.  

 That  was negot iat ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chair.   A couple of  th ings Mr 

Molefe to – to place before you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So – so just  before I  just  go back to th is.   

Part  you are saying is in negot iat ions you have your own – 

each party has got  i ts own tact .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   How to handle negot iat ions and some of  20 

them might  look l ike you are taking too much of  a r isk.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  i t  is a judgment cal l  that  you have to 

make.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   But  i f  you take r isks and you have an 

appropriate plan what you wi l l  do i f  the r isk mater ia l ises.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Then i t  is  okay and that  is what you say 

you did.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   In  the l i terature Chai rperson when I  was 

t rained in negot ia t ions i t  is  cal led BATNA – Best  Al ternat ive 

to a Negot iated Agreement and so when you are in 

negot iat ions what  you assess is that  i f  we do not  come to an 

agreement what wi l l  happen?  Wi l l  i t  be worst  for  the 10 

opponent or worse for me?  We have to assess that  and see 

that  i f  your BATNA al ternat ive to a negot iated agreement is 

bet ter than your opponents outcome then you can go al l  the 

way because they cannot afford to negot iate the absence of  

an agreement.   Ja there is a tact ic to arr ive but  hopeful ly you 

arr ive at  the middle ground before.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MOLEFE:   But  to be threatened by something that  does 

not  exist  you cannot threaten us wi th coal  supply wi th 400 

years of  coal  underground.  You cannot do that .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   A couple of  th ings to put  before – to you 

Mr Molefe.   In regard to the stoppage of  coal  supply I  have 
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got  a number of  them – I  am not  taking them in any 

part icular order.   In order to the stoppage of  coal  supply.  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The coal  supply was stopped on the 20t h 

of  August  2015 – 20 August  2015 that  is when you got  a 

let ter f rom the business rescue pract i t ioners and they said 

they cannot supply anymore and they gave you a proposal  

for an inter im arrangement.   That  coal  supply only l ived for 

th i r teen days because the meet ing you had with them was on 

the 3r d of  September 2015.   So i t  was not  for a month – the ir  10 

stoppage was not  for a month.   And they saying Mr Ephron in 

his aff idavi t  the meet ing was actual ly requested by Eskom. 

MR MOLEFE:   By? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   By Eskom and then he took the offer 

cal led Mr Molefe,  Mr Koko,  Mr Molefe that  the two of  you met 

wi th them.  But  you actual ly  wanted to meet him with the 

business rescue pract i t ioners but  when the business rescue 

pract i t ioners were there you told them not  to be part  of  the 

meet ing you wi l l  only speak to Mr Ephron.   So I  am just  

put t ing to you Mr Ephron’s version.    20 

 So the stoppage was thi r teen days not  a month and 

the standard stock days at  Hendrina was 35 days.   So you 

could operate wi thin th i r teen days wi th  a stock pi le of  35 

days because then supply was reinstated on the 3r d of 

September af ter the meet ing where you agreed to an inter im 
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ar rangement.   Your comment on that? 

MR MOLEFE:   Chairperson my recol lect ion is not  that  we 

asked for a  meet ing.   Mr Ephron did cal l  [?]  they are 

prepared to resume operat ions the fol lowing day.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sorry.  

MR MOLEFE:   At  R150.00 and I  said to him eight  o’c lock the 

fol lowing morning and later on he said 24 hours.   I t  may wel l  

be maybe that  there are off ic ia ls  that  had been making 

contact  panicking dur ing this per iod and making contact  wi th 

the – the business rescue pract i t ioners and Opt imum that  I  10 

did not  know about.   But  I  was certa inly not  involved in going 

to cap in hand to Opt imum to ask for coal  – I  d id not  do that .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Then secondly is – I  mean fol lowing that  

meet ing according to Mr Ephron the inter im arrangement is  

in place in terms of  which OCM wi l l  supply coal  to Eskom at  

the Hendrina Power Stat ion.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And that  is the inter im arrangement I  said 

l ived unt i l  29 July 2016.   But  here on the hardship clause the 

hardship clause Mr Ephron says:  20 

“ In  ear ly 2014 Eskom approached OCM to 

see i f  i t  would agree to suspend the hardship 

arbi t rat ion. ”  

So remember 2013 they invoked their  hardship.   He says 

ear ly 20 – 2013 invoke – 2014 you – Eskom come to them 
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and say suspend a hardship arbi t rat ion because they have 

taken the matter to arbi t rat ion.  

MR MOLEFE:   2014? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   2014 – Ear ly 2014.    A l low for a per iod of  

negot iat ions regarding the hardship clause.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  he was not  there in 2014.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  no I  accept  that .   I  am just  te l l ing 

you because you were saying why did they not  pursue the 

hardship clause and the answer seems to be here.   So 10 

Eskom says suspend the hardship arbi t rat ion to al low for a 

per iod of  negot iat ions regard ing the hardship claim and other  

decisions.   OCM agreed and on 23 May 2014 they conclude 

their  cooperat ion agreement which providing a process to  

further negot iate potent ia l  amendments and an extension of  

the CS – CSA as wel l  as possible set t lement of  disputes in 

re lat ion to hardship and penal t ies the hardship arbi t rat ion 

was suspended and certa in inter im arrangements were put  in 

place to amel iorate the di ff icul t ies experienced by OCM. The 

part ies a lso suspended the enforcement of  thei r  respect ive 20 

r ights on account of  a l leged breaches of  the CSA.   

 So we know that  th is is the cooperat ion agreement 

which ul t imately is. . .  

MR MOLEFE:   In 2014? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja i t  is concluded 2014 suspends the 
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hardship.  

MR MOLEFE:   But  the person – the person who s igned the 

cooperat ion agreement Mr Seleka did he have author i ty to do 

so? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  wi l l  come to that  – al l  I  am saying to  

you is th is is how the hardship clause was deal t  wi th.   The 

part ies agreed to suspend his enforcement enter ing into the 

cooperat ion agreement.   Number 3.  

MR MOLEFE:   I f  I  –  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay yes please.  10 

MR MOLEFE:   A lr ight  the only way of  deal ing wi th the 

hardship clause would have been to go for arbi t rat ion.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes that  is why I  am reading to you what 

Mr Ephron is saying.   They had invoked that .  

MR MOLEFE:   What Mr Ephron said? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  They had invoked that  and the 

part ies agreed to suspend i t  enter ing into a cooperat ion 

agreement to – to  negot iate a new agreement.   So they did 

not  s i t  on thei r  lo ins and let  the si tuat ion just  run i ts  course.   

And with the aff idavi t  that  has been referred to  by the 20 

Chairperson of  Mr Ephron he explains that  the hardship is  

intended for the very purpose where ci rcumstances change 

that  a party can then invoke a hardship clause in a long term 

agreement to engage in negot iat ions for bet ter or  reasonable 

terms between the part ies.   I  am just  giv ing you the vers ion.   
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I  am not  saying this is what I  am saying – my view.  Ja so 

you can invoke in  the long term agreement because you do 

not  know what is going to happen ten or twenty years down 

the l ine.   Ci rcumstances change unforeseeable you invoke 

the hardship;  you then start  negot iat ions because that  is  

what the hardship clause t r iggers.   I t  t r igger negot ia t ions to  

propose amendments to an exist ing agreement.   So that  is 

the explanat ion.    

MR MOLEFE:   I f  I  may comment? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  10 

MR MOLEFE:   I t  is the old story of  the l ion and the hunter.   

So i t  depends on who you bel ieve about what happened at  

the hunt .   Do you bel ieve the l ion or do you bel ieve the 

hunter?  That  is his version (Adv Seleka speaking over  Mr 

Molefe).  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So which one is the l ion? 

MR MOLEFE:   I  do not  know I  am just  making an example.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.    

MR MOLEFE:   That  is his version and I  have got  my vers ion 

and I  wi l l  st ick to my version.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Except  that  his version now I  do not  

th ink i t  is a version as such as much as h is a reference to 

the hardship clause to tel l  you when i t  gets to be t r iggered 

and what i t  t r iggers as a resul t  o f  i t  being invoked.  The 

part ies then start  to negot iate and this is what you found 
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happening at  Eskom board when you arr ived.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes Mr Seleka in terms of  the Coal  Supply 

Agreement.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   The only th ing that  the hardship t r iggered was 

arbi t rat ion not  the fancy things that  they started engaging in.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The negot iat ions? 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes,  no.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  maybe Mr Seleka I  should say is – is 

Mr Ephron … 10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr Molefe needs to ei ther pul l  the 

microphone closer  to him.  

MR MOLEFE:   Oh okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Because the sound system does not  pick 

him up.  

MR MOLEFE:   Sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja I  th ink just  speak closer to i t .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is  Mr Ephron referr ing to the hardship 

clause to explain why they did not  do due di l igence?  In  20 

other words is he – is he saying that  we d id not  do due 

di l igence is not  a problem because there is th is clause?  We 

could always ask for negot iat ions and i f  we under – suffer 

hardship we could invoke this  clause?  Is  that  in  part  at  least  

what he is saying?  You are not  sure? 
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja I  do not  want to put  i t  at  that  level  

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  know f rom his aff idavi t  the direct  

reasons speci f ic to why they did not  do due di l igence are 

centred around what he says was publ ic ly avai lab le 

informat ion at  the t ime and then not  – or t ry ing to avoid 

alert ing thi rd part ies that  they were about to take over  OCM. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja so publ ic ly avai lab le informat ion and 10 

understood that  i t  was compet ing wi th var ious other potent ia l  

purchasers to acqui re the control  of  OCH and therefore took 

the strategic decision to rely on that  publ ic ly avai lab le 

informat ion and effect  i ts acquisi t ion to a ser ies of  

t ransact ions wi th  OCH on the stock exchange without  

involvement of  OCH.  Ja.    

CHAIRPERSON:   So I  am t rying to understand the 

signi f icance of  his point  about  the purpose of  invoking the 

hardship.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The hardship.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   The hardship clause part icular ly the clause 

as I  understand the posi t ion.   On this  part icular  occasion 

they did not  pursue i t  up to the end namely arbi t rat ion.   As I  

understand the posi t ion.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja Chair  just  before you Mr Molefe.   As 
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he explains in his aff idavi t  and so i t  does not  answer your 

main quest ion but  your anci l lary quest ion.   The pursui t  of  the 

hardship clause was made.  I t  was inter-routed by the part ies 

agreeing amicably to suspend i t  and enter  into a cooperat ion 

agreement.   Then this in May 2014.  By the t ime of  the 

terminat ion of  the cooperat ion agreement in June 2015 there 

was only over a per iod of  over a month before OCM went  

into business rescue.   Then the business rescue 

pract i t ioners take control .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   And that  is when they start  engaging wi th 

Eskom.  So what whether in  that  process they could as OCM 

st i l l  pursue the arb i t rat ion they would I  th ink have had to 

seek the consent of  the – wel l  the business rescue 

pract i t ioners could have had to run wi th i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  so I  am t rying to understand the point .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because they are aggr ieved by the fact  

that  the pr ice – they are aggrieved by the pr ice that  is in the 

contract .   They want i t  to  be increased.   Eskom says no.   20 

They have the opt ion of  pursuing arbi t rat ion under the 

hardship clause.   They in i t iated that .   Then on what you have 

told me by agreement between the part ies this ei ther  

terminated or suspended.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Suspended.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Pending the outcome of  the efforts that  

would be made under the cooperat ion agreement.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   When Eskom terminates the cooperat ion 

agreement obviously they must  go back to using the 

hardship clause and pursuing arb i t rat ion i f  they st i l l  feel  

aggrieved.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And they feel  they have a case to put  

before the arbi t ra tor.   So – so that  is what I  am trying to  10 

fol low.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And af ter the terminat ion of  the 

cooperat ion agreement they did not  pursue the arbi t ra t ion as 

I  understand i t   

ADV SELEKA SC:   My… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  course you say in two months’ t ime they 

wanted to (speaking over one another).  

ADV SELEKA SC:   My recon… - sorry Chai r.   My recol lect ion 

is that  they did but  I  wi l l  have to check the speci f ic 20 

paragraphs that  matters then went back to arbi t rat ion af ter  

the terminat ion because then Eskom also re fer red  to  the 

pena l ty  c la im to  arb i t ra t ion .   I  th ink  the  two were  then  

conso l ida ted .   Mr  Mole fe ,  you w i l l  remind us  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  do  they b lame Eskom about  anyth ing  
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concern ing  arb i t ra t ion  o r  a rb i t ra t ion  no t  tak ing  p lace?  So  

in  o ther  words,  what  i s  the  impor tance,  s ign i f i cance o f  

whethe r  they fo l lowed or  d id  no t  fo l low or  pursue up to  the  

end the  rou te  o f  a rb i t ra t ion  as  fa r  as  they are  concerned.    

 Because as  I  unders tand i t ,  no th ing  prevented 

them f rom pursu ing  arb i t ra t ion  even when the re  was an 

agreement  to  suspend,  they d id  no t  have to  agree to  

suspend the  hardsh ip  c lause or  the  rou te  o f  a rb i t ra t ion  i f  

they  d id  no t  want  to  and they wan ted an arb i t ra t ion  award  

to  be  issued in  the i r  favour.    10 

 So I  am t ry ing  to  unders tand what  the i r  po in t  i s  

about  the  arb i t ra t ion  rou te .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  they dumped a  por t ion  in  b lame on 

Eskom in  regard  to  what  tha t  –  I  do  no t  want  to  say the  

apparent  f igure  to  pursue the  hardsh ip  c lause to  the  very  

end.   I  th ink  wha t ,  what  one sees f rom the  ev idence Cha i r  

i s ,  tha t  the  s i tua t ion  ge ts  over taken by  events .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Because th is  a rb i t ra t ion  is  u l t imate ly  

pursued beyond 2015.   I t  i s  then 2016 and 2017 gets  to  the  20 

se t t led  on  the  pena l t ies .   By  tha t  –  by  December  2015,  

there  is  an  agreement  to  by  cha i rs  in  OCH to  take  ove r  

OCH.    

 But  I  w i l l  have to  see the  passage regard ing  

what  happens immedia te ly  a f te r  t he  te rm inat ion  le t te r  f rom 
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Mr  Mole fe  wh ich  I  have found o the rwise .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  remember  the  b ig  p i c tu re .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    As  you do tha t ,  the  b ig  p ic tu re  i s ,  I  th ink  

they suggest  in  the i r  ev idence tha t  Eskom was be ing ,  I  

th ink ,  un fa i r  on  them,  to  say the  least ,  by  ins is t ing  on  th is  

p r ice  tha t  was in  the  cont rac t .  

 Mr  Mole fe  has g iven reasons why  they ins is ted  

on  tha t  cont rac t  p r ice .   He sa id  they made th rea t  o f  

s topp ing  the  supp ly  o f  coa l .   He had sa id  tha t  was  10 

negot ia ted  bu t  he  unders tood i t .    

 He put  a  p lan  in  p lace .   He says,  sub jec t  to  what  

I  th ink  you sa id ,  i t  m igh t  no t  have been a  month  bu t  he  

says he  had a  p lan  to  dea l  w i th  tha t  th rea t  i f  i t  

mater ia l i sed .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  i t  i s  impor tan t  to  keep the  b ig  p ic tu re 

in  te rms o f  what  we a re  t ry ing  to  es tab l i sh .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  Mr  Mole fe  has been dy ing  to  say 

someth ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Cha i rperson,  there  is  someth ing  tha t  was  
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ment ioned by  Mr  Se leka tha t  I  th ink  i s  qu i te  fundamenta l  

and goes to  the  bona f ides  o f  Opt imum.   He says tha t  they 

d id  no t  do  due d i l igence because they d id  no t  –  they were  

a f ra id  o f  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Th i rd  par t ies . . .  to  know.  

MR MOLEFE:    . . .con f ident ia l i t y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    Now in  due d i l igence,  the  f i rs t  th ing  tha t  10 

ge ts  f i led  i s  a  conf ident ia l i t y  agreement ,  a  very  s t r i c t  

conf ident ia l i t y  ag reement .    

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    The in fo rmat ion  ge ts  pu t  in to  what  they ca l l  

da ta  rooms.   I  have in  my l i fe ,  Cha i rperson,  done  a  lo t  o f  

t ransact ions w i th  very  sens i t i ve  in fo rmat ion .   

Conf ident ia l i t y  i s  no t  an  excuse not  to  do . . .  in  the  f i rs t  

p lace .    

 Second ly,  the  two th ings tha t  sunk them was the  

in te rnat iona l  coa l  p r ice .   In te rna t iona l  coa l  p r ice .   Th is  has 20 

got  no th ing  to  do  w i th  conf ident ia l i t y.   They were  open to  

in te rnat iona l  cont rac t . . .   number  one.    

 Number  two,  i t  was R 150.00 tha t  they know was 

in  p lace .   I t  was  not  a  secre t .   I t  was in  the  CSA.   They 

cou ld  have to ld  Eskom.   I t  wou ld  have to ld  them tha t  you  
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have a  pr ice  o f  R 150 unt i l  2018.   They dec ided to  pursue  

tha t  t ransact ion  desp i te  knowing tha t .  

 And by  the  way  Cha i rperson,  the  R 150 i t se l f  

was the  resu l t  o f  a rb i t ra t ion  w i th  the  prev ious aud i t .   So 

Eskom had gone to  a rb i t ra t ion  be fore  on  th is  very  

agreement .   The reason . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    So  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    They were  no t  go ing  to  a rb i t ra t ion .   I t  

means tha t  they were  –  the i r  be t  was on someth ing  

ex t raord ina ry.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    So  par t  o f  the  po in t  you are  mak ing  is  

tha t  OCM shou ld  no t  have been cry ing ,  l i ke  they were  

cry ing  about  be ing  t rea ted  unfa i r l y  by  Eskom,  because in  

te rms o f  the  coa l  supp ly  agreement  tha t  was in  p lace  there  

was a  hardsh ip  c lause,  wh ich  they cou ld  use i f  they  fe l t  

tha t  Eskom was t rea t ing  them harsh ly.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And they cou ld  take  i t  up  to  a rb i t ra t ion  

and you say they had done so  be fore  and the re  was th is  

150 was as  a  resu l t  o f  a rb i t ra t ion  and they chose not  to  20 

pursue the  arb i t ra t ion  c lause to  i ts  end.  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja ,  to  the  po in t  where  I  even fe l t  l i ke  they  

were  t rea t ing  us  l i ke  l i t t le  boys tha t  needed to  be  taught  a  

lesson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H ’m.   
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MR MOLEFE:    That  wou ld  no t  fo l low th rough on ou r  r igh ts  

to  the  ag reement ,  they had a  sense o f  imped iment  

Cha i rperson,  they had a  sense o f  imped iment .    There  was  

proper  mechan isms to  the  ag reement  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  and you say i f  they  fe l t  tha t  they  

had a  good case  to  pu t  be fore  the  arb i t ra to r  they had the  

oppor tun i ty  to  do  so .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Why d idn ’ t  they  do  tha t .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Because the  a rb i t ra to r  wou ld  have had 

power  to  increase  the  pr ice  i f  they  made a  proper  case.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  thank you.   We are  two,  th ree  

minutes  be fo re  one o ’c lock .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  le t  me dea l  w i th  th is  one  

Cha i rperson.   Then the  no t ices  by  the  DMR,  those not ices  

were  be fore  OCM went  in to  bus iness rescue because OCM 

– we l l  ac tua l l y  they co inc ide  w i th  the  bus iness rescue,  on 

the  4 t h  o f  Augus t  2015,  these are  no t ices  in  regard  to  20 

OCM’s  a l leged fa i lu re  to  fo l low  a  proper  re t renchment  

p rocess.   These  are  d i f fe ren t  f rom not ices  o f  November  

2015,  wh ich  we w i l l  come to  la te r,  because w i th  the  no t ices  

o f  August ,  4  August  2015 Mr  Ramat lhod i  and Mr  Ramoncha  

say you d id  no t  meet  w i th  them.   Those not ices  were  then 
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l i f ted  on  the  7 t h  o f  August  2015.  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja ,  the re  were  two meet ings,  when those 

not ices  were  g iven to  OCM . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Remember  to  come c lose r  to  the  m ic .  

MR MOLEFE:    When those not ices  were  –  those  not ices  

were  g iven to  OCM shor t l y  a f te r  my meet ing  w i th  Mr  

G lasenberg  where  I  sa id  he  is  pu t t ing  i t  down to  my . . .  and 

I  remember  d i s t inc t l y  Cha i rperson th ink ing  how d id  they ge t  

to  Mr  Ramat lhod i  who is  now execut ing  the i r  p lan  to  s top  

supp ly.    I  d id  ca l l  Mr  Ramat lhod i  a t  a  meet ing  and I  10 

exp la ined to  h im tha t  p lease w i thdraw those  not ices  

because they are  th rea ten ing  the  secur i t y  o f  supp ly,  we are  

in  a  very  de l i ca te  pos i t ion ,  and shor t l y  thereaf te r  they were  

w i thdrawn.    

 I  agree,  there  was anothe r  meet ing  la te r,  there  

was anothe r  mee t ing  la te r,  bu t  what  i s  s t range about  the  

a l legat ions o f  Mr  Ramat lhod i  was  tha t  we were  say ing  in  

tha t  meet ing  tha t  he  shou ld  w i thd raw Glencore ’s  l i cense.    

We cou ld  no t  have sa id  he  must  w i thdraw Glencore ’s  

l i cense,  when he  had a l ready done so  prev ious ly,  he  had 20 

a l ready done so  prev ious l y  o f  h i s  own accord  fo r  d i f fe ren t  

reasons,  and I  spec i f i ca l l y  pe rsuaded  h im don ’ t  do  th is ,  

because you are  compl ica t ing  every th ing ,  and immedia te ly  

a f te r,  you can check the  da tes ,  immedia te ly  a f te r  those 

not ices  were  w i thdrawn and OCM was prepared to  –  was  
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a l lowed to  opera te  aga in  they then went  in to  bus iness  

rescue,  and the  day a f te r  bus iness rescue was announced 

they s topped supp ly.  

 The i r  ob jec t i ve  was to  s top  the  supp ly  o f  coa l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  Mr  Mole fe  t o  the  ex ten t  tha t  you are  

say ing  to  me you suspected tha t  there  may have been  

co l lus ion  be tween Min i s te r  Ramat lhod i  and OCM wi th  

regard  to  the  issu ing  o f  those not ices ,  why wou ld  OCM 

have needed to  ta lk  to  h im in  o rde r  to  s top  the  coa l  

because they cou ld  s top  coa l  w i thout  h is  ass is tance? 10 

MR MOLEFE:    No,  no ,  no  Cha i rpe rson I  am not  say ing  tha t  

there  was co l lus ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  a re  you say ing?  

MR MOLEFE:    I  am say ing  we l l  i t  was co inc identa l ,  

immedia te ly  a f te r  th is  th rea t  was  made the  no t ices  were  

issued by  DMR.   What  I  am say ing  is  tha t  i t  d id  c ross  my 

mind tha t  they  m ight  have made contac t  w i th  Mr  

Ramat lhod i ,  I  do  no t  have ev idence o f  tha t  in  fac t .    In  fac t  

i t  cou ld  be  pure ly  co inc identa l .     

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   But  you accept  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

MR MOLEFE:   But  i t  happened a t  a  very  in te res t ing  t ime,  

wh ich  is  jus t  a f te r  Mr  G lasenberg  had put  the  proverb ia l  

gun to  my head and I  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  bu t  you accept  tha t  to  s top  coa l  

they d idn ’ t  need h is  ass i s tance,  OCM? 
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MR MOLEFE:    No,  no  Cha i rpe rson,  what  happened  is  –  no  

they needed –  no  they needed an excuse because when Mr  

G lasenberg  sa id  we w i l l  s top  the  supp ly  o f  coa l ,  CDH can  

te l l  you ,  I  immed ia te ly  gave them ins t ruc t ions to  in te rd i c t  

the  s toppage o f  the  supp ly  o f  coa l ,  r igh t ,  because we have 

a  cont rac tua l  ag reement ,  they were  ob l iged to  cont inue 

supp ly ing  us  a t  150,  so  there  had to  be  an  ext raord inary  

reason fo r  the  in te rd i c t  no t  to  succeed.    

 So sudden ly  i t  i s  the  DMR tha t  says because o f  

re t renchments  we are  tak ing  your  l i cense away,  so  you  10 

cannot  in te rd ic t  us ,  because they  w i l l  say  bu t  i t  i s  no t  us ,  

the  DMR.  

 Then tha t  ge ts  f i xed  and then coa l  supp ly  i s  

res tored,  then they go  in to  bus iness rescue and you cannot  

in te rd i c t  bus iness  rescue,  so  the  on ly  th ing  lega l l y  tha t  we  

cou ld  do  when they s topped,  i f  Mr  G lasenberg  was to  car ry  

ou t  h is  th rea t  o f  s topp ing  supp ly  fo r  us  to  in te rd ic t ,  bu t  

bus iness rescue and DMR cou ld  no t  be  in te rd i c ted .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  leav ing  ou t  DMR and the  issue o f  

bus iness rescue ord inar i l y  i f  they  wanted to  s top  supp ly ing  20 

coa l  they wou ld  no t  need anybody ’s  ass is tance,  o rd inar i l y  

i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  we wou ld  in te rd ic t  them.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  no  i f  you  don ’ t  in te rd i c t  them,  i f  

they  don ’ t  go  to  anybody,  i f  they  want  to  s top  they cou ld  
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jus t  s top  i t .  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja,  they cou ld  s top  i t  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  you wou ld  have your  remedies .  

MR MOLEFE:    We would  come runn ing  to  the  cour ts  Cha i r  

to  say we have an agreement  w i th  these peop le  and we 

wou ld  sue t  hem.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  ja ,  bu t  p rac t ica l l y  they cou ld  

s top  i t  and f igh t  you in  cour t  i f  they  want  to .  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja,  they cou ld  s top  i t  and f igh t  w i th  us  in  

cour t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    Bu t  you see  tha t  i s  I  was get t ing  ready fo r  

tha t  ba t t le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja,  o f  in te rd ic t ing  them,  bu t  then they go t  

bus iness rescue.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  they . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  you [ laugh ing ]  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja,  i t  was hard  Cha i rperson,  i t  was very 

hard .    [ laugh ing ]  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t  I  th ink  we must  take  the  20 

lunch break,  I  th ink  the re  was . . . [ in te rvenes]     

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i r  can I  c la r i f y  someth ing?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  goes on the  fac ts  here ,  on  the  fac ts  

Mr  Mole fe ,  the  no t ices  are  –  the  August  no t ices  are  i ssued  
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on  the  4 t h  o f  August ,  by  tha t  t ime  there  i s  no  s toppage o f  

coa l  supp ly  to  Eskom,  they had not  s topped.   The DMR 

not ices  in  regard  to  the  re t renchment  p rocess are  i ssued 

on the  4 t h  and then l i f ted  on  the  7 t h  o f  Augus t .   The  

bus iness rescue prac t i t ioners  on ly  no t i f y  you on the  20 t h  o f  

August  tha t  they are  go ing  to  s top .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So the i r  s toppage had noth ing  to  –  and  

even ass is ted  by  the  DMR.  

MR MOLEFE:   The e f fec t  o f  the  no t ices  wou ld  eventua l l y  10 

lead to  a  . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  bu t  supp ly  d idn ’ t  s top .  

MR MOLEFE:    No i t  d idn ’ t  s top ,  I  never  sa id  i t  s topped,  

bu t  the  cond i t ions  were  crea ted to  s top  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  I  th ink  par t  o f  the  po in t  Mr  Se leka is  

mak ing  is  th is ,  because I  unders tood you to  be  say ing  in  

your  ev idence tha t  no t ices  came a f te r  Mr  G lasenberg  had 

spoken to  you.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  seem to  unders tand tha t  he  i s  say ing  

no ,  no ,  no ,  the  no t ices  came f i rs t .  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  no .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because –  or  a t  leas t  the  bus iness 

prac t i t ioners  on ly  came much la te r.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Chai r  you may we l l  be  co r rec t ,  Mr  

Mole fe  hasn ’ t  g iven us  a  da te  when he has met  w i th  Mr  

G lasenberg .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The meet ing  we have on reco rd  is  o f  

the  3 r d  o f  September,  tha t  i s  way a f te r  those no t ices  o f  

August .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   But  then tha t  i s  where  they,  the  two 

par t ies  cap i tu la te  and they ag ree to  en ter  i n to  an  10 

agreement  a r rangement ,  f rom then go ing  fo rward .  

MR MOLEFE:    Mr Glasenberg  was not  in  the  meet ing  o f  

September.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  I  am not  say ing  he  was,  a l l  I  am 

say ing  is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    The meet ing  tha t  Mr  G lasenberg  was in  was 

before  the  DMR not ices ,  be fore  bus iness rescue.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you remember  the  da te?  

MR MOLEFE:    I t  was somet ime in  Ju ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Somet ime in  Ju l y?  20 

MR MOLEFE:    I  can ’ t  remember  the  da te .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:   There  were  peop le  a t  tha t  meet ing ,  in  fac t  

Mr  Ephron,  in  Mr  Ephron ’s  a f f idav i t  he  may re fer  to  tha t  

meet ing ,  I  w i l l  f ind  i t  dur ing  lunch t ime Cha i rpe rson .   Even 
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my a f f idav i t  I  may re fe r  to  the  day  on  wh ich  Mr  G lasenberg  

f rom Mr  Ephron ’s  ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you –  p lease do check dur ing  the  

lunch,  the  da te  dur ing  the  lunch break.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you might  no t  need to  spend too  

much t ime on th is  i ssue,  because  you sa id  you were  no t  

even suspect ing  bu t  someth ing  c rossed your  m ind  about  

the  two –  the  no t ices  and the  fac t s ,  so  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    You must  apprec ia te  Cha i r  tha t  under  the  10 

c i rcumstances you a lso  become very  parano id ,  so  when 

two th ings happen.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    You s tar t  jo in ing  do ts  tha t  don ’ t  ex i s t ,  l i ke 

peop le  jo in  do ts .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja ,  ja ,  no  tha t  i s  r igh t ,  so  when we  

come back maybe Mr  Mole fe  can  jus t  ind ica te  what  da te  

tha t  meet ing  was  but  we don ’ t  spend too  much t ime on i t ,  

we move on.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja,  we w i l l  move on Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t  le t  us  take  the  lunch break,  

i t  i s  now e igh t  m inutes  past  one,  we w i l l  resume a t  ten  past  

two.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We ad journ .  
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REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i rperson.   We are  ready  

to  p roceed.   Cha i r,  we found two  aspects  wh ich  a rose in  

our  d i scuss ion  pr io r  to  the  ad journment .   One is  the  da te  o f  

the  meet ing  tha t  Mr  Mole fe  i s  re fe r r ing  to .   The o ther  i s  

what  happened w i th  the  hardsh ip  arb i t ra t ion  a f te r  the  

te rm inat ion .   So both  o f  tha t  a re  in  Mr  Mole fe ’s . . .   Le t  us  10 

use your  f i les  Mr  Mole fe .   Which  is  Eskom Bund le  17  on 

page 134.    

CHAIRPERSON:    What  a re  we go ing  to  ge t  there?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  w i l l  be  –  there  are  two aspects .   One 

is  the  da te  o f  the  meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And the  o ther  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  jus t  say  what  the  da te  i s .   I s  i t  

be fore  or  a f te r  the  4 t h  o f  August?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The date  i s  the  11 t h  o f  June 2015.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  the  meet ing  w i th  Mr  G lasenberg?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wi th  Mr  G lasenberg ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Okay the  o ther  aspect  was  what?  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    The o ther  aspect  i s  what  happened to  

the  hardsh ip  arb i t ra t ion .   Mr  Ephron says a f te r  the 

te rm inat ion  by  Mr  Mole fe ,  the  te rm inat ion  process,  the  

hardsh ip  arb i t ra t ion  recommenced on 23 June 2015 and the  

hear ing  da te  was schedu led  fo r  16  to  27  May 2016.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  Mr  Mole fe  d id  say a  da te  had been  

schedu led  . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . fo r  hear ing  bu t  I  th ink  the  po in t  was,  

the  arb i t ra t ion  was not  pu rsued to  i t s  conc lus ion .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  tha t  was the  po in t  I  th ink  he  was  

seek ing  to  make or  mak ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    O therwise  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    So  I  guess  the  on ly  th ing  is  fo r  

Mr  Mole fe  jus t  to  conf i rm whether  he  accepts  tha t  the  da te  

o f  h is  meet ing ,  your  meet ing  w i th  Mr  G lasenberg  is  the  

da te  tha t  he  g i ves .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  indeed Cha i r  i t  was cor rec t .    

CHAIRPERSON:    A l r igh t .  20 

MR MOLEFE:    Ja ,  i t  was before .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Be fore?  Way before?  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja ,  way,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  tha t  pu ts  in  p lace  the  sequence 

Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i r,  I  –  I  hope . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  maybe jus t  fo r  the  sake o f  

comple t ion  on  the  po in t  Mr  Mole fe .   I  wou ld  take  i t  tha t  in  

the  l igh t  o f  tha t  da te ,  you r  thought  about  any connect ion  10 

between Mr  G lasenberg  sa id  to  you and the  no t ices  on  the  

4 t h  o f  August  fa l l s  away.  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  I  was jus t  say ing  I  d id  have i t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    I t  was jus t  a  h i s to r ica l  th ing  tha t  happened  

a t  the  t ime.   I  am not  say ing  I  ho ld  the  v iew now.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   No,  no .   I  accept .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  wanted to  –  tha t  we be on the  same 20 

page.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Okay a l r igh t .   P roceed Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   No,  no .   That  changes the  events  

qu i te  s ign i f i can t ly.   But  Cha i r  we a lso  go t  the  le t te r  o f  
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Mr  Mole fe  o f  the  10 t h  o f  June  2015,  te rm inat ing  the 

Corpora t ion  Agreement  and negot ia t ions .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  th ink  Mr  Mole fe  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  he  has. . .  to  say i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    You want  to  say  anyth ing  about  i t?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   I  must  confess  tha t  I  had comple te l y  

fo rgo t ten  tha t  I  wr i t ten  or  sent  a  le t te r  l i ke  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    Because o f  the  passage o f  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    . . .on  the  15 t h  o f . . .   Sor ry,  the  15 t h  o f  June.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    That  I  had wr i t ten  tha t  le t te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    Bu t  because o f  the  pass ing  o f  t ime,  I  had  

fo rgo t ten  tha t  I  had wr i t ten  a  le t te r  l i ke  tha t .   But  what  th is  
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le t te r  wou ld  have  done in  the  way  tha t  i t  i s  s t ruc tured,  i t  

has  t r igge red the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe I  shou ld  know where  the  le t te r  i s  

in  the  bund le  so  I  can have a  look a t  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  was not  inco rpo ra ted  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  i s  tha t  so?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  we. . .   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    But  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Reg is t ra r. . .   Wel l ,  i f  you  10 

do not  need i t  Mr  Mole fe . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l ,  I  have a  copy.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  I  can have a  look.   Oh,  you  have a  

copy?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  then le t  us  have another  copy so  

tha t  Mr  Mole fe  can keep tha t  copy.   Was there  to  be  any  

s ign i f i cance on the  content  o f  the  le t te r  o ther  than  tha t  i t  

was a  te rm inat ion  o f  the  Corpora t ion  Agreement?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    We on ly  wanted to  show the  20 

te rm inat ion  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  th ink  Mr  Mole fe  thought  i t  m igh t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  I  th ink  the  way tha t  i t  i s ,  i t  i s  su f f i c ien t  
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to  t r igger  the  arb i t ra t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    The arb i t ra t ion?  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    So  th is  le t te r,  the  way i t  was wr i t ten ,  wou ld  

have t r iggered arb i t ra t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    And i t  d id ,  because on the  21s t ,  they  

app l ied  fo r  the  arb i t ra t ion  da te .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You say the  21 s t  o f  wh ich  month?  10 

MR MOLEFE:    O f  June,  I  th ink .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh,  you mean the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    Ja ,  subsequent  to  th is  le t te r  there  was an 

app l i ca t ion  fo r  a rb i t ra t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  ja  by  OCM.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    23  June.  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja ,  and then a  da te  was se t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  how the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    The sequence.  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja ,  th is  i s  how the  who le  th ing  shou ld  have  

unfo lded.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Then I  do  

no t  have to  read the  contents  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . i f  the  on ly  po in t  was,  th is  was the  

le t te r  o f  te rm inat ion?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   So tha t  p roves the  te rm inat ion .   

What  I  need to  emphas ise  here  Cha i r  and Mr  Mole fe  a lso ,  10 

is  tha t  th is  i s  far  removed f rom the  not ices  o f  the  DMR 

which  come in  August ,  the  4 t h  o f  August  2015.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  he  has conceded tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you.   Cha i r,  be fo re  I  move on.   

May I  d raw one aspect  to  your  a t ten t ion  unre la ted  to  the  

mat te r?   I  was approached dur ing  the  lunch ad journment  by  

the  lega l  representa t i ves  fo r  Mr  Ano j  S ingh w i th  an  emai l  

tha t  they have been asked by  the  sec re ta r ia t  to  come 20 

before  you th i s  a f te rnoon.   Apparent ly,  in  o rder  t o  a rgue 

the  postponement  o r  p resent  the  postponement  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Have you seen  the  no te  tha t  they are  

ta lk ing  about?   The sec re tar ia t  wou ld  no t  do  tha t .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    What  does i t  say?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The emai ls  says:    

“Dear  Mr  Mathopo. . .  [wh ich  is  Mr  S ingh ’s  

a t to rney]  . . .  our  te lecon th is  morn ing  a t  10 :04  

re fers .  [Th i s  i s  2  March 2021]    

As  d iscussed in  our  te lecon.   Whi le  the 

secre tar ia t  does  not  have fo rmal  ins t ruc t ions 

on  th is  mat te r,  we suggest  tha t  your  counse l  

appears  be fo re  the  Cha i rperson a t  some s tage 10 

dur ing  the  proceed ings  today in  

Braamfonte in . . . ”  

 But  I  th ink  the  sentence . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    But  i t  i s  nonsense.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  they . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    S ince when do  they have the  power  to  

ab le  i t  to  appear  be fore  the  Commiss ion  who  is  no t  

schedu led  to  appear?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  bu t  I  th ink  tha t  sentence i s  c lear  

Cha i r.   They do not  have fo rmal  ins t ruc t ions.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  bu t  why do they say tha t  in  the  f i rs t  

p lace?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .    

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  no t  the i r  p lace .   Wel l ,  w i l l  you  

ar range fo r  the  secre tary  to  ta lk  to  me about  tha t  le t te r?  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Who is  i t  s igned  by?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Shou ld  I  ment ion  i t  here  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ment ion  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  Ms Shannon van Vuuren.  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . the  secre tary  o f  the  Commiss ion?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    She is  par t  o f  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  she is  no t  the  sec re tary.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  she is  no t .   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wi l l  your  jun io r  p lease b r ing  i t  to  the 10 

a t ten t ion  o f  the  secre tary  o f  the  Commiss ion  and ask h im  

to  invest iga te  how the  person who sent  tha t  le t te r  came to  

sent  tha t  le t te r  to  the  a t to rneys concerned and make those 

ar rangements?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now he caused them to  come a l l  the  way 

here  fo r  no th ing .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  unacceptab le .   I f  your  jun io r  cou ld  

communica te  w i th  the  secre tary  o f  the  Commiss ion ,  20 

Mr  Masa la ,  to  invest iga te  how th is  happened?  And  to  ta lk  

to  me about  i t  somet ime a f te r  the  hear ing?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you.   Mr  Mole fe?  
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MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Le t  us  proceed.   Mr  Mole fe ,  the  –  le t  

us  pu t  th is  to  you so  tha t  you can respond to  i t .   Whi le  

OCM was re fused the  p r ice  increase o f  R 154.00 to  

R 442.00,  we see  subsequent  to  th is  in  January  2016,  tha t  

Eskom was not  on ly  p repared but  in  fact  d id  go  to  conc lude 

shor t - te rm agreements  w i th  Tegeta  fo r  the  supp ly  o f  coa l  in  

te rms o f  wh ich  Eskom pa id  more  than R 442.00 per  ton  to  

Tegeta .    

 The cont rac t  in  January  –  fo r  the  cont rac t  in  10 

January,  Eskom pa id  Tegeta  R 467.00 per  ton .   For  the  

cont rac t  in  February  2016,  Eskom pa id  Tegeta  R 490.00  

per  ton .  

 But  be fore  I  g ive  you a  chance,  le t  me add,  the 

coa l  tha t  Tegeta  was supp ly ing  to  Eskom,  i t  was obta in ing  

i t  f rom OCM at  a  p r ice  h igher  than R 442.00.   On the  f i rs t  

one,  i t  i s  R 448.00.   So they are  ge t t ing  the  R 448.00 f rom 

OCM se l l ing  i t  a t  R 467.00 to  Eskom.  

 The second con t rac t ,  they  ge t  i t  a t  R 467.00  

f rom OCM and se l l s  i t  to  Eskom at  R 490.00.   Why d id  20 

Eskom then take  tha t  approach?  

MR MOLEFE:    Which  l ine  was th is?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  was  Arnot .    

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   F i rs t l y  Cha i rpe rson,  on  the  

1s t  o f  September,  I  underwent  a  procedure  fo r  my 
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shou lde r. . .  and under  genera l  anaesthet ic .   And dur ing  tha t  

p rocedure  the re  was a  prob lem,  my lungs were  f looded w i th  

wate r  and they had to  induce a  coma about . . .    

 And subsequent  to  tha t ,  I  was not  a t  work  fo r  the  

who le  o f  December  a f te r  I  was  re leased f rom hosp i ta l  

because my lungs were  s t i l l  qu i te  weak.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Come c loser  to  the  m ic .  

MR MOLEFE:    Oh.   Subsequent  to  tha t ,  my lungs were  s t i l l  

qu i te  weak.   So I  was not  a t  work  f rom the  1 s t  o f  December  

un t i l  the  m idd le  o f  January.   So I  was not  pa r t  o f  these 10 

negot ia t ions  fo r  th is . . .   Bu t  my unders tand ing  i s  tha t  the  

Arnot  cont rac t  wh ich  was in  Exxaro  –  I  th ink  i t  was Exxaro .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    . . .was a t  R 1  030,00 per  ton  and  i t  was  

coming up.   The 40-years  was exp i r ing  in  

December  2000(? ) . . .  [ speaker ’s  vo ice  t ra i l s  o f f  a t  end o f  

sentences –  unc lea r. ]  

 Th is  we had d iscussed even befo re  I  le f t .   And 

we were  in  nego t ia t ions  w i th  Exxaro  to  p r ice  negot ia t ions  

fo r  a  new cont rac t  and we cou ld  no t  agree.  20 

 And I  th ink  Exxaro  thought  tha t  we wou ld  

eventua l l y  ag ree because o f  the  shor tage o f  coa l .   That  i s  

exact ly  the  same argument  tha t :   Where  wou ld  we 

o therwise  ge t  the  coa l?   And there  demand was 

R 1  300,00 (s i c ) .    
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 They,  in  fac t ,  wanted to  increase the  pr ice .   We 

d id  no t  increase the  pr ice .   We d id  no t  increase the  pr ice .   

Ins tead,  when the  cont rac t  ended  in  December  2015,  we 

got  –  I  th ink  i t  was s ix  BEE compan ies  to  supp ly  coa l  to  

Arnot  on  a  shor t - te rm bas is  un t i l  we cou ld  e i ther  negot ia te  

–  f ina l i se  negot ia t ions  w i th  Arnot  o r  pu t  in  p lace  another  

agreement ,  a  long- te rm agreement .  

 One o f  the  s ix  compan ies  was Tegeta  bu t  there  

were  f i ve  o thers .   Umzimbi t i  was one.   I  jus t  do  no t  have  

the  l i s t  here  bu t  there  were  s i x  o f  them tha t  we negot ia ted  10 

w i th .  

 So what  you are  say ing  Mr  Se leka  tha t  we were  

buy ing  coa l  a t  R 400,00 was ac tua l l y  be t te r  than the  

R 1  039,00 tha t  we had been pay ing  on  the  long- te rm 

cont rac t .   So -  and f i rs t l y.  

 Second ly,  i t  i s  no t  the  same qua l i t y  coa l .   A rnot  

and Hendr ina  do  not  use  the  same qua l i t y  coa l .   So you  

cannot  compare  the  pr ice  tha t  was be ing  pa id  a t  the  

Hendr ina  and the  pr ice  tha t  was be ing  pa id  a t  A rnot .   So 

tha t  i s  a  comple te ly  d i f fe ren t  s to ry.  20 

 And one cannot  say:   Why wou ld  you take  f rom 

Opt imum at  th is  much and then take  i t . . .   So  each power  

s ta t ion  has in  t e rms o f  i t s  –  the  way i t  was bu i l t ,  the  

spec i f i ca t ions,  as  spec i f i ca t ions about  the  qua l i t y  o f  coa l  

tha t  i t  takes and i t  i s  the  qua l i t y  o f  coa l  tha t  de termines the  
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p r i ce .    

 But  even a t  A rnot ,  R  1  039,00 per  ton  o f  coa l  

was ove r  the  top  and tha t  i s  what  we had been pay ing  on  a  

cont rac t  tha t  te rm inated.   Desp i te  our  hardsh ip  we 

cont inued to  pay  i t  un t i l  the  cont rac t  came to  an  end and  

when i t  d id ,  we got  s ix  BEE supp l i e rs  to  supp ly  us  a t  about  

ha l f  o f  what  we were  ge t t ing  the  coa l  a t .  

 And d id  no t . . .  o r  agree w i th  Exxaro .   They a l so  

used a l l  sor ts  o f  negot ia t ions. . .  to  ge t  us  to  R 1  300,00  

wh ich  we res is ted .   So i t  i s  someth ing  tha t  was happen ing  10 

as  I  was –  jus t  be fore  I  went  to  hosp i ta l  and when  I  woke  

up there  –  I  came back in  January,  I  found out  tha t  they 

had s ix  cont rac to rs  tha t  were  supp ly ing .  

 I  was not  par t  o f  the  ac tua l  mechan ics  o f  pu t t ing  

those s i x  together  and the  agree ing  to  the  pr i ce  and  

dec id ing  who they were .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Bu t  I  am qu i te  aware  o f  what  was  

happen ing  to  the  coa l  supp ly  cont rac t  a t  A rnot .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   Two  th ings.   One is ,  on  the  20 

qua l i t y  o f  coa l .   I  thought  you were  te l l ing  the  Cha i rpe rson  

tha t  th is  coa l  was be ing  obta ined  f rom OCM.   OCM which 

was supp ly ing  to  Hendr ina  Power  S ta t ion  and now Tegeta 

tak ing  tha t  coa l  f rom OCM and supp ly ing  i t  to  Arnot .   So 

the  qua l i t y  was the  same . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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MR MOLEFE:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    . . . inso far  as  t he  coa l  f rom a  par t i cu la r  

m ine.   I t  d id  no t  come f rom another  m ine.   I t  came f rom 

OCM.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    Bu t  Mr  Se leka,  i f  you  remember  tha t  OCM 

was expor t ing  coa l  f rom the  Opt imum Mine,  the  coa l  tha t  

was be ing  expor ted  was a  d i f fe ren t  qua l i t y  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  10 

MR MOLEFE:    . . . to  the  coa l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    [ Ind is t inc t ]   

MR MOLEFE:    Come aga in?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Address the  Cha i rperson.  

MR MOLEFE:    Oh.   The coa l  tha t  was be ing  expor ted ,  was 

o f  a  d i f fe ren t  qua l i t y  to  the  qua l i t y  tha t  was been g iven to  

Eskom.   I t  was f rom the  same mine but  some o f  i t  had  the  

expor t  qua l i t y,  some o f  i t  had no expor t  qua l i t y.    

 Now as I  say,  I  was not  there .   I  was not  –  I  am 

not  in  a  pos i t ion  to  comment  about  the  qua l i t ies  o f  the  20 

coa l .   What  I  am say ing  is  tha t ,  i t  i s  poss ib le  tha t  a  

d i f fe ren t  qua l i t y  coa l  came out  o f  the  Hendr ina  Mine 

because they were  expor t ing .   They had been expor t ing  

un t i l  they  were  s topped by  the  in te rnat iona l  p r i ce  o f  coa l .  

 So.   Ja ,  tha t  i s  –  I  am not  a  geo log is t  o r  a  m in ing  
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eng ineer  o f  coa l ,  coa l  qua l i t y.   I  do  no t  have knowledge on 

coa l  qua l i t y  bu t  tha t  i s  my unders tand ing  o f  what  was  

happen ing .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    And then on the  pr ice .   Wel l ,  jus t  

be fore  I  move on.   The ev idence is  tha t  because the  coa l  a t  

Hendr ina  –  I  mean a t  OCM,  wh ich  was be ing  supp l ied  to  

Hendr ina  cou ld  a lso  be  used a t  A rnot ,  tha t  i s  why they  

were  ab le  to  a lso  source  f rom OCM the coa l  and supp ly  to  

Hendr ina .   To  Arnot ,  I  beg your  pardon.   So tha t  i s  what  we  

see f rom the  ev idence.  10 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  accept  you say ing  you cannot  go  in to  

the  qua l i t ies  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    No,  bu t  a l l  I  am say ing  is  Mr  Se leka .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja?  

MR MOLEFE:    That  the  –  i t  i s  poss ib le  tha t  Hendr ina  had  

d i f fe ren t  qua l i t ies  o f  coa l  because ,  as  we know,  they had  

been expor t ing  h igh  qua l i t y  coa l  f rom the  same mine and  

they were  g iv ing  us  low qua l i t y  coa l  fo r  purposes o f  

burn ing  a t  Hendr ina .   So the  fac t  tha t  they cou ld  ge t  20 

d i f fe ren t  qua l i t y  coa l  f rom there  is  ac tua l l y  no t  a  b ig  

sc ien t i f i c  d iscovery.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  bu t  th is  is  in  December. . .   I  mean,  

th is  i s  in  January  2016.   They had c losed the i r  expor t  in  

May 2015.    
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MR MOLEFE:    They had c losed the i r  expor t  in  May 2015,  

no t  the  m ine.   So they cou ld  s t i l l  ge t  the  coa l .   I  do  no t  

know.   Le t  me say . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    I  was not  there .   I  d id  no t  know.   But  jus t  

f rom th ink ing  about  i t ,  I  mean,  the  fac t  tha t  they were  no t  

expor t ing  does not  mean they cou ld  no t  ge t  the  coa l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    I t  i s  the  qua l i t y  coa l  tha t  they needed .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   The second th ing  on  the  pr ice .   I  10 

mean,  you wou ld  have read the  Par l iamentary  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tee ’s  repor t .   That  you r  f igure  o f  R 1  10 ,00 and 

th i r t y  someth ing  was ac tua l l y  incor rec t  because Dentons 

came to  a  f igure  o f  R 646.00 per  ton .  

MR MOLEFE:    For?    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Exxaro  supp ly ing  coa l  to  Arnot  bu t  the  

f igure  was not  over  one thousand one hundred.  

MR MOLEFE:    Cha i r,  I  unders tand under. . .   I  remember  i t  

as  ac tua l l y  spec i f i ca l l y  R 1  030,00 but  maybe the  

eng ineers  –  the  Pr imary  Energy  peop le  can exp la in  i t .   20 

However,  the  pr inc ip le  i s ,  even i f  i t  was a t  R 630.00 we 

were  ab le  to  ge t  i t  cheaper  f rom the  BEE supp l ie r  tha t  were  

pu t  together  dur ing  December  in . . .  

 I t  may have been s ix  hundred  but  I  cannot  

remember  bu t  somebody l i ke  Mr  Matshe la  Koko wou ld  have  
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a l l  those f igures  a t  h is  f inger t ips  un l i ke  me who was . . .  who 

was f i rs t l y  removed f rom the  Pr imary  Energy issues and in  

fac t  dur ing  tha t  per iod  was not  even a t  Eskom.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  and then ta lk ing  o f  Exxaro .   Exxaro  

prov ided a  submiss ion  to  the  Par l iamentary  Por t fo l io  -  

p rov ided an a f f idav i t  here  in  wh ich  they say tha t  Eskom 

was engag ing  w i th  them in  negot ia t ions  w i th  them to  buy  

another  p iece  o f  land f rom. . .  

 Eskom had sa id  to  them:   Your  cont rac t  a t  A rnot  

exp i res  in  2023.   That  was the  pos i t ion  un t i l  in  December  10 

when Exxaro  says Eskom sudden ly  says your  cont rac t  i s  

coming to  an  end  by  the  end o f  December  2015.  

 So the  impress ion  c rea ted i s  tha t ,  even th is  

Exxaro  l i ke  OCM,  you y ie lded them out  to  c rea te  a  space 

fo r  Tegeta .   Can you comment  on  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:    Cha i r,  they  wanted R 1  300,00.   The  

cont rac t  was com ing to  an  end and  in  fac t  i t  d id  come to  an  

end in  December  2015.   I f  the  cont rac t  was up to  2022,  

they shou ld  have  enforced the i r  r igh ts .   They d id  no t .   The  

cont rac t  came to  an  end.  20 

 And as  fa r  as  I  remember  they wanted  

R 1  300,00.   I t  was unreasonab le .   The fac t  tha t  we cou ld  

ge t  the  coa l  a t  R 400.00 f rom BEE supp l ie rs  a round tha t  

a rea ,  tha t  says a  lo t  about  exac t ly  what  was happen ing  

w i th  Pr imary  Energy a t  Eskom.  
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 Peop le  were  fee l ing  en t i t led  to  have the i r  40-

year  cont rac t  renewed a t  much h igher  p r ices  than what  we  

cou ld  ge t  the  coa l  fo r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Tegeta  was a  cost  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    So  bas ica l l y  you are  say ing  tha t  once  

one accepts  tha t  you cou ld  ge t  coa l  e l sewhere  fo r  much 

less  than what  they wanted,  there  was no spec ia l  reason  

why you shou ld  agree to  a  h igher  p r ice?  

MR MOLEFE:    Exact ly  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  10 

MR MOLEFE:    In  fac t ,  my th ink ing  about  coa l  supp ly  in  

South  A f r i ca  to  Eskom was tha t ,  there  is  400-years  o f  coa l  

in  the  ground.   I f  you  are  a l lowed and gave B lack  Economic  

Empowerment  compan ies ,  smal l  compan ies  the  ass is tance  

to  s ta r t  m in ing  the  coa l  and you have a  lo t  o f  them and you 

crea te  a  pr i ce  tens ion  th rough compet i t ion ,  you  wou ld  

ac tua l l y  reduce Eskom’s  Pr imary  Energy cost .  

 But  buy ing  f rom a  few b ig  wh i te  compan ies  tha t  

fee l  en t i t led  and tha t  cont ro ls  supp ly  jus t  to  squeeze  you is  

no t  sus ta inab le .   And unfor tunate ly,  as  long as  we are  no t  20 

a l low ing the  smal l  BEE compan ies . . .    

 As  the  smal l  m iners  coming and  hav ing  c la ims 

here  and there  and g i v ing  them supp ly  to  Eskom,  you w i l l  

see  the  pr ice  w i l l  come down because everybody wants  to  

do  the  bus iness and they w i l l  g ive  you the  r igh t  p r ice  wh ich  
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i s  why I  was say ing  tha t . . .  

 I  sa id  once and I  was r id i cu led  fo r  th is ,  bu t  what  

we need is  the  b read.   We do not  want  to  own the  bakery.   

So what  Eskom was do ing  is  tha t  fo r  i t  to  ge t  the  bread,  i t  

was bu i ld ing  baker ies  fo r  peop le  t h rough the . . .  

 So they bu i ld  a  bakery  fo r  you and then they we  

w i l l  buy  bread fo r  you.   So I  was  say ing ,  ge t  ou t  o f  the  

bakery.   Le t  these peop le  have the i r  own smal l  baker ies  

and supp ly  Eskom and you w i l l  see  the  pr ice  w i l l  come 

down.  10 

 Th is  i ssue o f  A rnot  demonst ra tes  exact ly  what  

happened when you do now bow down to  the  pressure  o f  –  

o r  the  th rea t  o f  the  bogeyman o f  coa l  supp ly  p rob lems.    

 Unfo r tunate ly,  fo r  them a t  the  t ime. . .   I  mean,  the  

government  had a l ready g iven l i censes.   There  were  qu i te  

a  few BEE compan ies  tha t  a re  opera t ing  tha t  were  

prepared and ava i lab le  to  supp ly  Eskom wi th  coa l  a t  lower  

p r ices  than the  40-year  cont rac t .  I  suspect  the  same th ing  

wou ld  have happened a t  the  Hendr ina  had we run  in to . . .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    As  I  unders tand i t ,  the  coa l  p lus  m ine  20 

does not  p rov ide  coa l  a t  the  sa id  pr ice  pe r  ton .   Ins tead,  

Eskom is  respons ib le  fo r  pay ing  opera t iona l  and  cap i ta l  

cos ts  wh ich  were  b i l led  on  a  mon th ly  bas is  and then the  

m ine is  pa id  a  management  fee  to  opera te  the  m ine.    

 So I  have asked  Exxaro  the  quest ion  regard ing  
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your  p r ice  per  ton  and the  response is :   We do not  know 

how Mr  Mole fe  ar r i ved a t  tha t  p r ice  because tha t  i s  no t  how 

the  pr ice  i s  se t .   Your  response?  

MR MOLEFE:    M is te r. . .   then aga in ,  you jus t  sa id  the  pr i ce  

was R 600,00 . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Sor ry?   No,  Dentons.   I  sa id  tha t  was 

Dentons ’ repor t .  

MR MOLEFE:    They sa id  the  pr i ce  was R 600,00.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Dentons ’ repor t ,  ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    Says the  pr i ce  was  R 600,00 pe r  ton? 10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Dentons ’ repor t ,  no t  Exxaro .  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja .   So where  d id  they ge t  i t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  wou ld  no t  know.  

MR MOLEFE:    Wel l ,  Mr  Se leka . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Because Dentons was appo in ted  by  

Eskom . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    Ja .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    Wel l ,  Mr  Se leka i f  you  take  a  management  

fee  –  we can ca l l  i t  a  management  fee ,  r igh t ,  o f  X  amount  20 

and d iv ide  i t  by  the  tons o f  coa l  tha t  our  supp l ie r  fo r  tha t  

management  fee ,  you come to  the  cost  pe r  ton .   You 

unders tand what  I  mean?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  hear  what  you are  say ing .  

MR MOLEFE:    I f  you  charge a  management  f ee  o f  a  
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thousand rands and you say supp ly  one thousand  tons o f  

coa l ,  i t  i s  one rand per  ton .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja?  

MR MOLEFE:    So  th is  f inanc ia l  gymnast ics  and chang ing  

o f  te rm ino logy and so  on ,  does not  mean anyth ing .   The  

issue is  substance.   The substance was,  they are  be ing  

pa id  fo r  the  coa l  and they are  be ing  pa id  fo r  X  amount  o f  

coa l .   You can ca l cu la te  what  the  cost  pe r  ton  is .    

 The. . .  the  mon ies . . .  fee  or  the  p r ice  or  whatever.   

Which  is  why Dentons ta lks  abou t  R 600,00.   And  in  fac t  10 

Cha i rperson,  as  you w i l l  see ,  even on the . . .   there  i s  i ssue  

o f  va lua t ions.   There  are  no  f ines  to  va lua t ions.   I t  depends  

on. . .  on  a  par t i cu la r  day tha t  they th ink  the  va lue  o f  th is  

th ing  is  so  much.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Tomorrow they have va lue  o f  th is  th ing  and 

tomorrow ca l l  i t  the  management  fee  and then the  next  day  

i t  i s  the  pr ice .   The next  th ing  they g ive  you th is  bo t t le  fo r  

f ree ,  you are  on ly  buy ing  the  l iqu id  ins ide  or  you are  

buy ing  the  l iqu id  and the  bo t t le  i s  fo r  f ree .   I t  i s  exact ly  –  20 

so  peop le  do  a l l  sor ts  o f  mach ina t ions.   However,  when you  

ana lyse  these th ings you must  cu t  ou t  the  f r i l l s  and get  to  

the  hear t .   The hear t  i s  what  were  we pay ing  tha t  t ime,  

even i f  the  th ing  tha t  you are  pay ing  is  management  fee  or  

whatever.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Aga in  on  the  pr ice ,  I  th ink  I  found  

the  pa ragraph I  want  to  read to  you but  what  Exxaro  is  

say ing  the i r  cos t  o f  coa l  inc reased –  I  am say ing  th is  i s  

what  Exxaro  says,  inc rease because o f  Eskom,  Eskom 

fa i l ing  to  ge t  the  o the r  p iece  o f  land and there fore ,  the  

vo lumes o f  coa l  ava i lab le  a t  the  m ine they were  occupy ing  

go ing  down and,  as  a  resu l t ,  increas ing  the  pr ice .   So they 

pu t  the  b lame so le ly  on  Eskom for  the  increase  in  the  

pr ice .   I  found the  parag raph here ,  they says:  

“Exxaro  ca l cu la ted  the  cost  o f  coa l  i t  supp l ied  to  be  10 

783 per  ton  when  the  CSA was te rm inated in  2015.   

A cost  p lus  m ine un l i ke  commerc ia l  does not  

p rov ide  coa l  a t  the  sa id  pr ice  pe r  ton . ”  

Which  is  what  I  had in  m ind but  …[ in tervenes]  

MR MOLEFE:    So  i t  went  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  am say ing  i t  was you who was  a t  fau l t .  

MR MOLEFE:    Was i t  me who was  a t  fau l t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Not  you persona l ly.  

MR MOLEFE:    Oh.   They had inc reased f rom 600,  700 and 

someth ing .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay,  there  is  a  d is t inc t ion .   Exxaro  has 

made tha t  ca lcu la t ion  i t se l f  so  the  f igure  I  read to  you is  

Exxaro ’s  f igu re .   686 i s  what  Dentons found in  the i r  repor t  

o r  invest iga t ion  to  be  the  pr i ce  per  ton  in  Apr i l  2015,  

Exxaro ’s  p r ice  in  Apr i l  2015.  
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MR MOLEFE:    I s  tha t  what  Eskom was pay ing?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  i s  what  Dentons ’ repor t  says.  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja ,  Cha i rperson,  j us t  to  te l l  you  about  p r ice  

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Bu t  sor ry,  Cha i r  –  Mr  Mole fe ,  so r ry,  bu t  

I  th ink  inco rpo ra t ing  your  answer  the  quest ion  wh ich  

Exxaro  says,  Exxaro  s tays  do  not  look  a t  th is  p r ice  in  

i so la t ion ,  look  a t  the  pr ice  based  on ou r  in te rac t ion  w i th  

Eskom which  was  re fus ing  to  acqu i re  another  p iece  o f  land  

ad jacent  to  the  m ine and,  as  a  resu l t ,  the  vo lumes were  10 

go ing  down in  the  m ine we occup ied  thereby resu l t ing  in  

h igher  p r ices .   So address i t  in  tha t  contex t  and not  in  

i so la t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Be fore  he  addresses tha t ,  wha t  i s  the  

who le  po in t  about  those f igures  and the  pr ice  when we 

were  d i scuss ing  the  pr i ce  in  t he  contex t  o f  OCM and  

Eskom.   I  unders tood the  contex t  because o f  what  

G lencore ,  Mr  Ephron sa id  in  h i s  s ta tement  and h is  a f f idav i t  

somet ime back.  

ADV SELEKA SC :   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  the  pr ice  w i th  regard  to  Exxaro ,  what  

i s  the  po in t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The way we came to  th is ,  Cha i r,  i s  what  

I  had put  to  Mr  Mole fe  as  the  impress ion  conveyed f rom 

Exxaro ’s  pos i t ion  wh ich  is  tha t ,  Exxaro  u l t imate ly  ge ts  
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e lbowed out  in  o rder  to  c rea te  a  pos i t ion  fo r  Tegeta .   So i t  

i s  a  fu r ther  s tep  on  the  OCM pr ice  as  such.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Exxaro  be ing  e lbowed out  a l lowed 

Tegeta  in  the  con tex t  o f  the  OCM t ransact ion  or  separa te l y  

i s  another  i ssue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  i s  connected  w i th  OCM u l t imate ly  in  

the  sense tha t  Tegeta  then gets  the  coa l  f rom OCM to  

supp ly  the  Arnot  power  s ta t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So th is  i s  the  p ic tu re ,  Cha i r.   You have 10 

OCM on the  one hand wh ich  accord ing  to  the  fac ts  Eskom 

is  unwi l l ing  to  inc rease the  pr ice .  

CHAIRPERSON :    To  accommodate ,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja ,  to  accommodate .   The same 

s i tua t ion  seems to  p lay  i t se l f  ou t  w i th  Exxaro  bu t  a t  a  

d i f fe ren t  m ine,  the  Arnot  power  s ta t ion  bu t  in  respect  o f  

bo th ,  Tegeta  is  the  common fac to r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Tegeta  u l t imate ly  comes in to  the  p ic tu re  

to  rep lace OCM and to  rep lace Exxaro .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    R igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And supp ly  –  and to  supp ly  the  two 

mines.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja  and how does  the  Exxaro  happens?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The rep lacement  o f  Exxaro?  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  I  do  no t  remember  tha t  Mr  [ ind is t inc t ]  

06 .03  had dea l t  w i th  tha t ,  maybe  he d id ,  i t  i s  qu i te  some 

t ime back.   How is  i t  a l leged tha t  happened?  How does i t  

come to  the  propos i t ion  I  guess tha t  they were  be ing  

e lbowed out?   They wanted a  pr i ce  increase as  we l l ?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Exxaro  is  a  d i f fe ren t  en t i t y,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  I  accept  tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   They –  no ,  the i r  case is  no t  tha t  

they wanted a  p r ice  increase,  Mr  Mole fe ,  the i r  pos i t ion  is  

we wanted Eskom to  acqu i re  ano ther  p iece  o f  land where 10 

we can mine,  con t inue to  m ine because the  vo lumes  o f  the  

m ine tha t  we then cur ren t ly  occup ied  were  go ing  down,  the  

vo lumes o f  coa l .   As  the  vo lumes o f  coa l  go  down,  the  

pr ice  goes up.   So p lease acqu i re  the  land because th is  

comes way back when you look a t  Exxaro ’s  a f f idav i t .   

Acqu i re  the  land so  we can keep supp ly ing  you the  

vo lumes tha t  you want .   Eskom then took a  d i f fe ren t  

pos i t ion .   F i rs t l y  they sa id  your  cont rac t ,  accord ing  to  

Exxaro ,  you r  cont rac t  w i l l  exp i re  in  2023.   However,  in  

December  2015 Eskom sa id  no ,  your  cont rac t  i s  coming to  20 

an  end by  the  end o f  December  because,  acco rd ing  to  

Eskom,  we cou ld  no t  agree and Mr  Mole fe  w i l l  te l l  you ,  he  

says the  pr ice  bu t  f rom my read ing  is  tha t  they cou ld  no t  

agree on the  acqu is i t ion  o f  anothe r  p iece  o f  land.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   As  a  resu l t ,  Exxaro  is  ou t  by  the  end o f  

December,  there  is  a  gap,  then …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  they are  ou t  because the i r  cont rac t  

came to  an  end.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   They a re  ou t  because the  cont rac t  

wh ich  Eskom – bear  in  m ind tha t ,  Cha i r,  wh ich  Eskom had 

sa id  w i l l  come to  an  end 2023.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  bu t  when was i t  go ing  to  come to  an  

end in  te rms o f  the  cont rac t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  was go ing  to  exp i re  the  31  December  10 

2015.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Bu t  they were  i n  negot ia t ions  to  have i t  

ex tended.   Mr  Mo le fe?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes bu t  i f  there  was no agreement  about  

the  ex tend ing  i t  wou ld  exp i re .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  then they were  no t i f ied  i t  w i l l  

exp i re .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  they d id  no t  reach an agreement ,  20 

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Bu t  I  am jus t  convey ing  to  Mr  Mole fe  

tha t  tha t  i s  the  vers ion  tha t  Exxaro  pu ts  fo rward  

…[ in tervenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  why –  what  i s  the i r  po in t?   A re  they 

say ing  tha t  Eskom t rea ted  them unfa i r l y  in  o rde r  to  make  

space fo r  Tegeta  and i f  so ,  in  what  way?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   They t race  i t  back to  the  t ime before  

2015 where  the  par t ies  are  d iscuss ing  to  acqu i re  another  

p iece  o f  land.   I  unders tand tha t  they were  supp ly ing  coa l  

by  conveyor  be l t  to  Arnot  power  s ta t ion .   When the  cont rac t  

te rm inated,  Cha i r,  Tegeta  had to  source  the  coa l  by  road 

t ranspor t .   So they a l lude to  tha t ,  tha t  Eskom fa i led  to  

negot ia te  proper l y  w i th  us .   Ins tead i t  was w i l l i ng  to  go  to  a 10 

company l i ke  Tegeta  wh ich  was supp ly ing  coa l  in  a  

d i f fe ren t  way as  opposed to  conven ien t ly  by  conveyor  be l t .   

I  th ink  the  who le  th ing  res ts ,  i f  you  read the  a f f idav i t ,  on  

the  fac t  tha t  there  was no reasonab le  accommodat ion  o f  

Exxaro  in  te rms o f  the  negot ia t ions  to  ex ten t  the i r  

agreement  beyond December  2015 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  mean,  we have the  OCM pos i t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We know what  they say because they 

have –  i t  there  f rom –  pu t  up  in  a ff idav i t s  and tes t i f ied .   Mr  20 

Mole fe  says in  e f fec t  I  am br ing ing  to  the  proposa l  to  

increase the  pr ice  o f  [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo i ce ]  OCM was  

not  in  the  in te res t  o f  Eskom and in  any event  i f  OCM 

thought  tha t  Eskom was be ing  ha rsh  on them in  i ns i s t ing  

on  tha t  cont rac tua l  p r i ce  the  ag reement  had a  way tha t  
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wou ld  have g i ven them re l ie f  f rom tha t  harshness ,  tha t  i s  

invok ing  the  [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  c lause,  go ing  to  

a rb i t ra t ion  and i f  they  won the  arb i t ra t ion  then they wou ld  

ge t  re l ie f .   They chose not  to  pursue arb i t ra t ion  to  i t s  f ina l  

end or  they d id  no t  fo r  whatever  reason but  I  th ink  he  

imp l ies  the  fac t  tha t  they d id  no t  go  up  –  pu rsue i t  up  to  

the  end,  tha t  i s  a rb i t ra t ion ,  was not  Eskom’s  fau l t ,  

whatever  reason there  m ight  be .   So I  am not  sure  to  what  

ex ten t  OCM responds e f fec t i ve l y  to  tha t  l ine  o f  a rgument .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Now Exxaro  says they wanted Eskom to  

acqu i re  some land so  tha t  they wou ld  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Increase the  va lues.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes and they had negot ia t ions  and  

negot ia t ions  d id  no t  p roduce the  des i red  resu l ts  and the i r  

cont rac t  was com ing to  an  end.   Now i t  may be tha t  there  

is  some po in t  bu t  I  am jus t  say ing  I  am not  sure .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  –  bu t  in te rvened when he was about  

to  respond.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  me a l low h im  to  respond.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja ,  I  have not  gone in to  the  de ta i l s  o f  i t  

bu t ,  Mr  Mole fe ,  you can respond  –  yes,  in  the  contex t  o f  

them say ing  do  not  look  a t  the  pr ice  in  i so la t ion  look a t  i t  
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in  the  contex t  o f  Eskom’s  de lay  i n  acqu i r ing  the  p iece o f  

land then we can move on.  

MR MOLEFE:    My unders tand ing  was,  as  the  cont rac t  was 

coming to  an  end,  Exxaro ,  the i r  p r ice  demand was 1  300  

and in  add i t ion  they wanted us  to  buy land to  g ive  to  them.   

That  was a  demand.   They are  demand ing tha t  we shou ld  

buy land and g ive  i t  to  them.  

CHAIRPERSON :    As  a  c l ien t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   As  a  cost  p lus  m ine.  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja ,  ja ,  must  buy land and g i ve  i t  to  them,  10 

wh ich  is  what  I  was uncomfor tab le  w i th  espec ia l l y  in  the 

contex t  o f  land red is t r i bu t ion  and  so  on ,  why do you buy 

land and g ive  i t  to  these guys?  Now the  spec i f i c  p r ice ,  

there  is  no  pr i ce  un less  there  is  a  w i l l i ng  buyer  and a 

w i l l i ng  se l le r.   So you cannot  say  tha t  the  pr ice  was th is  

much i f  they  had  done th is  and th is  and tha t  when nobody  

was p repared to  pay tha t  p r ice .   The fac t  tha t  somebody 

has demanded a  pr ice  does not  mean there  is  a   p r ice ,  

there  is  no  p r ice .   The pr i ce  ex is t s  when there  is  a  w i l l i ng  

buyer,  w i l l i ng  se l le r.   An ind ica t ion  o f  the  market  p r ice  a t  20 

tha t  t ime fo r  the coa l  tha t  was go ing  to  Arnot  was in  fac t  

the  ag reement  tha t  we had reached w i th  the  s i x  smal l  

supp l ie rs  wh ich  was in  the  400,  a round 400.   So tha t  was –  

they were  w i l l i ng  to  supp ly  us  a t  400,  we were  w i l l i ng  to  

pay 400.   They were  no t  mak ing  demands to  be  g i ven land 
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and 1  300.   Why  d id  we have to  agree to  the i r  demands?  

Why d id  we have to  renew tha t  agreement?   I f  we had 

renewed tha t  ag reement  –  and unfor tunate l y  I  was i l l -

d isposed and was not  in  a  pos i t ion  to  –  bu t  i f  we had 

renewed tha t  agreement  and bought  them land and pa id  

1  300 a  ton  when we cou ld  buy  coa l  a t  400 f rom BEE 

supp l ie rs ,  I  wou ld  s t i l l  be  s i t t ing  here ,  except  tha t  these  

wou ld  be  cr im ina l  p roceed ings.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja ,  except  a lso  tha t  the  1  100 is  no t  

common cause.  10 

MR MOLEFE:    Wel l ,  bu t  the  600  –  we can take  the  600,  

even tha t  600 i t  i s  s t i l l  h igher  than –  the  po in t  tha t  I  am 

mak ing  is  tha t  the  pr ice  was h igher  than what  we cou ld  ge t  

the  coa l  fo r.   So,  I  mean,  the  600,  the  700,  the re  i s  1  100  

and I  am say ing  tha t  they wanted 1  300.   A l l  o f  those 

th ings are  no t  acceptab le .   Even i f  i t  was 500 i t  wou ld  no t  

be  acceptab le  because you can get  the  coa l  a t  400 or  a t  

450.   I f  you  can get  the  coa l  a t  450 why buy i t  a t  500 jus t  

because i t  i s  Exxaro?  There  is  a  man in  Newcast le  who  

asked Mr  Ce le  the  day [ ind is t inc t  –  A f r i can language]  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Can we go back to  the  mat te r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  yes  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I f  we …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  the  po in t  i s  how fa r  do  you want  to  

take  th is  i ssue?  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   No,  I  want  to  go  back to  OCM,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .   Le t  us  go  back to  OCM par t i cu la r l y  

on  the  po in t  the  Cha i rperson was ra is ing ,  tha t  the  hardsh ip  

c lause was not  pursued because we know –  you w i l l  reca l l  

the  meet ing  o f  the  3  December  has the  par t ies  aga in  

agree ing  to  supp ly,  the  pa r t ies  aga in  agree to  supp ly.   So 

a f te r  the  te rm inat ion ,  wh ich  i s  in  June,  there  is  a  

resusc i ta t ion  o f  the  hardsh ip  app l i ca t ion  bu t  in  Sep tember 

the  pa r t ies  meet  and there  i s  an  agreement  fo r  OCM to  10 

supp ly  coa l  w i th  in te r im ar rangements .   Do you reca l l  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  there  was –  as  I  sa id  ear l ie r,  they  

agreed to  cont inue supp ly ing  a t  150.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   And then …[ in tervenes]  

MR MOLEFE:    So ,  I  mean,  they chose not  to  pursue  

arb i t ra t ion  and ins tead they agreed to  cont inue supp ly ing  

a t  150,  we d id  no t  have a  prob lem wi th  tha t  because  we d id  

no t  have a  prob lem wi th  them,  we had a  prob lem wi th  the  

pr ice .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  20 

MR MOLEFE:    So  150 is  w i l l i ng  buyer  as  fa r  as  we were  

concerned because 150 is  what  was cont rac ted .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  in  te rms o f  the  cont rac t .  

MR MOLEFE:    We were  ob l iged to  take  the  coa l  a t  150.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   150,  154 the  …[ in tervenes]  
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MR MOLEFE:    154,  ja .   When you  are  ta l k ing  thousands o f  

tons I  mean R4 is  a… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Then the  te rm inat ion  o f  the  coopera t ion  

agreement  in  June is  fo l lowed by  the  le t te r  o f  demand fo r  

pena l t ies ,  Mr  Mole fe ,  2015.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The pena l t ies  f o r  R2.17 b i l l i on .  

MR MOLEFE:    The pena l t ies  fo r?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Pena l t ies  f o r  R2.17 b i l l i on  aga ins t  

OCM.  10 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Now we have gone ex tens ive ly  o r  

a t  leas t  to  some exten t  in to  tha t  ev idence in  regard  to  how 

the  pena l ty  o f  2 .17  u l t imate ly  ge ts  reduced in to  an  amount  

o f  255 mi l l ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You are  ta lk ing  about  the  se t t lement  now 

wi th  Tegeta?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The se t t lement  w i th  OCM,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wi th  OCM under  Tegeta .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   OCM under  Tegeta .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    Who reached th is  th ing?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  am ask ing  you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  the  quest ion  is  you remember  tha t  

amount  o f  pena l t ies  tha t  was demanded f rom OCM when 
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OCM was under  G lencoe wh ich  was R2,  someth ing  b i l l i on .  

MR MOLEFE:    2 .17  b i l l i on .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    When OCM was under  G lencore ,  tha t  

c la im o f  Eskom was se t t led  a t  a  much lower  amount  namely  

R200 and someth ing  mi l l ion ,  so  the  quest ion  is  do  you  

remember  tha t  and I  th ink  the re  w i l l  be  a  fo l low-up  

quest ion .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   Cha i rperson,  tha t  2 .17  b i l l i on  had  10 

been outs tand ing  s ince  2013,  long befo re  I  a r r i ved.   That  

2 .17  b i l l i on  was not  a  f igment  o f  my imag ina t ion ,  i t  i s  a  

person who came here ,  jus t  cannot  remember  h is  name,  

who tes t i f ied  tha t  he  ac tua l l y  ca lcu la ted  the  2 .17  b i l l i on,  i t  

was cor rec t ,  and f rom wherever  i t  was ca lcu la ted  in  Eskom 

i t  was brought  to  me as a  leg i t imate  c la im tha t  Eskom had.   

My job  as  a  CEO was to  ensure  tha t  money tha t  i s  be ing  

owed to  Eskom is  co l lec ted .   That  i s  why I  gave  

ins t ruc t ions tha t  i f  needs be,  we must  i ssue summons  

before  the  mat te r  p rescr ibes,  be fore  the  2 .17  b i l l i on 20 

prescr ibes.   In  fac t ,  the  2 .17  b i l l i on  was accumula ted ,  i f  I  

am not  wrong,  wh i le  Mr  Ramaphosa was Cha i rperson o f  the  

OCM.   So i t  was under  h i s  Cha i rmansh ip  tha t  the  2 .17  

b i l l i on  became due and not  co l lec ted .   Befo re  I  a r r i ved a t  

Eskom there  was  not  e f fo r t  to  co l lec t  the  2 .17  b i l l i on ,  i t  i s  
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on ly  when I  was  there  tha t  I  sa id  bu t  why are  we not  

co l lec t ing  what  i s  due to  us  and I  even sa id  how can we go  

to  Soweto  and s tar t  co l lec t ing  deb t  when we cannot  co l lec t  

f rom OCM debts  tha t  was accumula ted  eve when Mr  

Ramaphosa was Cha i rman.   So tha t  was the  2 .17  b i l l i on ,  

when I  le f t  Eskom in  2016,  tha t  2 .17  b i l l i on  was s t i l l  

ou ts tand ing .    

 Subsequent  to  my depar tu re ,  I  was not  par t  o f  th is ,  

I  was not  the re ,  I  am to ld  the  new owners ,  Tegeta ,  invoked  

the  arb i t ra t ion  c lause and the  mat te r  went  to  a rb i t ra t ion .   10 

Guess who was lead ing  Eskom’s  negot ia t ing  team dur ing  

the  arb i t ra t ion?  Ms Suzanne Dan ie ls .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  be fore  you proceed,  you have 

l inked the  fa i lu re  by  Eskom to  c la im th is  R2,17  b i l l i on  

based on pena l t ies  f rom OCM,  you have l inked i t  to  Mr  

Ramaphosa hav ing  been Cha i rman o f  OCM.   Are  you jus t  – 

a re  you mak ing  a  connect ion?   

MR MOLEFE:    No …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    A re  you suggest ing  he  d id  anyth ing  to  

make sure  i t  was not  c la imed or  what  i s  the  po in t?  20 

MR MOLEFE:    I t  i s  jus t  a  co inc idence,  Cha i rperson,  

perhaps.  

CHAIRPERSON :    A co inc idence,  okay.   I  jus t  want  to  make  

sure  we know what  you a re  say ing .  

MR MOLEFE:    That  wh i le  he  was Cha i rperson.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    The c la im o f  2 .17  b i l l i on  arose and then  

there  was an agreement .   In  my op in ion ,  a  dub ious 

agreement  because,  l i ke  I  sa id ,  I  was quest ion ing  the  

au thor i t y  o f  the  person who s igned the  ag reement ,  an  

agreement  tha t  I  am to ld  had never  served before  the  

board  p r io r  to  my  ar r i va l ,  p r io r  to  tha t  meet ing  o f  Apr i l .   So ,  

Cha i rperson,  perhaps maybe I  am be ing  parano id  in  l ink ing  

a l l  o f  these th ings up ,  in  l ink ing  a l l  o f  these th ings up ,  bu t  

there  was a  2 .17  b i l l i on  fo r  wh ich  I  was persecuted fo r  10 

t ry ing  to  co l lec t .   Subsequent  to  tha t ,  a f te r  I  had le f t ,  there  

i s  a  hardsh ip  c lause and arb i t ra t ion  tha t  ge ts  ac t i va ted  by  

the  new owners .   Perhaps even when Opt imum had 

fo l lowed th rough  on the  arb i t ra t i on ,  m ight  have ended a t  

200 mi l l ion ,  l i ke  i t  ac tua l l y  ended  up be ing  but  I  was not  

there  when the  200 mi l l ion  was negot ia ted ,  I  do  no t  know i f  

I  had led  the  negot ia t ions .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  had you le f t  Eskom or  i s  i t  jus t  tha t  

you were  no t  pa r t  o f  the  negot ia t ions  bu t  you were  s t i l l  

…[ in te rvenes]  20 

MR MOLEFE:    I  had le f t  Eskom.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You had le f t  Eskom.  

MR MOLEFE:    What  year  was i t  se t t led?  2017? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    I  le f t  Eskom December  2016.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    So  when I  le f t  wha t  was due to  Eskom was 

s t i l l  2 .17  b i l l i on .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  unders tand you to  be  say ing  w i th  

regard  to  your  i ns t ruc t ion  tha t  Eskom at to rneys  shou ld  

demand payment  f rom OCM.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    O f  tha t  R2.17 b i l l i on .   I  unders tand to  be 

say ing  you were  to ld  by  peop le  w i th in  Eskom tha t  Eskom 

was owed R2,17 b i l l i on  in  pena l t ies  by  OCM.  10 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And the  peop le  who to ld  you are  the  

peop le  who wou ld  have made ca lcu la t ions.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    As  to  who tha t  amount  was made up.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes and they even gave ev idence he re .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    And showed –  I  was watch ing ,  I  d id  no t  

even unders tand the  ca lcu la t ions,  they had  deta i led  

showing o f  how they ca l cu la ted  the  2 .17  b i l l i on .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .   So the  po in t  you are  mak ing  is  

you unders tood the  c la im to  be  leg i t imate .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And you unders tood your  job  as  Ch ie f  

Execut ive  Off i cer  o f  Eskom to  be  to  make sure  tha t  tha t  
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amount ,  tha t  c la im d id  no t  p rescr ibe  and tha t  you  shou ld  

recover  whatever  was owed to  Eskom by OCM.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  i f  somebody  says tha t  c la im was not  

p roper ly  –  the  amount  was not  p roper l y  o r  cor rec t l y  a r r i ved  

a t ,  you cannot  a rgue about  tha t  because you were  no t  

invo l ved in  how i t  was made up,  i s  tha t  what  you are  

say ing?  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  I  wou ld  say tha t  as  fa r  as  I  am 

concerned i t  was cor rec t  because the  Pr imary  Energy 10 

peop le  sa id  i t  was cor rec t .   They even gave ev idence here  

under  oa th  to  say tha t  i t  was cor rec t .   I  am not  in  a  

pos i t ion  to  d ispute  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes  No,  what  I  am say ing  is ,  to  say i t  i s  

cor rec t  you re ly  on  what  they …[ in tervenes]  

MR MOLEFE:    What  they sa id ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Not  tha t  you cou ld  yourse l f  work  i t  

ou t .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

MR MOLEFE:    No,  I  was not  in  a  pos i t ion  to  work  ou t  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    You were  no t  qua l i f ied  to  do  tha t .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay,  Mr  Se leka?  
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MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   But  a lso ,  Cha i rman,  ge ts  even more  

in te res t ing .   Mr  Koko has la id  a  compla in t  w i th  the  Pub l ic  

Pro tec tor  tha t  the re  is  1 .7  b i l l i on  in  pena l t ies  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  you has or  had?  

MR MOLEFE:    Has.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Has recent ly.  

MR MOLEFE:    I  am not  sure  where  the  compla in t  i s  now.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    Bu t  he  has la id  a  compla in t  there ,  as  fa r  as  

I  know he has l a id  a  compla in t  to  the  Pub l i c  Pro tec tor  to  10 

say tha t  there  is  R1.7  b i l l i on  o f  pena l t ies  due by  Opt imum 

tha t  has p resc r ibed and tha t  were  never  co l lec ted  f rom tha t  

per iod  o f  2012 -2016.   There  is  another  –  the  1 .7  b i l l i on  

can never  be  recovered because i t  p rescr ibed and so  he  is  

ask ing  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  to  invest iga te  who was  

respons ib le  fo r  co l lec t ing  tha t  debt  and why d id  t hey no t  

co l lec t  i t?   I  am surp r ised i t  has  no t  been h i s  ev idence  

here  up  to  now but  tha t  i s  what  I  was made to  unders tand  

by  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Se leka .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Be fore  your  coming there ,  Mr  Mole fe ,  

there  were  a t  leas t  two op in ions  presented by  CDH to  

Eskom.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   One is  an  op in ion  o f  23  October  2013.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    CDH aga in  i s?   Jus t  ind i ca te  who they  

are?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   C l i f fe  Dekker  Hofmeyr  a t to rneys,  thank  

you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   They gave an op in ion  the  23  October  

2013 and the  second op in ion  was on the  17  March 2015.   

That  i s  a  month  jus t  be fore  you came there .   And then the  

th i rd  one was on  the  2  December  2016.   I  th ink  you were 

s t i l l  a t  Eskom tha t  t ime.   10 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   A l l  I  am ask ing  you is  were  you 

not  aware  o f  these op in ions wh ich  ra ised concerns about  

the  mer i t s  o f  the  c la im.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Then maybe what  you shou ld  do ,  Mr  

Se leka,  i s  to  take  us  to  each one and say th is  one had th is  

to  say about  th is  c la im,  obv ious l y  jus t  g ive  the  impor tan t  

th ings and i f  they  ra ised concerns about  the  va l id i t y  o f  the 

who le  c la im or  whatever,  you put  tha t  to  h im.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    And you can re fe r  h im to  the  11 t h  page o f  

your  op in ions and he can comment  i f  he  is  ab le  to  i n  te rms 

o f  whethe r  he  was aware  o f  them or  he  had . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  

word  cu t  o f f ]  bu t  he  has a l ready sa id  –  he  has a l ready sa id  

in  te rms o f  how the  c la im o r  the  amount  was ca l cu la ted  he  
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wasn ’ t  qua l i f ied  to  dea l  w i th  tha t  bu t  he  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . there  are  peop le  a t  Eskom who were  

dea l ing  w i th  tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     He re l ied  on  tha t .  

MR MOLEFE:    Bu t  even befo re  we go there  CDH issued  

summons . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink ,  I  th ink ,  I  th ink  the  po in t  Mr  

Mole fe  wou ld  be  i f  they  ra ised concerns,  i t  depends what  

the  concerns a re  and so  on  and so  on  but  a t to rneys and 10 

lawyers  adv i se  and the  c l ien t  can s t i l l  say,  go  ahead,  

a l though you adv ised me aga ins t  i t  bu t  do  i t ,  you  know,  and  

then they car ry  ou t  ins t ruc t ion ,  desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  they  

may have adv ised you not  to  p roceed,  i t  depends on a  

number  o f  th ings.   They might  say,  chances o f  w inn ing  a re  

no t  good,  bu t  you  say,  le t ’s  take  ou r  chances okay,  so .  

MR MOLEFE:    In  the  in te res t  o f  Eskom.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  don ’ t  know about  in  the  in te res t  o f  

Eskom but  tha t ’s  how lawyers  work ,  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Eskom bund le  14 ,  r igh t ,  le t ’s  see,  20 

page 891.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’m keep ing  two  lever  a rch  f i les  here ,  Mr  

Se leka and I  don ’ t  have much space,  I ’ ve  go t  18A and 

17…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     [ Ind is t inc t  2 .05 ] .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    A l l  o f  them? 

ADV SELEKA SC:     I  th ink  remove a l l  o f  them because 

th is  exerc ise  is  bound to  take  a  wh i le ,  we ’ l l  s t i ck  to  th is  

f i le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Were  you invo lved in  g i v ing  ins t ruc t ions 

to  CDH about  the  c la im,  wh i le  you were  there?  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  i t  was in  fac t ,  lega l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    The person who wou ld  have been invo lved,  

as  fa r  as  I  know,  wou ld  have been Ms Suzanne Dan ie ls  10 

and/or  the  lega l  team.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  d id  they,  a t  any s tage,  tha t  i s  the 

lega l  depar tment ,  come to  you wh i le  CDH was dea l i ng  w i th  

the  mat te r,  come to  you and ind i ca te  what  cha l lenges or  

adv ices CDH may  have ra ised and  w i th  a  v iew to  ge t t ing  –  

br ie f ing  you on whether  to  pursue i t  o r  no t  to  pursue  i t? 

MR MOLEFE:    Not  tha t  I  can remember.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You can ’ t  remember  them do ing  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:    I  don ’ t  remember  anyone a t  Eskom say ing  

to  me tha t  you cannot  o r  shou ld  no t  pursue the  R2.1b i l l i on  20 

c la im.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Apar t  f rom the  peop le  a t  Eskom who,  you 

say,  b rought  the  c la im to  your  a t ten t ion  and maybe to ld  you 

how i t  was made  up,  the  amount ,  apar t  f rom those  peop le  

d id  you,  thereaf te r  a t  any s tage get  consu l ted  by  anybody,  
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whethe r  f rom wi th in  Eskom o r  CDH peop le ,  to  d iscuss the  

mer i t s  o f  pu rsu ing  the  c la im o r  no t  aga ins t  OCM?  

MR MOLEFE:    Cha i r,  when we sa id  we ’ re  i ssu ing  summons  

and they agreed to  i ssue summons…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  th is  CDH? 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  summons had to  be  accompanied by  

par t i cu la rs  o f  c la im.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    I  wou ld  have imag ined tha t  those 

par t i cu la rs  o f  c la im wou ld  have se t  ou t  our  case succ inc t l y  10 

in  a  manner  tha t ,  as  fa r  –  w i th  the  i n fo rmat ion  tha t  we have 

in  ou r  hands,  wou ld  make us  w in  the  case.   Now,  I ’m  not  

aware  tha t  there  was a  –  the i r  rep ly  to  the  summons.  I ’m 

not  aware  tha t  the  op t imum of fe red  an a l te rna t ive  v iew 

fo rmal ly  in  the  …[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  response to  the  c la im,  in  response to  

the  summons.  

MR MOLEFE:    In  response to  the  summons,  wh ich  is  what  

was supposed to  happen.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  20 

MR MOLEFE:    Which  i s  what  –  t he i r  response wou ld  have  

been the  bas i s  o f  the  argument .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  remember,  my quest i on  was,  

i r respect ive  wha t  OCM may or  may not  have  sa id  in  

response,  the  quest ion  was whether  you were  ever  
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invo l ved in  a  d iscuss ion  whether  w i th  peop le  w i th in  Eskom 

or  w i th  peop le  f rom CDH where  the  mer i t s  o f  the  c la im –  o f  

pursu ing  the  c la im in  te rms o f  l i t iga t ion  were  d iscussed to  

say,  do  we have a  s t rong case,  how is  ou r  case?  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja ,  as  fa r  as  I  remember  Cha i r,  I  mean,  I  

can ’ t  –  i t ’s  a  long t ime ago,  I  can ’ t  reca l l  the  spec i f i c  –  i f  

there  was,  spec i f i ca l l y  d iscuss ions  l i ke  tha t  bu t  what  I  do  

reca l l  i s  tha t  the  fee l ing ,  cer ta in l y  f rom the  Pr imary  Energy  

peop le  and f rom the  lega l  peop le ,  was tha t  th is  was a  

leg i t imate  c la im and,  in  fac t ,  I  was qu i te  happy to  say tha t  10 

–  to  render  my suppor t  th rough the  process o f  –  because I  

was not  go ing  to  l i t i ga te  myse l f ,  to  render  my suppor t  

th rough the  process o f  the  l i t iga t ion  i f  tha t  i s  a  leg i t imate 

c la im.   I t  i s  what  an  Account ing  O ff i cer  i s  expected  to  do,  

and my fee l ing  was,  i f  there  are  any –  i f  i t  i s  no t  cor rec t  

then OCM wi l l  say  so  in  the  process and tha t  we w i l l  lose  

the  case but  the  impress ion  tha t  I  had a t  the  t ime was tha t ,  

i f  we pursued th is  in  Cour t ,  we wou ld  no t  lose  the  case  

because the  R2.1b i l l i on  c la im was leg i t imate .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  Mr  Se leka? 20 

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  we l l  you see the  lawyers ,  Mr  

Mole fe ,  were  invo lved and s teeped in  the  mat te r,  so  the  

f i rs t  op in ion  –  the  re ference to  the  f i rs t  op in ion ,  you see is  

in  the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  R ishaban Mood ley  o f  CDH.  

MR MOLEFE:    Oh R ishaban Mood ley?  
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ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Page 891.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Eskom Bund le  14  C.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     And there  he  re fers  to  –  on  paragraph  

22,  he  re fe rs  to  the  op in ion  g iven,  so  he  says,  

“Dur ing  October  2013,  CDH prov ided the  lega l  

op in ion  to  Eskom re la t ing  to  the  po tent ia l  pena l ty  10 

c la im on the  s iz ing  qua l i t y  o f  paramete rs  under  the  

CSA and addenda there to ,  inc lud ing  our  p re l im inary  

concerns re la t ing  to  the  ev idence  wh ich  wou ld  be  

necessary  fo r  such a  c la im to  succeed” .   

 Now,  I  accept ,  you are  no t  there  bu t  the  quest ion  is  

go ing  to  be  whether  you were  g iven  th is…[ in tervenes ] .  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  I  was not  aware  o f  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     So ,  they ra ise  pre l im inary  concerns 

a l ready in  October  2013…[ in te rvenes] .  

MR MOLEFE:    Bu t  w i th  whom d id  they ra ise  the  20 

pre l im inary  –  I  mean who was tha t  op in ion  addressed to?  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Ja ,  on  page 984 o f  the  same bund le ,  

i t ’s  p r imary…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:     My bund le  ends a t  950,  A and B  –  the  

bund le  I ’ ve  been g iven ends a t  950 .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:     I t ’s  a  C Cha i r,  wh ich  I  have,  14  C.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’ ve  been g i ven 14 B .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh,  I  th ink  i t ’s  tha t  over f low aga in  o f  

the  a f f idav i t  in  one –  so  the  a f f idav i t  has to  be  there ,  ja  

Cha i r,  sor ry…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  jus t  asked her  to  ask  you i f  you  d idn ’ t  

hear  the  page number  or  the  bund le  number?  

ADV SELEKA SC:     I t ’s  page 984 Cha i r.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  I ’ ve  go t  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     I  was say ing ,  the  Cha i rperson shou ld  10 

have the  f i le  w i th  the  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  B? 

ADV SELEKA SC:     That  i s  –  ja  i t  seems in  your  case,  

Cha i r,  i t ’s  the  end o f  B .   So,  wha t  I ’m  say ing ,  Cha i r,  she  

shou ldn ’ t  take  i t  away f rom you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  tha t ’s  f ine .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     So ,  page 984,  Mr  Mole fe  the  –  your  

op in ion ,  i t ’s  in  a  memorandum  i t ’s  addressed to  Mr  Johan 

Beste r,  D iv i s iona l  Execut ive  Pr imary  Energy…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’m sor ry,  Mr  Se leka,  th is  op in ion  is  20 

da ted 20 October  2013.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  guess more  than a  year  o r  a  year  and a  

ha l f  be fore  Mr  Mo le fe  came to  Eskom.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Why do you want  to  ask  h im about  i t s  

contents ,  espec ia l l y  when he says,  nobody,  as  he  can  

reca l l ,  eve r  d iscussed mer i t s  and demer i t s  o f  the  c la im.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  i t  wasn ’ t  my in ten t ion  Cha i r,  bu t  

a t  the  Cha i rpe rson ’s  request ,  tha t  I  take  h im th rough ,  I  was  

go ing  to…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  was i f  i t  was impor tan t ,  so  I  jus t  see 

the  ga te  now,  so  I ’m  not  sure ,  he  wasn ’ t  a t  Eskom at  tha t  

t ime,  how is  i t  go ing  to  ass is t  us?   

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  we don ’ t  have to  go  in to  the  10 

deta i l s  o f  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  bu t  what  i s  –  do  you have to  re fer  to  

i t  a t  a l l?  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Not  in  re la t ion  to…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  re la t ion  to  h im because he  wasn ’ t  

there .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  I  th ink  Mr  Mole fe ,  when he  

ar r i ves ,  the  quest ion  is ,  were  these concerns,  expressed in  

th is  op in ion ,  d rawn to  h is  a t ten t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  no ,  tha t  can be asked.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  Mr  Mole fe  I  have asked tha t  

quest ion…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Te l l  h im what  the  concerns were ,  I  th ink 

I  in te r rup ted  you  when you were  pu t t ing  tha t  to  h im,  jus t  

re f resh h is  memory  in  te rms o f  what  the  op in ions sa id  were 
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the  concerns and ask  h im whether  these op in ions or  the  

concerns were…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Were  drawn to  h is  a t ten t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Drawn to  h is  a t ten t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Thank  you Cha i r.   Mr  Mole fe  th ree  –  

concerns were  ra ised in  th ree  broad ca tegor ies .  One is  the 

qua l i t y  o f  coa l ,  the  o the r  i s  the  s iz ing  spec i f i ca t ion  and  

las t l y  was the  quant i t y.   On the  qua l i t y  spec i f i ca t ions,  the  

concerns were  tha t  Eskom had fa i l ed  to  invoke i t s  r i gh ts  in  

te rms o f  the  agreement  to  no t i f y  OCH tha t  OCM had fa i led   10 

to  comply  as  and when coa l  was de l i vered.   You have 

touched on tha t ,  I  don ’ t  know how d id  you know about  i t .  

MR MOLEFE:    About?  

ADV SELEKA SC:     That  Eskom fa i led  to  invoke i t s  r igh ts  

in  te rms o f  the  CSA.  

MR MOLEFE:    Oh,  I  sa id ,  Mr  Koko has made someth ing  to  

the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  tha t  Eskom has a l lowed pena l t ies  o f  

R1.7b i l l i on  to  p resc r ibe ,  I  don ’ t  know i f  i t ’s  the  same th ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe le t ’s  ask  th is  quest ion  th is  way.   

A f te r  you had jo ined Eskom,  be tween tha t  t ime and the  20 

t ime when you le f t  Eskom,  d id  anybody br ing  any lega l  

op in ions to  your  a t ten t ion  f rom CDH tha t  dea l t  w i th  the  

mer i t s  and demer i t s  o f  the  c la im fo r  pena l t ies  aga ins t  

OCM? 

MR MOLEFE:    No,  Cha i rpe rson I  can ’ t  reca l l  tha t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    You don ’ t  reca l l  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:    Bu t  hav ing  sa id  tha t ,  I ’ ve  jus t  been  read ing  

the  conc lus ion  o f  th is  lega l  op in ion  very  qu ick ly,   

parag raph 11,  i t  does not  fo rb id  us  f rom purs ing  the  c la im  

i t  says ,  however,  

“Shou ld  Eskom be o f  the  v iew tha t  tak ing  in to  

account  the  r i sk  i dent i f ied ,  i t  wants  to  p roceed w i th  

a  c la im aga ins t  OCM at  th is  s tage as  a  resu l t  o f  the 

cont inued fa i lu re  by  OCM to  comply  w i th  the  s ize  

and spec i f i ca t ion  we adv i se  them i t  shou ld  no t  be  10 

done as  a  se t  o f f  aga ins t  the  purchase pr ice” ,  

 So,  i t  was not  –  f rom my read ing  o f  th is ,  even now,  

I ’m  see ing  i t  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime but  even now,  i t ’s  no t  an 

op in ion  tha t  says,  you don ’ t  have a  c la im.   I t  says  tha t  

there  are  some r isks  bu t  i f  you  want  to  pursue i t ,  wh ich  

means tha t  there  is  some mer i t  in  pursu ing  i t ,  don ’ t  se t  i t  

o f f  aga ins t  purchase pr ice .   So,  i t ’s  no t  l i ke  i t ’s  fo rb idd ing  

Eskom,  or  i t  i s  adv is ing  aga ins t…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  maybe,  I  don ’ t  know i f  you want  to  

go  to  the  po in t  o f  say ing ,  adv is ing  aga ins t ,  when you have 20 

not  read the  who le  o f  i t  bu t…[ in tervenes] .  

MR MOLEFE:    Perhaps,  maybe,  I  shou ld  jus t  read i t  

Cha i rperson because I  was not  the re .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no ,  no  I  don ’ t  th ink  you shou ld  t r y  

and read i t  fo r  p resent  purposes,  I  th ink  you have made the  
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po in t  tha t  the  las t  paragraph leaves room for  Eskom to  

pursue the  c la im wh ich  may we l l  be  in  l ine  w i th  wha t  I  sa id  

to  you ear l ie r  on  in  te rms o f  how lawyers  work  bu t  may we l l  

be  tha t ,  in  the  body o f  the  document ,  i t  m igh t  be  ra is ing  

cer ta in  i ssues.  

MR MOLEFE:    Bu t  the  po in t  tha t  I ’m  mak ing ,  Cha i r,  i s  tha t ,  

tha t  l i t t le  ho le ,  you ’ re  requ i red  by  the  PFMA or  …[ ind is t inc t  

–  d ropp ing  vo ice ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  I  don ’ t  know i f  the  PFMA goes tha t  

fa r  o ther  than tha t ,  i t  on ly  expects  you to  pursue a  c la im i f  10 

there  are  reasonab le  grounds o f  be l iev ing  tha t  you w i l l  be 

successfu l  bu t  we don ’ t  know,  Mr  Se leka how much you 

want  us  –  ja  bu t  I  don ’ t  know Mr  Se leka how much you  

want  to  ask  Mr  Mole fe  about  the  contents  o f  th is  in  the 

l igh t  o f  h is  ev idence tha t  he  has no  reco l lec t ion  o f  th is  

be ing  brought  to  h is  a t ten t ion  bu t  i t  may we l l  be  tha t  the  

peop le  to  whom these op in ions were  d i rec ted ,  par t i cu la r ly  

the  lega l  depar tment .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  the  peop le  who shou ld  answer  bu t  20 

I ’m  jus t  ment ion ing ,  you might  have a  po in t  tha t  you want  

to  ra ise  w i th  h im.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  a  coup le  o f  th ings,  Mr  Mole fe ,  

CDH,  the  a t to rneys,  ident i f y  Mr  Koko as  one o f  the  persons 

they were  work ing  w i th .  
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MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     I ’ l l  show you  but  tha t  parag raph you  

were  read ing ,  pa rag raph 11 o f  th is  document ,  s ta r ts  w i th  

the  word  “however ” .   You know when the  word  “however ”  

fo l lows,  there ’s  someth ing  tha t  I ’ ve  sa id  be fo re  and i t  i s  in  

parag raph 10,  jus t  o f  the  purposes o f  what  you were  

ment ion ing  now,  I ’m  read ing  th i s ,  no t  to  take  i t  anymore  

than th is ,  i t  says ,  

“ In  l igh t  o f  the  r i sks  ident i f ied  in  Eskom,  app ly ing  a 

payment  reduct ion  fo r  OCM’s  fa i lu re  to  comply  w i th  10 

the  s iz ing  spec i f i ca t ion  a t  th is  s tage,  we adv ise  tha t  

i t  w i l l  be  prudent  to  f i rs t  address a l l  the  concerns in  

o rder  to  ensure  tha t  Eskom wi l l  be  in  a  be t te r  

pos i t ion  to  impose the  payment  reduct ion  and 

subsequent ly  en force  any c la im fo r  the  reduct ion  of  

the  purchase pr i ce .  Due to  OCM’s  fa i lu re  to  comply  

w i th  the  qua l i t y  o r  quant i t y  spec i f i ca t ion ” .  

So,  they ’ re  te l l ing  you i t  i s  p rudent  to  f i rs t  address 

the  concerns,  then they say,  however,  shou ld  Eskom be o f  

the  v iew tha t  tak ing  in to  accoun t ,  the  r i sk  ident i f ied  i t  20 

wants  to  p roceed  w i th  the  c la im aga ins t  OCM.   So,  desp i te  

the  r i sk ,  you nonethe less  want  to  p roceed…[ in tervenes] .  

MR MOLEFE:    Bu t  parag raph 10 acknowledges  OCM’s  

fa i lu re .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     No,  i t  does bu t…[ in tervenes] .  
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MR MOLEFE:    And i t ’s  those  fa i lu res  there  must  be  

pena l t ies .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Bu t  le t  me…[ in tervenes] .  

MR MOLEFE:    Because I  was not  there…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  there  i s  no  d isag reement  be tween  

the  two o f  you we can move on.   Mr  Mole fe  accepts  tha t  

the  op in ion  may have ra ised some issues about  the  mer i t s  

o f  the  c la im in  regard  to  some aspects  he  has no t  read the  

who le  op in ion ,  bu t  he  accepts  tha t  he  may have done so .   

A l l  he  was say ing  was there  is  tha t  w indow tha t  they 10 

opened a t  the  end and Eskom wanted to  pursue tha t ,  he 

says so  I  th ink  –  I ’m  not  su re  tha t  –  bu t  I  th ink  i t  was f ine  

to  jus t  emphas ise  tha t ,  however,  came a f te r  they had  

expressed some concerns about  some c la ims,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Pursu ing  the  c la im wi thout  f i rs t  

address ing  the  concerns.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     And –  in  fac t ,  tha t  pa rag raph,  Cha i r,  i t  

says ,  i t  adv ises you not  to  se t  o f f ,  you saw tha t  

11 .1…[ in tervenes ] .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Not  to  se t t le  o r  no t  to…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Not  to  se t  o f f .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  no t  to  se t  o f f?  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  ja ,  so  one has to  read  i t  very  

care fu l l y.   I t  te l l s  you not  to  do  someth ing  as  opposed to  
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do ing  someth ing .   Anyway,  bu t  I  wanted to  read to  you,  

because –  le t  me jus t  f in ish  o f f  then on these pena l t ies .   

The pena l ty  s ta r ts  o f f  a t  tha t  h igh  amount  and CDH,  the  

a t to rneys have g i ven adv ice  to  Eskom and I  accept  you are  

no t  Eskom,  you were  the  Ch ie f  Execut ive  a t  Eskom.   I t  w i l l  

be  un th inkab le  tha t  th is  op in ion  d idn ’ t  come to  your  

a t ten t ion  when the  pena l ty  i t se l f  comes to  your  a t ten t ion  

bu t  the  mer i t s  o r  demer i t s  o f  i t  doesn ’ t  come to  your  

a t ten t ion .   That  there  are  concerns,  CDH po in ts  ou t  tha t  

even the  f inance depar tment  d idn ’ t  know how the  10 

methodo logy and  the  fo rmula  fo r  the  f igures  app l ied .   Th i s  

amount  o f  R2.1mi l l ion  i s  u l t imate ly,  on  the  bas i s  o f  th is  

op in ion  f rom CDH,  based on in fo rmat ion  rece ived f rom 

Eskom,  w igg led  down to  tha t  R255mi l l ion .   They say 577 –  

you see 577 is  m is lead ing  in  the  sense tha t  i t  incorpora tes  

R158mi l l ion  wh ich  is  a  doub le  charge,  a  doub le  payment  

because then tha t  amount  ge ts  t o  be  reduced,  deducted,  

then you see a  R419mi l l ion ,  then there ’s  fu r ther  two  

deduct ions i t  ends up a t  R255mi l l ion  bu t  th is  i s  done way  

a f te r  G lencore  is  ou t  o f  the  p ic tu re ,  Tegeta  is  in  the  p ic tu re  20 

and Eskom – the  adv ice  g iven in  2013 and repeated ly  un t i l  

2017 is  now be ing  ac ted  upon to  do  the  reduct ions  when i t  

i s  Tegeta  in  the  p ic tu re  and the  quest ion  is ,  why,  why d id  

Opt imum not  ra ise  i t?  

MR MOLEFE:    I t  does not  ra ise  –  a l l  tha t  you ’ re  te l l ing  me 
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was not  ra ised by  Opt imum whi le  I  was there .   When we 

issued the  summons,  they shou ld  have rep l ied  to  our  

summons and sa id  exact ly  what  you ’ re  see ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    And then perhaps we wou ld  have  se t t led  

ou t  o f  Cour t ,  pe rhaps we wou ld  have gone to  a rb i t ra t ion ,  

bu t  i t  was not  fo r  me to  go  and look fo r  the i r  de fence.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Okay,  g ive  me a  chance,  g ive  me a  

chance.   That ’s  - your  response is  too  qu ick  because CDH 

does g ive  Eskom the  defences –  var ious de fences  ra ised  10 

by  OCH in  the  subsequent  op in ions,  i t  g ives  you var ious 

de fences ra i sed by  –  and some o f  them are  exact l y  what  

we are  po in t ing  ou t  there ,  the  s i z ing  spec i f i ca t ions and 

your  sampl ing  too l  wh ich  was fau l ty  the  hammer  sampl ing  

too l  wh ich  was not  –  was mal func t ion ing  and tha t  you had 

fa i led  to  no t i f y  them o f  the  breach as  and when i t  occur red .   

So,  OCM had ra i sed those defences,  may I  add th is ,  Mr  

Mole fe ,  two processes had s tar ted…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry  d id  you say OCM had ra ised those 

defences?  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:     Had ra ised those defences.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Exp ressed by  your  a t to rneys,  in  the  

op in ions,  you ’ re  say ing  tha t  d idn ’ t  come to  your  a t ten t ion ,  

those op in ions,  I  jus t  want  a  yes  or  no  because I  don ’ t  
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want  to  fo rge t  my  next  quest ion .  

MR MOLEFE:    I  can ’ t  remember  tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     The next  th ing  is ,  you w i l l  reca l l  tha t ,  

when you pursued the  c la im,  CDH,  aga in ,  the  a t to rneys,  

adv ised you le t ’s  i ssue summons because tha t  w i l l  in te r rup t  

p rescr ip t ion  because a  re fer ra l  to  a rb i t ra t ion  w i l l  on ly  s top 

i t  fo r  one year,  so  they pu rsued two processes.   OCM f i led  

a  no t ice  to  de fend in  the  summons in  respect  o f  the  

summons and they f i led  the i r  p lea  to  the  arb i t ra t ion ,  

re fe r ra l  to  a rb i t ra t ion  or  s ta tement  o f  de fence but  the  10 

par t ies ,  f rom what  i t  appears ,  dec ided to  pu rsue the  

arb i t ra t ion  wh ich  u l t imate ly  b rought  about  a  negot ia ted  

se t t lement .  

MR MOLEFE:    Which  pa r ty,  you mean eventua l l y  

a f te r…[ in tervenes ] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Eventua l l y  yes .  

MR MOLEFE:     Yes,  no  I  can ’ t  comment  on  tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  so  i t ’s  no t  as  i f  they  d idn ’ t  de fend 

your  mat te r,  they  d id…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  i t  wou ld  be  he lp fu l  i f  you  were  to  20 

te l l  me where  in  the  bund le ,  I  can f ind  OCM’s  response or  

the  document  where  they ra ised the  de fences because I  

was under  the  impress ion  tha t  they d idn ’ t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Cha i rperson,  tha t  you f ind  in  Mr  

Mood ley ’s  a f f idav i t  aga in ,  because he dea ls  w i th  i t  
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ex tens i ve l y  in  the  op in ions tha t  he  g ives  to  Eskom,  le t  me 

f ind  one.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  i f  your  jun io r  can f ind  i t  wh i le  you  

cont inue and le t  you know once she has found i t ,  tha t  w i l l  

be  f ine .   Looks l i ke  your  jun io r  t h inks  you a re  look ing  a t  

the  wrong bund le .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     No,  she ’s  say ing  tha t  you are  look ing  

fo r  the  p lead ing ,  bu t  you can tu rn  to  page 918,  Cha i rpe rson  

o f  Mr  Mood ley ’s  bund le ,  Eskom Bund le  14  (C) ,  now tha t ’s  

tha t  o ther  f i l e ,  you have i t  in  f ron t  o f  you Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Ja  i t ’s  (B )  in  th is  case,  page 918.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Page 918,  Cha i rperson,  under  the  

head ing ,  “OCM potent ia l  de fence to  the  Eskom c la im” ,  and 

he re fers  to  a  le t te r  wh ich  OCM had addressed to  Eskom.  

So,  he ’s  rep roduc ing  here ,  the  contents  o f  h i s  op in ion  o f  2  

December  2016 wh ich ,  Cha i r  you w i l l  f ind  on  page 1042.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  no  tha t ’s  f ine .   I  don ’ t  th ink  tha t  –  

I  wanted to  see where  they are  to  be  found,  you can move 20 

on,  I  th ink  what  may be impor tan t ,  jus t  fo r  the  reco rd  

purposes is  fo r  you to  a r t i cu la te  what  the i r  de fences were .   

Mr  Mole fe  m ight  have no comment  bu t  jus t  so  tha t  i t ’s  

known what  the i r  de fences were  so  tha t  when you come to  

the  –  when you  re fer  to  the  de fences ra i sed or  i ssued 
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ra ised by  CDH,  one can see whether  they are  the  same but  

–  so  tha t ’s  jus t  fo r  the  record .   I t  may we l l  be  tha t  there  a re  

o ther  peop le  who  rea l l y  need to  be  quest ioned about  why  

they may seem to  have found these defences unat t rac t i ve  

when they were  ra ised by  OCM but  sudden ly  a t t rac t i ve  

when they were  ra ised by  –  whether  i t ’s  CDH o r  Tegeta .    

ADV SELEKA SC:     So ,  was the  Cha i rperson ask ing  me to  

read them in to  the  record?  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  I ’m say ing  i f  you  can ar t i cu la te  

them,  i f  you  ar t i cu la te  them wi thout  read ing  them i t ’s  f ine ,  10 

i f  you  want  to  read them i t ’s  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  we l l  there ’s  a  coup le  o f  them,  

le t ’s  see,  maybe I  can summar i se  them.   The 

…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  the  ones tha t  a re  the  same as the  

ones tha t  seem to  have been re l ied  upon to  reduce the  

c la im v ia  Eskom.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Ja ,  the  fa i lu re  by  Eskom to  no t i f y  as  

and when the re  was a  b reech,  i f  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   When the  qua l i t y  o f  the  coa l  was be low 20 

the  agreed . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  i s ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   S tandard .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So   I  th ink  tha t  c lause was,  tha t  c lause  
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was to  the  e f fec t  tha t  i f  OCM de l ivered coa l  tha t  was be low 

the  agreed qua l i t y  leve l ,  then Eskom was requ i red  to  send 

a  no t ice  to  OCM wi th in  a  cer ta in  per iod .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And i f  i t  d id  no t  send such a  no t ice ,  then  

the  qua l i t y  o f  the  coa l  wou ld  be  taken to  have been in  

acco rdance w i th  the  agreed s tandards.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.   And they had ind ica ted  10 

tha t  Eskom had not  done so .   Le t  me see.   I  th ink  I  need to  

go  to  the  op in ion  i t se l f .   10 .42  Because in  the  a f f idav i t  he  

summar izes and I  th ink  he  sk ipped some o f  the  issues.   I  

w i l l  be  br ie f  in  runn ing  th rough them.   Th is  then  is  the  

op in ion  o f  the  2 n d  o f  December  2016.   And f rom Tyr re l l  

Thompson,  we l l  C l i f f  Decker,  Hof fmeyr  to  Eskom.   The one 

is :  

“There  is  no  reasonab le  bas is  to  j us t i f y  a  pena l ty  o f  

th is  amount  2 ,2  b i l l i on  hav ing  regard  to  the  h is to ry  

and background  c i rcumstances  sur round ing  the  20 

impos i t ion  o f  pena l t ies  a r is ing  ou t  o f  CSA.   And  

Eskom has no reasonab le  p rospect  o f  recover ing  

th is  amount  in  an  arb i t ra t ion . ”  

And I  am t ry ing  to  scheme th rough.   Then in  regard  

to  the  sampl ing  p rocess:  
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“The par t ies  were  in  negot ia t ions  to  renegot ia te  the  

c lause. ”  

And Mr  Mood ley  then says th is :  

“The CSA inc ludes a  renegot ia t ion  c lause in  te rms  

o f  wh ich  i f  a t  any  t ime e i ther  pa r t ies  are  o f  the  v iew 

tha t  the  spec i f i ca t ion  in  the  CSA are  no  longer  

p roper ly  and are  rea l i s t i ca l l y  rep resenta t i ve  o f  the  

coa l  wh ich  OCM cou ld  reasonab ly  expect  to  p roduce 

f rom i t s  resource ,  i t  cou ld  request  a  renegot ia t ion  o f  

the  spec i f i ca t ion . ”  10 

And a t  tha t  s tage the  par t ies  were  in  tha t  

renegot ia t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And when was th i s?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Th i s  i s  in  December  now 20 –  d id  I  say  

15?  Ja ,  15 .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Even i f  you  do not  cover  a l l  o f  them 

… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink  you wou ld  cover  a l l  o f  them i f  

necessary  when you ask  peop le  who were  invo l ved.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   In  mak ing  the  dec is ion  to  … 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   ( Ind is t inc t )  the  amount  tha t  they . . .   

( ind is t inc t ) .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   There ’s  an  impor tan t  

one Mr  Mole fe .   He says dur ing  th is  renegot ia t ion :  

“Dur ing  the  se t t lement  d iscuss ions there  were  

ex tens i ve  negot ia t ions  on  the  spec i f i ca t ions,  w i th  

Pr imary  Energy and the  Hendr ina  Power  S ta t ion .   

And u l t imate ly  a  spec i f i ca t ion  was agreed in  

re la t ion  to  s iz ing  wh ich  matches  tha t  wh ich  OCM 

de l ivered du r ing  the  per iod  f rom 2012 to  2015. ”  

 I f  th is  i s  a  spec i f i ca t ion  tha t  the  power  s ta t ion  was  

capab le  o f  accept ing ,  OCM i s  a rgu ing ,  then c lear ly  the  10 

de l i very  o f  coa l ,  meet ing  tha t  s i z ing  spec i f i ca t ion  dur ing  

most  o f  2012 to  2015 cou ld  no t  have caused any 

mean ing fu l  damage to  the  power  s ta t ion .    

 And by  the  way,  the  c la im f rom 2012 to ,  to  I  th ink  i t  

i s  May 2014 was comple te l y  abandoned.  

MR MOLEFE:   A re  you ask ing  me to  comment?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  am te l l ing  you,  yes  can you –  do  you  

know o f  tha t?   

MR MOLEFE:   No I  d id  no t  know tha t ,  bu t  f rom what  you 

are  say ing ,  you are  say ing  tha t  there  was a  spec i f i ca t ion  20 

tha t  was spec i f ied  in  the  . . .   ( ind is t inc t ) .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   P rec ise ly.  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja ,  in  the  s iz ing .   In  the  coa l  supp ly  

agreement .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  
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MR MOLEFE:   That  spec i f i ca t ion  was not  . . .   ( ind is t inc t ) .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   R igh t ,  however  in  the  renegot ia t ion  the  SCA 

was changed.   Or  … 

ADV SELEKA SC:   The spec i f i ca t ion  was changed.  

MR MOLEFE:   The spec i f i ca t ion  in  the  SCE was changed.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes and Eskom agreed.  

MR MOLEFE:   Ag reed,  r igh t .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   To  a  spec i f i ca t i on  tha t  matches … 

MR MOLEFE:   A t  the  t ime o f  impos ing  the  pena l t ies ,  OCM 10 

d id  no t  meet  the  spec i f i ca t ion  tha t  had been spec i f ied  in  

the  agreement .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Look th is  s ide  Mr  Mole fe .  

MR MOLEFE:   Oh  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  cannot  hear.  

MR MOLEFE:   Oh .  

CHAIRPERSON:   A t  the  t ime o f?  

MR MOLEFE:   A t  the  t ime when OCM de l ivered the  coa l ,  

they  d id  no t  meet  the  spec i f i ca t ion .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

MR MOLEFE:   And are  the re fo re  l iab le  to  the  pena l t ies .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   The fac t  tha t  la te r  on  when the  eng ineers  

met  they dec ided  to  change the  spec i f i ca t ion .   That  does  

not  mean tha t  –  I  do  no t  know,  i t  does not  mean tha t  they 
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have the  meet ing  i t  was wrong  to  impose the  pena l ty,  

because the  pena l ty  was imposed on the  bas i s  o f  the  

spec i f i ca t ion  tha t  had been in  the  agreement .   Not  what  

was consequent ly  mod i f ied .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Bu t  there  is  jus t  one concern ,  because 

the  o the r  concerns is  tha t  Eskom had a l ready fa i led  to  

invoke the  no t ice  c lause.   I t  had then fa i led  to  invoke the  

no t ice  c lause.  

MR MOLEFE:   When d id  Eskom fa i l  to  do  so?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   From 2012 … 10 

MR MOLEFE:   P rec i se l y  my prob lem.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   To  2014.  

MR MOLEFE:   That  was prec ise ly  my prob lem wi th  the  

who le  th ing .   The  fac t  tha t  Mr  Koko is  say ing  there  is ,  there  

is  pena l t ies  o f  1 ,7  b i l l i on  tha t  had  not  been co l lec ted .   I ,  I  

was not  p repared  Cha i rpe rson to  be  par t  o f  the  peop le  tha t  

had not  pursued Eskom’s  leg i t imate  c la ims fo r  the  pena l ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  you are  ta lk ing  o f  c ross-pu rposes.   

Mr  Se leka ’s  re fe rence to  tha t  c lause and the  fa i lu re  o f  

Eskom to  invoke tha t  c lause is  impor tan t .   He has meant  to  20 

say to  you,  because in  te rms o f  the  cont rac t ,  the  CSA … 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  Eskom had w i th  OCM whenever  

OCM de l ivered coa l  o f  a  substandard  coa l  … 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   In  te rms o f  the  agreement ,  Eskom was  

ob l iged i f  i t  wanted to  impose pena l t ies .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   To  send OCM a wr i t ten  no t ice .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Te l l ing  then tha t  you have supp l ied  us  

w i th  substandard  coa l  and so  tha t  then they can  impose 

the  pena l t ies .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  in  te rms o f  the  cont rac t  i f  Eskom 10 

fa i led  to  send such a  no t ice ,  the  cont rac t  sa id ,  the  coa l ,  

the  substandard  coa l  wou ld  be  taken to  have been o f  an  

acceptab le  s tandard .   And there fore  Eskom cou ld  no t  

thereaf te r  impose  pena l t ies .   So he is  say ing ,  OC –  one o f  

the  po in ts  ra i sed by  OCM was Eskom can ’ t  pursue th is  

c la im aga ins t  us  or  a t  leas t  pa r t  o f  i t ,  because they d id  no t  

send us  the  no t i ces  requ i red  by  the  ag reement  and e f fec t  

o f  no t  send ing  us  those not ices ,  i s  tha t  the  coa l  i s  t aken to  

have been o f  the  r igh t  s tandard .   That  i s  what  he  i s  ta lk ing  

about  here .  20 

MR MOLEFE:   And what  I  was say ing  Cha i r,  tha t  i t  means  

there  are  employees a t  Eskom tha t  d id  no t  invoke the  

pena l ty  as  they  were  requ i red  by  the  cont rac t .   R igh t .   

Those employees  misbehaved.   And we l l  maybe we cannot  

recover  those pena l t ies  because they have a l ready  
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m isbehaved,  bu t  there  was a  d isc ip l ine  p rob lem a t  Eskom 

when i t  came to  Opt imum.   But  th ings were  no t  be ing  

fo l lowed to  the  le t te r.   And a l l  I  was say ing  was,  I  was not  

p repared to  be  par t  o f  those peop le  tha t  were  tu rn ing  a  

b l ind  eye.   So what ,  what  we are  be ing  to ld  now is  tha t  

there  are  peop le  a t  Eskom tha t  tu rned a  b l ind  eye,  tha t  

OCM was not  comply ing .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  you are  no t  be ing  to ld  tha t  they 

tu rned a  b l ind  eye.   You are  be ing  to ld  no t ices  were  no t  

sent .   Why they  were  no t  sent  m ight  be  another  reason.   10 

Maybe they tu rned a  b l ind  eye,  maybe i t  was neg l igence.   

We don ’ t  know.   But  the  po in t  Mr  Se leka was mak ing  i s ,  

tha t  was a  de fence tha t  was ra ised and indeed i f  Eskom 

d id  no t  d ispute  the  a l legat ion  tha t  i t  d id  no t  send  those 

not ices ,  then i t  had no c la im or  pa r t  o f  the  c la im wou ld  no t  

be  susta ined.   You might  say,  look  I  do  no t  know about  

whethe r  no t ices  were  sent  o r  no t  sent .   I f  they  were  no t  

sent  i t  means tha t  OCM may have had a  po in t .   But  you,  

you don ’ t  know whethe r  they were  sent  o r  t hey were  no t  

sent .   I  assume.  20 

MR MOLEFE:   I  don ’ t  know whethe r  o r  no t  the  no t ices  were  

no t  sent .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:   Bu t  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  
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MR MOLEFE:   I f  I  had known tha t  the  no t ices  were  no t  

sent ,  I  wou ld  have a l l  those peop le  in  f ron t  o f  a  d i sc ip l ina ry  

hear ing .   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  a lso  i f  you  had known tha t  those 

not ices  were  no t  sent ,  wou ld  you have pursued the  c la im? 

MR MOLEFE:   Wel l  I  wou ld  have taken lega l  adv ice .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Lega l  adv i ce ,  ja .   Okay,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja  wh ich  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   And CDH wou ld  have g iven lega l  adv i ce .    10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Which  was be ing  g iven.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Because i t  was  in  ex is tence a l ready.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You see what  I  f ind  d i f f i cu l t  i s  th is  

Mole fe  … 

MR MOLEFE:   Mr  R ichard  Mood ley  is  no t  a  . . .   ( ind is t inc t )  

l i ke  you.   So I  wou ld  have asked fo r  lega l  adv ice  f rom 

sen io r,  w i th  the  amount  o f  money invo lved.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  w i l l  come f rom your  bank.   Anyway … 20 

MR MOLEFE:   You w i l l  f ind  tha t  i f  we ins t ruc ted  you Mr  

Se leka,  you wou ld  have defended i t .    

CHAIRPERSON:   No.   But  Mr  Mole fe  remember  wha t  I  to ld ,  

lawyers  work  on  the  bas is  tha t  they can adv i se  you tha t  

your  p rospects  o f  w inn ing  are  no t  reasonab le .  
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MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  i f  you ins i s t  I  can . . .   ( ind is t inc t ) .   

Okay.   Yes,  o r  there  cou ld  be  a  s i tua t ion  where  they say,  

look  okay th is  i s  j us t  no t  on .    

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Or  they can say,  look  we do not  th ink  we 

w i l l  w in  bu t  le t  us  take  ou r  chances.   So maybe you wou ld  

have sa id ,  le t  us  take  our  –  i f  you  want  to  take  your  

chances I  w i l l  rep resent  you.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  the  fac t  o f  the  mat te r  i s ,  he  wasn ’ t ,  

he  was not ,  he  is  no t  aware  whether  the  no t ices  were  sent  

o r  were  no t  sen t .   And obv ious l y  there  a re  peop le  who 

ought  to  know why,  what  the  ac tua l  pos i t ion  was.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And i f  they  were ,  i f  they  were  aware  tha t  

they were  no t  sent ,  were  they jus t  tak ing  chances  to  see  

whethe r  OCM wou ld  take  the  po in t  o r  no t .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Le t  me get  your  response  to  th is  

Mole fe ,  because I  f ind  i t  hard  as  the  Ch ie f  Execut ive  tha t  20 

you know about  the  pena l t ies .   You ins is t  on  these 

pena l t ies  be ing  c la imed.   Or  en forced and pursued.   So you 

must  have spoken to  some peop le  w i th in  Eskom.   Th is  

peop le  were  there  be fore  you.   These peop le  have been  

prov ided w i th  th is  op in ions by  CDH.   CDH ment ions the  
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names o f  these peop le  in  the i r  a f f idav i t .   Peop le  f rom lega l .   

Ms Dan ie ls .   Mr  Johan Bester.   Mr  Koko.   Ayan 

Danthetha(?) .   Neo S i lanku(? ) .   Ment ions the i r  names in  

the i r  a f f idav i t ,  tha t  we were  g iven these peop le  to  work  

w i th .   That  you cou ld  have know about ,  the  ex is tence o f  the  

pena l t ies .   But  no t  known about  the  concerns pe r ta in ing  to  

the  mer i t s  o f  tha t ,  those pena l t ies ,  i s  a t  leas t  fo r  me  

inconce ivab le .   And I  want  you to  comment  on  tha t .    

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  tha t ,  so  tha t  –  you see the  10 

s ta tement  you are  mak ing  is ,  we l l  I  d idn ’ t  want  to  be  par t  

o f  those peop le  who fa i led  to  do  th is ,  bu t  the  po in t  i s  by  

the  t ime you come in ,  those peop le  have been adv ised tha t  

there  a re  prob lems.   So fo r  you to  pursue c la im wh ich  is  

r idd led  w i th  d i f f i cu l t ies  aga ins t  a  company,  aga ins t  wh ich  

and I  am go ing  to  say to  you,  Eskom knows we have a  

d i f f i cu l t  pursu ing  or  succeed ing  aga ins t .   I t  seems not  r igh t  

when you know the  weaknesses.   And one o f  i t  i s  tha t  there  

was doub le  pena l ty  o f  R158 000 000,00.   Which  reduces 

the  amount  even fu r the r.   So but  comment  on  … 20 

MR MOLEFE:   Wou ld  you l i ke  my comment?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   Cha i rperson,  I  was brought  up  in  the  

Nat iona l  Treasury.   A t  the  t ime when the  PFMA was  wr i t ten  

up ,  I  was in  fac t  in  the  team tha t  d ra f ted  the  PFMA.   My –  
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the  v iew f rom the  Nat iona l  Treasury  has a lways been  tha t  

government  does not  pursue i t s  leg i t imate  c la ims.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I ’m  sor ry,  does not  pursue?   

MR MOLEFE:   I ts  leg i t imate  c la ims.   And tha t  government  

i s  ve ry  lax  a t  negot ia t ing .   And le t ’s  peop le  ge t  away w i th  

murder.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Peop le  owe i t  fo r  e lec t r i c i t y  and they  

don ’ t  co l lec t?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Leg i t imate?  10 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:   And tha t  th is  was a lso  r i fe  in  the  paras ta ta l .   

The c lause tha t  I  was re fer r i ng  to  ear l ie r  tha t  there  is  tha t  

account ing  o f f i ce rs  must  co l lec t  what  i s  due.   Perhaps my  

in te rpre ta t ion  o f  tha t  c lause is  cons ide red he re .   Bu t  do  no t  

leave a  c la im i f  there  i s  a  chance  o f  co l lec t ing  i t .   That  i s  

supposed to  come to  the  f i scus.   My a t t i tude in  th is  who le  

mat te r  was tha t  there  was a  c la im,  Eskom had  a  c la im 

s ince 2013 and i t  had not  been co l lec ted .   The fac t  tha t  20 

there  were  de fences and so  on  and so  fo r th ,  I  was qu i te  

p repared to  leave  tha t  to  the  lega l  peop le .   But  f rom where  

I  was s i t t ing  to  be  ab le  to  show tha t  as  an  account ing  

o f f i cer  I  d id  take  reasonab le  s teps  to  co l lec t .   And tha t  the  

co l lec t ion  became d i f f i cu l t .   So  I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  w i th  my  
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f rame o f  m ind,  espec ia l l y  w i th  my background on the  

Nat iona l  Treasury,  and my knowledge o f  the ,  we l l  l im i ted 

knowledge o f  the  PSMA,  tha t  I  wou ld  have taken the  r i sk  

tha t  somebody wou ld  have tu rned around one day and sa id ,  

why d id  you not  co l lec t  what  was leg i t imate ly  owed to  

Eskom.   There  is ,  there  is  a  guy who came here  who  

ca l cu la ted  these pena l t ies  and sa id  they were  leg i t imate .   I  

mean I  do  no t  have to  go  and say,  Mr  Se leka here  are  the  

measurements  o f  the  coa l  and these were  the  

spec i f i ca t ions.   There  is  a  guy who d id  tha t  and sa id ,  as  a  10 

resu l t  o f  these measurements  t hese peop le  owe us money.   

For  me tha t  was enough.   But  we must  pu rsue i t .   And the  

lega l  peop le  must  sor t  i t  ou t .   As  fa r  as  I  am concerned,  a l l  

the  peop le  tha t  Mr  Se leka is  ment ion ing  and CDA,  shou ld  

then have come wi th  a  de f in i te  recommendat ion  tha t  we 

cannot  pursue th is  c la im.   That  d id  no t  come to  me.   As fa r  

as  I  am concerned,  there  was even,  even th i s  lega l  op in ion  

f rom 2018 leaves  a  poss ib i l i t y  o f  c la im ing.   I  d id  no t  want  

tha t  I  wou ld  be  the  one tha t  tu rned a  b l ind  eye when the re  

was a  leg i t imate  c la im on the  tab le .   So tha t  was my f rame 20 

o f  m ind a t  the  t ime.   So the ,  the  o ther  th ing  is  tha t  as  a  

Group Ch ie f  Execut ive ,  I  d id  no t  rea l l y,  rea l l y  s i t  down wi th  

the  lega l  team and debate  lega l  mer i t s ,  because I  am not  a  

lawyer.   I  was qu i te  p repared to  rece ive  f rom them a  

consensus v iew f rom them tha t  the re  i s  th is  c la im,  they can 



02 MARCH 2021 – DAY 353 
 

Page 166 of 299 
 

de f in i te ly  no t  pu rsue.   And th is  c la im we can pursue.   

Eskom had 100s  o f  lega l  mat te rs  tha t  were  ou ts tand ing ,  

some o f  them presc r ib ing  and so  on  and so  fo r th  fo r  wh ich  

I  was prepared to  take  adv ice .   And th is  was one o f  them,  

bu t  th is  one was  pecu l ia r.   Number  one,  i t  i s  a  very  la rge  

amount .   And number  two,  I  know the  par t ies  i nvo lved.   And  

suspected tha t  there  was someth ing  amiss .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  d id ,  I  th ink  Mr  Se leka ’s  p ropos i t ion  

was s imp ly  tha t  he  found i t  d i f f i cu l t  to  accept  tha t  a l l  o f  

these peop le  who  are  ment ioned,  I  th ink  in  t he i r  op in ion  i s  10 

Ms Dan ie ls ,  Mr  Koko and … 

ADV SELEKA SC:   In  the  a f f idav i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   ( Ind is t inc t ) ,  and  whoever  who I  th ink  Mr  

Se leka imp l ies  knew about  the  issues tha t  CDH had ra ised  

about  th is  c la im.   He was say ing  he  was f ind ing  i t  d i f f i cu l t  

tha t  desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  they mus t  have a l l  known,  nobody 

to ld  you about  th is  reserva t ions  tha t  the  lawyers  had  

ra ised.   So I  th ink  tha t  i s  the  … 

MR MOLEFE:   Bu t ,  bu t  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  the  ques t ion  you were  supposed 20 

to  answer.    

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   But  when  they were  here  a t  the  

Commiss ion ,  wha t  d id  they say  about  why th is  pena l ty  was  

be ing  co l lec ted?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   We have not  comple ted  the i r  ev idence.   



02 MARCH 2021 – DAY 353 
 

Page 167 of 299 
 

We on ly  s ta r ted  w i th  one o f  these cases.  

MR MOLEFE:   Oh  no,  then I  w i l l  watch  on  TV.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t ,  bu t ,  bu t  … 

ADV SELEKA SC:   No,  he  is  s t i l l  no t  answer ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  you,  you a re  say ing ,  a re  you say ing 

de f in i te ly  none o f  those peop le  b rought  to  your  a t ten t ion  

the  reserva t ions or  whatever  the  cha l lenges are ,  tha t  were  

ar t i cu la ted  by  CDH in  regard  to  the ,  to  the  c la im? 

MR MOLEFE:   I  am say ing  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Or  you are  say ing  you cannot  remember?  10 

MR MOLEFE:   I  am say ing  tha t  I  cannot  reca l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:   That  anyone came to  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:   And sa id ,  de f in i te ly  we cannot  co l lec t  th is .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Ja  bu t  you  were ,  Mr  Se leka is  no t  

go ing  tha t  fa r.   He is  s imp ly  say ing  to  say there  are  

cha l lenges about  pursu ing  i t ,  bu t  you,  i f  you  want  you may 

pursue i t  p rov ided you don ’ t  se t  o f f  … 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   So i f ,  i f  there  i s  no  one who sa id ,  we 20 

cannot  de f in i te ly  pursue th is  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   You wou ld  pursue .  

MR MOLEFE:   I  suspect  tha t  my a t t i tude wou ld  have been,  

le t ’s  pursue because as  I  say,  my  in te rpre ta t ion  o f  co l lec t  

what  i s  due,  i s  very  concern ing .   Yes,  tha t  do  no t  leave  
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any th ing  on  the  tab le ,  fo r  the  f i scus.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  bu t  I  am sure  a f te r  today you w i l l  

have a  d i f fe ren t  v iew about  i t .  

MR MOLEFE:   I  had a  lesson ja ,  Cha i rperson,  fo r tunate ly  I  

am no longer  in  the  f ie ld .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Because i f  the  concerns da te  back to  

2013 and you te rm inate  to  2013,  2014,  2015 you  put  a  

le t te r  o f  demand in  2015.   And you are  s t i l l  there  a t  10 

December  2015.   Another  op in ion  comes in .   The quest ion  

is ,  why a t  tha t  t ime does not  Eskom,  the  en t i t y  Eskom wi th  

i t s  o f f i c ia ls ,  do  the  exerc ise  to  come to  the  r igh t  amount ,  

wh ich  i s  the  amount  they u l t imate l y  se t t led  on  w i th  Tegeta  

in  2017?  Far  less  than the  3 .1  b i l l i on  wh ich  had  by  the  

way a  doub le  pena l ty  wh ich  had to  be  deducted.   Why d id  

they no t  do  the  reca lcu la t ion  to  come to  tha t  r igh t  amount  

o f  255,  be fo re  Tegeta  comes in to  the  p ic tu re?  

MR MOLEFE:   Why d id  the  lega l  depar tment  no t  do  i t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No,  the  Eskom.  20 

MR MOLEFE:   Mis te r,  the  gent leman who ca lcu la ted  the  

pena l t ies?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The ent i re  Eskom team tha t  was 

invo lved there .  

MR MOLEFE:   I  do  no t  know Mr  Se leka.    
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.  

MR MOLEFE:   There  was a  man who came here  who sa id  

he  is  conv inced tha t  the  2 .17  b i l l i on  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Who is  th is  man?  

MR MOLEFE:   I  w i l l  f ind  ou t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   He sa id  he  can ’ t  remember  the  name.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja .   He showed the  work ings.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I ,  I  can ’ t  remember  bu t  there  are  so  

many w i tnesses.  10 

MR MOLEFE:   Bu t  you do not  reca l l  Cha i rperson somebody 

here  say ing ,  no  th is  i s  the  r igh t  amount  and th is  i s  how we  

work  i t  ou t ,  and I  was respons ib le  fo r  ca lcu la t ing  the  2 .17  

b i l l i on?  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  don ’ t  … 

MR MOLEFE:   ( Ind is t inc t )  I  ins is t  tha t  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  i s  poss ib le ,  i t  i s  poss ib le  tha t  

somebody d id  come but  I  cannot  immedia te l y  remember.   

He is  younger  than me.   He shou ld  remember.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  shou ld  be  ab le  to .   Ja .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  bu t  … 

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  know tha t  peop le  came.    

MR MOLEFE:   Look I  remember  when tha t  guy gave  

ev idence … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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MR MOLEFE:   I  remember  th ink ing ,  you know what?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:   When th i s  mat te r  comes up … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  I ’ l l  re fe r  to  h im.  

MR MOLEFE:   I  won ’ t  have to  say  anyth ing  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:   Because he has a l ready ca lcu la ted  i t  and 

shown i t  to  the  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:   That  i t  was the  r igh t  amount .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:   And I  th ink  tha t  a t  the  t ime … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Your  jun io r  does not  remember  Mr  

Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   He ’s  g i ven me var ious name Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh she d id  g i ve  you some names? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   She ’s  g i ven me var ious names but  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  means she th inks  tha t  there  i s  

somebody who came.  

MR MOLEFE:   Bu t  there  was someth ing  l i ke  tha t .    20 

CHAIRPERSON:   There  is  somebody who came.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja ,  I  am not  sure  whether  she . . .   

( ind is t inc t ) .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Or  no t .   I  th ink  she seems to  know i t .  

MR MOLEFE:   Ger t  Opperman,  ja .    
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CHAIRPERSON:   No,  she is ,  she i s  younger  than us .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No but  Ger t  Opperman had concerns 

h imse l f .   CDH says he  had concerns about  how the  f igure  

was ar r i ved a t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Who?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr  Ger t  Opperman.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Mis te r?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ger t  Opperman .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR MOLEFE:   I  can ’ t  remember  who i t  was,  bu t  there  was  10 

somebody.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  i f  you  can f ind  ou t  and when you get  

home maybe … 

MR MOLEFE:   You w i l l  le t  me know.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You w i l l  le t  your  counse l  know and then 

they can pass on  the  name.   F rom what  Mr  Se leka says 

and my … 

MR MOLEFE:   Ac tua l l y  the  name . . .   ( ind is t inc t ) .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  seems tha t  h is  jun io r  m ight  be  

remember ing .   But  I  want  us  to  take  an ad jou rnment  now.   20 

I t  i s  jus t  a f te r  16 :00 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And I  wou ld  l i ke  counse l  to  see  me in  

Chambers  to  repor t  back on  the  lunch issues,  so  tha t  when  

we come back then I  w i l l  know.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What  the  pos i t ion  is .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  le t ’s  ad journ  now.   You can look . . .   

( ind is t inc t )  du r ing  … 

MR MOLEFE:   Cha i rperson i f  you g ive  me th ree minutes .  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no ,  we w i l l  come back.   We are  no t  

ad journ ing  fo r  the  day.  

MR MOLEFE:   Oh  okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  we jus t  ad jou rn  fo r  10  m inutes .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  i s  10  past ,  we  w i l l  resume a t  20  past ,  

bu t  i f  I  can  see counse l  in  Chambers .    

We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you let  us cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   Mr Molefe yes you wanted 

to.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes Chai r  on the matter that  we were talk ing 20 

about before.   In my aff idavi t  paragraph 70.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Paragraph? 

MR MOLEFE:   70 page 022 I  th ink.  

CHAIRPERSON:   B lack numbers.   Black numbers on the lef t  

hand corner.  
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MR MOLEFE:   Eskom Bundle 17 page I  th ink 22.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   22.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Paragraph 70? 

MR MOLEFE:   Paragraph 70.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   When I  arr ived at  Eskom I  discovered that  

Glencore was owing Eskom an amount in  excess of  R2 

bi l l ion in penal t ies in terms of  the Coal  Supply Agreement.   

Furthermore Eskom was not  taking adequate steps to  10 

recover the money.   I t  is not  c lear  to me why there was a 

re luctance f rom Eskom to recover the money that  was 

legi t imately due to Eskom.  And then I  put  in a footnote 43 

this was in the evidence of  Mr Snehal  Nagar paragraph 7.3 

of  h is aff idavi t  here at  the commission and … 

CHAIRPERSON:   And did you ment ion somebody’s name just  

now? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Snehal .  

MR MOLEFE:   Snehal  Nagar – N-a-g-a-r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What paragraph is  that? 20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   So page 23 sorry Mr… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja I  am at  page 23.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Footnote 43.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh in the footnote ja.  

MR MOLEFE:   In the footnote at  the bot tom.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Oh I  am looking – I  was looking in the text .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MOLEFE:   So the footnote states exact ly where I  got  the 

fact  that  i t  was in fact  R2.1 bi l l ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MOLEFE:   And my learned f r iend here was able to f ind 

that  speci f ic paragraph.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh now that  she was nodding to say there 

was somebody who made calculat ions here she is  your  10 

learned f r iend.  

MR MOLEFE:   She is my senior Chai r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   And she d id f ind the paragraph 7.3 and 

in i t  is Snehal  Nagar actual ly shows calculat ions in his  

aff idavi t  of  how the money was – how that… 

CHAIRPERSON:   In whose aff idavi t?  In your aff idavi t?  

MR MOLEFE:   No in his aff idavi t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No Mr Snehal .   He says Mr Nagar.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr – Mr Nagar ’s aff idavi t?  20 

MR MOLEFE:   Ja.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Whose aff idavi t  is  that? 

MR MOLEFE:   Mr Nagar.  – Snehal  Nagar.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So you say in the calculat ions of  how the 

claims… 
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MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Were made up are in his aff idavi t .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes that  is what he is saying Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh has he given evidence? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   He d id give evidence in phase 1.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh in phase 1.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes not  dur ing – 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  was a long t ime ago.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   ja.  

MR MOLEFE:   And that  is where the detai l  calculat ions come 

from in th is commission.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sorry? 

MR MOLEFE:   That  is where the detai led calculat ions come 

from in the commission.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  ja okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   Which is why I  never went back to i t  because 

I  thought… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.  

MR MOLEFE:   He is 00:03:15.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Because I  th ink he is one of  the off ic ia ls 
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CDH men – Mr Moodley ment ions as having deal t  wi th.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And al l  these concerns having been 

ra ised.   Mr Molefe you were saying you knew who you  were 

deal ing wi th in terms of  OCM. 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Based on your experience f rom Transnet  

and now at  Eskom.  Could that  have inf luenced how you 

deal t  wi th them your past  experience at  Transnet wi th  them? 

MR MOLEFE:   I  mean not  just  my past  experience.   10 

Glencore’s appl icat ion is there.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   In general .  

MR MOLEFE:   In general  they are known to be sharks.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   They are known to? 

MR MOLEFE:   To be sharks.   They are very shrewd.  

CHAIRPERSON:   To be shy? 

MR MOLEFE:   To be sharks.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh sharks.  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja they are known – ja they are known to be 

CHAIRPERSON:   Known to be sharks.  20 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes I  mean there is  a media art ic les al l  over 

that  refer to how especial ly under the leadership of  Mr 

Glasenberg they have been very robust  in – in thei r  deal ings.   

They do not  leave anything on the table.   They do not  have 

sympathies when they are in the r ight .   So that  is – I  mean i t  
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is extensively covered in  the media.   They have severa l  

invest igat ions and gui l ty verdicts  in several  ter r i tor ies of  

wrongdoing in the f inancia l  markets.   So I  – I  had a feel ing 

that  – and I  had had an experience wi th them refusing to 

sign the type of  year agreement.   And this – th is whole thing 

did not  sound r ight  to me f rom thereon.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So you – is i t  r ight  or fa i r  to say you had 

a part icular v iew about i t  and i f  i t  were according to  you you 

would not  deal  wi th them based on… 

MR MOLEFE:   I  would deal  wi th them.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Not  deal  in that  sense.   You would not  do 

business wi th them.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes that  is what I  mean.  I  would – I  would – I  

was prepared to do a deal  wi th  them whereby we stuck to  the 

agreement.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Whereby? 

MR MOLEFE:   We stuck to the agreement.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No I  th ink you may be talk ing at  cross-

purposes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink Mr Seleka is  – is asking you Mr 

Molefe whether because of  the view you had of  them you 

would have preferred to have no business interact ions wi th 

them.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   I f  i t  were up to you.  

MR MOLEFE:   No I  would have business interact ions wi th 

them.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You would have ja .  

MR MOLEFE:   There is no one that  I  would not  have 

business interact ions wi th except  that  in thei r  case i t  would 

have been not  wi th a pinch of  sal t  but  perhaps a tablespoon.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   So I  guess what you are saying is  you 

– you would have business interact ions wi th them but  you… 

MR MOLEFE:   I  would be very careful .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   You would be careful .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Because you know what – what the 

comments you have made about thei r  pol i t ical  connect ion to  

Mr Ramaphosa and the issues you have just  now ment ioned,  

th ings reported in  the media about them leaves one wi th the 

impression that  th is is a company that  you were not  going to  

easi ly accommodate.  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja easi ly being the operat ive word.   I  could 20 

accommodate them but  i t  would not  come easy.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Having ment ioned Mr Ramaphosa a 

couple of  t imes I  th ink i t  wi l l  be f i t t ing to say – to read to you 

what Mr Ephron says about him.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   In h is aff idavi t  and i t  is under the 

heading Involvement of  Mr Ramaphosa in the business of  

OCH and OCM in the per iod 2012 /  2014.   So the aff idavi t  is 

found in Eskom Bundle 18(B) I  wi l l  read i t  to the record – 

page 1266.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wi l l  I  st i l l  need 14(B)? – Bundle 14(B) 

today? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   No Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No.   Page 12… 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   And the other 14? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Not  that  one too.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   I  have got  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   1266 paragraph 8 he wri tes – this is the 

aff idavi t  of  Mr Ephron dated 11 February 2021 and he wri tes:  

“Mr Ramaphosa had not  di rect  involvement in  

the day to day operat ions of  OCH or  OCM in 

the per iod 2012 to 2014.   Mr Ramaphosa was 

never appointed Chairman of  OCH or OCM.  

Mr Ramaphosa nominated var ious 20 

professionals f rom Shanduka Resources to 

represent  him on the OCH board.  I  never  

asked Mr Ramaphosa to intervene on behal f  

of  OCH or OCM in any matters re lat ing to  

Eskom or the CSA and to the best  of  my 
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knowledge and recol lect ion he never did so. ”  

Are you looking for … 

CHAIRPERSON:   You – you want h im to comment on that  –  

you want to get  to  the page Mr Molefe? 

MR MOLEFE:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja he is te l l ing you what Mr Ephron says in 

his aff idavi t  about  Mr Ramaphosa and OCM in response to 

your statement last  t ime.  He wants you to comment  on that  

response i f  you are able to.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   One of  the things that  he – Mr Seleka 

reads is that  he says that  is  Mr Ephron says Mr Ramaphosa 

was never appointed Chai rman of  OCH – OCM.  OCH was 

the holding company.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   OCH or OCM. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja or both.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Or both yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you want Mr Seleka to help you to f ind 

whatever you are looking for? 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes Chai r.    20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Tel l  h im – i f  you tel l  h im what you are 

looking for he might  be able to  te l l  you what page you wi l l  

f ind i t  in.  

MR MOLEFE:   Oh.   Chairperson in paragraph 80 of  my 

aff idavi t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   Page 025.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   I  say:  

“Mr Ramaphosa was Chairman of  Opt imum at  

the t ime of  the in i t iat ion of  the hardship 

claim.”  

CHAIRPERSON:   At  the t ime of  the in i t iat ion of? 

MR MOLEFE:   Of  the hardship claim.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes which was what 2014/2015? 10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   13 – 2013.  

CHAIRPERSON:   2013.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   And then there I  have made a footnote I  

th ink i t  is number 48 – number 48 there is a reference to a I  

th ink an art ic le f rom a – I  th ink i t  was a magazine but  one of  

these mining magazines and i t  was wri t ten by Imaralu D on 

the 25t h of  June 2012 and that  is where Ramaphosa is  

ment ioned as Chairman of  Opt imum.  So i f  you go to that  l ink 

that  is on my footnote… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

MR MOLEFE:   You wi l l  f ind that  art ic le.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay so – so you re ly on that  art ic le .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   For your statement you made that  he was 

Chairman.  
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MR MOLEFE:   That  he was Chairman.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja i f  that  art ic le was wrong then that  is i t  

but  that  is where you base your statement on.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   From what you read Mr Seleka Mr 

Ephron is categor ical  to  say Mr Ramaphosa was never  

appointed as Chai rperson of  ei ther  OCM or OCDH is that  

r ight? 10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Correct  Chai rperson and he uses the 

word never.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The heading – the t i t le of  the art ic le Mr 

Molefe is referr ing to reads:  

“Glencore Ramaphosa acqui res 70% stake of  

Opt imum Coal. ”  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   That  is the t i t le but  in the body of  the 

art ic le.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  20 

MR MOLEFE:   I t  refers – i t  quotes somebody as saying that  

… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wi l l  your junior  check unless you have 

al ready checked where that  is.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   She is doing exact ly that .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   But  let  us – let  us deal  –  let  us deal  wi th 

the substance.   Last  t ime when you appeared and you made 

the statements you made relat ing to Mr Ramaphosa we – we 

adjourned in the manner that  we did.   But  let  – I  just  want to 

get  what precise ly you say i t  was that  he may have done 

wrong i f  that  is what you are saying or whether you are 

saying – you are not  saying that  he did anything wrong 

himsel f  but  you are saying maybe Glencore – maybe other 

people OCM or OCH were hoping to use his  presence or his  

connect ion wi th OCM or OCH to thei r  advantage;  to thei r  10 

benef i t  in terms of  thei r  interact ions;  in terms of  business 

wi th Eskom.  So I  just  want to  know whether you are 

accusing him of  having done something wrong or whether  

you are simply saying other people were hoping to use thei r  

associat ion wi th h im wrongly.  

MR MOLEFE:   Chairperson what  I  said was i t  was very 

st range that  they did not  do due di l igence and that  the – I  do 

not  take the excuse that  they were concerned about those 

things.   What they did do is that  they sold a stake of  th is  

company that  they had bought to Mr Ramaphosa exact ly.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Come closer to the microphone.  

MR MOLEFE:   They sold the stake of  th is company that  they 

have bought to Mr Ramaphosa as their  BEE partner and the 

only way that  they could get  out  of  the pickle that  they 

subsequent ly found themselves because they had not  done 
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due di l igence was through negot ia t ion.   And my postulat ion 

was that  they were hoping to use Mr Ramaphosa’s inf luence 

to help them negot iate part  of  that  th ing.   I  th ink – I  do not  

know who – I  th ink Glencore issued a statement af ter  my 

statement.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  cannot remember.  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja there was a publ ic statement and they said 

that  Mr Ramaphosa – his  – was act ing – was not  act ing in  

our interests.   I  cannot bel ieve that  Chairperson.   He was a 

shareholder.   He had an interest  in the matter.   He had an 10 

interest  in the matter.   I f  – i f  the penal t ies was to be set t led 

because there are roles whi le he was st i l l  shareholder  he 

would have f inancial  benef i t .   He would have an in terest  in  

the set t lement of  the penal t ies.   So I  am not  saying that  I  

def in i te ly  know that  he pedal led inf luence but  the 

ci rcumstances are such that  the si tuat ion was l ikely to  ar ise.  

Also there is a lot  of  unexplained things at  Eskom.  Why 

were the – why were the penal t ies not  pursued?  Why were 

people so lackadaisical  in pursuing Eskom’s interest?  The 

set t lement agreement was done in 2014.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you  -  you would accept  would you not  

Mr Molefe that  when i t  comes to that  i t  is more speculat ion.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   In terms of  t ry ing to say the reason why 

they might  not  have pursued the claim might  be because Mr 
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Ramaphosa was part  of  OCM or OCH. 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  would be speculat ion.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  I  understand what you are saying and 

you must te l l  me i f  I  misunderstand.   You are saying – you 

are not  accusing him of  having done anything wrong but  you 

are saying Glencore – OCM or  some people in  Glencore – 

OCM as you see things i t  seems to you that  the reason why 

they may not  have – they might  not  have done due di l igence 10 

is that  they hoped that  they would use thei r  associat ion wi th 

him to their  benef i t  in terms of  thei r  interact ions wi th Eskom.  

Am I  correct? 

MR MOLEFE:   Indeed Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .   Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.   But  you are not  ascr ib ing any 

arrangement to that  end on the part  of  the President .  

MR MOLEFE:   No except  to know i t  that  when he lef t  

Glencore just  know he went to become Deputy President  and 

then Chai rman of  the War Room which I  descr ibed in my 20 

statement as defunct  to Chai rman of  Eskom because of  the 

way that  the War Room was operat ing.   Ja.   That  was also 

st range.   That  was also pecul iar.   Without  saying that  the 

War Room discussed old contracts I  am not  aware that  they 

did but  i t  would appear f rom even the evidence that  was 
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g iven here the level  of  detai l  that  the War Room was 

prepared to go into whi le he was Chai rman was strange 

because i t  was things that  were supposed to be deal t  wi th by 

the board.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  you may or may not  have a point .   My 

understanding was that  the – the people involved in the so 

cal led War Room were an ext raordinary measure that  was 

resorted to by the then President  Mr Zuma to t ry and say i t  

looks l ike ex ist ing structures are fai l ing to f ind a solut ion to  

the Eskom problems of  load shedding.   Please t ry and assist  10 

the country to f ind the solut ions and therefore i t  may wel l  be 

that  to f ind a solut ion might  need more detai ls  than normal.   

That  is  my thinking but  you may wel l  have a point .   I  am just  

saying this.  

MR MOLEFE:   I  agree wi th you Chai rperson and for 

whatever reason then put  him in  th is unenvious si tuat ion 

where normal ly in  the corporate wor ld you would have to wai t  

to cool  off  before you go into that  level  of  detai l  w i th the 

company that  was in a R2 bi l l ion and a R8 bi l l ion basical ly 

dispute to take over charge on behal f  of  the government.   20 

They would – there needed to be a cool ing off  per iod.   He 

had to be separated.   I  a lso make the point  that  when Mr 

Cyri l  Ramaphosa was Chairman of  the War Room the 

t ransact ion had not  been completed.   I t  was only approved 

by the Compet i t ion Commission in August  2015.   Now 
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Compet i t ion Commission is typical ly a condi t ion precedent to 

the f inal isat ion of  a contract .   So technical ly whi le he was 

Chairman of  the War Room he was in fact  st r ict ly speaking 

the shareholder.   For i f  the Compet i t ion Commission had not 

approved that  t ransact ion – any f inancial  benef i t  der ived 

would have accrued to him because the t ransact ion had not  

been consummated by ful f i l l ing the condi t ions precedent.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   That  is a very st range si tuat ion for me.  I  

th ink he should have recused himsel f  i f  he knew that  the – 10 

he has just  come out  of  th is company that  is having these 

di ff icul t  d iscussions wi th Eskom.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Have we received Mr Seleka any response 

f rom the President  to the Rule 3.3 Not ice entai l ing Mr 

Molefe’s statement of  last  t ime? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  am not  aware of  a response yet  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  But  the statement – the Rule 3.3 

Not ice was sent? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  was long sent  to the Presidency.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Ja okay.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   So – so as I  understand i t  in  regard 

to the ear l ier point  you do not  accuse him of  anything but  

you say other people may have hoped to use thei r  

associat ion wi th h im to thei r  benef i t .  
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MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  in regard to the War Room you – you 

say you think he should have recused himsel f  because he – 

he had – there has been no cool ing off  per iod? 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes and I  am not  saying he did anything.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja you are not  saying… 

MR MOLEFE:   Whi le he was at  the War Room. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  ja.  

MR MOLEFE:   But  I  am just  saying that… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  that  s i tuat ion.  10 

MR MOLEFE:   I t  was pecul iar that  s i tuat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MOLEFE:   That  we f ind ourselves in.   here we are – 

because Chai rperson when I  say we are not  agreeing wi th 

Glencore – when I  say that  we are not  agreeing wi th 

Glencore and we wi l l  not  entertain the ir  request  for an 

increase i t  could sound l ike I  am actual ly not  agreeing to  

doing a deal  that  Mr Ramaphosa is  involved in for a  person 

l ike mysel f .   Perhaps I  have the personal i ty to say that  i t  is 

not  correct  to do this t ransact ion.   I  do not  know i f  Eskom 20 

off ic ia ls who were in a posi t ion to oppose this th ing and 

knew that  Mr Ramaphosa was involved would have had the 

courage knowing that  look this th ing the Deputy President  is  

involved in th is th ing – i f  we touch this th ing you know my 

career could be f in ished.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   I f  we do something about th is my career could 

be f in ished.   Or the close associat ion that  he had wi th 

Glencore could mean that  you actual ly against  h im in a 

sense.   I t  could be read l ike that .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr Molefe I  was t ry ing to fo l low you.   I  

lost  you on two aspects.   One is the War Room and the other 

is Mr Ramaphosa’s involvement wi th Glencore.   Coming at  10 

establ ished the War Room Mr Ramaphosa was the Deputy 

President ;  he was made a chai rperson – the Chai rperson of  

the War Room. 

CHAIRPERSON:   The then President  establ ished i t  as I  

understand i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes we wi l l  come to that  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja and appointed him. 

ADV SELEKA SC:   And appointed him as the Chai rman of  

th is… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Sorry.  20 

ADV MASUKU:   Sorry can I  just  – because I  am get t ing a 

l i t t le concerned.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV MASUKU:   About  th is  ev idence tha t  i s  coming f rom 

both  the  ev idence leader  and the  Cha i r  about  how the  War  
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Room was es tab l i shed and why i t  was es tab l i shed and who  

was es tab l i sh ing  i t .   I  do  no t  reca l l  a  document  o f  ev idence  

g iven to  th is  commiss ion  on  those fac ts .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV MASUKU:   Where  is  tha t  in fo rmat ion  coming f rom – 

th is  ev idence?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  no ,  no  I  th ink  –  I  th ink  we… 

ADV MASUKU:   Sor ry  Cha i r  the  second one.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MASUKU:   The second one Mr  Mole fe  gave h i s  10 

ev idence las t  t ime to  my reco l lec t i on  what  i t  i s  was  to  g ive  

fac ts .   I t  i s  up  to  the  commiss ion  to  invest iga te  based on 

the  fac ts  tha t  he  gave the  quest ions you are  ask ing  h im  

about  whethe r  he  is  accus ing  anybody o f  anyth ing .   I  th ink  

i t  i s  un fa i r  to  –  to  ask  h im to  –  to  ask  h im on the  quest ion  

o f  whether  o r  no t  he  is  accus ing  anybody when  he has 

g iven you fac t s .    

 The f i rs t  obv ious ly  impor tan t  po in t  i s  to  de termine  

whethe r  o r  no t  the  fac ts  he  has g iven you are  co r rec t .   I f  

they  are  co r rec t  i t  i s  up  to  you Cha i r  to  dec ide  whethe r  20 

there  is  a  conf l i c t  o f  in te res t  tha t  can be read in to  i t  and 

tha t  rea l l y  takes  the  o ther  s ide  be ing  g iven a  hear ing  on  

whethe r  the  ev idence tha t  has been p rov ided by  Mr  Mole fe  

does c rea te  a  conf l i c t  o f  in te res t .  

 We ta lk ing  abou t  the  Pres ident  here  we are  no t  
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ta lk ing  about  anybody who i s  no t  –  who is  a  –  we are  

ta lk ing  somebody  very  impor tan t  to  th is  count ry  p lace  my  

c l ien t  in  a  pos i t i on  where  –  and he is  courageous  enough  

to  say what  he  wants  to  say bu t  I  –  I  do  want  to  caut ion  the  

quest ions tha t  a re  be ing  asked he re  are  quest ions I  am not  

fami l ia r  tha t  there  has been ev idence tha t  has been g iven  

wh ich  a l low –  I  mean on wh ich  –  on  wh ich  one can say we l l  

th is  i s  why the  War  Room was es tab l i shed.   Th is  i s  who 

es tab l i shed i t  and th is  i s  –  who  –  these are  the  fac ts  

sur round ing  i t s  purpose.   Those fac ts  a re  –  I  am sure  they  10 

are  somewhere  in  the  government  a rch ives.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no ,  no  le t  me say th is .  

1.  Wi th  regard  to  every  w i tness who g ives ev idence  i f  

there  i s  someth ing  tha t  needs to  be  c la r i f ied  in  h is  

ev idence inc lud ing  whether  he  is  mak ing  o r  she  is  

mak ing  a  ce r ta in  a l legat ions imp l ica t ing  somebody  in  

wrongdo ing  tha t  can be asked to  ge t  to  c la r i f y  and  

ac tua l l y  ask ing  tha t  quest ion  he lps  so  tha t  when any  

invest iga t ion  is  done i t  i s  done on  the  unders tand ing  

whethe r  there  is  an  a l legat ion  tha t  somebody has  20 

done someth ing  wrong and i f  i t  i s  c la r i f ied  to  say no  I  

am not  say ing  tha t  somebody has done anyth ing  

wrong tha t  m ight  save t ime in  whatever  invest iga t i on  

is  done as  opposed to  unders tand ing  a  w i tness to  be  

mak ing  an a l legat ion  o f  wrongdo ing  aga ins t  somebody 
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and invest iga t ing  an  a l legat ion  o f  wrongdo ing  tha t  

ac tua l l y  the  w i tness made or  never  in tended to  make.  

So tha t  c la r i f i ca t i on  is  impor tan t .  

2.  I  sa id  the  Pres ident  appo in ted  the  Deputy  Pres ident  

because my reco l lec t ion  is  tha t  tha t  was in  the  pub l i c  

domain .   Obv ious l y  i f  Mr  Mole fe  has a  d i f fe ren t  

unders tand ing  or  i f  anybody  has a  d i f fe ren t  

unders tand ing  they m ight  say  I  –  we are  no t  su re  

about  tha t  maybe  tha t  must  be  looked in to  and i t  can 

be looked in to .   But  obv ious l y  ra is ing  some o f  these  10 

th ings m ight  he lp  nar row whatever  invest iga t ion  m ight  

need to  be  done.   So tha t  i s  the  –  tha t  i s  the  contex t .  

Okay a l r i gh t .  

ADV MASUKU:   Cha i r  can I  jus t… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MASUKU:   And I  do  no t  mean to  engage in  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MASUKU:   And you know i t  is  no t  my s ty le .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV MASUKU:   Bu t  –  bu t  i t  i s  very  impor tan t  tha t  –  and I  20 

am g lad  you have exp la ined why you want  to  know the  – 

h is  a t t i tude whether  o r  no t  he  is  accus ing  anybody.   That  

shou ld  never  be  the  bas i s  on  wh ich  you conduct  an  

invest iga t ion .   You have been g i ven fac ts ,  th is  i s  what  

happened.   So and so  owns shares;  so  and so  is  the 
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cha i rperson o f  the  commiss ion  and there  are  t ransact ions  

tha t  a re  now invo lved wh ich  engage the  –  Eskom.   Those 

are  fac t s  I  th ink  i t  i s  rea l l y  –  rea l l y  jus t  t ry ing  to  –  to  ge t  us  

in to  your  po in t  where  we care fu l  about  pu t t ing  peop le  in  an  

un-env isage pos i t ions  o f  hav ing  to  say th ings they have not  

thought  about .   My reco l lec t ion  is  tha t  the  most  impor tan t  

th ing  fo r  th is  commiss ion  to  do  is  to  invest iga te  the  fac ts  

tha t  you have been g i ven.   On tha t  you can then –  because 

he can –  the  po in t  o f  the  mat te r  i s  you do not  have to  – he 

does not  have to  say tha t  –  tha t  –  he  does not  have to  10 

accuse anybody  fo r  the  commiss ion  to  conduct  i t s  own 

invest iga t ion .   He might  say  I  am not  accus ing  anybody but  

in  you r  invest iga t ion  you might  f ind  tha t  there  is  some 

wrongdo ing  and i t  i s  –  I  jus t  wor ry  about  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MASUKU:   H is  quest ion  –  l ine  o f  quest ion ing  tha t  

seems to  suggest  tha t  you do want  –  because  –  th is  

quest ion  you have asked –  can  you show you the  f ron t  

page tomorrow and h i s  answer  tha t  he  has g iven.   And – 

bu t  i t  i s  no t  sa fe  to  do  tha t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no ,  no   

ADV MASUKU:   To  some o f  our  c l ien ts .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Look the  pos i t ion  is  tha t  whether  a  

w i tness is  –  who g ives ev idence and the  commiss ion  wants  

to  invest iga te  ce r ta in  mat te rs  a r i s ing  f rom tha t  ev idence 
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whethe r  he  is  asked or  she is  asked here  a t  the  hear ing  by  

the  ev idence leader  o r  by  me cer ta in  i ssues tha t  may need  

to  be  asked o r  whethe r  he  is  asked by  the  inves t iga tors  

ou ts ide  o f  the  hear ing  a f te r  he  has g iven ev idence there  

w i l l  be  an  oppor tun i ty  to  ask  quest ions and  tha t  i s  

impor tan t  because tha t  i s  par t  o f  invest iga t ing  to  say 

exact ly  what  do  you know about  th is?   I s  your  knowledge  

such tha t  there  may be some wrongdo ing  tha t  we must  

pursue here  or  i s  you r  knowledge tha t  you do not  know i f  

there  i s  wrongdo ing  but  th is  i s  what  you know.   So th is  i s  10 

a imed to  –  to  look  a t  tha t .   But  a lso  we have a  l im i ted 

amount  o f  t ime as  the  commiss ion  so  i t  i s  un l i ke  2019 when 

we might  have had  a  lo t  o f  t ime and we have l im i ted  

resources.   Whatever  we can get  a t  the  ea r l ies t  oppor tun i ty  

we shou ld  t ry  and  get .  

ADV MASUKU:   Thank you Cha i r  fo r  c la r i f y ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Thank you.   Mr  Se leka.   Oh  we a re  

a t  one minute  to  f i ve  a l ready.   I  am not  sure  tha t  there  is  –  

o r  there  –  was there  a  quest ion  you had asked and tha t  

has no t  been answered?  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes there  was a  quest ion  I  wanted to  

ask  bu t  I  a lso  wanted to… 

CHAIRPERSON:   To  say someth ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   To  say someth ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Because the  ev idence on the  War  Room 

i t s  es tab l i shment  and runn ing  and in fo rmat ion  g iven to  i t  

was … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Was g iven a l ready.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Was par t  –  was  par t  o f  the  ev idence we 

led  under  the  suspens ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So we have the  documenta t ion  re la t ing  

to  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Bu t  we were  no t  go ing  to  ask  Mr  Mole fe  

about  tha t  un t i l  he  ment ions the  War  Room and the  Deputy  

Pres ident  as  the  Cha i rperson o f  the  War  Room.   As a  resu l t  

o f  tha t  quest ions  o f  c la r i t y  a r ise  and they w i l l  inherent ly  

a r ise  because we  need to  c la r i f y  cer ta in  th ings.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  par t  o f  the  po in t  you mak ing  is  tha t  

indeed there  was ev idence tha t  has been led  under  the  

suspens ion  o f  execut ives .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Execut ives .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wi th  regard  to  the  War  Room.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   And i t s  appo in tment  and so  on .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Because the  execut ives  pa r t l y  were  
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be ing  accused o f  no t  g iv ing  in fo rmat ion  to  the  War  Room o r  

inco r rec t  in fo rmat ion  ( ta lk ing  over  one another ) .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Or  conf l i c t ing  in fo rmat ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  we had to  go  in to  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  remember  tha t  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .   We had to  go  in to  tha t .   And then  

the  issue o f  the  in te res t  the  Pres ident  has in  G lencore .   

That  comes f rom Mr  Mole fe  and so  we have got ten  to  g ive  10 

h is  a f f idav i t  to  those he has imp l ica ted  and to  ge t  the i r  

response.   And I  wanted to  read –  we l l  I  was go ing  to  ra ise  

two po in t s  w i th  you Mr  Mole fe  in  regard  to  what  you have  

been exp la in ing  to  the  Cha i rperson.   So I  can do tha t  now 

or  I  can do tha t  tomorrow.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  i f  you  can do i t  tomorrow then tha t  

wou ld  be  –  then we w i l l  do  i t  tomorrow.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja  okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  we w i l l  ad jou rn  now.   The pos i t ion  i s  

tha t  we w i l l  con t i nue tomorrow I  thank eve rybody fo r  the i r  20 

coopera t ion  fo r  mak ing  i t  poss ib le  fo r  us  to  cont inue 

tomorrow.   We a re  meant  to  have Mr  Ano j  S ingh tomorrow.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  your  es t imate  is  tha t  we shou ld  f in ish 

be fore  lunch w i th  Mr  Mole fe ’s  ev idence.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And then Mr  Ano j  S ingh can then come in  

a t  tha t  s tage.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And –  ja  okay.   So we –  we w i l l  ad journ  

and we w i l l  s ta r t  a t  ten  tomorrow –  tomorrow as normal .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We ad jou rn .  

REGISTRAR:    A l l  r i se .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  w i l l  j us t  fo r  the  pub l i c  I  w i l l  come back 10 

there  w i l l  be  an  even ing  sess ion  so  I  am ad journ ing  so  that  

another  work  s t ream can come in  and then I  w i l l  hear  

ev idence f rom another  work  s t ream.   We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Good a f te rnoon Mr  Hu l ley.   Good 

a f te rnoon everybody.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Good a f te rnoon Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  see  the re  is  somebody mov ing  around 

where  Mr  Jouber t  i s .   Do you know who tha t  person is?  20 

ADV HULLEY SC:    That  i s  Mr  N icho lson f rom the  

Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

ADV HULLEY SC:    Mr  N icho lson f rom the  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    From the  Commiss ion?  
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ADV HULLEY SC:    He is  f rom the  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   I  was  

wonder ing  because there  shou ld  no t  be  anybody o ther  than 

somebody tha t  has jus t  been approved.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . .by  the  Commiss ion .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good a f te rnoon Mr  Jouber t .  

MR JOUBERT:    Good a f te rnoon Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good.   Do we have the  lega l  team for  10 

Co lone l  Mh longo around?  Are  they ava i lab le?   Have they  

been connected?  

COUNSEL :    Yes,  good a f te rnoon Cha i r.   We have been  

ab le  to  successfu l l y  connect  and we are  on(?) .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.   Good a f te rnoon.   Thank you  

very  much.   Thank you.  

COUNSEL :    Thank you Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .   P lease admin i s te r  the  oa th  

to  Mr  Jouber t  and  then we can s tar t .  

REGISTRAR:    Mr  Jouber t?  20 

MR JOUBERT:    Yes?  

REGISTRAR:    P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

WITNESS:    Ter rence John Jouber t .  

REGISTRAR:    Do you have any ob jec t ion  in  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  
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WITNESS:    No.  

REGISTRAR:    Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  

WITNESS:    Yes.  

REGISTRAR:    Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence 

you w i l l  g ive ,  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ,  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  

bu t  the  t ru th?   I f  so ,  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and say,  

so  he lp  me God.  

WITNESS:    So  he lp  me God.  

TERRENCE JOHN JOUBERT :   (d .s .s . )  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you Mr  Hu l ley.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Thank you Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    My reco l lec t ion  is  such tha t  we  shou ld  

no t  be  too  long w i th  Mr  Jouber t .   Is  tha t  so?  

ADV HULLEY SC:    That  i s  so  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   So . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV HULLEY SC:    Jus t  to  f i l l  i t  i n  Mr  Cha i r  what  has 

t ransp i red  s ince  the  las t  occas ion  s ince  we convened.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    You w i l l  reca l l  tha t  you have d i rec ted  20 

Co lone l  Mh longo  to  f i le  an  a f f idav i t  dea l ing  w i th  h is  

cha l lenge.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Wi th  h is  ev idence . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    On the  mer i t s .  
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ADV HULLEY SC:    And what  –  he  has in  fac t  done so .   

That  now fo rms par t  o f  the  LEA-10 Bund le  and i t  appears  

a t  page 210.27.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  page?  

ADV HULLEY SC:    210.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  s ta r t  w i th  the  bund le .   What  

bund le  a re  we us ing?  

ADV HULLEY SC:    We are  us ing  Bund le  LEA-10.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay and to  f ind  Co lone l  Mh longo ’s  

a f f idav i t ,  I  must  go  to  what  page? 10 

ADV HULLEY SC:    Yes,  i t  i s  a t  page 210.  

CHAIRPERSON:    2010?  

ADV HULLEY SC:    2010.   I  am sor ry  210.   Not  2010.  

CHAIRPERSON:    210,  no t  2010.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    H ’m.    

CHAIRPERSON:    210.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    210.27.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay,  okay.  Nobody has drawn to  my 

a t ten t ion  tha t  he  has f i led .   So I  have not  had a  chance to  

read i t  bu t  i t  seems to  be  a  shor t  a f f idav i t .  20 

ADV HULLEY SC:    I t  i s  a  13-page a f f idav i t ,  i f  you  exc lude  

the  f i rs t  and the  las t  page.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    That  i s  then 11  pages.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .  
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EXAMINATION BY  ADV HULLEY SC:    Thank you Mr  Cha i r.   

Now for  the  benef i t  o f  Mr  Jouber t ,  there  –  an  a f f idav i t ,  a  

new a f f idav i t  has  in  fac t  come in  f rom Colone l  Mh longo in  

wh ich  i t  dea ls  w i th  the  a l legat ions tha t  you have advanced  

and tha t  par t i cu la r  a f f idav i t  appears  a t  page 210,  the  

Bund le  LEA-10 tha t  you have go t  in  f ron t  o f  you  wh ich 

shou ld  inc lude pages 210.27.    

MR JOUBERT:    210.27. . .  [D is to r t ion  present  –  speaker  

inaud ib le . ]  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Have you got  i t ,  s i r?  10 

MR JOUBERT:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Okay.   Now jus t  –  and I  am no t  go ing  

to  take  you th rough spec i f i c  passages,  except  to  g ive  you  

the  g is t  o f  the  content .   But  accord ing  to  Mr  Mhlongo. . .   

Sor ry,  Co lone l  Mh longo.   What  he  says is  tha t  the  two o f  

you had been ve ry  c lose  f r iends when you f i rs t  jo ined the  

DSO in  2004.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR JOUBERT:    No,  tha t  i s  no t  co r rec t .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Now le t  us  jus t  b reak i t  up  in to  two  

d i f fe ren t  sec t ions .   When d id  you in  fac t  jo in  the  DSO? 20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry.   Jus t  repeat  the  quest i on .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    When d id  Mr  Jouber t ,  in  fac t ,  jo in  the  

DSO? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.   Ja?  

MR JOUBERT:    Ja ,  I  go t  t ransfer red  on the  
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1 s t  o f  January  2004 to  the  DSO.    

ADV HULLEY SC:    And tha t  was down in  KwaZulu -Nata l?  

MR JOUBERT:    Ja ,  I  was based in  East  London and I  on ly  

came across to  Durban the  20 t h  o f  January  o f  the  same 

year.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    And was tha t  when you met  m is ter  o r  

Co lone l  Mh longo fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime? 

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  co r rec t  s i r.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    And was he a l so  a  member  o f  the  DSO 

at  the  t ime? 10 

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Now you say you d isagree  w i th  h is  

s ta tement  and there  a re  two aspects  to  the  s ta tement .   The  

f i rs t  i s  tha t ,  i s  tha t  you became f r iends when you f i rs t  

jo ined the  DSO in  2004.   A re  you d isagree ing  w i th  the  fac t  

tha t  you became f r iends o r  wh ich  aspect  o f  your  s ta tement  

a re  you d isagree ing  w i th?  

MR JOUBERT:    I  am d isagree ing  w i th  the  fac t  tha t  we  

became f r iends.   We were  co l leagues,  s i t t ing  on  the  same 

f loor.   That  i s  about  i t .   He be longed to  the  Guangzhou 20 

Group and wh ich  I  was not  par t  o f .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Now he goes on to  say.   Sor ry,  and i f  I  

cou ld  jus t  cover  an  aspect .   The DSO,  eventua l l y,  was  

d isbanded and a  new organ isa t ion  the  DPCI ,  the  D i rec t i ve  

fo r  P r io r i t y  Cr imes Invest iga t ion  was es tab l i shed in  2008.   
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I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Now some peop le  were  requ i red  to  go  

over  to  o r  had to  choose whethe r  they a re  go ing  to  s tay  

w i th  the  Nat iona l  P rosecut ing  Author i t y  under  wh ich  the  o ld  

DSO have been and o the rs  had to  choose whether  they are  

go ing  to  go  ove r  jo in  the  SAPS in  wh ich  event  they wou ld  

go  w i th  the  DPCI .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    And what  d id  you choose?  10 

MR JOUBERT:    Wel l ,  I  chose to  s tay  on  and fo rm a  r i sk  

management  w i th in  the  NPA.   I  d id  no t  go  across  to  the 

po l i ce .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    And Co lone l  Mh longo,  wha t  d id  he 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR JOUBERT:    He went  back –  he  went  across  to  the  

po l i ce .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Now he says . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  Mr  Hu l l ey.   Maybe you shou ld  have  

s tar ted  o f f  by  recapp ing  what  ev idence he had g i ven up to  20 

las t  t ime and then –  so  tha t  the  pub l i c  can a lso  fo l low.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  where  we are  w i th  h i s  ev idence.   I  

know tha t  he  had  not  f in ished.   So .   But  I  cannot  remember  

where  he  was.  
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ADV HULLEY SC:    Thank you Mr  Cha i r  tha t  i s  in  o rde r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  r igh t .   And i t  may we l l  be  tha t  

you lead h im to  comple te  h is  ev idence and then maybe you  

then ra ise  Mr  Mhlongo ’s  vers ion  in  regards to  cer ta in  

aspects .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Aspects .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Thank you Mr  Cha i r.   Now,  Mr  Jouber t ,  

on  the  las t  occas ion  you had tes t i f ied  about  a  ce r ta in  

s ta tement  tha t  you had made some t ime in  2013.   Do you  10 

reca l l  tha t?   I  am jus t  go ing  to  g ive  you . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR JOUBERT:    Ja .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    I  am jus t  go ing  to  summar ise  some o f  

the  ev idence tha t  you wou ld  have g iven,  A ,  fo r  your  

benef i t ,  fo r  the  benef i t  o f  the  Cha i rpe rson and o f  course  fo r  

the  benef i t  o f  the  pub l i c .   Now you had deposed to  an  

a f f idav i t  in  2013 .   To  be  prec ise ,  the  24 t h  o f  November  

2013.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    And in  tha t  s ta tement  o r  a f f idav i t  tha t  20 

you gave,  you spoke about  a  conversa t ion .   In  fac t ,  two 

conversa t ions tha t  you have had w i th  Co lone l  Mh longo.   I s  

tha t  cor rec t?  

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Now in  respec t  o f  the  one conversa t ion  
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tha t  you spoke o f  you tes t i f ied  tha t  what  had t ransp i red  is  

tha t  he  had come in to  your  o f f i ce  to  d iscuss a  cer ta in  

mat te r  and wh i le  he  was –  wh i le  he  came –  or  wh i le  he  was 

in  your  o f f i ce ,  he  rece ived a  te lephone ca l l .    

 Dur ing  the  course  o f  tha t  conversa t ion  w i th  the  –  

w i th  whomever  was on the  o the r  end o f  the  te lephone,  you 

rea l i sed tha t  he  was speak ing  about  ce r ta in  very  sens i t i ve 

mat te rs  re la t ing  to  the  new Nat iona l  D i rec tor  o f  Pub l ic  

Prosecut ions,  Mr  Nxasana.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  10 

ADV HULLEY SC:    That  a t  some po in t ,  you commenced to  

record  what  he  was say ing  in  tha t  conversa t ion .    

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    And you tes t i f ied  tha t  a  t ranscr ip t  had 

been produced re la t ing  to  what  had t ransp i red  or  what  he  

had sa id  in  the  course  o f  tha t  conversa t ion .  

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    And I  have  d i rec ted  your  a t ten t ion  

th rough the  t ransc r ip t  in  the  bund le  o f  documents  tha t  i s  

be fore  you.   Do you reca l l  tha t?  20 

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Now you have taken us  th rough the  

contents  o f  tha t  t ranscr ip t  and you had exp la ined  to  the  

Commiss ion  ce r ta in  aspects  tha t  you have dea l t  w i th  in  the  

record ing  or  wh ich  was captu red  on the  record ing  and 
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cer ta in  aspects  wh ich  had preceded the  record ing .   Do you  

reca l l  tha t?  

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Now in  essence what  had t ransp i red  in  

the  d iscuss ion  tha t  you had w i th  Co lone l  Mh longo was tha t  

he  had adv i sed  you tha t  he  had been mandated by  

Advocate  Nomgcobo J iba  to  f ind  in fo rmat ion  tha t  wou ld  

p lace Mr  Nxasana in  a  bad l igh t .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    And in  the  course  o f  tha t  conversa t ion ,  10 

there  were  a  number  o f  aspects  wh ich  arose du r ing  the  

course  o f  the  conversa t ion .   You ment ioned some fou r  

aspects  bu t  the  two per t inent  aspects  tha t  a rose what  tha t  

you –  he  ment ioned tha t  Mr  Nxasana had apparent ly  been  

charged a t  some s tage w i th  the  murder  o f  a  par t i cu la r  

person and tha t  they were  invest iga t ing  to  t r y  and  loca te  

in fo rmat ion  re la t i ng  to  tha t  murder  charge.  

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    And the  second per t inent  aspect  was 

tha t  he  had ind ica ted  to  you  tha t  they had  found  20 

in fo rmat ion  re la t i ng  to  f raud charges fo r  f raud a l legat ion  in  

respect  o f  the  Road Acc ident  Fund .  

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    And he wanted your  ass i s tance ,  tha t  i s  

now Co lone l  Mh longo wanted your  ass i s tance in  t ry ing  to  
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speak to  somebody w i th in  the  Road Acc ident  Fund who 

might  be  ab le  to  ass is t  them o r  p rov id ing  w i th  fu r ther  

in fo rmat ion  or  documenta t ion  re la t ing  to  tha t  Road  

Acc ident  Fund a l l egat ions.  

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    And you had ind ica ted  tha t  you  wou ld  

pu t  h im in  touch  w i th  a person w i th in  the  Road Acc ident  

Fund but  you had –  bu t  in  t ru th ,  you were  s imp ly  lead ing  

them on or  lead ing  Co lone l  Mh longo on because you  

ac tua l l y  d id  no t  know anybody w i th in  the  Road Acc ident  10 

Fund.  

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Now. . .   So Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  wou ld  be  a 

summary o f  what  had t ransp i red .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    What  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  do  is ,  i s  to  move 

on to  -  because i t  seems tha t  the  a f f idav i t  o f  

Co lone l  Mh longo has to  a  la rge  ex ten t  nar rowed the  issues  

down in  ce r ta in  respects .   I  wou ld  l i ke  to  ge t  in to  the  

substance o f  the  a f f idav i t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Thank you Mr  Cha i r.   Now,  i f  we can 

jus t  back to  the  s ta tement  o f  Co lone l  Mh longo.   We have 

spoken about  the  fac t  tha t  accord ing  to  h im the  two o f  you  

were  fa i r l y  –  i t  appears  –  and  he does not  use  th is  
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language per  se  bu t  the  substance o f  what  he  is  say ing  is  

tha t  the  two o f  you were  c lose  f r iends.   And you came 

down and jo ined  the  DSO in  KwaZulu-Nata l  in  Durban.   

Now you d i sagree  w i th  tha t?    

MR JOUBERT:    Yes,  I  de f in i te ly  d isag ree w i th  tha t .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Now a f te r  the  DSO had in  fac t  been 

d isbanded,  the  –  we got  to  the  po in t  where  you had made 

the  e lec t ion  to  say w i th  the  NPA and he had made the  

e lec t ion  to  take  employment  w i th  the  DPCI  wh ich  now 

res ided under  the  SAPS,  South  A f r ican Po l ice  Serv i ce .  10 

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Now phys ica l l y,  where  were  you 

loca ted then?  And i f  I  say  you,  I  mean you persona l ly.   

Where  were  you  loca ted in  te rms o f  wh ich  bu i ld ing  were  

you a t  a f te r  the  sp l i t?  

MR JOUBERT:    We bas ica l l y  jus t  moved f loors  f rom the  

6 t h  f loor  to  the  3 r d  f loor  on  the  same bu i ld ing ,  Southern  

L igh t  Bu i ld ing  and the  po l i ce ,  obv ious ly,  had to  leave to  the 

var ious un i ts  wh ichever  one they app l ied  to  and were  

t ransfer red  to .  20 

ADV HULLEY SC:    And in  the  case o f  Co lone l  Mh longo,  he  

had obv ious ly  taken up employment  w i th  the  DPCI  wh ich  is  

commonly  known as the  Hawks.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  cor rec t .   So he obv ious ly  moved  

w i th  the  res t  o f  the  c lang when they were  moved.  
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ADV HULLEY SC:    Now a t  some s tage he re tu rned f rom 

the  ev idence tha t  you have g i ven on the  prev ious occas ion  

and  f rom h is  a f f idav i t ,  he  re tu rned to  the  bu i ld ing .   Th is  

t ime to  take  up a  pos i t ion  –  he  was seconded to  come and 

ass is t  in  the  Miss ing  Persons Un i t .  

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.   He was seconded 

to  th is  PRC and  he moved to  our  bu i ld ing ,  back in to  our  

bu i ld ing .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Now accord ing  to  h im,  he  says tha t  the  

re la t ionsh ip  be tween the  two o f  you deter io ra ted  a f te r  the  10 

s ta tement  o r  your  a f f idav i t  on  the  25 t h  o f  November  o f  2013  

came to  l igh t .   He became aware  o f  i t  and the  re la t ionsh ip  

be tween the  two o f  you became f ros ty  a f te r  tha t .   What  i s  

your  response to  tha t?  

MR JOUBERT:    Cha i r,  the  words tha t  I  wou ld  use is ,  there  

was never  a  re la t ionsh ip  pe r  se .   I t  was mere l y  –  he  was  

mere ly  my co l league a t  the  t ime o f  the  DSO.   Now he 

became an acqua in tance.   Somebody I  knew.   We had  

space on our  f loor.   They needed space.   So I  ac tua l l y  

asked the  o f f i ce  manager  to  move  h im f rom wherever  they  20 

were  s i t t ing  to  my f loor  wh ich  was on the  3 r d  f loo r.   And 

tha t  was i t .   To  say tha t  we were  f r iends based on tha t  I  

wou ld  no t  agree.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Okay.   Now in  re la t ion  to  the  

conversa t ion  tha t  you recorded and he conf i rms f rom h is  
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a f f idav i t  tha t  the re  was in  fac t  a  record ing .   He conf i rms  

tha t  he  subsequent ly  became aware  o f  the  reco rd ing .   So  

tha t  does not  seem to  be  a  bone  o f  content ion  or  an  area 

o f  d ispute .  

 But  what  he  says about  tha t  conversa t ion  is  

essent ia l l y  tha t  you were  the  person tha t  in i t ia ted  the  

conversa t ion .   You were  the  person tha t  had  ra ised  

concerns about  the  appo in tment  o r  ra ther  about  cer ta in  

invest iga t ions tha t  Mr  Nxasana was in tend ing  to  ins t i tu te  

aga ins t  peop le  w i th in  the  NPA o f  wh ich  you were  one.  10 

 What  do  you say about  tha t .  

MR JOUBERT:    I  wou ld  say tha t  i s  a  bunch o f  l ies  fo r  a  

lack  o f  a  be t te r  express ion  because remember  Mr  Nxasana 

was about  to  s ta r t  work  a t  my. . .   My bat te ry  i s  f la t .   Sor ry,  

jus t  two seconds.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

MR JOUBERT:    Sor ry  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR JOUBERT:    Jus t  to  recap aga in .   I  had no dea l ings –  I  

d id  no t  even know Mr Nxasana.   I  knew h is  r igh t -hand man  20 

who was Advoca te  Duma.   Th is  guy was go ing  to  –  was 

car ry ing  on  fo r  h imse l f  w i th  regards to  invest iga t ions tha t  

he  is  under tak ing  aga ins t  th is  new guy.  

 I  saw i t  f i t  to  record  th is  guy fo r  two reasons.   

One is ,  there  was somebody tha t  i s  go ing  to  be  
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invest iga ted  w i thout  h is  knowledge.   Th i s  guy was 

appo in ted  on the  30 t h  o f  August .    

 I  jus t  saw i t  f i t  to  record  what  th is  guy was 

say ing ,  g iv ing  i t  to  Duma who was the  adv isor  to  

Mr  Nxasana fo r  h im to  know tha t  there  was th is  

invest iga t ion  and I  was mere l y  do ing  my job .  

 As  to  h i s  c la ims o f  me hav ing  –  be ing  wor r ied  o f  

cases opened aga ins t  me by  Mr Nxasana tha t  i s  a  lo t  o f  

l ies .   That  i s  one  th ing  I  can te l l  you .   That  i s  so  fa r  f rom 

the  t ru th .    10 

ADV HULLEY SC:    Okay le t  us  jus t  chat  abou t  those  

cases.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Hu l ley,  I  am sor ry.   Has Mr  Jouber t  

been g iven Co lone l  Mh longo ’s  a f f idav i t ,  la tes t  a f f idav i t  and 

asked to  respond  to  i t?  

ADV HULLEY SC:    We d id  prov ide  i t  to  h im and asked h im 

to  respond.   Unfo r tunate ly,  he  d id  no t  have su f f i c ien t  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    We thought  i t  wou ld  jus t  make sense i f  

I  led  h im.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .   Maybe. . .   I t  may  or  may 

not  be  necessary  a f te r  he  has f in ished fo r  h im to  

never the less  prov ide  and a f f idav i t ,  jus t  so  tha t  there  is  a  

response in  wr i t ing .    

ADV HULLEY SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    When one looks a t  Co lone l  Mh longo ’s  

a f f idav i t ,  one can have regard  to  h is  responses  as  we l l  

apa r t  f rom the  fac t  tha t  he  is  respond ing  now.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Ja ,  we w i l l  a t tend to  tha t  o f f  the  a i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Thank you Mr  Cha i r.   Now what  he  

says is  to  be  spec i f i c .   He says tha t  you ment ioned  to  h im 

tha t  there  were  in  fac t  two cases  tha t  you had tha t  were  10 

o ld  cases aga ins t  you and i f  you. . .   In  fac t ,  to  be  prec i se ,  I  

th ink  tu rn  to  page  210.33 a t  paragraph 17.7 .  

MR JOUBERT:    Yes.   Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Now a t  17 .7  he  says tha t  he ,  tha t  i s  

nor  re fe r r ing  now to you,  spec i f i ca l l y  ment ioned the  case  

the  you had to  w i th  the  tender  –  w i th  a  tender  fo r  the 

procu rement  o f  secur i t y  serv ices  in  respect  o f  wh ich  he  

had been suspended a t  some po in t  and the  case invo lv ing  

the  un lawfu l  use  o f  an  o f f i c ia l  f i rea rm.  

 Now le t  us  jus t  b reak th is  up  in to  par t s .   F i rs t l y,  20 

were  you eve r  suspended in  respect  o f  any cases?  

MR JOUBERT:    Yes,  Cha i r  . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV HULLEY SC:    And . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR JOUBERT:    I  was suspended f rom the  NPA four  t imes 

to  be  exact .   I  w i l l  g ive  you the  sequence.   The f i rs t  t ime I  
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suspended fo r  an  assau l t  tha t  never  took p lace.   I  was then 

re ins ta ted .   The  second t ime was fo r  some gun- runn ing  

tha t  was found to  be  fa lse .    

 The th i rd  t ime fo r  the  secur i t y  tender  th ing  tha t  I  

was ar res ted  fo r.   I  jus t  need to  a lso  ment ion  tha t  I  b lame 

the  s ta te  fo r  and. . .    

 And the  four th  t ime was fo r  hav ing  R 30 100,00  

in  my car  wh ich  they subsequent ly  now want  to  re tu rn  to  

me.   So those a re  the  four  t imes tha t  I  was suspended f rom 

the  NPA.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you ab le  to  g ive  years ,  even  i f  i t  i s  

no t  the  exact  da tes ,  wh ich  years  you were  suspended 

those four  t imes?  

MR JOUBERT:    Not  exact  bu t  I  remember  2011 was the  

year  tha t  I  was suspended fo r  th is  tender  th ing .   I  th ink 

2010/2009 fo r  assau l t .   I  am speak ing  under  co r rec t ion  

Cha i r.   And rough ly,  I  th ink  roundabout  2017/2018 fo r  th is  

gun- runn ing  th ing .   And 2019 fo r  th is  R 30 100,00 tha t  i t  

had in  my car.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.   So are  you w i th  regard  to  the  20 

a l legat ions o f  assau l t  fo r  wh ich  you say you were  

suspended,  was there  a  d i sc ip l inary  i nqu i ry  tha t  fo l lowed  

tha t  wh ich  . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR JOUBERT:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . found you not  gu i l t y  o r  what  
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happened?  D id  they found you no t  gu i l t y?  

MR JOUBERT:    Fo r  each o f  these suspens ions,  I  went  

th rough the  d i sc ip l inary  process.  

CHAIRPERSON:    D isc ip l inary  process,  yes .  

MR JOUBERT:    I  ac tua l l y  went  to  cour t  f i rs t .   I  was found  

not  gu i l t y  on  th is  charge,  on  the  assau l t .   And then I  was  

re ins ta ted .   Wi th  the  gun- runn ing  th ing ,  i t  never  reached  

cour t .   I t  was a  suspens ion ,  a  ve ry. . .  suspens ion ,  by  the 

way.   But  be  tha t  as  i t  may.   I  was then re ins ta ted .  

 Wi th  the  tender  –  the  secur i t y  tender.   Jus t  to  10 

g ive  you a  background.   I  was runn ing  the  KZN o f f i ce .   

There  was a  secur i t y  tender  tha t  came out  tha t  was 

hand led  in  Pre to r ia .   My duty  was to  s tamp the  fo rms o f  

each and eve ry  company tha t  came to  do  inspect ion  o f  the  

s i tes  wh ich  I  d id .    

 And fo r  tha t  I  was pa r t  and pa rce l  a r res ted  w i th  

the  res t  o f  the  c lang f rom head  o f f i ce  wh ich  I  had no 

dea l ings w i th .  But  tha t  was jus t  to  g ive  you a  background 

o f  what  happened  to  me.    

 I  go t  a r res ted ,  I  spent  f i ve  days in  custody and  20 

fo r  tha t  the  case  was –  o r  the  second appearance  i t  was  

th rown out  o f  cou r t .   I t  never  went  back.   We then lodged a  

c iv i l  c la im aga ins t  a l l  the  necessary  ind i v idua ls  invo lved in  

th is  and we a re  s t i l l  wa i t ing  fo r  tha t  th ing  to  be  conc luded.    

 As  fo r  the  four th  one wh ich  is  the  la tes t  one.   In  



02 MARCH 2021 – DAY 353 
 

Page 215 of 299 
 

2019,  on  the  12 t h  o f  October,  fo r  some reason the  po l i ce  a t  

McDona ld ’s  s topped my ca r,  searched my car.   I  had my  

f i rearm wi th  me.   They were  no t  in te res ted  in  tha t .   They  

found R 30 100,00 in  my car.   And they sa id :   No,  I  am 

cor rup t .   I  must  have co l lec ted  or  whatever  the  case might  

be .    

 But  tha t  case is  a lso  has run  i t s  course  because  

I  have got  a  copy  here  tha t  I  was about  to  send where  the  

NPA sa id  there  is  no  –  they are  no t  go ing  to  take  th is  

mat te r  any fu r the r  and I  cou ld  co l lec t  my money f rom the  10 

re levant  po l i ce  s ta t ion .  

 But  a l l  o f  th is  Cha i r,  I  have seen i t  as  peop le  –  

there  were  peop le  beh ind  th is  bu t  I  do  no t  want  to  ment ion  

names now on na t iona l  te lev i s ion .   I  w i l l  dea l  w i th  i t  a t  the 

r igh t  t ime.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    I  want  to  dea l ,  i f  I  m igh t .   I t  was jus t  

the  two mat te rs  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  Mr  Hu l ley.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Sor ry  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  regard  to  one,  I  th ink  i t  i s  the  20 

occas ion  when you say the  po l i ce  found you are  in  

possess ion  o f  about  R 30 000 and  you were  ar res ted  and  

spent  f i ve  days in  po l i ce  custody.   Were  you ever  charged?   

MR JOUBERT:    No.   No,  no .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  no t  about  tha t  one.  
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MR JOUBERT:    For  the  secur i t y  tender  I  was ar res ted  and 

I  spent  f i ve  days in  custody in  Pre tor ia .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  fo r  the  …[ in tervenes]  

MR JOUBERT:    For  th is  one they  jus t  took my money and 

put  i t  in  the  13  and was invest iga t ing  the  mat te r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

MR JOUBERT:    Up to  now tha t  I  have been g iven 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    How long ago was i t  when they took your  

money?  10 

MR JOUBERT:    I t  happed on the  12  October  2019.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.   Have they no t  to ld  you anyth ing  

about  what  i s  happen ing?  

MR JOUBERT:    No,  no ,  as  I  sa id ,  I  am s i t t ing  here  w i th  a 

document  tha t  I  wou ld  fo rward  to  Adv Hu l ley  in  due course  

in  the  course  o f  bus iness ton igh t ,  jus t  fo r  h im to  have a  

look a t  th is  document  to  show tha t  these guys have now 

opted to  g ive  me my money back a f te r  a r res t ing  me fo r  

hav ing  R30 100.  

CHAIRPERSON :    A re  you say ing  the  po l i ce  have wr i t ten  to  20 

you want ing  to  make ar rangements  to  g ive  the  money back 

to  you?  

MR JOUBERT:    The NPA,  the  person tha t  was dea l ing  w i th  

th is  mat te r  was A Waters  f rom the  NPA,  the  Capta in  B  E  

Ndwada(? )  was the  IO,  the  case number  i s  a  Durban Nor th  
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CAS 135/10/2019 .   They bas ica l l y  jus t  in fo rmed my lawyer  

tha t  I  can now –  there  is  no  –  there  is  no th ing  tha t  came,  

there  is  no  ev idence to  p rove anyth ing  tha t  was suggested  

aga ins t  Mr  Jouber t  and there fo re  he  can –  he  has dec l ined 

to  p rosecute  and  cash monies  can now be re t r ieved f rom 

th is  Durban Nor th  SAPS.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  al r ight ,  thank you.   So in  respect  

o f  none o f  these  a l legat ions  tha t  have been made aga ins t  

you have you been fo rmal ly  charged a t  any s tage?  

MR JOUBERT:    The on ly  one tha t  I  was fo rmal ly  charged  10 

fo r  was the  secur i t y  tender  one.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR JOUBERT:    And tha t  i s  the  one tha t  was th rown out  o f  

cour t  on  the  28  May 2012.   Th is  case was th rown out  o f  

cour t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Was tha t  a f te r  some ora l  ev idence had 

been led  in  cour t  o r  was tha t  be fore  any wi tnesses gave 

ev idence?  

MR JOUBERT:    Be fore  any wi tnesses tes t i f ied  th is  case 

was th rown out .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r ight .   Mr  Hu l ley?  

MR HULLEY SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Now tha t  i s  the  one 

mat te r  tha t  he  ment ions and accord ing  to  you tha t  the  

charges had been w i thd rawn or  the  case had been th rown  

out  o f  cou r t  on  the  28  May o f  2012 .  
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MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

MR HULLEY SC :    And then he ment ions a  second  mat te r  

and tha t  i s  the  case invo lv ing  an  un lawfu l  use  o f  an  o f f i c ia l  

f i rearm.   Was the re  in  fac t  such a  case aga ins t  you? 

MR JOUBERT:    Yes,  there  was such a  case aga ins t  me  

and then tha t  case never  saw l igh t  o f  day in  cour t  because  

i t  never  –  I  was  never  charged,  o f f i c ia l l y  charged  fo r  i t .   

We were  on  duty,  we were  do ing  duty  in  K imber ley  dur ing  

the  John B lock  t r ia l ,  each one o f  us  were  issued w i th  

f i rearms.   There  was noth ing  un toward  in  any  o f  my  10 

ac t ions,  I  was g iven a  f i rearm,  I  s igned fo r  i t  and then 

when I  came back I  gave i t  back,  there  was noth ing  

whatsoever  i n  my ac t ions tha t  suggested tha t  I  had done 

anyth ing  wrong w i th  f i rearms or  un lawfu l  possess ion  or  

whatever  o f  f i rearms as  Co lone l  Mh longo has suggested 

here .  

MR HULLEY SC :    Now tha t  par t i cu la r  aspect  o r  tha t  

par t i cu la r  case,  d id  i t  ever  resu l t  in  charges be ing  brought  

aga ins t  you?  

MR JOUBERT:    No,  Cha i r,  tha t  case a l so  d ied  a  na tura l  20 

death  and noth ing  happened w i th  tha t  case.   I  gave my  

vers ion  and tha t  was i t .   

MR HULLEY SC :    So  there  was some concerns tha t  had 

been ra i sed,  i s  tha t  co r rec t ,  abou t  your  possess ion  o f  the  

f i rearm? 
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MR JOUBERT:    Yes,  th is  was dur ing  the  t ime o f  Menz i  

S imelane.  

MR HULLEY SC :    And when d id  tha t  i ssue –  you say tha t  

no th ing  fu r ther  came o f  i t ,  when d id  you las t  hear  about  

tha t  case?  

MR JOUBERT:    The las t  t ime I  heard  o f  the  case was  

somewhere  i n  –  I  th ink  Menz i  le f t  in  2011,  somewhere  in  

2011,  tha t  was the  las t  t ime I  heard  o f  tha t  case.  

MR HULLEY SC :    Now when Mr  Nxasana came in to  o f f i ce ,  

he  wou ld  come in to  o f f i ce  on  the  1  October  2013,  i s  tha t  10 

cor rec t?  

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  he  was –  ja ,  I  th ink  2013 

October  was h i s  f i rs t  day,  to  be  h is  f i rs t  day.  

MR HULLEY SC :    D id  you rece ived any ind ica t ion  f rom Mr  

Nxasana or  anybody e lse  te l l ing  you about  the  in ten t ions o f  

Mr  Nxasana,  tha t  i t  was h is  in ten t ion  to  “ resusc i ta te ”  those 

cases?  

MR JOUBERT:    No,  Cha i r,  no th ing  whatsoever.  

MR HULLEY SC :    Now he a lso  says in  paragraph  17.8  o f  

the  same a f f idav i t  on  page 210.33,  he  says tha t :  20 

“As I  sympath i se  w i th  h im he compla ined about  Mr  

Nxasana ta rge t ing  peop le  w i th  p rev ious cases when  

he h imse l f  had prev ious cases,  he  ment ioned to  me 

tha t  he  had come across a  murder  case aga ins t  Mr  

Nxasana in  the  course  o f  ve t t ing  h im,  tha t  i s  Mr  
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Nxasana ’s  employment ,  in  the  r i sk  and secur i t y  un i t  

bu t  he  was unab le  to  ob ta in  grea ter  de ta i l  on  the  

case. ”  

Now the  f i rs t  quest ion  is ,  d id  you in  fac t  conduct  the 

ve t t ing  o f  Mr  Nxasana?  

MR JOUBERT:    No,  Cha i r.   Mr  Nxasana was a  po l i t i ca l  

appo in tee ,  one.   And the  peop le  tha t  dea ls  w i th  po l i t i ca l  

appo in tees ’ ve t t ing  a t  the  t ime was NIA ,  the  Nationa l  

Inte l l igence Agencies,  we had nothing to  do with  vett ing of 

Mr Nxasana, so that is  a l ie .  10 

MR HULLEY SC :    Very wel l  and insofar  as you had 

acquired knowledge of any murder case that Mr Nxasana 

was invo lved in,  how would acquire knowledge of that  fact?  

MR JOUBERT:    The only t ime I  got to hear  o f a  murder  

case that Mr  Nxasana was involved in was from Colonel  

Mhlongo h imself .   I  never  know who Nxasana was,  I  never  

knew he had a case let a lone a murder case for that  matter.   

How would  I  have known of th is?  I  def in i te ly d id  not know. 

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr Hul ley… 

MR HULLEY SC :    Thank you, Mr Chair.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    While  l isten ing to Mr Joubert ’s  evidence 

I  have been try ing to fami l ia r ise myself  wi th  Colonel  

Mhlongo’s aff idavit .  

MR HULLEY SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Which I  have just f in ished.  I t  would  
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appear to me – and I  want to  conf irm whether  that is your 

understand ing as wel l ,  that  Colone l Mhlongo does not deny 

the content  of  the recorded conversat ion but he says that  

was not  the f i rs t  conversat ion that  he and Mr Joubert had 

about Mr  Nxasana ’s appointment.  

MR HULLEY SC :    Correct.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And they had had previous conversat ions 

or a  previous conversat ion and he then says in  e ffect i t  was 

Mr Joubert who in i t ia ted the d iscussion between the two of 

them about Mr  Nxasana ’s appointment and that he wanted 10 

to do certa in th ings in  order to have Mr  Nxasana not to 

resuscita te d isc ip l inary proceedings aga inst h im.  I  do not 

know whether some cr imina l proceedings as wel l ,  but he did  

not want  that to  happen but – and then he at tacks h is 

cred ib i l i ty and re l iabi l i ty on the basis o f var ious matters that 

he ra ises.   Am I correct?  

MR HULLEY SC :    You are absolu te ly correct,  Mr Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR HULLEY SC :    Perhaps i f  I  can star t  here,  Mr Joubert,  

what Colone l Mhlongo says is that  th is conversat ion where 20 

you recorded the two of  you engaged in  a d iscussion, he is  

saying that  was in fact not the f i rs t  t ime that the two of you 

had in fact  engaged in a conversat ion re lat ing to Mr  

Nxasana. 

MR JOUBERT:    That  is  def in i te ly not t rue,  Chair.   Me and 
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Co lonel  Mhlongo, the on ly t ime we spoke about the 

appointment of  Mr  Nxasana was the day I  recorded th is 

matter.  

MR HULLEY SC :    Now he a lso says that the very f i rs t  t ime 

the two of you had a d iscussion,  he says at  paragraph 17.1 

that  he had expressed dismay at  the appoin tment of  Mr  

Nxasana because he f i rs t ly  knew Mr  Nxasana, he had had 

previous deal ings with h im and the deal ings that he had had 

wi th h im was not  p leasant dea l ings.  Now that was the f i rst ,  

the very f i rs t  occasion that  the two of  you had had a 10 

discussion.  

MR JOUBERT:    No,  Mr Chair.   As I  sa id ear l ier  on, I  on ly 

had one d iscussion with  Colonel  Mhlongo and the record ing 

speaks for  i tsel f .   You know, I  never  had any other 

d iscussions or  meetings with  Colonel  Mhlongo about Mr  

Nxasana and his appointment.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But d id he ever say to you that Mr  

Nxasana had previously treated h im badly and that for that  

reason he d id not  l ike because that is part  of  what he says 

he shared with  you? 20 

MR JOUBERT:    Chair,  to  be honest wi th you,  I  cannot 

reca l l  h im making that  statement to me.  I  rea l ly  and t ru ly 

cannot .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  So that  is f ine.  Mr Hul ley you may 

proceed.   I  just  real ised I  d id not  swi tch off  my phone. 
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MR HULLEY SC :    Thank you, Mr Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR HULLEY SC :    And then the  -  accord ing to h im the 

conversat ion that you recorded took p lace on the 24 

November o f 2013, would that be correct?  

MR JOUBERT:    Mr Chair,  what  I  can remember is that the 

record ing took p lace on the 18 September as per my 

aff idavit .   The aff idavi t  that I  had given was given on the 25 

November.  

MR HULLEY SC :    Was there any conversat ion 10 

…[intervenes]  

MR JOUBERT:    Because I  remember g iving the record ing 

to Advocate Duma and he later on requested that  I  

substant ia te my record ing with  an aff idavit ,  which I  d id.  

MR HULLEY SC :     Now according to h im, he says that the 

conversat ion i tse lf  took p lace on the 25 November.  Was 

there any conversat ion that took place on the 25 

November?  You say that the conversat ion where you 

recorded h im took place on the 18 September, he says i t  

took p lace on the 25 November.   Was there any 20 

conversat ion between the two of you on the 25 November 

re lat ing to  Mr  Nxasana? 

MR JOUBERT:    The answer to  that,  Chair,  is no because 

after the recording Colonel Mhlongo was evicted f rom our 

bui ld ing and I  have never  seen him af ter  that .   So the 
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answer to  your  quest ion is  no,  we never  had a conversat ion 

after  the recording. 

MR HULLEY SC :    When you say that a fter  the recording he 

was evicted f rom the bu i ld ing,  just exp la in  how that 

happened, how d id he go from the record ing to  the evict ion, 

just exp la in  the process? 

MR JOUBERT:    A f te r  the  guys had  head o ff ice  heard  o f  

Colonel Mhlongo’s  shenan igans v ia  the  record ing  they 

then  wro te  to  the  person  tha t  he  works  wi th  an  requested 

he  leaves the  bu i ld ing  wi th  immed ia te  e ffect .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    How soon a f te r  the  day o f  the  record ing  

was i t  tha t  he  was –  tha t  he  le f t  the  bu i ld ing ,  i f  you  a re 

ab le  to  remember?   A week,  a  month ,  two  months?  

MR JOUBERT:    I  th ink  about  a  week,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR JOUBERT:    I  s tand  cor rected .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR JOUBERT:    Bu t  I  th ink  a round about  a  week o r  so  

a f te r  the  record ing  he  go t  h is  march ing  o rders .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

MR HULLEY SC :    Now the  record ing ,  obv ious ly  you  sa id  

tha t  you  had  sen t  i t  to  Mr  Duma,  i s  tha t  co r rect?  

MR JOUBERT:    Just  repea t  tha t  p lease? 

MR HULLEY SC :    I f  I  reca l l  co r rect ly,  your  tes t imony was  

tha t  you  had  sen t  o r  you  had  p rov ided  Mr  Duma wi th  the 
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record ing ,  is  tha t  co r rect?  

MR JOUBERT:    Tha t  is  co r rect .  

MR HULLEY SC :    And  the  a ff idav i t  we  know was p rov ided 

on  the  25  November  o f  2013 .   

MR JOUBERT:    Tha t  is  co r rect ,  Cha i r.  

MR HULLEY SC :    Now when you  speak about  Colonel  

Mhlongo be ing  ev ic ted  f rom the  bu i ld ing ,  was i t  pursuant  

to  the  p rov is ion  o f  the  a ff idav i t  o r  pursuant  to  the 

p rov is ion  o f  the  record ing  o r  bo th? 

MR JOUBERT:    As I  have  sa id ,  I  th ink  i t  was shor t ly  a f te r  10 

the  record ing ,  a f te r  they l is tened to  the record ing  tha t  he 

was  ev ic ted .  

MR HULLEY SC :    So  tha t  wou ld  have  been somet ime in  

September  then  o f  …[ in te rvenes]  

MR JOUBERT:    The  cor rect  da te  thereo f  I  am no t  in  a  

pos i t ion  to  te l l  you ,  Cha i r,  on  wh ich  da te  he  was  ev ic ted  

bu t  i t  was shor t ly  a f te r  the  record ing .  

MR HULLEY SC :    Now i f  I  cou ld  jus t  ask you  to  tu rn  wi th  

me in  the  bund le  –  sor ry,  in  EXHIBIT Y11 at  page 326. 

CHAIRPERSON :    Is  that  a  d i f ferent bundle than the one 20 

that I  have? 

MR HULLEY SC :    I t  is not a d i f ferent bundle , i t  is st i l l  part  

of the LEA bundle 10,  i t  is  just under EXHIBIT Y11, Mr 

Chair .  

CHAIRPERSON :    What page is EXHIBIT Y11? 
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MR HULLEY SC :    We are looking, to be speci f ic,  page 

326.1.  

MR JOUBERT:    326 or 236? 

CHAIRPERSON :    326. 

MR HULLEY SC :    326. 

MR JOUBERT:    326, Y11.  

MR HULLEY SC :    That  is  correct.  

MR JOUBERT:    Yes.  

MR HULLEY SC :    Now th is is a  let ter  which is  f rom the 

SAPS speci f ica l ly from the Provincia l  Commissioner 10 

L ieutenant General B M Ngubeni and i t  is addressed to the 

Director  of  Publ ic  Prosecut ion o f  Kwazulu-Natal  who we 

know at the t ime was Advocate Ngoko and i t  says, 

paragraph 1:  

“At tached herewith f ind a  communicae rece ived f rom 

of the o ff ice o f  Pr ior i ty Cr imes Li t igat ion Unit .   

Kind ly ensure that the members are in formed and to 

report  to the ir  or ig inal posts with immediate  effect.   I  

t rust  that  you wi l l  f ind th is in  order. ”  

And the heading of the le t ter :  20 

“Request for immediate terminat ion of secondment 

of Colonel S W Mhlongo, Sergeant J D Radebe and 

WO I  Q Shando to the Missing Persons Task Team.”  

Do you see that?  

MR JOUBERT:    Yes.  



02 MARCH 2021 – DAY 353 
 

Page 227 of 299 
 

MR HULLEY SC :    And i f  you go over to the fo l lowing page, 

a let ter that  has been referred to by L ieutenant General 

Ngubene is that which appears at  page 326.2, i t  is  dated 

the 2  December of  2013 and i t  is  in  fact  addressed to  

L ieutenant  General Ngubene.   And i f  you go to the last  page 

you wi l l  see that i t  is f rom Advocate S K Abrahams, 

Advocate Shaun Abrahams and the essence of i t ,  and I  do 

not wish to take you through i t ,  but the essence of  i t  is to  

complain about  the fact that  Colonel Mhlongo was 

apparent ly responsib le for conduct ing an invest igat ion 10 

against Mr  Nxasana. 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry, are you saying that  is  in  the 

let ters? 

MR HULLEY SC :    I f  you look at  – i f  you wi l l  see i t  says:  

“The request for immediate  terminat ion of 

secondment of  Colonel  S W Mhlongo, Sergeant  J D 

Radebe and WO I Q Shando to the Missing Persons 

Task Uni t .”  

I t  says:  

1. Colonel  Mhlongo has been seconded by one of 20 

your  predecessors to  assist  the Missing Persons 

Task Team in  the Prior i ty  Crimes L it igat ion Unit  in  

the off ice of the NDPP in the execut ion of i ts  

mandate in tracing and ident i fy ing the remains o f 

persons who disappeared dur ing the strugg le for 
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l iberat ion f rom aparthe id dur ing the per iod 

covered by the Truth  and Reconci l ia t ion 

Commission.”  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja, what I  wanted to ask was, I  assume 

that the only reason you were re ferr ing to that  

correspondence is to ask Mr Joubert whether he might not  

be mistaken …[intervenes]  

MR HULLEY SC :    Correct.  

CHAIRPERSON :    When he says that Colone l Mhlongo was 

evicted or lef t  the bui ld ing wi th in  about a week a fter the 10 

record ing because th is suggests i t  might  have been much 

later  in  the year .  

MR HULLEY SC :    Correct.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Otherwise the contents do not  seem to  

be of much re levance.  

MR HULLEY SC :    The contents is  just  to  withdraw or  to 

reca l l  the secondment,  that is  the purpose of  the le t ter,  but 

i t  is  dated the 2  December of  2013.  In  o ther  words,  i t  is 

shor t ly  after 25 November 2013 but several  months a fter  

the 18 September of 2013.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Could  you be mistaken? 

MR JOUBERT:    Ja,  I  do not  have th is …[in tervenes] 

CHAIRPERSON :    Correspondence. 

MR JOUBERT:    Things that you are ta lking about  so could 

we ask Adv Nicholson to assist  me maybe with  th is 
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document that you are referr ing to  because i t  is not  part  of  

my bundles.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Have you got a bundle that is marked 

bundle LEA10 on the spine of the lever  arch f i le? 

MR JOUBERT:    That  is correct .   Yes,  I  do have that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR JOUBERT:    And now I  see Adv Nicholson has brought 

to my attent ion the page in  quest ion. 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR JOUBERT:    Yes,  yes, I  see.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Those  le t te rs ,  I  th ink  there  are  two .   

There  a re  two  le t te rs ,  they a re  bo th  wr i t ten  in  December 

2013,  the  head ing  suggests  tha t  –  and  the  con tents  seem 

to  say the  secondment  o f  Colonel  Mhlongo to the NPA was 

being terminated.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR JOUBERT:    Yes,  I  see  tha t  i t  was da ted  the  5  

December ,  yes,  2013 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Cou ld  i t  be  tha t  you  a re  mis taken  

about  –  you  were  mis taken  when you  sa id  Colonel  Mhlongo 20 

you  thought  le f t  abou t  a  week o r  so  a f te r  the  record ing? 

MR JOUBERT:    A  week  o r  so ,  ja .   Yes,  Cha i r ,  I  cou ld  

have  been mis taken  about  the  dates because  i t  happened 

qu i te  some t ime back.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay, a lr ight.  
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MR JOUBERT:    Bu t  ja ,  I  see  i t  happened in  December .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay, a lr ight.  

MR JOUBERT:    To  be  exact .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR HULLEY SC :    And  jus t  fo r  the  benef i t ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  jus t  

to  be  p rec ise ,  I  had  ind ica ted  tha t  the  le t te r  in  fac t  

ind ica ted  tha t  there  had  been an invest iga t ion  conducted 

by Colonel  Mhlongo aga inst  Mr  Nxasana,  the  le t te r  in  fac t  

does no t  say tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :   Oh ,  ja .  10 

MR HULLEY SC :    The  le t te r  s imp ly  says  tha t  a  

secondment  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  a lso  wondered  because  I  thought  

I  had  read  i t ,  ja .  

MR HULLEY SC :    I  have  pu t  two  d i f fe ren t  th ings toge ther .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay,  no ,  tha t  is  a l r igh t .   I  do  no t  

th ink much tu rns on  the  da te .  

MR HULLEY SC :    Thank you ,  Mr  Cha i r .   We have  go t  the 

two  a f f idav i t s  tha t  you  had  deposed to  p rev ious ly  one  o f  

wh ich  was da ted  the  25  November  tha t  we  have  a l ready 20 

spoken about ,  there  was a  second a f f idav i t  wh ich  was  

da ted the  1  February  o f  2016 .   In  the  second a f f idav i t  you 

–  and  you have  test i f ied  about  that  on  a  p rev ious occas ion  

in  Ju ly  o f  2020  be fo re the Commiss ion .   You  have 

acknowledged tha t  bo th  a f f idav i ts  a re  in  fac t  yours .  
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MR JOUBERT:    Tha t  is  co r rect ,  Cha i r .  

MR HULLEY SC :    Now in  the  second a f f idav i t  tha t  was  

da ted 2016,  the  1  February  2016,  you  d is tanced yourse l f  

as  i t  were  f rom the  f i rs t  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry ,  Mr  Hu l ley ,  I  thought  you 

wanted  to  f i rs t  f i n ish  pu t t ing  to  h im Mr  Mh longo ’s  vers ion  

as to  why Mr  Mh longo says h is  ev idence  o r  he  is  

unre l iab le  and  d ishonest  and  we ge t  tha t  ou t  o f  the  way .  

MR HULLEY SC :    Okay.   Thank you ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  wou ld  be 

perhaps …[ in te rvenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Because  there  a re  s t i l l  qu i te  a  few 

th ings to  pu t  to  h im.  

MR HULLEY SC :    Thank you .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wh i le  you  a re look ing  can  I  then  jus t  

ask h im.   Mr  Jouber t… 

MR JOUBERT:    Yes,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Colone l Mhlongo says in  h is  a f f idav i t :  

“Soon a f te r  the announcement o f  Mr  Nxasana ’s  

appo in tment ,  Advoca te  J iba  i s  schedu led  to  meet  

Mr  Nxasana in  Kwazu lu -Nata l . ”  20 

And you  were  tasked  wi th  t ranspor t ing  Advoca te  J iba 

dur ing  her  v is i t  to  the  p rov ince  to  meet  Mr  Nxasana bu t  

tha t  you  asked  i f  he  had  ass is ted  Adv J iba  be fo re and  he 

con f i rmed tha t  he  had  p rev ious ly  t ranspor ted  her  and  you 

asked  h im to  take  over  f rom you and  t ranspor t  Adv J iba  
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fo r  the  meet ing  wi th  Mr  Nxasana and  he  agreed .   Is  tha t  

fac tua l ly  cor rect?  

MR JOUBERT:    No ,  no ,  Cha i r ,  tha t  is  de f in i te ly  incor rect .   

I  was  supposed to  p ick  Adv J iba  up  on  tha t  g iven  day fo r  a  

meet ing  bu t  then I  was no t i f ied  by  J iba ’s  PA fo r  me no t  to  

wor ry ,  the  DPP a t  the t ime in  KZN Ngoko(?)  had  asked 

Colonel  Mhlongo to  p ick  J iba  up  f rom the  a i rpor t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR JOUBERT:    So… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Do  you  know why Colonel Mhlongo 10 

wou ld  say such  a  d iscuss ion  took p lace  be tween the  two 

o f  you  i f  i t  d id  not  take  p lace?  

MR JOUBERT:    No ,  I  have  go t  no  idea  why  he  wou ld  say 

tha t ,  Cha i r .   Co lonel  Mhlongo used to p ick up h is 

execut ives for – I  do not  know.  Ja, from the airport .   He,  

whi lst  he was in  the DSO he would from t ime to  t ime – I  

would –  when Mpshe was the Act ing NDPP, he would 

request  th is WS to go and pick h im up and as much as i t  

was perce ived to  be a  r isk management th ing, I  hated th is 

wi th a passion because i t  was not on my job descr ip t ion.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    You mean dr iving them around? 

MR JOUBERT:    Ja,  fe tching h is people.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Fetching them, ja.   He also says after  Mr  

Nxasana had  commenced work ing  as NDPP you  in fo rmed 

h im,  tha t  is  Colonel Mhlongo,  tha t  you  had  heard  tha t  Mr  
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Nxasana was go ing  to  resusc i ta te  some cases aga inst  

you .   D id  you  say  tha t  to  Colone l Mhlongo?  

MR JOUBERT:    Cha i r ,  tha t  is  so  fa r  f rom the  t ru th .   I  

never  d iscussed anyth ing  l ike  tha t  w i th  Mr  Mh longo.   In  

actua l  fac t  I  d id  no t  know whether  Mr  Nxasana o r  whoever 

e lse  had  any in ten t ions to  resusc i ta te  any case  aga inst  

me or  aga inst  anybody fo r  tha t  mat te r  tha t  I  know.   So  tha t  

one  is  a  l ie ,  i t  i s  de f in i te ly  a  l ie .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Do  you  know or  to  the  exten t  tha t  Mr  

Mhlongo may be ta lk ing  about  the  cases tha t  you have to ld  10 

me about ,  in  te rms o f  wh ich  you  were  suspended ,  I  th ink  

you sa id  the re  were  four.   To  the  ex ten t  tha t  he  may be 

ta lk ing  about  those,  tha t  those are  the  cases you had 

heard  tha t  Mr  Nxasana was go ing  to  resusc i ta te  aga ins t  

you.     

 Your  pos i t ion  is  tha t  they had a l l  resu l ted  in  an  

ou tcome in  your  favour  be fore?  

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r,  tha t  i s  cor rec t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Had anybody . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

MR JOUBERT:    And i f  they  wanted to  resusc i ta te  i t  by  a l l  

means.   I  a lways say you know even i f  tha t  was the  case,  I  

wou ld  no t  have done as  th is  guy has suggested to  d iscuss  

i t  w i th  h im.    

No,  I  wou ld  le t  them cont inue w i th  the  invest iga t ion  
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wa i t ing  fo r  them to  come to  me,  and then dea l  w i th  the  

mat te r  as  I  have been do ing  a l l  a long w i th  these four  

mat te rs  tha t  came my way and I  doubt  whether  I  wou ld  be  

d iscuss ing  anyth ing  l i ke  tha t  w i th  a  guy l i ke  Co lone l  

Mh longo to  be  honest  w i th  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:     Had you ever  met  Mr  Nxasana in  

person,  e i ther  soc ia l l y  o r  in  a  work  re la ted  env i ronment?  

MR JOUBERT:    The on ly  t ime  I  met  Mr  Nxasana was 

dur ing  the  meet  and greet  tha t  he  came to  the  Durban 

o f f i ce ,  to  be  in t roduced to  a l l  o f  us .   I  do  no t  and oh ,  ja  he 10 

came fo r  a  p r ize  g iv ing .   Those a re  the  two occas ions tha t  I  

saw Mr  Nxasana,  I  do  no t  know Mr Nxasana,  I  never  knew 

Mr  Nxasana.  The  on ly  person tha t  I  knew was the  guy tha t  

was h i s  adv i so r,  who used to  work  w i th  me,  p lay  soccer  

w i th  me,  wh ich  is  Advocate  Duma.  

CHAIRPERSON:     Now,  a t  the  t ime o f  your  d i scuss ion  w i th  

Mr  Mhlongo,  whether  i t  was in  September  2013,  o r  

whatever  month ,  was tha t  be fo re  the  meet  and g reet  tha t  

on  wh ich  you say  you met  Mr  Nxasana?  

MR JOUBERT:    Ja .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:     I t  was before?  

MR JOUBERT:    That  was def in i te ly  be fore  the  meet  and 

greet .  

CHAIRPERSON:     So  a t  the  t ime o f  the  d iscuss ion ,  had  

you never  met ,  Mr  Nxasana?  
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MR JOUBERT:    Never,  never  met  h im,  never  seen h im,  

on ly  saw th i s  guy,  the  new NDPP on the  TV and then I  saw 

h im subsequent ly  when he came to  -  fo r  those two,  on  

those two occas ions to  our  o f f i ces .  

CHAIRPERSON:     Had you spoken to  h im on the  phone? 

MR JOUBERT:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:     A t  tha t  t ime.   

MR JOUBERT:    The pe rson tha t  I  spoke to  was  Duma,  

even w i th  th is  a f f idav i t  tha t  I  tha t  I  d id ,  tha t  went  to  h im,  i t  

was f rom the  request  made to  me by Duma,  and not  10 

Nxasana.  

Yes,  Co lone l  Mh longo says tha t  you compla ined about  Mr  

Nxasana ta rge t ing  peop le  w i th  p rev ious cases,  when he 

h imse l f  had prev ious cases.   She  says you ment ioned to  

h im tha t  you had  come across a  murder  case aga ins t  Mr  

Nxasana in  the  course  o f  ve t t ing  h is  employment  in  the  r i sk  

and secur i t y  un i t s ,  bu t  you were  unab le  to  ob ta in  greater  

de ta i l  on  the  case.   What  do  you say about  tha t?  

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  a  de f in i te  l ie ,  h is  jus t  t r y ing  to  

m is lead the  Commiss ion ,  fo r  lack  o f  a  be t te r  s ta tement  20 

because rea l l y,  I  never,  as  I  sa id ,  I  never  knew Nxasana,  I  

never  met  Nxasana,  I  never  had any invest iga t ion  or  

ve t t ing  to  do  w i th  Nxasana.   So tha t  i s  m is lead ing ,  tha t  

s ta tement .  

CHAIRPERSON:     I  do  no t  know i f  you might  have covered 
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the  quest ion  tha t  I  have jus t  asked you maybe I  have jus t  

m is in te rpre ted ,  you want  to  take  i t  f rom there .  

ADV HULLEY SC:     Thank you Mr  Cha i r.   He go on  to  say  

in  paragraph 17.6 ,  tha t  you had asked h im to  reg is te r  an  

inqu i ry  w i th  the  SAPS,  as  he  was s t i l l  w i th in  the  SAPS and 

the  inqu i ry  i s  re fe r r ing  to  i s  an  inqu i ry  re la t ing  to  the  

murder  invest iga t ion ,  o f  the  murder  case tha t  Mr Nxasana 

was apparent ly  invo lved in .   D id  you ever  ask  h im to  

reg i s te r  an  inqu i ry  re la t ing  to  a  murder  case tha t  Mr  

Nxasana was invo lved in  o r  to  any o ther  case tha t  Mr  10 

Nxasana was invo lved in?  

MR JOUBERT:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  have never  asked th is  guy to  

reg i s te r  anyth ing  w i th  regards to  Mr  Nxasana.  

ADV HULLEY SC:     Now he goes on to  say tha t  Mr  Jouber t  

a lso  ment ioned hav ing  come across someth ing  tha t  had to  

do  w i th  the  de f raud ing  o f  the  RAF,  the  Road Acc ident  Fund.   

He ind i ca ted  to  me tha t  he  wanted to  use the  in fo rmat ion  

aga ins t  Mr  Nxasana,  in  the  event  tha t  he ,  tha t  i s  Mr  

Nxasana were  to  commence d isc ip l inary  proceed ings 

aga ins t  h im.   What  do  you say to  tha t?  20 

MR JOUBERT:    Ye t  aga in ,  I  d id  no t  know tha t  Mr  Nxasana 

was do ing  work  fo r  RAF.   The  requests  tha t  Co lone l  

Mh longo made,  was due to  the  fac t  tha t  Mr  Nxasana ’s  w i fe  

works  a t  RAF.   Do I  know anybody tha t  cou ld  ve r i f y  as  to  

whethe r  Mr  Nxasana d id  some work  o r  go t  some work  or  
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more  work  than he shou ld  have go t ten  f rom the  RAF and to 

wh ich  I  sa id ,  yes  I  w i l l  ass is t ,  I  w i l l  j us t  b r ing  A to  B .   

Mean ing  I  wou ld  in t roduce h im to  the  peop le  tha t  I  

know a t  RAF and I  wou ld  want  no th ing  to  do  w i th  i t .   Bu t  on  

the  same,  in  the  same breath ,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  say,  I  do  no t  

know anybody a t  RAF.   So I  was mere ly  say ing  th is  to  

Co lone l  Mh longo to  unders tand,  where  is  he  coming f rom,  

what  does he want ,  bu t  I  do  no t  know,  I  was not  go ing  to  

he lp  h im in  any event .  

ADV HULLEY SC:     Now,  he  a l so  says tha t ,  when the  two  10 

o f  you had the  conversa t ion ,  wh ich  was recorded,  he  pu ts  

tha t  conversa t ion  as  we have ind ica ted  on the  25 t h  o f  

November,  you put  i t  a  l i t t le  b i t  ear l ie r  than tha t  on  the  18 t h  

o f  September,  bu t  whatever  the  da te  m ight  be ,  he  says  

when tha t  conversa t ion  took p lace ,  i t  commenced f rom the  

premise  o f  Mr  Jouber t  hav ing  under taken to  a r range 

concre te  proof  o f  the  a l legat ions aga ins t  Mr  Nxasana.  

MR JOUBERT:    Now,  ye t  aga in ,  Co lone l  Mh longo is  t ry ing  

h is  leve l  best  to  m is lead the  Commiss ion  because there  is  

no  way tha t  I  was go ing  to  ge t  any concre te  whatever  20 

aga ins t  Mr  Nxasana,  I  d id  no t  know any concre te  proof ,  I  

d id  no t  have any concre te  proof ,  so  tha t  i s  a  l ie .  

ADV HULLEY SC:     I f  you tu rn  over  to  the  fo l low ing page,  

a t  page 210.35.   He a t tacks  your  re l iab i l i t y  and cred ib i l i t y  

as  a  w i tness.   I  want  you to  tu rn  to  paragraph 21 o f  tha t ,  
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he  says:  

“That  you are  cur ren t ly  on  suspens ion  because you  

were  caught  in  an  opera t ion  Umhlanga fo r  so l i c i t ing  

a  br ibe  and tak ing  R38 000,00 f rom an accused  

person.   You a l so  passed yourse l f  o f f  -  he  says,  as  

a  Co lone l  Jouber t  to  the  o f f i c ia ls  tha t  a r res ted  h im  

dur ing  the  opera t ion . ”  

What  do  you say to  tha t?  

MR JOUBERT:    I  w i l l  say  the  fo l low ing,  Cha i r  f i rs t l y,  I  

never  took a  br i be  f rom anybody.   That  i s  the  same R30 10 

100,00 tha t  I  spoke about  ea r l ie r  on  tha t  maybe th is  

Co lone l  Mh longo  was mis in fo rmed by  whoever  to ld  h im 

th is .   

 Second ly,  these  guys tha t  were  dea l ing  w i th  the  

R30 100,00 knew tha t  I  was an employee o f  the  NPA 

because they saw my appo in tment  card .   One I  do  no t  know 

where  does th is  Co lone l  Jouber t  th ings comes f rom but  I  

had never  and I  w i l l  never  po r t ray  myse l f  to  i t  because i t  is  

an  o f fence to  impersonate  a  Po l i ce  Off i cer  and  I  know 

bet te r.  20 

The R30 100,00 tha t  I  am an accused pe rson fo r  i s  

exact ly  th i s  tha t  I  now have to  go  fe tch  f rom the  Po l ice  

S ta t ion ,  I  was no t  charged fo r  th is  par t i cu la r  case and I  do  

no t  know what  e lse  to  say about  i t ,  because…[ in te rvene]  

ADV HULLEY SC:     Sor ry,  as  you  cor rec t l y  po in t  ou t ,  i t  is  
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in  fac t  a  c r im ina l  o f fence to  pass yourse l f  o f f  as  a Po l i ce  

Off i ce r.   The charges tha t  have been re fe r red  to  over  he re  

tha t  you say was the  R30 100,00 tha t  was conf isca ted  f rom 

you,  a t  the  t ime or  taken f rom you a t  the  t ime,  and where  

a l legat ions o f  cor rup t ion  were  leve l led  aga ins t  you.   

On tha t  par t i cu la r  occas ion  were  a l legat ions o f  

impersonat ing  a  Po l i ce  Off i ce r  a lso  leve l led  aga ins t  you  

dur ing  the  same or  re la t ing  to  the  same inc ident?  

MR JOUBERT:    Cha i r,  no  o the r  case,  no  case was  brought  

aga ins t  me.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:     Ja ,  you sa id  you were  no t  charged in  

regard  to  the  four  mat te rs  tha t  you have ment ioned and  

they inc lude the  mat te r  re la t ing  to  the  R30 000,00,  is  tha t  

r igh t?  You have sa id  you were  never  charged,  o r  you were  

charged in  regard  to  one,  bu t  tha t  d id  no t  resu l t  in  any 

conv ic t ion?  

MR JOUBERT:    Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:     Ja ,  okay.  

ADV HULLEY SC:     Now the  quest ion  tha t  I  am ask ing  

c lea r ly  i t  i s  no t  about  whethe r  you were  charged,  bu t  20 

whethe r  the  a l legat ions because they were  c lear ly  

a l legat ions re la t ing  to  cor rup t ion  re la t ing  to  the  R30 100,00 

but  those a l legat ions a lso  inc lude  the  a l legat ion  tha t  you 

had impersonated  a  Po l i ce  Off i ce r.  

MR JOUBERT:    No,  Cha i r  I  was not  charged fo r  
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impersonat ing  a  po l i ce  o f f i cer.   That  i s  why I  sa id  maybe 

Co lone l  Mh longo  the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  he  was g i ven by  

whoever  gave h im the  wrong in fo rmat ion .  

ADV HULLEY SC:     Now,  he  says here  tha t  you had a l so  

in  paragraph 22,  he  says:  

“Mr  Jouber t  Bay was engaged  as  par t  o f  the  

invest iga t ion  teams,  ass i s t ing  the  Commiss ion  i n  

the  Free S ta te . ”  

And by  the  Commiss ion ,  I  imag ine  h is  re fe r r ing  to  the  S ta te  

Capture  Commiss ion ,  the  presen t  Commiss ion .   I s  tha t  10 

cor rec t ,  were  you in  fac t ,  to  ass is t  the  S ta te  Capture  

Commiss ion  in  the  Free S ta te?  

CHAIRPERSON:     Maybe le t  us  pu t  the  who le  th ing ,  Mr  

Hu l ley.   In  add i t ion  to  tha t ,  he  says  you were  removed f rom 

the  team for  cor rup t ion  o f fenses  and he says when you  

were  appo in ted  by  the  Commiss ion ,  you d id  no t  even 

ment ion  tha t  you were  on  suspens ion  fo r  cor rup t ion  

o f fenses.   What  do  you say to  tha t?  

MR JOUBERT:    I  was pa r t  o f  the  AFU’s  S ta te  Capture  

team tha t  work  under,  AFU in  P re tor ia  a t  VGM and we add 20 

qu i te  a  few cases.   I  was -  par t  o f  the  cases took us  to  

Free S ta te ,  the  Free S ta te  da i ry  fa rm.   I  was par t  and 

parce l  o f  tha t  invest iga t ion  under  the  AFU banner.   

CHAIRPERSON:     Bu t  s ta r t  f rom say ing  whethe r  i t  i s  t rue 

or  no t  tha t  you were  engaged as  par t  o f  the  invest iga t ion  
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team,  oh  he says I  thought  he  was say ing  you were  

appo in ted  by  the  Commiss ion .   But  he  says you were  par t ,  

you were  engaged,  he  does not  say  by  whom but  as  par t  o f  

the  invest iga t ion  teams tha t  were  ass i s t ing  the  S ta te 

Capture  Commiss ion  in  the  Free S ta te .   

So f i rs t  o f  a l l ,  you  were  no t  appo in ted  by  the 

Commiss ion ,  were  you?  

MR JOUBERT:    No,  no  I  was mere ly  

appo in ted…[ in te rvene]  

CHAIRPERSON:     Jus t  ho ld  one second,  you were  par t  o f  10 

the  asset  fo r fe i tu re  un i t  in  Pre tor ia .  

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  cor rec t  and under  tha t  we d id 

S ta te  Captu re  invest iga t ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:     S ta te  Capture  re la ted  invest iga t ions i n  

the  Free S ta te .  

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:     Yes,  yes .  

MR JOUBERT:    Par t  o f  tha t  invest iga t ion  inc luded the  

Free S ta te  da i ry  f a rm.  

CHAIRPERSON:     Yes,  he  ac tua l l y  does say in  the  las t  20 

sentence o f  paragraph 22 tha t  when you were  appo in ted  by  

the  Commiss ion ,  you d id  no t  even ment ioned tha t  you were  

on  suspens ion  fo r  cor rup t ion  o f fenses.   Were  you eve r  

appo in ted  by  the  Commiss ion?  

MR JOUBERT:    Now I  am get t ing  there  Cha i r.   
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CHAIRPERSON:     Ja .  

MR JOUBERT:    I  am get t ing  there ,  f i rs t l y  you cannot  be  

on  suspens ion  fo r  cor rup t ion  and be par t  o f  the  Sta te  

Capture  team tha t  i s  u t te r  nonsense fo r  lack  o f  a  be t te r  

word ,  one.  

Two,  a l l  o f  these a l legat ions tha t  were  brough t  

aga ins t  me way back then was dea l t  w i th ,  you know,  as  I  

sa id  to  you ear l ie r  on ,  I  was never  conv ic ted  o r  I  was  

suspended yes,  bu t  I  was then re ins ta ted ,  I  had to  work .   

So I  th ink  tha t  th is  a l so  is  be ing  mis in fo rmed o r  10 

t ry ing  to  a t tack  my c red ib i l i t y  w i thout  the  necessary  

in fo rmat ion ,  because th is  i s  -  I  a lmost  sa id  rubb ish ,  bu t  

th is  i s  wrong,  th is  i s  to ta l l y  wrong.   

CHAIRPERSON:     Wel l  he  says  you were  -  in  February  

because h is  a f f idav i t  i s  da ted  22 February  2021.   As  a t  the  

t ime when he deposed to  th is  a f f idav i t ,  he  sa id ,  you were  

on  suspens ion ,  because you had caught  in  an  opera t ion  in  

Umhlanga Rocks  fo r  so l i c i t ing  a  br ibe  and tak ing  R38 

000,00,  and then  tha t  comes in  t he  pass ing  o f  a  Co lone l  

Jouber t .   Th is  aspect  o f  be ing  on  suspens ion  as  a t  the  da te  20 

when he deposed to  th is  a f f idav i t  22  February  2021.   I s  

tha t  t rue?  

MR JOUBERT:    That  21  o f  h is…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:     I t  i s  22  February  2021,  las t  week,  I  

th ink  i t  wou ld  have been or  the  o ther  week.   He says,  when  
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he  was s ign ing  th is  a f f idav i t  on  the  22 n d  o f  February  20 ,  no  

there  a re  two da tes  here .   Wel l ,  i t  must  be  22  February  

2021.   

 I  jus t  rea l i sed tha t  on  the  Commiss ioner  o f  Oaths  

cer t i f i ca te ,  the  t yped one i t  i s  w r i t ten  tha t  th is  a f f idav i t  was 

deposed on the  22n d  day o f  February  2020 but  the  Po l ice  

s tamp is  22  February  2021.   So I  do  no t  know what  i s  go ing  

on  there  but  I  assume tha t…[ in tervene]  

ADV HULLEY SC:     Mr  Cha i r,  to  be  fa i r  I  th ink  tha t  was a  

typograph ica l  e r ro r,  p resumably  by  the  a t to rneys,  bu t  the  10 

cor rec t  address is  22  February  2021.  

CHAIRPERSON:     Ja ,  I  assume tha t  i s  the  cor rec t  one but  

I  do  no t  know why peop le  do  not  pay a t ten t ion  to ,  no t  to  

cause th is  confus ion  because th is  i s  no t  the  f i rs t  a ff idav i t ,  

wh ich  comes before  the  Commiss ion  where  Commiss ioners  

o f  Oaths  par t i cu la r ly  those who  are  a t  Po l i ce  S ta t ions,  

po l i ce  o f f i cers  have got  two dates ,  p robab ly  i t  i s  the  th i rd  i f  

no t  the  four th .  

ADV HULLEY SC:     Peop le  do  not  check tha t  por t ion  o f  

the  a f f idav i t .   20 

CHAIRPERSON:     Ja ,  and ye t  they are  cer t i f y ing  in  te rms 

o f  tha t ,  bu t  he  says as  o f  tha t  da te ,  you were  on  

suspens ion ,  namely,  c red i t  22  February  2021,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR JOUBERT:    Cha i r,  jus t  to  g i ve  you aga in ,  a  h igh l igh t  
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o f  my -  I  sa id  I  was suspended fo r  four  i ssues.   The la tes t  

i ssue was the  one o f  2019,  the  14 t h  o f  October,  where  they 

found R30 100,00 in  my veh ic le .   I  a lso  sa id  tha t  I  am to ld  

now to  go  fe tch  my money but  as  I  am s i t t ing  here  in  f ron t  

o f  you Cha i r,  I  am s t i l l  on  suspens ion  fo r  th is  par t i cu la r  

mat te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:     So what  he  says in  inso fa r  as  he  says  

as  on  22 February  2021 you were  s t i l l  on  suspens ion  i n  

connect ion  w i th  -  he  says a l legat ions o f  so l i c i t ing  a  br ibe  

tha t  you were  on  suspens ion  a t  tha t  t ime is  cor rec t  10 

because you are  s t i l l  on  suspens ion  even now.   

And i t  i s  cor rec t  tha t  tha t  suspens ion  is  connected  

w i th  the  Po l ice  f ind ing  R30 000,00 in  your  ca r,  in  your  

possess ion .   But  you say you have  been on suspens ion  fo r  

some t ime,  bu t  you have rece ived  a  le t te r  f rom the  NPA,  

wh ich ,  in  e f fec t ,  says  you,  you may now come and co l lec t  

tha t  money tha t  they took f rom you.  

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:     I s  the  pos i t ion  tha t  they wou ld  say tha t  

i f  they  are  no t  go ing  to  charge you or  cou ld  they say you  20 

may come and take the  money i f  they  were  go ing  to  charge  

you or  do  you not  know? 

MR JOUBERT:    Cha i r,  I  th ink  tha t  the  NPA wou ld  never  

g ive  you your  money back i f  they…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:     A re  go ing  to  charge you.  
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MR JOUBERT:    I f  i t  was so l i c i t ing  fo r  a  b r ibe  o f  some so r t .  

CHAIRPERSON:     Yes,  bu t  you have never  been ca l led  to  

appear  in  cour t  in  connect ion  w i th  th is  money?  

MR JOUBERT:    No,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:     And you have never  been se rved w i th  a  

charge,  w i th  a  summons o r  anyth ing  l i ke  tha t?  

MR JOUBERT:    No,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:     Were  you asked to  make a  s ta tement  

about  how you came to  be  in  possess ion  o f  the  money? 

MR JOUBERT:    Yes,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:     And tha t  was in  2019 or  when? 

MR JOUBERT:    In  2019,  the  14 t h  October.  

CHAIRPERSON:     Yes,  and where  d id  you say you got  the  

R30 000,00 f rom?  What  was your  exp lanat ion  fo r  hav ing  

the  money in  your  possess ion  o f  tha t  amount?  

MR JOUBERT:    I  wou ld ,  I  wou ld  say the  fo l low ing Cha i r,  

tha t  -  le t  me read the  le t te r  f i rs t ,  and then I  w i l l  answer  

tha t  quest ion  fo r  you.   

CHAIRPERSON:     Ja .  

MR JOUBERT:    Ja ,  the  bo t tom l ine ,  le t  me s tar t  th i s  th ing  20 

was D i rec tor  o f  Pub l ic  P rosecut ions Kwazu lu  Na ta l  was 

wr i t ten  fo r  a t ten t ion ,  Capta in  VE Nwada[? ]  who  is  the  

Durban case,  Durban Nor th  case 135 o f  10 /2019.    

“The above mat te r  re fe r red  to  th is  o f f i ce  fo r  

Invest iga t ive  gu idance re fers ,  pursu ing  to  the  i ssue  
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o f  ins t ruc t ions fo r  invest iga t ion .   The docket  was  

submi t ted  to  th is  o f f i ce  on  the  8 t h  o f  September 

2020 by  the  above ment ioned invest iga t ing  o f f i cer  

fo r  dec i s ion  purposes.   Hav ing pe rused the  papers ,  

the  fo l low ing has been es tab l i shed,  there  i s  

insu f f i c ien t  ev idence amount ing  to  pr ima fac ie  

c r im ina l  case a r is ing  ou t  o f  the  ev idence and  

c i rcumstances re la t ing  to  the  rece ip t  o f  cash mon ies  

by  the  suspect  Mr  Ter rence Jouber t  a t  the  

McDona ld 's  take  away park ing  lo t  ga teway 10 

Umhlanga on  the  12 t h  o f  October  2019.   

Accord ing ly,  I  have dec l ined to  p rosecute  Ter rence  

Jouber t  . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  no  aud io ]  

CHAIRPERSON:     Oh,  there  is  a  techn ica l  g l i t ch   

MR JOUBERT:    …ment ioned as  fo r  be ing  fo rwarded to  the  

Nat iona l  P rosecut ing  Author i t y. ”  

CHAIRPERSON:     Hang on Mr  Jouber t  you f roze  fo r  some 

t ime,  you w i l l  have to  go  back to  the  sentence tha t  s ta r ts  

w i th  someth ing  l i ke  consequent ly,  I  have…[ in tervene]  

ADV HULLEY SC:     Accord ing l y  I  dec l ined.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:     Oh accord ing l y  I  dec l ined to  p rosecute ,  

s ta r t  f rom there .  

MR JOUBERT:    Ja ,  okay:  

“Accord ing ly,  I  have dec l ined to  p rosecute  Mr  

Terence Jouber t  in  connect ion  w i th  the  rece ip t  o f  
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the  cash monies  in  the  c i rcumstances re fer red  to  

above and wh ich  fo rms the  sub jec t  mat te r  in  th is  

ins tan t  docket . ”  

Case,  Durban Nor th  case 135 o f  10 /2019.  

“The Po l ice  docket  here  in  has been fo rwarded to  

the  Nat iona l  Off i ce  o f  the  Nat iona l  P rosecut ing  

Author i t y. ”  

And s igned by  whoever  tha t  i s .  

CHAIRPERSON:     So  who is  i t  s igned by  do  you -  what  

name appears  a t  the  bo t tom and the  po l i ce  rank tha t  they 10 

ho ld?  

MR JOUBERT:    I  do  no t  know who  s igned i t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:     Ja ,  i s  there  a  pos i t ion  tha t  they ho ld  

tha t  i s  spec i f ied?  

MR JOUBERT:    There  is  a  person fo r  inqu i r ies  i s  A 

Wal te rs  on  top  w i th  a  re ference number  and i t  i s  da ted  the  

10 t h  o f  February  2021?  

MR JOUBERT:    Yes,  bu t  a t  the  bo t tom there  shou ld  be  the  

pos i t ion  occup ied  by  the  au thor  i s  i t  no t  –  o r  does i t  s imp ly  

say fo r  the  prov inc ia l  d i rec tor  o r  someth ing  l i ke  tha t?  20 

MR JOUBERT:    No,  i t  says  fo r  the  d i rec tor  pub l i c  

p rosecut ion  Durban.  

CHAIRPERSON:     Okay,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   So they have the  

NPA has dec l ined  to  p rosecute?  

MR JOUBERT:    Yes.   
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CHAIRPERSON:     Which  may suggest  tha t  they were  

sa t is f ied  w i th  your  exp lanat ion  or  whatever  the  pos i t ion  is ,  

they  d id  no t  th ink  tha t  there  was enough ev idence to  

p rosecute  here .  

MR JOUBERT:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:     Okay,  a l r igh t ,  Mr  Hu l ley,  you want  to  

p roceed?  

CHAIRPERSON:     Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r  and what  i f  you  

cont inue w i th  h i s  nar ra t i ve  and page 210.35.   He goes on 

to  say tha t  when  you,  he  says tha t  you were  appo in ted  by  10 

the  Commiss ion .   Now you say ing  tha t  i s  no t  cor rec t .   You 

were  appo in ted  by  the  AFU to  i nvest iga te  S ta te  Capture  

mat te rs  in  the  Free S ta te .  

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV HULLEY SC:     Now,  he  says tha t  when you were  

appo in ted ,  p resumably  by  the  AFU,  then he ge ts  tha t  

wrong,  bu t  you say i t  was the  AFU.   He says tha t  you d id  

no t  ment ion  tha t  you were  in  fac t  on  suspens ion  fo r  

cor rup t ion  cases.  

MR JOUBERT:    Because when I  was appo in ted ,  I  had no 20 

cor rup t ion  cases  aga ins t  me.   Th is  R30 000,00 th ing  is  

someth ing  tha t  happened on the  12 t h  o f  October  2019 and I  

was subsequent ly  suspended a f te r  th is  be fore  th is ,  I  was  

work ing  l i ke  eve rybody e lse .   

CHAIRPERSON:     Your  assoc ia t ion  w i th  the  asset  
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fo r fe i tu re  un i t ,  when d id  i t  s ta r t?  

MR JOUBERT:    I t  s ta r ted  in  2017,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:     2017?  

MR JOUBERT:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:     The asset  fo r fe i tu re  un i t  o r  i s  par t  o f  

the  NPA,  i s  i t  no t?   

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:     So  when you go to  the  -  when you went  

to  the  AFU d id  you need a  spec i f i c  appo in tment ,  o r  you 

were  jus t  asked to  go  and ass is t  i n  the  AFU,  do  you need a  10 

spec i f i c  appo in tment?  

MR JOUBERT:    Ja ,  no ,  I  took  a  c ross  t ransfe r,  a  t ransfer  

f rom where  I  was work ing  r i sk  management  to  Asset  

fo r fe i tu re…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:     Now tha t  was in  2017.  

MR JOUBERT:    Because my qua l i f i ca t ions is  in  

invest iga t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:     And tha t  was in  2017?  

MR JOUBERT:    So  I  cou ld  then ass i s t  in  the  invest iga t ions 

on  tha t  s ide .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:     Yes.  

MR JOUBERT:    The S ta te  Captu re  came la te r  on ,  whereby 

they fo rmed the  team to dea l  spec i f i ca l l y  w i th  S ta te 

Capture  invest iga t ions.   

CHAIRPERSON:     When d id  your  suspens ion  in  re la t ion  to 
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-  so  your  suspens ion  in  re la t ion  to  the  R30 000,00 wou ld  

have happened in  2019 because tha t  i s  when the  Po l ice  

found i t ,  and you were  a l ready w i th  the  asset  fo r fe i tu re  un i t  

by  then.  

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:     Ja ,  you were  then suspended a f te r  tha t  

wh i le  you were  w i th in  the  asset  fo r fe i tu re  un i t .  

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:     And you remain  suspended a t  the  

moment .  10 

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:     And maybe the  suspens ion  w i l l  be  l i f ted 

now tha t  you have got  th is  le t te r  f rom the  NPA dec l in ing  to  

p rosecute .   

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:     Bu t  tha t  i s  your  expecta t ion .  

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:     So ,  i s  the  pos i t ion  tha t  when you were  

t ransfer red  to  the  asset  fo r fe i tu re  un i t ,  you were  no t  on 

suspens ion ,  and  there fo re ,  you d id  no t  have to  te l l  the  20 

asset  fo r fe i tu re  un i t  tha t  you were  on  suspens ion? 

MR JOUBERT:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:     Okay,  a l r igh t  Mr  Hu l ley.  

ADV HULLEY SC:     Thank you Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:     I t  i s  tak ing  long,  much longer  than I  
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thought  i t  wou ld .   

ADV HULLEY SC:     Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:     Le t  us  t ry  and wrap i t  up .  

ADV HULLEY SC:     Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r.   What  -  can I  

perhaps in  the  in te res t  o f  sav ing  t ime,  one o f  the  th ings  

tha t  he  says i n  paragraph 27 o f  h is  -  on  page 210.36.   He 

says tha t  in  the  o rd inary  course  you ought  to  have repor ted  

to  your immediate supervisor i f  an instance or i f  something 

that  you along the l ines of  what you claim in fact  happened – 

in other words the conversat ion between him and yoursel f .   I f  10 

i t  had in fact  happened in the way that  you al lege then in the 

ordinary course you ought to have reported that  to your 

di rect  supervisor.   Now who was your  direct  – f i rst ly who was 

your di rect  superv isor at  the t ime? 

MR JOUBERT:   At  the t ime my di rect  superv isor  was Mr 

Lucas Pieterse.   Something of  th is  nature that  involves the 

NDPP is  sent  to him and you obviously inform your  

immediate superv isor of  what had happened so that  they 

bear knowledge thereof  and that  is something I  d id.   I  

informed my immediate superv isor who was a Mr Lucas 20 

Pieterse of  the inc ident  and that  was that .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Now he says that  you ought  to have 

informed a Mr Ramana who would then be the person 

responsible for forwarding i t  to the Nat ional  Di rector of  

Publ ic Prosecut ions.   Now who is Mr Ramana? 
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MR JOUBERT:   Mr Ramahana he is  the head of  secur i ty – of  

securi ty and r isk management but  we work on protocols 

here.   I  cannot skip my immediate supervisor and go to  

Ramahana without  informing my immediate supervisor.   So i t  

was the immediate supervisor ’s  duty to then inform 

Ramahana of  what had happened not  mine.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Now how did i t  come about  that  you 

ended up informing af ter you – oh sorry.   You say that  you 

reported to your immediate supervisor Mr Pieterse and you 

also reported to Mr Duma – how d id i t  come about that  you 10 

reported to Mr Duma? 

MR JOUBERT:   Mr Duma is the – the person that  I  knew in 

that  – in the NDPP’s off ice.   Mr Duma is the person that  I  

informed of  the recording that  I  have made of  my 

conversat ion wi th  Colonel  Mhlongo and that  is why I  – Mr 

Duma then requested that  I  br ing him the record ing and 

subsequent ly I  obviously had to  depose of  an aff idavi t  

explain ing the recording to him.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   No he says that… 

MR JOUBERT:   Which I  d id.  20 

ADV HULLEY SC:   Sorry – he says that  your aff idavi t  was in 

fact  used before the commission of  inquiry  into the f i tness of  

Advocate Jiba to  – to pract ice as or to hold off ice wi thin the 

NDPP that  is the Mokgoro Commission of  Inqui ry.   Were you 

involved at  al l  – d id you test i fy before the Mokgoro 
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Commission of  Inquiry;  d id you provide an aff idavi t  for the 

Mokgoro Commission on Inquiry,  were you approached by 

any of  the evidence leaders in that  Mokgoro Commission of  

Inqui ry? 

MR JOUBERT:   Mr Chai r  I  –  I  was never  involved wi th the 

Mokgoro Commission.   I  was never – I  never test i f ied in the 

Mokgoro Commission.   Yes my aff idavi t  was used in – at  the 

Mokgoro Commission and I  bear no knowledge as to how I  

would think that  before anybody could ut i l ise or use your 

aff idavi t  they would inform you of  the intent ions to use this  10 

which never happened.  That  is why I  d id not  know.  I  had no 

deal ing wi th the Mokgoro Commission.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Now you a lso subsequent ly  had a 

discussion – sorry you had a discussion wi th a certain  Queen 

Mhlongo, is that  correct? 

MR JOUBERT:   That  is correct  Chair.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   And that  discussion re lated to the – the 

recording of  Mr – that  you had made of  your conversat ion 

wi th Colonel  Mhlongo, is that  correct? 

MR JOUBERT:   That  is correct .  20 

ADV HULLEY SC:   Could you just  te l l  us br ief ly who Ms 

Queen Mhlongo or  Advocate Queen Mhlongo is? 

MR JOUBERT:   Ms Queen Mhlongo is – is  a  col league who 

worked at  AFU.  At  the t ime she worked at  the AFU she is  

now also back working at  the AFU and we had this 
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d iscussion that  she had in  fact  recorded Mr Mhlongo or  

Colonel  Mhlongo dur ing a vis i t  to his off ice and I  shared wi th 

her that  I  d id the same.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    So when you had a conversat ion wi th  

her she ment ioned that  she had recorded a conversat ion that  

she had wi th  Colonel  Mhlongo and you ment ioned to her that  

you had also done the same to him? 

MR JOUBERT:   Exact ly.    

ADV HULLEY SC:   And do you recal l  when that  conversat ion 

between – in other words the conversat ion between you and 10 

Ms Mhlongo took place? 

MR JOUBERT:   Ja i t  took place short ly af ter her meet ing 

wi th Mr Mhlongo or should I  say af ter – just  short ly af ter she 

recorded Colonel  Mhlongo.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   And she has deposed to an aff idavi t  

which appears at  page 325 of  the bundle before you.  

MR JOUBERT:   Yes.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   And she says here that :  

“On Fr iday the 15t h that  is  paragraph 2 of  

that  aff idavi t  – she says on Fr iday the 15t h of  20 

November of  2013 during the day I  went to 

the thi rd f loor of  the Southern Li fe bui ld ing to  

see Colonel  Welcome Si thembiso Mhlongo as 

I  usual ly do.   We sat  – we sat  and we started 

talk ing about the appointment of  Mxol is i  
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Nxasana as the new Nat ional  Di rector of  

Publ ic Prosecut ions and how happy I  was as 

someone who is f rom Durban who happens to 

be a close person to me.  I  thought he was 

going to share the same sent iments as he 

knows Mxol is i  as wel l .   However he started 

saying that  he hopes that  Mxol is i  can let  

Richard Ndlul i  off  the hook as he was – he 

has been appointed to lead the intel l igence – 

sorry to lead the intel l igence uni t  in  the KZN 10 

i f  Ndlul i  is not  charged – recharged.   He also 

ment ioned that  the r ight  candidate was 

Nomgcobo Jiba.   I  then thought that  the 

conversat ion was becoming ser ious and I  

decided I  would record him and started a sort  

of  interview to f ind out  his t rue feel ings.”  

She says in paragraph 3:  

“He started tel l ing me that  Mxol is i  Nxasana 

was not  a kind man as I  thought and that  he 

knew this f rom interv iewing his rela t ives.   At  20 

the t ime I  d id not  understand what was going 

on.   He cont inued by tel l ing me – by tel l ing 

that  he knows Mxol is i  Nxasana f rom a long 

t ime ago where they had an al tercat ion about 

a cl ient  of  Nxasana whom he – that  is 
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Mhlongo – had arrested.   He then cont inued 

to tel l  me that  Nxasana was – has many 

propert ies around Durban and he ment ioned 

Ntzuma, Umlazi ,  Pinetown and Kloof  amongst  

others. ”  

She then goes on to – to say on the fol lowing page:  

“That  amongst  the people who heard the 

recording”  

That  is at  paragraph 5.  

“Amongst  the people who heard the recording 10 

was Terence Joubert  who works in the 

securi ty  and r isk department and he told me 

that  he had recorded Colonel  Mhlongo as 

wel l  and I  l istened to his recording.”  

Now did you – did that  in fact  take place?  The interact ion 

between yoursel f  and Queen Mhlongo? 

MR JOUBERT:   That  is correct  Chair  that  def in i te ly d id take 

place.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   And did you have an opportuni ty to l isten 

to her recording? She l istened to yours did you have an 20 

opportuni ty to l isten to hers? 

MR JOUBERT:   Yes – yes Chai r  I  had an opportuni ty to  

l isten to her recording.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   And do you recal l  what  was – what was 

captured on that  recording? 
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MR JOUBERT:   I  remember hearing the part  of  RAF on her 

recording the fact  that  they are looking for informat ion on the 

RAF whatever Nxasana did at  RAF that  is what I  can 

remember of  her recording.   And the fact  that  J iba was the 

best  candidate for  the job and not  Nxasana.  Those were the 

two th ings that  I  remember f rom her  recording.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   And then just  in the interest  of  saving 

t ime i f  we can turn to page 306 of  the same bundle.    

MR JOUBERT:   Yes.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Now you wi l l  recal l  I  have referred you to 10 

this aff idavi t  previously.   This is the aff idavi t  which is dated 

the 1s t  of  February of  2016 i f  you turn to  page 308 you wi l l  

see there at  the foot  of  the page the date stamp that  has 

been provided by the Commissioner  of  Oaths.   

MR JOUBERT:   Yes.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Now in  th is  aff idavi t  i t  appears that  – and 

I  say appears because the aff idavi t  is not  very speci f ic but  i t  

appears that  you distanced yoursel f  f rom the aff idavi t  of  the 

25t h of  November of  2013.   Now we know that  th is aff idavi t  

which is 1 February of  2016 was in  fact  deposed to by you.   20 

You have conf i rmed that  al ready.  

MR JOUBERT:   Yes Chai r  th is aff idavi t  here to be honest  

wi th you I  deposed of  th is aff idavi t  merely to d istance mysel f  

f rom ever having given Wi l l ie of  my aff idavi t  because the 

f i rst  aff idavi t  I  stand by i t .   I  st i l l  stand by i t  but  that  is the 



02 MARCH 2021 – DAY 353 
 

Page 258 of 299 
 

correct  one.   When I  was asked as to did you give Wi l l ie  

Hofmeyer an aff idavi t  th is was my response and hence the 

fact  that  I  d istanced mysel f  f rom that  because I  never  gave 

any aff idavi t  to Wi l l ie Hofmeyer and I  st i l l  stand by that .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Now when you say you did not… 

MR JOUBERT:   So –  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Sorry.    

MR JOUBERT:   So the – the aff idavi t  that  I  made was merely 

to distance mysel f  f rom – remember what d istant  to paint  the 

picture what had happened is that  I  gave this aff idavi t  the 10 

f i rst  one to Duma with the recording.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja hang on,  hang on.  

MR JOUBERT:   Whi le I  wai ted for the next… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hang on Mr Joubert .  

MR JOUBERT:   The next  th ing that  should have happened.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hang on Mr Joubert .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Hold on for a moment Mr Joubert .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hang on Mr Joubert .   I  do not  want us to  

waste t ime.  I t  is  late.   You d id not  distance yoursel f  f rom 

giving the aff idavi t  to Mr Hofmeyer as I  read your aff idavi t  20 

unless I  have missed something.   You distanced yoursel f  

f rom the contents of  the aff idavi t .   You were simply saying 

that  is not  me saying those th ings that  are in that  aff idavi t ,  is  

that  not  t rue? 

MR JOUBERT:   Ja,  no,  no.   That  is  why I  t r ied to explain.   I  
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am… 

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no,no.   Let  us get  that  r ight  f i rst .  

MR JOUBERT:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You accept  that  you were not  distancing 

yoursel f  s imply f rom saying – you were not  dis tancing 

yoursel f  f rom having given Mr Hofmeyer that  aff idavi t  you 

were distancing yoursel f  f rom the aff idavi t  i tsel f  saying 

whatever is said in that  aff idavi t  i t  is not  you saying those 

things.   Is that  – do you accept  that? 

MR JOUBERT:   Yes,  yes,  yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay.  

MR JOUBERT:   I  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   So the quest ion is  why did you say that? 

MR JOUBERT:   Do that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   When you knew that  the contents of  that  

aff idavi t  were your contents? 

MR JOUBERT:   Okay I  was busy explain ing to you Chair  as 

to how – why I  d id  what I  d id.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes you can expla in.  

MR JOUBERT:   I  merely – I  am merely a smal l  f ry in th is – in 20 

this whole incident  and what happened is that  I  became 

aware that  my aff idavi t  was used to – for a f ight  between 

execut ives.   That  is now your Jiba and Mrwebi and Nxasana 

and Hofmeyer.   This th ing was al l  over the newspapers.   My 

name was al l  over the newspapers and I  saw this  as me 



02 MARCH 2021 – DAY 353 
 

Page 260 of 299 
 

being used as a pawn within the – a f ight  between two 

elephants.   At  that  point  in t ime I  said I  d id not  g ive this 

aff idavi t .   That  is i t  in a nutshel l  because 

1.  As I  am saying to  you now I  stand by my f i rst  aff idavi t .   

The second aff idavi t  was requested by some journal ist  

that  phoned on numerous occasions about me making 

the f i rst  aff idavi t  and to him I  said no I  have no 

knowledge of  the f i rst  one because the f i rst  aff idavi t  

was sent  to Advocate Duma and Nxasana via  emai l  on 

the 25t h of  November 2013.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   So… 

MR JOUBERT:   No one else should have got ten a copy of  

that  aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So am I  r ight  to… 

MR JOUBERT:   The people that  should have – that  should 

have cal led me were the people that  were supposed to 

invest igate the matter which is the IMU in the NPA.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  me stop you there Mr Joubert .   Am I  

r ight  to say you accept  that  i t  was factual ly not  t rue and not  

correct  for you to distance yoursel f  f rom the contents of  that  20 

aff idavi t  – the f i rs t  aff idavi t?  Am I  correct  to say you accept  

that? 

MR JOUBERT:   Yes I  accept  that  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And that  i t  was not  r ight  to d istance 

yoursel f?  



02 MARCH 2021 – DAY 353 
 

Page 261 of 299 
 

MR JOUBERT:   Yes,  yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And that  the explanat ion you are giving for 

doing that  is that  you are saying that  you understood that  

your f i rst  aff idavi t  was at  the centre of  what you considered 

to be a f ight  between some execut ives wi thin the NPA. 

MR JOUBERT:   That  is correct  Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  as you si t  here you are able to take 

responsibi l i ty and say you should not  have d istanced 

yoursel f  f rom that  aff idavi t .   Is that  correct? 

MR JOUBERT:   That  is correct  Chair.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   As a f inal  quest ion would i t  be fai r  then 

to say having regard to what you have test i f ied to thus far  

would i t  be fai r  to say that  the content  of  the second aff idavi t  

that  is the aff idavi t  of  1 February 2016 that  the content  of  

that  aff idavi t  is incorrect? 

MR JOUBERT:   That  is correct  Chair.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   And this aff idavi t  the one of  1 February 

2016 to whom was that  aff idavi t  g iven? 

MR JOUBERT:   A t  th is point  in t ime Chai r  because I  do not  20 

have access to my emai ls I  requested assistance f rom the 

Labour Advocate Chando when she refused me because now 

I  cannot  for the l i fe of  me remember who did I  send th is th ing 

to.   I  could only do that  i f  I  have access to my emai l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Did you not  send i t  to the journal ist  that  
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you said had cal led enquir ing whether you had deposed to 

the f i rst  aff idavi t?  Shal l  I  repeat  that? 

MR JOUBERT:   Just  repeat  that  

CHAIRPERSON:   Did you not  send i t  to the journal ist  that  

you said cal led – cal led you to f ind out  whether you had 

deposed to the f i rst  aff idavi t?  

MR JOUBERT:   I  said that  but  in hindsight  I  remember – I  

cannot recal l  as to who I  sent  i t  to.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

MR JOUBERT:   That  was my – my response.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   So are you saying you cannot recal l  

whether you sent  i t  to the journal ist  or you cannot recal l  the 

name of  the person – the name of  the journal ist  that  you sent  

i t  to? 

MR JOUBERT:   I  cannot recal l  who I  sent  i t  to meaning that  I  

doubt  whether I  would ever send an aff idavi t  to a journal ist  

under any ci rcumstances.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR JOUBERT:   Because that  would be asking for  t rouble.   20 

But  wi th a l l  due respect  to th is – to  th is commission because 

of  the fact  that  I  do not  know who I  sent  i t  to I  am not  in a 

posi t ion to  ver i fy  because of  the fact  that  I  was told in no 

uncertain terms no I  cannot so I  w i l l  not  be able to  answer 

that  one 
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Thank you Mr Chair  I  have got  no further 

quest ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you very much Mr Joubert  for 

avai l ing yoursel f  to us as the commission.   I  wi l l  now re lease 

you.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   He would not  be coming back for anything 

or would he at  some stage?  There is nothing else that  he 

was to test i fy about? 10 

ADV HULLEY SC:   I  do not  bel ieve there is any further 

evidence that  he needs to test i fy.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay al r ight .   You are now excused Mr 

Joubert .   Thank you very much.  

MR JOUBERT:   Thank you,  thank you Chai r.   Thank you Mr 

Hul ley.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Counsel  for Colonel  Mhlongo are you st i l l  

there? 20 

ADV MANALA:    Yes good evening Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes good evening again.   Is Colonel  

Mhlongo ready to give ev idence? 

ADV MANALA:    I  understand so yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Colonel  Mhlongo can you hear me? 
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COL MHLONGO:   Yes Chai r  I  can – good evening to you I  

can hear you S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh good evening Colonel .   Thank you for  – 

thank you for avai l ing yoursel f  to give evidence and to assist  

the commission.  

COL MHLONGO:   Thank you very much Si r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .   The Registrar wi l l  administer 

the oath or aff i rmat ion to you and Mr Hul ley wi l l  then lead 

your evidence and quest ion you on your evidence.    

ADV HULLEY SC:   Mr Chairperson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Hul ley.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Perhaps before we start  that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   I  understand that  Colonel  Mhlongo has 

requested to test i fy through an interpreter.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Once the 00:22:26 has been made 

avai lab le so perhaps … 

CHAIRPERSON:   And where is the interpreter? 

ADV HULLEY SC:   I  understand that  he is in fact  present .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Has the necessary documentat ion been 

prepared? 

ADV HULLEY SC:   I  am told that  i t  has been prepared.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Can I  see i t?  Can I  see i t?  And his CV 

and qual i f icat ions is everything there? 
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ADV HULLEY SC:   I  understand that  i t  is  al l  there.   I  have 

only just  been given i t  mysel f .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Nzotho come forward i t  does appear 

f rom the documents that  you have given me that  you have 

magist rates who say that  you are prof ic ient  in the Engl ish 

and Is i -Zulu language and that  you have sat isf ied them with 

your  knowledge and prof ic iency in  the two languages when 

you have interpreted in the cases in which they have 

presided.   Maybe – maybe you could si t  that  s ide i f  there is a 

microphone that  works f rom that  s ide so he can see the 10 

wi tness because the wi tness wi l l  not  appear there is i t  not?  

Or wi l l  he – wi l l  he appear there as wel l?  He wi l l  appear 

there – i t  is bet ter here.   Okay no that  is f ine then.   Has he 

got  these documents or the ones I  have are the ones he 

should have?  Okay Regist rar give him this – sani t ise before 

you give i t  to him.  I  th ink what  you have prepared here 

today in terms of  someth ing to be signed by me is  not  the 

same thing that  I  have done before.   At  least  that  is  not  my 

recol lect ion.    

Okay have you sani t ised i t  and given i t  to him?  Ja,  wel l  I  20 

don’ t  know what they say but  I  have no recol lect ion of  th is  

one.    Mr  Mzombe(s ic ) ,  wr i te  your  fu l l  names where  you are  

supposed to  wr i t e  them on the  oa th  in  f ron t  o f  you.   Jus t  

wr i te .   Have you wr i t ten  your  names? 

INTERPRETER :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   
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CHAIRPERSON:    Do not  s ign  ye t .   Take the  oa th  f i rs t .   

Okay.   Wi l l  you  read the  oa th  a loud  inc lud ing  your  names? 

INTERPRETER :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Pu t  on  your  m ic .  

INTERPRETER :    I ,  the  unders igned,  Kule lane Dumelake  

Nzotho ,  hereby s ta tes  under  oa th :  

1 .  I  am pro f ic ien t  w i th  Eng l ish  and i s iZu lu  and 

am ab le  to  in te rp re t  and t rans la te  f rom Eng l ish  

to  i s iZu lu  and v ice  ve rsa .  

2 .  The code to  t rans la te  or  in te rpre t  f rom 10 

is iZu lu  to  Eng l i sh  or  fo rm Eng l ish  to  i s iZu lu .  

3 .  In  p roceed ings  o f  th is  Commiss ion ,  I  

under take to  do  so  honest ly  and to  the  best  o f  

my knowledge and ab i l i t y.  

 So he lp  me God.  

KULELANE DUMELAKE NZOTHO :   (d .s .s . )   ( In te rpre ter )  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you and then you may s ign  now.  

INTERPRETER :    Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   And then  tha t ,  you tak ing  the  oa th  

goes in to  the  record  and the  document  he re  is  s igned,  w i l l  20 

need to  be  taken and f i led .   But  tomorrow,  Reverend  

S t ime la ,  w i l l  you  show me one tha t  I  have s igned  before  

because th is  looks unusua l  to  me but  i f  I  see  one tha t  I  

have s igned befo re  then maybe I  w i l l  s ign  i t .   Okay.   You 

may be seated Mr  Mzombe(s i c ) .  
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INTERPRETER :    Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  Nzotho o r  Mzombe? 

INTERPRETER :    Nzotho.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Nzotho?  

INTERPRETER :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You are  no t  re la ted  to  the  Mzombe’s ,  

hey?  

INTERPRETER :    I  am not .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .  

INTERPRETER :    Thank you.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .   Thank you.   Of  course ,  

when there  i s  the  in te rvent ion  o f  the  in te rp re te r,  

p roceed ings take  longer  than when there  is  no  i n te rp re ter  

bu t  le t  us  t ry.   The in te rpre ter  has been sworn  in  now,  

Co lone l  Mh longo.   So we w i l l  s ta r t .    

 Mr  Hu l ley,  you can s tar t  lead ing  your  ev idence  

and quest ion ing  h im.   And I  th ink  Mr  Hu l ley,  as  you  do so ,  

i t  i s  impor tan t  to  conf i rm wi th  h im r igh t  up  f ron t  tha t  he  

does not  d ispute  what  was reco rded,  i f  tha t  i s  the  case,  

because tha t  i s  how I  unders tand h is  a f f idav i t  because tha t  20 

may a f fec t  a  number  o f  th ings.   But  i f  there  i s  anyth ing  he  

d isputes ,  then he can spec i fy.  Okay.   So tha t  m ight  jus t  

he lp  as  we go a long.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Thank you Mr  Cha i r.   We are  speak ing ,  

o f  cou rse ,  spec i f i ca l l y  about  the  record ing .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    The t ransc r ip t  o f  the  record ing .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Ja .   Thank you .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   So I  am say ing .   I t  w i l l  be  impor tan t ,  

qu i te  ea r ly,  you do not  have to  s ta r t  w i th  i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV HULLEY SC:    Sure .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  qu i te  ear ly  to  ge t  to  tha t  po in t  

because how much o f  the  –  o f  what  he  sa id  to  have been  

recorded he d i sputes ,  may be impor tan t .    

ADV HULLEY SC:    Thank you  Mr  Cha i r.   Before  we 

commence Mr  Cha i r.   I  am not  sure  i f  Co lone l  Mh longo has  10 

been sworn  in  ye t .   I  th ink  I  in te r rup ted  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  yes .   You d id ,  ac tua l l y.   Le t  us . . .   

Thank you fo r  remind ing  me.   The . . .   I  th ink  what  –  you w i l l  

leave t ime fo r  the  in te rpre ter  to  in te rp re t  whatever  you say  

to  the  w i tness in  te rms o f  the  oa th .   Okay?  

REGISTRAR :    [No audible reply]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Go ahead.  

REGISTRAR :    Co lone l  Mh longo,  w i l l  you  be tak ing  the  oa th  

or  a f f i rmat ion?  

COL MHLONGO:    I  w i l l  take  the  oa th .  20 

REGISTRAR:    P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

WITNESS:    My names are  Welcome Sthembiso  Mhlungo.  

REGISTRAR:    Do you have any ob jec t ion  in  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

WITNESS:    I  have no ob jec t ion .  
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REGISTRAR:    Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  

WITNESS:    I  do .  

REGISTRAR:    Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence 

you w i l l  g ive ,  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ,  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  

bu t  the  t ru th?   I f  so ,  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and say,  

so  he lp  me God.  

WITNESS:    So  he lp  me God.   

WELCOME STHEMBISO MHLUNGO :   (d .s .s . )  ( th rough 

in te rpre ter )  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you very  much.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Thank you Mr  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON:    I  jus t  want  to  say Mr  Nzotho tha t  I  have  

heard  in te rpre te rs  here  and i t  d id  no t  take  fo r  me to  be 

d issa t is f ied  w i th  the i r  in te rpre ta t ion .   You are  s t i l l  to  

in te rpre t  fu r ther,  bu t  fo rm the  l i t t le  tha t  I  have heard ,  you  

g ive  me conf idence tha t  you know what  you are  do ing .  

INTERPRETER :    Thank you Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

INTERPRETER :    I  am qu i te  humbled.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    A l r igh t .   P lease proceed Mr  Hu l ley.  

EXAMINATION BY ADV HULLEY SC :    Thank you Mr  Cha i r.   

Co lone l  Mh longo  and fo r  the  benef i t  o f  the  Cha i rpe rson,  

you ought  to  have a  bund le  wh ich  is  marked LEA Bund le  

10 .    
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COL MHLONGO:    That  i s  cor rec t .   I  do  have i t .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Now i f  you wou ld  no t  m ind jus t  tu rn ing  

w i th  me to  page  210.27.   Now jus t  to  ass is t  you.   There  a re  

two se ts  o f  number ing  sys tems on the  documents .   There  is  

one tha t  i s  in  red  wh ich  is  in  the  top  r igh t -hand corner  and 

there  is  one wh ich  is  in  b lack  wh ich  is  in  the  top  le f t -hand 

corne r.   I  want  you to  focus on  the  one wh ich  is  in  b lack  a t  

the  top  le f t -hand corne r.    

COL MHLONGO:    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV HULLEY SC:    Now i f  you cou ld  tu rn  to  me to  page  10 

210.27 in  the  top  le f t -hand co rner.  

COL MHLONGO:    I  found i t  Cha i r.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Thank you .   And i f  you can keep 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

COL MHLONGO:    I s  i t  the  one be tween LEA and 210 and  

then there  is  a  four?   I s  tha t  the  one you a re  ta lk ing  about?  

ADV HULLEY SC:    There  is  LEA 10-210.27.    

COL MHLONGO:    I s  i t  a  document  w i th  the  record ing  tha t  

was made by  Jouber t?  

ADV HULLEY SC:    No,  tha t  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  me ass i s t  h im.   Co lone l  Mh longo?  

COL MHLONGO:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The lever  a rch  f i le  you have got ,  on  the  

sp ine ,  i s  i t  wr i t ten  Bund le  LEA-10? 

MR MHLONGO:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .   Then what  you need to  do  

is .   Go to  page 210 us ing  the  b lack  numbers  on  the  le f t  –  

top  le f t -hand corne r.   Page 210 i s  the  las t  page o f  a  le t te r  

wr i t ten  by  the  ac t ing  Secre ta ry  o f  the  Commiss ion  a t  the 

t ime,  Ms K  B  Shaba la .    

MR MHLONGO:    I  apo log i se  fo r  de lay ing  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .   Now,  now tha t  you have 

found page 210 . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV HULLEY SC:    Mr  Cha i r,  sor ry,  i f  I  cou ld  jus t  in te r rup t  

you?  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

ADV HULLEY SC:    I  have been asked to  request  

Co lone l  Mh longo  to  pos i t ion  h imse l f  in  such a  way tha t  

when he looks a t  the  document  he  is ,  h is  face  i s  no t  –  does  

not  go  o f f  the  screen.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Thank you Mr  Cha i r.    

COL MHLONGO:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r i gh t .   Now i f  you go to  the  next  

page,  the  page tha t  comes a f te r  page 210,  you w i l l  see  20 

tha t  tha t  page is  wr i t ten  210.1 .   Can you see tha t?  

MR MHLONGO:    Yes,  I  see tha t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Now you must  count  and go to  

page 210.27.   And tha t  page,  namely  210.27,  i s  t he  f i rs t  

page o f  your  a f f idav i t .    
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MR MHLONGO:    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you ab le  to  f ind  i t?  

MR MHLONGO:    I  f ind  the  one tha t  says 210.25.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Go two pages fu r the r.    

MR MHLONGO:    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    What  i s  the  next  page a f te r  page  

210.25?  

MR MHLONGO:    I t  i s  then 210.26.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  and then  the  next  page i s  page 

210.27,  i s  i t  no t  so?  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Have you  got  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

MR MHLONGO:    . . .Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Have you got  a  red  number  on  

the  r igh t -hand page a t  the  top  o f  the  next  page? 

MR MHLONGO:    [Speaker  ve rnacu lar  –  no  in te rpre ta t ion ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay I  th ink  there  i s  a  p rob lem.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    I  can  see wha t  the  prob lem i s .   I  th ink  

tha t  h is  f i l e  p robab ly  has no t  been updated.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Because h is  a f f idav i t  -  20 

Co lone l  Mh longo ’s  a f f idav i t ,  obv ious ly,  i t  came in  

a f te rwards . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    . . . s ince  the  bund le  was or ig ina l l y  sent  

to  h im.   There  was an add i t i ona l  –  some add i t iona l  
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documents  tha t  were  sent .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    I  assumed tha t  he  had tha t  bund le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Bu t  i t  seems tha t  he  does not  have i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Would  i t  be  a  mat te r  o f  s lo t t ing  in  

h is  a f f idav i t  in  the  r igh t  p lace  and  pag ina t ing  i t  o r  wou ld  i t  

invo l ve  more  than  tha t?  

ADV HULLEY SC:    I t  ought  to  be  a  s imp le  mat te r  o f  jus t  

s lo t t ing  i t  in  because there  are  13-pages to  h is  a f f idav i t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Okay.   Have you got  your  la tes t  

a f f idav i t  in  your  possess ion?  

MR MHLONGO:    Yes,  I  do .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .   That  a f f idav i t ,  the  f i rs t  

page o f  tha t  a f f idav i t  i s  supposed to  be  page 210.27.   You 

unders tand?   

MR MHLONGO:    I  unders tand Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  we a re  go ing  to  do .   We are  go ing  

to  –  we are  no t  go ing  to  use the  page numbers  or  i f  we do 

use page numbers  in  regard  to  your  a f f idav i t ,  ignore  the  20 

page numbers  when we ment ion  page numbers  bu t  we w i l l  

focus on  the  paragraph numbers  o f  your  a f f idav i t  when we 

re fer  to  what  you say in  your  a f f idav i t .  

MR MHLONGO:    I  unders tand Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .  
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ADV HULLEY SC:    Thank you Mr  Cha i r.   What  I  w i l l  do  fo r  

the  benef i t  o f  our  reco rd  Mr  Cha i r  i s .   I  w i l l  read our  

number ing  in to  the  record  bu t  I  w i l l  adv i se  Co lone l  Mh longo 

on wh ich  page o f  h is  document  i t  i s .  

COL MHLONGO:    No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Ja .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Thank you Mr  Cha i r.   Co lone l  Mh longo,  

i f  you  cou ld  keep  tha t  page open.   In  o ther  words,  the  f i rs t  

page o f  tha t  a f f idav i t  and then tu rn  w i th  me to  the  las t  

page.   Fo r  you,  i t  w i l l  appear  a t  the  bo t tom r igh t  hand 

corne r  wh ich  w i l l  be  page 13 o f  13 .   For  the  purpose  o f  the  10 

record ,  i t  w i l l  be  page 210.39 Mr  Cha i r.  

COL MHLONGO:    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV HULLEY SC:    The s ignature  a t  the  top  o f  tha t  page,  

i s  tha t  you r  s igna ture  s i r?  

COL MHLONGO:    Yes,  tha t  i s  my s ignature .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    And you deposed to  th i s  be fore  a  

commiss ioner  o f  oa ths  accord ing  to  the  da te  s tamp wh ich  

says the  2 n d  o f  February  2021.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

COL MHLONGO:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Thank you.   And then i f  you look a t  the  20 

cer t i f i ca te  tha t  has been prov ided  by  the  commiss ioner  o f  

oa ths .   I t  says  there  tha t  i t  was:  

“Th is  a f f idav i t  was s igned and sworn  to  be fo re  

me a t . . . ”  

 And I  cannot  make out  where  i t  has  been sworn  
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to ,  on  the  22 n d  day o f  February.   I t  says  2020.   That  i s ,  in  

fac t ,  incor rec t .   I t  shou ld  be  2021.   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

COL MHLONGO:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .   That  i s  an  er ro r.   I  

con f i rm tha t .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    And you conf i rm tha t  th is  i s  the 

a f f idav i t  tha t  you  have prov ided to  the  Commiss ion  – to  

th is  Commiss ion  re la t ing  to  your  tes t imony regard ing  

Mr  Jouber t ’s  a f f idav i t .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

COL MHLONGO:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Now befo re  we get  in to  the  –  i n to  the  10 

content  o f  your  a f f idav i t  and I  w i l l  take  you th rough tha t  

shor t l y.   As  you know,  a  very  mater ia l  par t  o f  –  a d ispute  

be tween yourse l f  and Mr  Jouber t  re la tes  to  a  conversa t ion  

tha t  the  two o f  you have had.  

COL MHLONGO:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    And tha t  conversa t ion  was  in  fac t  

recorded by  Mr  Jouber t  o r  a t  leas t  a  por t ion  o f  the 

conversa t ion  was  recorded by  Mr  Jouber t .   And you have –  

you have been  prov ided w i th  the  t ransc r ip t  o f  tha t  

record ing .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  20 

COL MHLONGO:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Now i f  you wou ld  tu rn  w i th  me to  page  

243 o f  the  same bund le  o f  documents  tha t  you have .  

COL MHLONGO:    243 on b lack  or  243 in  red?  

ADV HULLEY SC:    B lack .   We are  on ly  go ing  to  be 
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speak ing  about  the  b lack .    

COL MHLONGO:    Cha i r,  i f  I  may ask  because I  do  no t  

seem to  unders tand these documents  tha t  a re  in  f ron t  o f  

me.   Perhaps i f  you  can ind i ca te  what  tha t  page re la tes  to .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   No,  I  th ink  we might  have to  

a t tend to  mak ing  sure  tha t  he  has exact ly  the  same 

pag ina t ion  and documents  as  everybody because I  thought  

maybe inso far  as  i t  m igh t  be  h i s  a f f idav i t  on ly  t ha t  was not  

p roper ly  pag ina ted,  we wou ld  be  ab le  to  make do w i thout  

h im hav ing  to  do  tha t .   But  i f  there  are  o the r  documents  10 

tha t  wou ld  be  re fer red  to  and he does not  have the  same 

pag ina t ion ,  we are  go ing  to  have a  prob lem.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    . . .Cha i r  bu t  tha t  ought  no t  to  be  the  

case in  re la t ion  to  th is  document .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

ADV HULLEY SC:    There  is  po ten t ia l l y  one o ther  

document  tha t  he  m ight  have a  prob lem wi th  bu t  th is  

document  i s  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  shou ld  no t  be  a  prob lem? 

ADV HULLEY SC:    Th is  document ,  he  shou ld  have had 20 

th ree  weeks ago when he f i rs t  came to  –  when he was f i rs t  

ava i lab le  to  tes t i f y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  te l l . . .   Okay jus t  te l l  h im what  i t  i s  

and then see whether  he  has go t  the  pag ina t ion  or  no t .   

But  i f  he  does not  have the  pag ina t ion  bu t  the  document  
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has  parag raphs then tha t  w i l l  he lp .   But  i f  he  does not  have  

paragraphs,  then we w i l l  have. . .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Thank you Mr  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON:    We might  have a  prob lem.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Co lone l  Mh longo,  th is  i s  the  document  

wh ich  is  a  t ransc r ip t  o f  the  reco rd ing  o f  the  conversa t ion  

be tween yourse l f  and Mr  Jouber t .   I t  shou ld  appear  a t  page  

243 in  the  top  le f t -hand corne r.    

COL MHLONGO:    Cha i r,  accord ing  to  the  documents  

be fore  me,  a  document  conta in ing  the  t ransc r ip ts  o f  the 10 

conversa t ion  be tween Mr  Jouber t  and myse l f  appears  on  

page tha t  i s  wr i t ten  LEA-10.135.     

ADV HULLEY SC:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  the  page o f  the  record ing  or  the  

t ranscr ip t  o f  the  record ing  tha t  you have wr i t ten  v ideo 

record ing  VN-2013/11/25?  

COL MHLONGO:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay  a l r igh t .   I t  looks  l i ke  you  have a  

pag ina t ion  tha t  i s  no t  the  same as ou r  respect ive  

pag ina t ions bu t  you have the  same document .   I t  w i l l  be  20 

poss ib le ,  I  th ink  Mr  Hu l ley,  to  re fe r  –  to  use the  page 

numbers  a t  the  bo t tom o f  the  pa r t i cu la r  document .   And fo r  

our  pu rposes you can ment ion  aga in  the  pag ina ted page 

number.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Thank you Mr  Cha i r.    
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CHAIRPERSON:    And the  page number  o f  the  document  as  

we l l  and then you can a lways  re fer  to  the  marg ina l  

numbers .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    The Y numbers?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Thank you Mr  Cha i r.   Mr  Cha i r,  can be  

ab le  o f  ass i s tance,  ac tua l l y,  what  Co lone l  Mh longo is  

re fe r r i ng  to  i s  the  ident ica l  document .   I t  i s  jus t  an  

annexure  to  h is  bund le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  10 

ADV HULLEY SC:    I  am happy to  re fer  to  tha t  document  i f  

tha t  i s  what  he  has go t .   For  your  benef i t ,  Cha i r,  i t  i s  page 

133 o f  the  bund le  tha t  i s  in  f ron t  o f  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    133?  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Cor rec t  Mr  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay i f  we can use the  one and the  

same document  then we can do tha t .   Then tha t  i s  go ing  to  

be  eas ie r.   Okay a l r igh t .   So le t  us  use tha t  one.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Thank you Mr  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Befo re  we do so .   Reverend  20 

S t ime la ,  we are  a t  about  quar te r  to  e igh t .   IN  te rms o f  

s ta f f ,  a re  there  peop le  who might  have t ranspor t  p rob lems 

i f  we go on to  ha l f -past  e igh t?  

REV STIMELA :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .  
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REV STIMELA :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .   Thank you.   Mr  Hu l ley,  

be fore  we s tar t .   Le t  us  take  a  shor t  ad journment .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Thank you Mr  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON:    We are  jus t  go ing  to  ad jou rn  fo r  f i ve  to  

seven minutes  and then we are  go ing  to  ad jou rn .   We 

ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  le t  us  cont inue.  10 

MR HULLEY SC :    Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r.   Co lone l  Mh longo,  

we were  look ing  a t  page 133 o f  the  bund le  o f  documents .   

Now i t  does indeed s tar t  LEA10 in  the  top  le f t  hand  corner,  

bu t  fo r  ou r  pu rposes you can ignore  the  LEA10,  I  am jus t  

go ing  to  re fer  to  the  number  tha t  appears  a longs ide  tha t  

bu t  in  th is  case i t  i s  133.   Those a re  your  page numbers .  

COL MHLONGO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    P lease put  on  your  m ic ,  Mr  In te rpre ter,  

pu t  on  your  m ic .  

COL MHLONGO:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .   Thank you.  20 

MR HULLEY SC :    Now f rom page 133 to  139 tha t  i s  a  

t ranscr ip t  o f  tha t  purpor ts  to  be  a  t ranscr ip t  o f  the 

record ing  o f  a  conversa t ion  o r  par t  o f  a  conversa t i on  tha t  

took p lace between you and Mr  Jouber t .    

COL MHLONGO:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  
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MR HULLEY SC :    And you have in  fac t  seen th is  document  

p rev ious ly,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

COL MHLONGO:    Yes,  Cha i r,  I  have seen i t .  

MR HULLEY SC :    And you have had an oppor tun i ty  to  

cons ider  the  contents  o f  th is  document ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

COL MHLONGO:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

MR HULLEY SC :    And wou ld  i t  be  co r rec t  to  say tha t  –  

we l l ,  le t  me ask  you,  do  you agree tha t  th is  document  

accu ra te l y  records  or  captu res  the  conversa t ion  tha t  took  

p lace between yourse l f  and Mr  Jouber t?  10 

COL MHLONGO:    I  can  conf i rm ,  Cha i r,  a l though  i t  has  

been qu i te  some t ime s ince  the  conversa t ion  took p lace but  

I  s t i l l  remember  por t ions  o f  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  to  be  fa i r  to  you,  Co lone l  Mh longo,  

there  a re  spaces in  the  t ranscr ip t  tha t  re f lec t  tha t  the  

person who typed or  t ranscr ibed the  conversa t ion  d id  no t  

hear  what  was be ing  sa id  and wro te  ind is t inc t  and so  on  

but  I  th ink  the  quest ion  was meant  to  say to  you in  essence 

you accept  tha t  i t  cap tures  impor tan t  par ts  o f  your  

conversa t ion  w i th  Mr  Jouber t .  20 

COL MHLONGO:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.  

MR HULLEY SC :    Thank you,  Co lone l  Mh longo.   Now I  am 

go ing  to  dea l  w i th  the  background  to  the  mat te r  be fore  we  

get  in to  the  conversa t ions and so  fo r th  and I  jus t  want  to  
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ge t  some in fo rmat ion  re la t ing  to  your  own background and 

how you became invo lved in  th is  a f fa i r  tha t  we now have to 

lead ev idence on .   I f  I  unders tand f rom the  a f f idav i t  tha t  

you have deposed to ,  you are  cu r ren t ly  a  co lone l  in  the 

D i rec tora te  fo r  Pr io r i t y  Cr imes Invest iga t ion  or  what  i s  

commonly  re fer red  to  as  the  Hawks,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

COL MHLONGO:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

MR HULLEY SC :    And the  DPCI  i s  the  successor  to  the 

D i rec tora te  fo r  Spec ia l  Opera t ions wh ich  is  the  DSO,  is  

tha t  cor rec t?  10 

COL MHLONGO:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

MR HULLEY SC :    And you had been employed w i th in  the  

DSO in  2004,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

COL MHLONGO:    Even though  I  do  no t  remember  the  

exact  da te  bu t  we were  amongst  the  f i rs t  to  be  employed  

by  the  DSO,  i t  cou ld  have been around 2001.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am not  sure ,  Mr  Hu l ley,  w i l l  I  need to  

go  back,  tha t  fa r  back h i s…? 

MR HULLEY SC :    I t  i s  no t  rea l l y  re levant .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

MR HULLEY SC :    I  th ink  i t  i s  re levant  to  Co lone l  

Mh longo ’s  u rgent  –  o f  how we came to  know Mr  Jouber t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  i s  the  fac t  no t  tha t  there  shou ld  be  

no d ispute  about  how they came to  know each o the r?  

MR HULLEY SC :    Cor rec t .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    O f  i f  there  i s ,  i t  shou ld  no t  mat te r  to  us .  

MR HULLEY SC :    There  is  no t  rea l l y  much o f  a  d ispute .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Ja ,  I  th ink  you need to  come c loser  

to  the  day o f  the  record ing  par t i cu la r ly  because i t  does not  

d ispute  the  cor rec tness o f  the  t ranscr ip t  and tha t  i s  what  

th is  who le  –  i s  and Mr  Jouber t  i s  rea l l y  about .  

MR HULLEY SC :    Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR HULLEY SC :    Be fore  we get  in to  the  t ransc r ip t ,  now i f  

I  unders tand f rom your  a f f idav i t  cor rec t l y,  you tes t i f ied  –  or  10 

you have deposed to  an  a f f idav i t  in  wh ich  you say tha t  the  

two o f  you,  tha t  i s  you and Mr  Jouber t ,  were  qu i te  c lose ,  

you were  the  f i rs t  person to  we lcome h im when he came to  

Kwazu lu-Nata l  in  2004 and a f te r  tha t  the  two o f  you had a  

very  c lose  re la t ionsh ip .  

COL MHLONGO:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r,  and I  can exp la in  

how i t  a l l  un fo lded.  

MR HULLEY SC :    Wel l ,  fo r  p resent  pu rposes we  do not  

need to  ge t  in to  tha t  un less  i t  becomes necessary  a t  a  

la te r  s tage but  your  unders tand ing  or  your  apprec ia t ion  o f  20 

the  re la t ionsh ip  tha t  you had was tha t  the  two o f  you were  

c lose f r iends.  

COL MHLONGO:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r,  we were  c lose  

f r iends and when  he came in  some o f  the  du t ies  t ha t  he  

had to  do  are  works  tha t  had prev ious l y  been done by  
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myse l f  in  the  prov ince o f  Kwazu lu-Nata l .  

MR HULLEY SC :    Now i f  I  unders tand cor rec t l y,  the  

f r iendsh ip  pers is ted  or  cont inued  unt i l  approx imate ly  the  

25  November  o r  the  26  November  2013 shor t l y  a f te r  you  

became aware  o f  an  a f f idav i t  o r  a  s ta tement  tha t  he  had  

deposed to  and  made ava i lab le  to  Mr  Nxasana,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

COL MHLONGO:    I f  you  may repeat?  

MR HULLEY SC :    Do I  unders tand  cor rec t l y  tha t  the  two o f  

you,  tha t  i s  yourse l f  and Mr  Jouber t  had been c lose  f r iends 10 

unt i l  approx imate ly  the  25  o f  26  November  2013? 

COL MHLONGO:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r,  our  f r iendsh ip  

cont inued and we  remained c lose  unt i l  I  learn t  tha t  he  had 

gone to  o r  he  had communica ted  to  Mr  Nxasana ’s  o f f i ce  

tha t  I  was inves t iga t ing  Mr  Nxasana.   I t  was f rom tha t  

s tage tha t  I  s ta r ted  to  have my reserva t ions about  h im.  

MR HULLEY SC :    And how d id  you f ind  ou t  about  the  fac t  

tha t  he  has gone to  Mr  Nxasana ’s  o f f i ce  to  compla in  to  h im 

tha t  you had been invest iga t ing  Mr  Nxasana? 

COL MHLONGO:   I  was in fo rmed,  Cha i r,  by  the  lady tha t  I  20 

worked w i th ,  was  f rom the  NPA,  I  worked w i th  in  the  o f f i ce ,  

who in fo rmed me tha t  I  had to  vacate  the  o f f i ces ,  tha t  an  

ins t ruc t ion  has been g iven tha t  I  shou ld  leave the  o f f i ces  

because in fo rmat ion  had come to  the  fo re  tha t  I  was  

invest iga t ing  Mr  Nxasana and she  fu r ther  in fo rmed me tha t  
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on  inqu i r ing  as  to  where  d id  tha t  in fo rmat ion  come f rom,  

tha t  she then in fo rmed me tha t  i t  was made to  unders tand  

tha t  i t  came f rom Ter rence Jouber t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Hu l ley,  may I  suggest  tha t  you  

quest ion  Co lone l  Mh longo on the  main  fea tures  o f  the i r  

conversa t ion  as  re f lec ted  in  the  t ranscr ip t .   The reason 

why I  wou ld  l i ke  you to  do  tha t  because i f  indeed the  

pos i t ion  is ,  as  I  unders tand i t ,  tha t  there  i s  no th ing  o f  any  

impor tance tha t  d i f fe rs  f rom Mr  Jouber t ’s  vers ion  tha t  

Co lone l  Mh longo  advances i t  may we l l  be  tha t  a l l  these 10 

th ings about  whe ther  they were  f r iends or  s topped  to  be  

f r iends,  whether  one is  genera l l y  unre l iab le ,  they may be 

ne i the r  here  nor  there  i f  there  i s  no  d ispute  be tween them 

o f  any s ign i f i cance on the  main  fea tures  o f  the  

conversa t ion  and  there  m ight  be  no  need to  rea l l y  take  too  

much t ime about  a l l  o f  those issues about  who is  te l l ing  the 

t ru th  about  th is  o r  tha t .  

MR HULLEY SC :    Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  what  we a re  ta lk ing  about  the re  is  no  

mater ia l  d i spute .   So fa r  Co lone l  Mh longo has sa id  the  20 

t ranscr ip t  co r rec t l y  re f lec ts  the  substance or  g is t  o f  what  

they d i scussed.   So I  th ink  what  may be impor tan t  i s  to  

h igh l igh t  cer ta in  fea tures .  

MR HULLEY SC :    Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And quest ion  h im on some o f  the  issues  
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tha t  a re  impor tan t .  

MR HULLEY SC :    Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r.   Now i f  we can 

cons ider  the  t ranscr ip t  tha t  I  have re fer red  you to  a  

moment  ago,  Co lone l  Mh longo,  i f  you  wou ld  tu rn  w i th  me to 

page 135.   Do you have i t?  

COL MHLONGO:    I  do .  

MR HULLEY SC :    Now i f  you look  in  the  le f t  hand co lumn 

you w i l l  see  tha t  there  is  a  l ine  number ing  sys tem,  you w i l l  

see  the  number  5 ,  the  number  10 ,  the  number  15  and the  

number  20 ,  r igh t  a t  the  bo t tom you w i l l  see  a  number  25 ,  10 

do  you see tha t?  

COL MHLONGO:    I  do ,  Cha i r.  

MR HULLEY SC :    Now a t  l ine  16 ,  th is  i s  Mr  Ter rence  

Jouber t  speak ing ,  he  says:  

“Our  th ing  here  w i th  the  boss,  these guys f rom RAF 

tomorrow morn ing ,  a l l  I  am go ing  to  do ,  I  w i l l  l i nk  

you up w i th  them so tha t  you can get  a l l  the  

documenta t ion .   The th ing  tha t  I  do  no t  want  i s  no t  

–  I  am jus t  b r ing ing  A to  B .  

Do you see tha t ,  s i r?  20 

COL MHLONGO:    I  am jus t  t ry ing  to  f ind  i t ,  Cha i r,  because 

the  number  i s  5 ,  L15,  20  and 25.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  le t  me exp la in  i t  to  you,  Co lone l  

Mh longo.  Where  i t  says  5 ,  can you see tha t?  

COL MHLONGO:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    I f  you  count  upwards,  the  next  l ine  w i l l  

be  l ine  4 .   I f  you  count  upwards,  the  next  l ine  w i l l  be  l ine 

3 ,  the  next  l ine  w i l l  be  l ine  2 .   The  f i rs t  l i ne  w i l l  be  l ine  1 ,  

bu t  i t  i s  no t  wr i t ten  1  next  to  i t .   So  when you count  a lso 

f rom where  i t  says  5 ,  tha t  5  means tha t  i s  l ine  5  on  the  

page.   So i f  you  go to  the  next  l ine  count ing  downwards,  

the  next  l ine  w i l l  be  l ine  6 ,  the  nex t  one wou ld  be  l ine  7  bu t  

i t  i s  no t  wr i t ten ,  the  next  one w i l l  be  l ine  8 ,  the  next  one 

w i l l  be  l ine  9 ,  the  next  one i t  is  l ine  10  and then i t  i s  

wr i t ten  10 ,  so  tha t  i s  how i t  works .   So i f  you  are  re fer r ing  10 

to  l ine  7 ,  you count  f rom 5  two l ines ,  then you are  on  l ine  

7 .   I f  you  are  re fer red  to  l ine  12 ,  you look a t  l ine  10  and 

count  two l ines ,  then you are  on  l ine  12 .   That  i s  how i t  

works .  

COL MHLONGO:    Yes,  I  unders tand,  we were  on  page 35,  

r igh t?  

MR HULLEY SC :    That  i s  cor rec t .   Now i f  you look  a t  l ine  

15 .  

COL MHLONGO:    Yes.  

MR HULLEY SC :    The 15 in  the  le f t  co lumn.  20 

COL MHLONGO:    Yes,  I  see i t .  

MR HULLEY SC :    Now tha t  sentence beg ins :  

“No,  I  mean the  who le  –  our  who le  po in t  here  is  the  

co l lec t ion  –  sor ry,  i t  i s  one co l lec t i on ,  no ,  no ,  no . ”  

And then the  impor tan t  pa r t  tha t  I  want  you to  look  a t  i s :  
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“Our  th ing  he re  comes here  w i th  the  boss,  these  

guys f rom RAF tomorrow morn ing ,  a l l  I  am go ing  to  

do ,  I  w i l l  l i nk  you  up w i th  them so  tha t  you can get  

a l l  the  documenta t ion .   The th ing  tha t  I  do  no t  wan t  

i s  no t  –  I  am jus t  b r ing ing  A to  B . ”  

Do you see tha t  sentence?  

COL MHLONGO:    I  see  tha t ,  Cha i r.  

MR HULLEY SC :    Now th i s  i s  Mr  Ter rence Jouber t  

speak ing  and he is  speak ing  to  you ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

COL MHLONGO:    That  i s  cor rec t .  10 

MR HULLEY SC :    Now you in  your  response a t  l ine  19  you 

say yes.  

COL MHLONGO:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

MR HULLEY SC :    Now when he  speaks about  our  th ing  

here  w i th  the  boss,  what  was he in  fac t  re fe r r ing  to?  

COL MHLONGO:    I  wou ld  l i ke  to  s ta r t  by  say ing  tha t  th is  

conversa t ion ,  yes ,  i t  d id  happen but  there  i s  a  po r t ion  tha t  

he  d id  no t  reco rd ,  tha t  po r t ion  wou ld  i nd ica te  where  th i s  

who le  conversa t ion  or ig ina ted  f rom.  

MR HULLEY SC :    In  o ther  words ,  a  por t ion  tha t  p receded  20 

a  po in t  a t  wh ich  the  reco rd ing  commenced? 

COL MHLONGO:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

MR HULLEY SC :    So  a  por t ion  tha t  occu r red  dur ing  th is  

very  same conversa t ion ,  no t  on  a  conversa t ion  on  a  

prev ious day.  
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COL MHLONGO:    I  am re fer r ing  –  Cha i r,  I  am re fer r ing  to  

a  conversa t ion  tha t  took p lace the  prev ious day  on  the  

recorded t ransc r ibed conversa t ion ,  i t  i s  when he came the  

fo l low ing day in  the  morn ing .   On read ing  th is  conversa t ion  

i t  becomes apparent  tha t  there  is  a  conversa t ion  tha t  

p receded th is  one.  

MR HULLEY SC :    Then you  say tha t  there  was a  

conversa t ion  tha t  p receded th is  one?  Are  you say ing  tha t  

there  was conversa t ion  tha t  p receded th is  conversa t ion?  

In  o ther  words,  tha t  took p lace e i ther  a t  an  ear l ie r  t ime in  10 

the  day o r  on  a  prev ious day or  a re  you say ing  tha t  th is  

record ing  i s  incomple te  in  respec t  o f  a  conversa t i on  tha t  

took p lace on th is  day?  

COL MHLONGO:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .   Cha i rperson ,  when 

we heard  the  recorded and t ransc r ibed conversa t ion  i t  was 

a  cont inuat ion  o f  a  conversa t ion  tha t  had taken p lace the  

prev ious day.   So when he came and we had th is  recorded  

conversa t ion  i t  was a  cont inuat ion  o f  th ings he  had  spoken 

to  me about  the  p rev ious day.  

MR HULLEY SC :    Now you wan ted to  exp la in  what  had  20 

happened on the  preced ing  day.  

COL MHLONGO:    Thank you,  Cha i rperson,  thank you fo r  

the  oppor tun i ty.   When Mr  Jouber t  came to  me,  he  came to  

me qu i te  upset  and sa id  –  and then he sa id  and I  quote ,  

sa id  to  me,  my f r iend,  you know,  tha t  on  a  number  o f  
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occas ions I  have been suspended and there  has been 

cases aga ins t  me ,  now I  am deep ly  wor r ied  tha t  th is  newly  

appo in ted  man,  Mr  Nxasana,  now wants  to  rev i ve  or  

resusc i ta te  a l l  those cases aga ins t  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you a lso  say Co lone l  tha t  he  sa id  to  

you he had been suspended on a  number  o f  occas ions and 

d ismissed when you were  speak ing  a  few minutes?  

COL MHLONGO:    Cha i r  i t  i s  jus t  tha t  we were  to ld  to  jus t  

go  in to  the  t ranscr ip t s  so  I  thought  I  wou ld  g ive  the  

background o f  where  th is  a l l  s ta r ted ,  because i t  d id  no t  10 

record  th is  loca t i on  when he came to  me,  he  on ly  recorded 

the  po r t ion  tha t  i s  now t ranscr ibed,  so  I  wanted to  g ive  the  

Commiss ion  a  background o f  what  had happened  before  

th is  conversa t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  you misunders tood my quest ion .   

About  th ree  minutes  ago you were  te l l ing  me what  Mr  

Jouber t  sa id  to  you about  Mr  Nxasana,  do  you remember  

tha t?   When you  spoke about  h im be ing  suspended on a  

number  o f  occas ions,  do  you remember  te l l ing  me tha t  a  

few minutes  ago?  20 

COL MHLONGO:    Yes I  remember.  

CHAIRPERSON:    My quest ion  is  whethe r  when you were  

say ing  tha t  a  few  minutes  ago you  a lso  sa id  he  sa id  he  had  

been suspended on a  number  o f  occas ions and d ismissed,  

so  the  quest ion  i s  whether  you a l so  inc luded tha t  he  sa id  
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he  had been d ism issed.  

COL MHLONGO:    Cha i r  perhaps  i t  i s  a  cho ice  o f  words  

tha t  I  have opted fo r,  I  d id  no t  mean d ismissed as  in  the  

s t r i c t  sense o f  the  word ,  I  mean t  she was suspended,  in  

o ther  words caused to  re f ra in  f rom h is  usua l  du t ies .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you conf i rm tha t  you d id  use –  you  

d id  say he  sa id  he  had been suspended on a  number  o f  

occas ions and d i smissed?  

COL MHLONGO:    I  con f i rm tha t  I  d id  use the  word  

perhaps by  m is take.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay no tha t  i s  f ine ,  I  jus t  wanted to  

c la r i f y  tha t  because your  in te rp re ta t ion  Mr  In te rpre ter  d id  

no t  inc lude tha t  word .  

 A l r igh t ,  Mr  Hu l ley  

ADV HULLEY SC:     Now Colone l  Mh longo you were  te l l ing  

us  about  what  wou ld  have happened on the  day p reced ing  

the  day on  wh ich  you had the  conversa t ion  tha t  i s  recorded 

and t ransc r ibed,  so  we are  ta lk ing  now about  on  your  

vers ion  a  conversa t ion  tha t  took p lace on the  24 t h  o f  

November  o f  2013,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?   20 

COL MHLONGO:    Yes tha t ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV  HULLEY SC:    Now in  th is  conversa t ion  you  say tha t  

he  had come to  you and he had ment ioned tha t  as  you 

know,  wh ich  presumably  he  is  say ing  you,  Co lone l  Mh longo 

know,  I  have been suspended on  severa l  occas ions,  you 
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used the  word  a lso  d ismissed but  fo r  p resent  pu rposes tha t  

i s  no t  re levant ,  he  ment ioned you know I  have been 

suspended on a  number  o f  occas ions and I  am deep ly  

concerned about  the  new Nat iona l  D i rec tor  o f  Pub l ic  

Prosecut ions,  do  I  unders tand tha t  par t  r igh t?  

COL MHLONGO:    That  i s  cor rec t  you had unders tood tha t  

we l l  and then he  cont inue,  he  then to ld  me tha t  he  was  

concerned about  the  new NDPP in  tha t  he  wanted to  

resusc i ta te  those  cases concern ing  to  h imse l f  tha t  be ing  

ment ioned there  and he a lso  ind ica ted  tha t  what  a lso  10 

bothered h im is  tha t  he  –  tha t  i s  Mr  Jouber t  had 

in fo rmat ion  a t  h is  d isposa l  concern ing  some cases tha t  the  

newly  appo in ted  NDPP then had had in  the  past  and then  

he sa id  to  me s ince I  am a  po l i ce  o f f i cer  I  do  have a t  my  

d isposa l  the  sources and the  ab i l i t y  to  commence  inqu i ry  

in to  those cases  tha t  the  newly  appo in ted  NDPP has had 

w i th  the  s ingu lar  in ten t ion  o f  d isc red i t ing  o r  expos ing  the  

d i r t  on  the  newly  appo in ted  NDPP.  

ADV HULLEY SC:     Now when  he spoke about  the  fac t  

tha t  he  was concerned tha t  the  new Nat iona l  D i rec to r  o f  20 

Pub l ic  Prosecut ions may resusc i ta te  the  cases aga ins t  h im,  

was he say ing  tha t  the  Nat iona l  D i rec to r  o r  tha t  somebody  

had sa id  tha t  to  h im tha t  the  Na t iona l  D i rec tor  o f  Pub l ic  

Prosecut ions in tended to  resusc i ta te  the  cases aga ins t  

h im,  o r  was he say ing  tha t  the  Na t iona l  D i rec tor  o f  Pub l ic  
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P rosecut ions had  to ld  h im tha t ,  o r  was he say ing  tha t  –  a 

th i rd  op t ion  –  tha t  he  had jus t  surmised tha t  th is  i s  what  

was go ing  on?  

COL MHLONGO:    He ind ica ted  Cha i r  tha t  he  was 

def in i te ly  sure  tha t  Mr  Nxasana was go ing  to  reopen those 

cases,  resusc i ta te  them as i t  were ,  and he had ind ica ted  

tha t  he  has heard  f rom peop le  f rom the  Nat iona l  Off i ce  in  

Pre tor ia  tha t  tha t  i s  what  Mr  Nxasana was go ing  to  do .  

ADV  HULLEY SC:    Now what  happened a f te r  tha t ,  so  he 

ment ioned to  you tha t  i t  was the  in ten t ion  – f rom the  10 

in fo rmat ion  tha t  he  had i t  was the  in ten t ion  o f  Mr  Nxasana  

to  resusc i ta te  the  cases and he ment ioned a lso  tha t  he  had  

found –  tha t  he  had found ce r ta in  in fo rmat ion  or  d i r t  on  Mr  

Nxasana tha t  he  wanted you as  a  po l i ce  o f f i cer  to  

invest iga te .  

COL MHLONGO:    Cha i r  he  ind ica ted  to  me tha t  s ince  he  

was work ing  in  the  R isk  and Secur i t y  Un i t  they  are  the  one 

tha t  –  the  ones tha t  were  respons ib le  fo r  ve t t ing  o f  peop le  

pr io r  to  the i r  appo in tment  and tha t  he  had ind i ca ted  to  me 

fu r ther  tha t  he  had gathered in fo rmat ion  in  the  capac i ty  o f  20 

be ing  in  the  r i sk  and secur i t y  to  tha t .   There  was a  case o f  

murder  aga ins t  the  Nat iona l  D i rec tor  o f  Pub l ic  Prosecut ions 

tha t  he ,  the  NDPP,  had not  d isc losed.  

ADV HULLEY SC:     And anyth ing  more  re la t ing  to  tha t  

conversa t ion  tha t  took p lace on the  24 t h  o f  March,  ag ,  the 
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24 t h  o f  November  tha t  i s  re levant  to  the  record ing  tha t  you  

wanted to  te l l  us  about .     

COL MHLONGO:    Yes Cha i rpe rson he fu r ther  ind ica ted  to  

me tha t  Mr  Nxasana wh i l s t  p rac t ic ing  as  an  a t to rney  he  had 

dea l t  w i th  the  Road Acc ident  Fund c la ims and tha t  there  

were  occas ions whereby when those c la ims were  pa id  ou t  

by  the  Road Acc ident  Fund and  there  were  ins tances  

whereby Mr  Nxasana d id  no t  pass those c la ims  to h is  

c l ien ts ,  the  rec ip ien t  o f  those c la ims,  and then he i nd ica ted  

to  me fu r ther  tha t  he  had peop le  tha t  he  had spoken  to  who 10 

were  go ing  to  be  ab le  to  ass is t  me in  tha t  regard  and 

peop le  wou ld  then be ab le  to  even ident i f y  those c l ien ts  

whose funds embezz led .  

ADV  HULLEY SC:    And was there  anyth ing  e lse  tha t  took  

p lace,  o r  anyth ing  e lse  tha t  i s  sa id  in  the  course  o f  tha t  

conversa t ion  tha t  i s  re levant  to  the  events  o f  the  25 t h  o f  

November?  

COL MHLONGO:   Cha i r  he  was over  and above th is  who le  

conversa t ion  ins is t ing  tha t  I  shou ld  move qu ick l y  in  

in i t ia t ing  th is  p rocess be fore  Mr  Nxasana commences w i th  20 

invest iga t ing  h im and thereby suspend ing  h im and to  quote  

h is  exact  words he was say ing  I  must  work  o r  move  sharp -

sharp .   

ADV HULLEY SC:    And th is  a l l  took  p lace o f  course  on the  

24 t h  o f  November?     
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COL MHLONGO:   Yes Cha i r  I  be l ieve  tha t  the  da te ,  even 

though I  cannot  say  w i th  u tmost  cer ta in ty  i t  i s  qu i te  some 

t ime tha t  has s ince  lapsed.   

ADV  HULLEY SC:    Now you were  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  the  

content  o f  the  t ranscr ip t ,  bu t  be fore  we dea l  w i th  the  

content  o f  the  t ransc r ip t  i s  there  anyth ing  e l se  in  respect  

o f  tha t  p rev ious conversa t ion ,  in  o ther  words the  one o f  the  

24 t h  o f  November,  tha t  i s  re levant  to  exp la in  what  you want  

to  exp la in  in  respect  o f  the  t ransfer  o f  the  25 t h  o f  

November?  10 

COL MHLONGO:    As  I  have ind ica ted  Cha i r  tha t  qu i te  

some t ime has lapsed s ince  th i s  inc ident  occu r red  but  

perhaps as  we go th rough the  t ranscr ip ts  perhaps o ther  

th ings w i l l  then come back to  me.  

ADV HULLEY SC:     Now I  had asked you where  he  says,  

go ing  back to  page 135,  when Mr  Jouber t  says ou r  th ing 

here  w i th  the  boss,  th is  i s  l ine  16 ,  what  i s  “ the  th ing  w i th  

the  boss ”  tha t  he  is  re fe r r i ng  to?  

COL MHLONGO:    He was re fer r ing  to  the  th ing  tha t  he  

had to ld  me the  prev ious day tha t  there  is  someone tha t  he  20 

knows f rom RAF.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Hu l ley  I  am not  sure  whether  we 

shou ld  go  in to  the  t ransc r ip t  because o f  the  t ime.    

Obv ious l y  i t  i s  tak ing  longer  than we thought  i t  wou ld  –  

par t  o f  i t  must  be  because the re  is  an  in te rpre te r,  who is  
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necessary  in  o rder  to  make su re  tha t  Co lone l  Mh longo  

unders tands every th ing .  

 I  th ink  tha t  we must  ad journ  and ar range a  da te  

when we w i l l  then go in to  the  t ranscr ip t .   But  I  th ink  –  I  

have jus t  been look ing  a t  the  t ranscr ip t  aga in  i t  may be 

tha t  what  may be  necessary  i s  to  le t  Co lone l  Mh longo te l l  

h is  s ide  o f  the  s to ry  on  what  happened,  inso far  as  he  might  

no t  have comple ted  do ing  so ,  as  he  had,  and then  put  Mr  

Jouber t ’s  vers ion  as  conta ined in  h is  a f f idav i t  ra ther  than 

the  t ranscr ip t ,  because the  ind is t inc t  and inaud ib le  and the  10 

gaps in  the  t ransc r ip t  m ight  make i t  d i f f i cu l t  bu t  i f  we –  

Co lone l  Mh longo has g iven us  h is  fu l l  vers ion  and you have 

been ab le  to  pu t  Mr  Jouber t ’s  ve rs ion  to  h im and  he has 

dea l t  w i th  tha t  then when we go to  the  t ranscr ip t  we wou ld  

be  do ing  so  w i th  an  unders tand ing  o f  the  vers ions  as  we 

see them in  the  a f f idav i t s .  

 I f  the  t ranscr ip t  en ta i l  so  many gaps i t  m igh t  have  

been eas ier  the  way I  thought  we wou ld  do  i t ,  so  I  am so r ry  

tha t  I  may have  taken you as t ray  by  suggest ing  what  I  

thought  wou ld  be  a  shor tcu t  bu t  I  rea l i se  I  th ink  there  a re  20 

too  many gaps,  because as  I  under  Co lone l  Mh longo ’s  

vers ion  i t  i s  suggested tha t  the  person who wan ted Mr  

Nxasana,  who wanted invest iga t ions to  be  done in to  Mr  

Nxasana was Mr  Jouber t  and  not  h im,  whereas Mr  

Jouber t ’s  vers ion  is  tha t  Co lone l  Mh longo to ld  h im  tha t  he 
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was invest iga t ing  in  e f fec t  Mr  Nxasana,  he  wanted to  f ind 

d i r t  on  h im hav ing  been asked I  th ink  by  Mr  Jouber t .  

 So when you go i n to  the  t ranscr ip t  you might  f ind  a  

l ine  tha t  m ight  ind ica te  what  was sa id ,  bu t  you might  f ind  

tha t  i t  says  we l l  we were  ta l k ing  about  th is  because th is  is  

what  he  had sa id  be fore ,  wh ich  we can ’ t  see because the 

t ranscr ip t  i s  no t  comple te .  

 So I  am th ink ing  tha t  tha t  m ight  be  be t te r.   What  do  

you th ink?  

ADV  HULLEY SC:     No,  no  I  th ink  there  is  mer i t  in  10 

dea l ing  w i th  the  a l legat ions tha t  Mr  –  Co lone l  Mh longo has  

g iven.   I  am fami l ia r  w i th  h is  a f f idav i t ,  so  I  know what  h is  

vers ion  is .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    And I  wou ld  imag ine  tha t  he  has  

l i s tened to  the  tes t imony o f  Mr  Jouber t ,  so  I  unders tand 

where  the  areas o f  d ispute  are .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    What  I  wanted to  dea l  w i th  p rev ious ly  

was to  ge t  in to  the  contex t  because I  unders tood tha t  th is  20 

record ing  captu res  a  po r t ion  o f  the  conversa t ion  bu t  no t  

the  en t i re  conversa t ion ,  and I  want  to  ge t  the  contex t  in  

wh ich  –  whatever  p receded i t ,  whe ther  i t  was p receded by  

–  on  the  same day or  be  i t  on  the  prev ious day,  whethe r  

tha t  –  what  was tha t  contex t  tha t  they had d iscussed.  



02 MARCH 2021 – DAY 353 
 

Page 297 of 299 
 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no ,  no ,  I  th ink  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV HULLEY SC:    I  th ink  perhaps we shou ld  ge t  –  

because I  unders tand what  the  vers ion  i s  and maybe when  

we reconvene we  can ac tua l l y  ge t  in to  tha t  contex t  aga in ,  

because we unders tand where  the  areas o f  d i spute  are .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Okay  le t  me ta lk  to  Co lone l  

Mh longo ’s  counse l .   Can you hear  me? 

ADV MANALA:    Yes we can hear  you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  am th ink ing  tha t  we  shou ld  

ad journ  a t  th is  s tage,  i t  i s  tak ing  longer  than I  may have 10 

thought  bu t  maybe i t  i s  because we have to  make room for  

the  in te rpre ter  and tha t  i s  f ine ,  because tha t  i s  impor tan t .  

 So I  am th ink ing  tha t  we shou ld  ad jou rn ,  maybe no t  

to  a  spec i f i c  da te  now because I  am not  sure  what  da te  I  

w i l l  g ive  you,  bu t  another  da te  be  ar ranged soon,  when we 

can cont inue and f in ish .   I s  tha t  f ine  w i th  you? 

ADV MANALA:   Yes Cha i r  we have no d i f f i cu l t y  w i t h  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  a l r i gh t ,  we  w i l l  ad journ  and 

the  –  i f  we choose a  da te  tha t  i s  c lose  then the  lega l  team 

wi l l  d iscuss w i th  you about  you r  ava i lab i l i t y  bu t  i f  we 20 

choose a  da te  tha t  we th ink  g i ves  you reasonab le  no t ice  

then we w i l l  jus t  f i x  tha t  da te ,  p robab ly  i t  wou ld  be  

even ing ,  bu t  i t  m igh t  –  ja  p robab ly  i t  wou ld  be  even ing ,  and 

then we cont inue.  

ADV MANALA:   Yes but  Cha i r  you wou ld  have noted thus 
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fa r  tha t  we have no d i f f i cu l t  w i th  do ing  the  sess ions,  

par t i cu la r l y  where  we a lso  have been permi t ted  to  appear  

remote ly,  i t  makes i t  very  easy in  te rms o f  p lann ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  no ,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   We wou ld  

cont inue w i th  the  same ar rangement  next  t ime.  

 Okay a l r igh t  then Mr  In te rpre ter  I  assume tha t  the  

lega l  team for  Co lone l  Mh longo w i l l  con tac t  you once a  

da te  i s  known so  you cou ld  make yourse l f  ava i lab le .  

Yes,  no ,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   We wou ld  cont inue w i th  the  same 

ar rangement  next  t ime.  10 

 Okay a l r igh t  then Mr  In te rpre ter  I  assume tha t  the  

lega l  team for  Co lone l  Mh longo w i l l  con tac t  you once a  

da te  i s  known so  you cou ld  make yourse l f  ava i lab le .  

INTERPRETER:  Very  we l l  Cha i r,  I  w i l l  do .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  we w i l l  ad jou rn  fo r  the  day and  

tomorrow I  w i l l  con t inue w i th  Eskom re la ted  ev idence.    

ADV HULLEY SC:     Thank you Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay thank you  to everybody fo r  s tay ing  

un t i l  th is  t ime so  tha t  we cou ld  cont inue w i th  –  or  hear  

Co lone l  Mh longo ’s  ev idence.  20 

 We ad journ .  

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 3  MARCH 2021  

 

 



02 MARCH 2021 – DAY 353 
 

Page 299 of 299 
 

 

 

 


